AGENDA

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING COMMISSION - REGULAR MEETING

November 5, 2018 7PM

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

PUBLIC REMARKS

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. September 24, 2018 Regular Meeting
B. October 8, 2018 Regular Meeting

C. October 22, 2018 Regular Meeting

COMMUNICATIONS

Jayson Chizick RE: Rezoning #18120

Jayson Chizick RE: Rezoning #18120

Jayson Chizick RE: Rezoning #18120

Jayson Chizick RE: Rezoning #18120

Eric Torng RE: Rezoning #18120

Eric Torng RE: Rezoning #18120

Eric Torng RE: Rezoning #18120

Eric Torng RE: Rezoning #18120

Wei Li & Yingxin Zhou RE: Rezoning #18120
Bingwei Xu RE: Rezoning #18120

Shu Zhang RE: Rezoning #18120

Pankaj Vij RE: Rezoning #18120

I[sabella Thompson-Orsua RE: Rezoning #18120
Fukang Wang RE: Rezoning #18120
Archana RE: Rezoning #18120

Hiroshi Tokashiki RE: Rezoning #18120
Dennis Reese RE: Rezoning #18120

Brian Mattes RE: Rezoning #18120

Steve Thomas RE: Rezoning #18120
Mukundan Agaram & Mythli Mukundan RE: Rezoning #18120
Yangfan Liu RE: Rezoning #18120

U. Viswanathan RE: Rezoning #18120

Rod Stumpf RE: Rezoning #18120

Steve Thomas RE: Rezoning #18120

Cindy X RE: Rezoning #18120

Qi Wua Fan RE: Rezoning #18120

Gang Teng RE: Rezoning #18120

EPNNXESCHYIOTOZIrAT I ZOMMOOWE

BB. Kathy Baldwin RE: Rezoning #18120

CC. Jane Li RE: Rezoning #18120

DD. Leigha RE: Rezoning #18120

EE. Dean McFarlane-Parrott RE: Rezoning #18120
FF. Alan Beretta RE: Rezoning #18120

GG. Teri & Roger Thornburg RE: Rezoning #18120
HH.  Molly Wingrove RE: Rezoning #18120

]
[

Chi & Vivien Lo RE: Rezoning #18120



AGENDA page 2

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

November 5, 2018 7:00 pm

1]. Denise Kane RE: Planned Unit Development #18014
KK. Peter Zawojski RE: Rezoning #18120

LL. Robert & Cynthia Reid RE: Rezoning #18120

MM.  Kirt Butler RE: Rezoning #18120

NN. Dianne & Tom Murphy RE: Rezoning #18120

00. Jeff Jacobsen RE: Rezoning #18120

PP. Kari Goulet RE: Rezoning #18120

QQ. Tim Goulet RE: Rezoning #18120

RR. Alpa & Samip Patel RE: Rezoning #18120

SS. Donald Martyn RE: Rezoning #18120

TT. David Raffo RE: Rezoning #18120

UU.  Armena Mazian RE: Rezoning #18120

VV. Michael & Betty Casby RE: Planned Unit Development #18014
WW. Dawn Kettinger RE: Planned Unit Development #18014
XX. Mark Bird RE: Rezoning #18120

YY. Nagraj Kota RE: Rezoning #18120

77. Himabindu Kota RE: Rezoning #18120

AAA. Geffrey Colon RE: Rezoning #18120

BBB. Petition RE: Rezoning #18120

CCC. Bennett Road Elementary parking diagram RE: Rezoning #18120
DDD. Lynne Page RE: Rezoning #18120

EEE. Petition RE: Planned Unit Development #18014

FFF.  Ralph Pyle RE: Special Use Permit #18081

GGG. Jessi Wortley Adler RE: Special Use Permit #18081

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Special Use Permit #18081 (Lafontaine Automotive Group), construct new
car dealership located at 1492, 1478, 1476, and 1448 Grand River Avenue.

B. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe LLC),
establish Newton Park mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD)
project consisting of 19,367 square feet of commercial space and 218
residential units at 6276 Newton Road.

C. Special Use Permit #18091 (Newton Pointe LLC), construct group of
buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size (approximately 264,684
total square feet) at 6276 Newton Road.

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A. Planned Unit Development #18014 (Haslett Road LLC), develop Copper

Creek PUD consisting of 88 single family homes on 44 acres located on the
north side of Haslett Road, east of Creekwood Lane.

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Principal Planner Peter Menser, 5151 Marsh Road,
Okemos, M1 48864 or 517.853.4576 - Ten Day Notice is Required.
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M1 48864 Township Hall

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. v N PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us



AGENDA page 2

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

November 5, 2018 7:00 pm

®©

OTHER BUSINESS - NONE

TOWNSHIP BOARD, PLANNING COMMISSION OFFICER, COMMITTEE CHAIR, AND
STAFF COMMENTS OR REPORTS

10. PROJECT UPDATES

0

A. New Applications - NONE
B. Site Plans Received
1. Site Plan Review #18-09 (Affinity 9), construct 4,534 square foot
Panera restaurant with drive-through window at 2080 Grand River
Avenue.
C. Site Plans Approved - NONE

11. PUBLIC REMARKS
12. ADJOURNMENT

TENTATIVE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA
November 26,2018

1. PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties LLC), construct 24,969
square foot new car dealership at 1614 & 1622 Grand River Avenue.
B. Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings), construct two multiple
family apartment buildings with a total of 15 units at 1730 Chief Okemos
Circle.

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. Special Use Permit #18081 (Lafontaine Automotive Group), construct new
car dealership located at 1492, 1478, 1476, and 1448 Grand River Avenue.

B. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe LLC),
establish Newton Park mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD)
project consisting of 19,367 square feet of commercial space and 218
residential units at 6276 Newton Road.

C. Special Use Permit #18091 (Newton Pointe LLC), construct group of
buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size (approximately 264,684
total square feet) at 6276 Newton Road .

3. OTHER BUSINESS
A. Commission Review #18133 (Meridian Township), Section 61 Review for

land preservation purchase located north of Biber Street, east of Towar
Avenue (Tax ID #06-226-001).

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Principal Planner Peter Menser, 5151 Marsh Road,
Okemos, M1 48864 or 517.853.4576 - Ten Day Notice is Required.
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, M1 48864 Township Hall

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. v N PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN DRAFT
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

September 24,2018
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198
517-853-4560, Town Hall Room, 7:00 P.M.

PRESENT: Commissioners Premoe, Shrewsbury, Trezise, Cordill, Scott-Craig, Ianni,
Stivers and Richards

ABSENT: Commissioner Lane

STAFF: Principal Planner Peter Menser

1. Call meeting to order

Chair Ianni called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.

2. Public Remarks- None

3. Approval of Agenda

Commissioner Scott-Craig moved to approve the agenda as written.
Supported by Commissioner Stivers.

VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.

4. Approval of Minutes

Commissioner Richards moved to approve the minutes from September 10, 2018.
Supported by Commissioner Trezise.

VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.

5. Communications

A. Michael W. Casby RE: PUD #18014

Principal Planner Menser noted no other communications were received.
6. Public Hearings- None

7. Unfinished Business- None

8. Other Business

A. 2018 Planning Commission goals

Principal Planner Menser gave an overview of the 2018 Planning Commission goals.

1. Form-based code
2. Accessory Dwelling Units



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft
September 24,2018
Page 2

e Principal Planner Menser suggested staff put together a draft ordinance and
present it to the Planning Commission for further discussion before a public
hearing is scheduled.

3. Revisions to Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map
e Principal Planner Menser outlined recommendations in the Master Plan.

4. Update Mixed Use Planned Unit Development (MUPUD) ordinance
e (Commissioner Scott-Craig suggested looking at past records, televised
meetings, and talking with people who created the ordinance to help
understand the purpose and intent behind those actions.
e Commissioners Scott-Craig, Trezise, and Shrewsbury expressed interest in
serving on the sub-committee
e Waivers for zoning are beneficial to developers but not necessarily to the
Township.
e The products of the ordinance are the projects. Site visits would help to
evaluate the final result of the project. (packet includes list of properties).
5. “Tiny” housing policy options
6. Training opportunities
e The Planning department has a budget for training opportunities.
Commissioners are encouraged to contact him if an opportunity is available.
Some examples could include: seminars, publications, and webinars.
7. Subject matter expert presentations
e Members of the Planning Commission suggested the following possible
topics: sustainable housing development, affordable housing trends, water
issues including storm water, sewage treatment, flooding and drain issues.
Meridian Mall trends and changing shopping habits, economic development,
urban planning, parking management trends, green space and changes in
grocery shopping habits as more stores offer order online and pick-up
service.
B. 2017 Future Land Use Map review

Principal Planner Menser shared map diagrams of Sections 3 and 4 of the Township. The first map
displayed current land uses. The second map displayed the future land use map with zoning.
Principal Planner Menser asked for feedback from the Planning Commission on identifying changes
and updating the map in preparation for the Master Plan Update in 2020.

9. Township Board, Planning Commission Officer, Committee Chair, and staff comments or
Reports- None



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft
September 24,2018

Page 3
10. Project Updates
A. New Applications - NONE
B Site Plans Received
1. Site Plan Review #18-95-14 (Lansing Mart Associates LLC), revisions to parking lot

at 2020 Grand River Avenue.
2. Site Plan Review #06-08 (River Terrace Church), revisions to approved landscape
plan at 1509 River Terrace Drive.
C. Site Plans Approved - NONE
11. Public Remarks- None
12. Adjournment
Commissioner Premoe moved to adjourn the meeting.
Supported by Commissioner Richards.
VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.
Chair Ianni adjourned the regular meeting at 8:35 P.M.

Respectfully Submitted,

Debbie Budzynski
Recording Secretary



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN DRAFT
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

October 8,2018
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198
517-853-4560, Town Hall Room, 7:00 P.M.

PRESENT: Commissioners Premoe, Shrewsbury, Trezise, Cordill, Scott-Craig, Ianni,
Stivers, Richards and Lane

ABSENT: None

STAFF: Principal Planner Peter Menser and Park Naturalist Kelsey Dillon

OTHERS

PRESENT: Land Preservation Advisory Board Chair Jon Mayes

1. Call meeting to order

Chair Ianni called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.

2. Public Remarks- None

3. Approval of Agenda

Principal Planner Menser requested to add 8. E MUPUD Review to the meeting agenda.
Commissioner Scott-Craig moved to approve the addition of the new agenda item and the agenda as
written.

Supported by Commissioner Premoe.

VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.

4. Approval of Minutes

September 24, 2018 Not Available

5. Communications- None

6. Public Hearings- None

7. Unfinished Business- None

8. Other Business

A. Commission Review #18113 (Meridian Township), Section 61 Review of the location,

character, and extent of a 3.4 acre Land Preservation purchase located at 3663 Stagecoach
Drive.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft
October 8,2018
Page 2

Principal Planner Menser outlined the proposed land preservation donation and then introduced
Kelsey Dillon, Meridian Township Stewardship Coordinator/Parks Naturalist and Jon Mayes, Chair
of the Meridian Township Land Preservation Advisory Board, to address further questions or
concerns the Planning Commission may have.

Kelsey Dillon provided an overview of land preservation projects over the last year. Ms. Dillon
stated the Ponderosa Land Preserve is a 92 acre parcel south of Legg Park and the proposed
property is adjacent to and separated by the railroad which makes it a nice extension for current
wildlife and also contains many hardwood trees and ponds. The proposed 3.4 acre parcel includes
a 1 acre Consumers Power easement. The members of the Land Preservation Advisory Board
determined the proposed land would be an excellent addition to the current land preserve.

Commissioner Premoe moved to adopt the resolution approving the Section 61 Review.
Supported by Commissioner Stivers.

VOICE VOTE:

YEAS: Commissioners Premoe, Stivers, Richards, Lane, Shrewsbury, Trezise, Cordill, Scott-Craig,
and Chair Ianni

NAYS: None

MOTION CARRIED: 9-0

B. Urban Service Boundary amendment process

Principal Planner Menser stated the Township Board discussed during their October 2, 2018
meeting the process to review requests to extend utilities outside of the Urban Service Boundary
(USB). The Board agreed to send these requests to the Planning Commission for consideration
using the Section 61 review process.

Principal Planner Menser asked for suggestions on how requests would be handled in the future.
The Master Plan process is a long and drawn out process and very labor intensive.

Commissioner Lane asked about the process to review future requests and Prinicpal Planner
Menser stated the criteria would be reviewed under the Master Plan and Section 61 process.

Commissioner Scott-Craig mentioned the possible complications of evaluating character and extent
when reviewing requests relating to personal property under the Section 61 process.

Commissioner Trezise commented on the amount of time the process would take during a review.

Commissioner Lane wanted to know if a zoning ordinance could be amended to create a procedure
in order to be responsive to residents in the community when a request to extend utilities outside
the urban service boundary (USB) is submitted.

Commissioner Stivers mentioned changes coming to the county level regarding septic inspections.
In the past septic inspections took place when a home was listed for sale but she has learned septic
inspections will happen every ten years. Maybe this will impact Meridian Township residents in
the future who want to look into connecting to Township sewer utilities.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft
October 8,2018
Page 3

C. 2017 Future Land Use Map review: Sections 3 & 4

Principal Planner Menser reviewed areas to be addressed in 2020 Future Land Use Map update and
will create a list to date documenting properties proposed for change.

D. 2017 Future Land Use Map review: Sections 5 & 6

Principal Planner Menser and his staff used Google maps with zoning maps. He stated they are not
obligated to match existing land use with future land use categories. Consider the future of the
areas based on developments or other potential scenarios.

E. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development (MUPUD)

Principal Planner Menser mentioned the subcommittee will meet at 6:00pm before the next
Planning Commission meeting on October 22, 2018. Commissioners Scott-Craig, Trezise, and
Stivers have volunteered to be on the subcommittee. The meeting is open to the public as well.

9. Township Board, Planning Commission Officer, Committee Chair, and staff comments or
Reports

Commissioner Richards attended the Transportation Committee Meeting on September 27t. Local
road conditions were discussed.

Commissioner Premoe attended the Environmental Commission Meeting on October 3rd and was
happy to report a new member who is a Junior at Okemos High School has joined the commission.

Commissioner Scott-Craig attended the September 25t Brownfield Authority Meeting along with
other Township and County staff to discuss the current Brownfield project (Elevation) and the
additional acquisition to expand the Elevations development and adding an additional Brownfield
project. Additional discussion involved if the county would transfer the property to the Township
and additional Brownfield projects would also be coming in the future.

Commissioner Stivers stated the Downtown Development Authority postponed their meeting and
rescheduled it for October 10t to review the TIF Plan.

Commissioner Scott-Craig noted his attendance at the Meridian Leadership Group breakfast meeting
with MSU Athletic Director Bill Beekman.

10. Project Updates

A. New Applications - NONE
B. Site Plans Received
1. Site Plan Review #18-95-14 (Fred Piette Co. Inc.), 200 square foot building addition

and parking lot reconfiguration at 4876 Marsh Road.

C. Site Plans Approved

1. Site Plan Review #18-95-14 (Lansing Mart Associates LLC), revisions to parking lot
at 2020 Grand River Avenue.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft
October 8,2018
Page 4

2. Site Plan Review #06-08 (River Terrace Church), revisions to approved landscape
plan at 1509 River Terrace Drive.

11. Public Remarks- None

12. Adjournment

Commissioner Premoe moved to adjourn the meeting.
Supported by Commissioner Scott-Craig.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

Chair Ianni adjourned the regular meeting at 8:18 P.M.

Respectfully Submitted,

Debbie Budzynski
Recording Secretary



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN DRAFT
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

October 22,2018
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198
517-853-4560, Town Hall Room, 7:00 P.M.

PRESENT: Commissioners Premoe, Shrewsbury, Trezise, Scott-Craig, Stivers, Richards
and Lane

ABSENT: Commissioners Ianni, Cordill

STAFF: Director of Community Planning & Development Mark Kieselbach, Principal

Planner Peter Menser, Economic Development Director Chris Buck and
Meridian Township Fire Inspector Tavis Millerov

1. Call meeting to order
Vice Chair Scott-Craig called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.

2. Public Remarks

A. Denise Kane, 5600 Creekwood LN, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development
#18014.

B. Dawn Kettinger, 5600 Creekwood LN, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development
#18014.

C. Christina Morey, 5609 Creekwood LN, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development
#18014.

D. Brian Dyke, 486 Haslett Road, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development #18014.

E Michael Casby, 5624 Creekwood LN, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development
#18014.

F. Kristen Hood, 5636 Creekwood LN, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development
#18014.

G. Randy Kindy, 5642 Creekwood LN, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development
#18014.

3. Approval of Agenda

Commissioner Premoe moved to approve the agenda as written.
Supported by Commissioner Trezise.

VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.

4. Approval of Minutes

October 8, 2018-Regular Meeting-Not Available
September 24, 2018-Regular Meeting-Not Available



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft
October 22,2018
Page 2

5. Communications

Principal Planner Menser noted there were 31 communications received relating to Rezoning
#18120 (Bennet Road Holding LLC) and 8 communications received relating to the Copper Creek
proposal as of October 19, 2018 when the Planning Commission Meeting Packets were assembled.
He further noted that hard copies of the communications were distributed to the Planning
Commission at their places on the dais prior to tonight's meeting and would be included on the
agenda for the November 5, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting.

6. Public Hearings

A. Rezoning #18120 (Bennet Road Holding LLC), rezone approximately 96.74 acres located on
the north side of Bennett Road, east of Hagadorn Road from RR (Rural Residential), RAA

(Single Family, Low Density), and RAAA (Single Family-Low Density) to RA (Single Family-
Medium Density).

Vice Chair Scott Craig opened the public hearing at 7:18 p.m.

Principal Planner Menser thanked the residents who took the time to attend the public hearing
tonight before he provided a staff summary of the rezoning request. Seven parcels are involved in
the request. Clarification was made regarding the Schultz Veterinary Clinic not being proposed for
rezoning as there was some confusion with the map that was in the staff report.

Principal Planner Menser reviewed how the rezoning and public notification process and noted
there will be public comment opportunities throughout this process and encouraged residents to
continue with written communication or attending public hearings. The best way to stay connected
is by visiting the Meridian Township Website as no further written communication will be mailed.

Mr. David Straub introduced himself as well as the owner of Mayberry Homes, Mr. Robert
Schroeder. Mr. Jeff Kyes of KEBS Civil Engineering and Land Surveying was also in attendance for
support as well as the Sturk and Schultz families who are owners of the land being considered for
rezoning.

The applicant said his company would like to change the zoning in order to allow for more
flexibility in land planning for home designs while taking into consideration wetland boundaries,
natural features of the area, mature trees and the availability of water and sewer service.

Public Comments

Larry McCurdy, 2710 Sophiea Pkwy, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.
Mukundan Agaram, 2683 LaForest Circle, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.
Srinvasa Vyyuri, 2573 Sophiea Pkwy, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Kirt Butler, 4279 Shadow Ridge, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Charles Jones, 2654 Creekstone Trail, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.
Norman Grannemann, 2628 Creekstone Trail, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.
Benjamin Bushong, 4368 Aztec Way, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Katen Patel, 2708 LaForet Circle, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Lynne Page, 3912 Raleigh Drive, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Dana Flink, 2717 Spohiea Pkwy, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

TrIommoowE



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft
October 22,2018
Page 3

Jing Ting, Usiak Circle, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Eric Torng, 4138 Benca Way, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Daniel McCole, 4137 Benham Way, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Jill Stephenson-McCole, 4137 Benham Way, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Jim Galligan, 4367 Aztec Way, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Prabode Weebadde, 2721 Sophiea Pkwy, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Steve Thomas, 2372 Sower, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Jayson Chizick, 2695 Sophiea Pkway, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Chris Wrede, Sophiea Pkway, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

Jasim Mir, 4289 Shadow Ridge, left before he could speak in opposition to Rezoning
#18120.

Karen Grannemann, 2628 Creekstone Trail, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.
Laurence Christensen, 4249 Hidden Meadows Ct, spoke in opposition to Rezoning #18120.

AvrmEmovozZIER

==

Planning Commissioner Discussion

Commissioner Trezise expressed concerns with the potential increased traffic volume in the area
and how future building would impact the wetlands in the area.

Commissioner Premoe stated he is on the fence regarding the proposed rezoning and noted with
developmental changes there are gains and sacrifices. He also shares in the concerns relating to
water issues for the existing area and how future building would impact the proposed area.

Commissioner Richards reminded everyone that the property can be developed as it is currently
zoned. He stated the rezoning request is asking for more density than properties in the surrounding
area. The drainage is another concern for this community.

Commissioner Lane reminded everyone there is no current site plan being submitted and no one
should speculate on what may be developed. He stated the RA zoning does not fit with the area.

Commissioner Stivers shared concerns with the increased density and issues with drainage as well
as more pressure on the wetlands.

Commissioner Shrewsbury also stated the developer has the right to develop the land but noted it
is important to listen to the concerns of the current residents regarding flooding and density so
problems do not get worse.

Vice-Chair Scott-Craig stated RA zoning is too dense and it doesn’t agree with the close surrounding
area but mentioned both zonings agree with the master plan. He also stated the environmental

concerns are very important.

A straw poll indicated the Planning Commission would be recommending denial of the rezoning
request to the Township Board at its November 5th meeting.

Vice-Chair Scott-Craig closed the public hearing at 8:50 p.m.

The Planning Commission held a five-minute recess while residents left the room after the
public hearing.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft
October 22,2018
Page 4

7. Unfinished Business

A. Planned Unit Development #18014 (Haslett Road LLC), develop Copper Creek PUD

consisting of 88 single family homes on 44 acres located on the north side of Haslett Road,
east of Creekwood Lane.

Principal Planner Menser provided updates on the revised site plan submitted by Mayberry Homes
since the August 27, 2018 Planning Commission Meeting. The natural buffer was increased to 75
feet along the western border. The revised PUD includes a vehicular connection to Wood Knoll
Drive. The open space was increased to 20.41 acres and the lot count was decreased to 88 homes.

Principal Planner Menser noted Meridian Township Fire Inspector Tavis Millerov reviewed the
project and concluded that a second road into the development is required and Tavis was in
attendance in case anyone had questions for him tonight.

The Director of Community Planning and Development Mark Kieselbach provided an overview of a
court case in 1988 regarding a previous development for the property. The Township denied a plat
because of sight distance and was sued by the applicant at the time. The Township appealed and
the case was heard by the State Supreme Court. Director Kieselbach concluded the issue was not
related to the sight distance but rather the authority of the Township to require a second access
point for the development.

Following comments by the Planning Commission, a straw poll indicated the Planning Commission
would be in favor of considering a resolution to recommend approval of Planned Unit Development
#18014 to the Township Board at its next meeting.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

YEAS: Commissioners Premoe, Shrewsbury, Trezise, Lane, Richards and Vice-Chair Scott-Craig
NAYS: Commissioner Stivers

MOTION CARRIES: 6-1

8. Other Business

A. 2019 Meeting Schedule.

Principal Planner Menser proposed the 2019 schedule and it was approved. He also asked for
feedback regarding possibly changing the meeting times but the decision of the group resulted in
maintaining the same start time of 7P.M.

Commissioner Trezise moved to approve the 2019 Meeting Schedule as proposed.

Supported by Commissioner Shrewsbury.
VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft
October 22,2018
Page 5

B. 2018 Goals: Subject matter expert presentations.

Principal Planner Menser asked for feedback from the Planning Commission regarding having guest
speakers and once per quarter was mentioned as a possible option. Some topics of interest
mentioned were having a housing expert speak about trends and senior living housing planning for
baby boomer needs. The Ingham County Drain Commissioner also mentioned as a potential
speaker.

9. Township Board, Planning Commission Officer, Committee Chair, and staff comments or
Reports-None

10. Project Updates

A. New Applications - None

B Site Plans Received
1. Site Plan Review #18-86-16 (Kelly Ley), building exterior and parking lot upgrades
for new tenant Firestone Complete Auto Care at 2700 Grand River Avenue.

C. Site Plans Approved- None

11. Public Remarks

A. Michael Casby, 5624 Creekwood LN, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development
#18014.

B. Randy Kindy, 5642 Creekwood LN, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development
#18014.

12. Adjournment

Commissioner Premoe moved to adjourn the meeting.

Supported by Commissioner Scott-Craig.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

Vice-Chair Scott-Craig adjourned the regular meeting at 9:48 P.M.
Respectfully Submitted,

Debbie Budzynski
Recording Secretary



Peter Menser

From: Jayson Chizick <chizick@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, October 08, 2018 8:29 PM
To: Sara Chizick; Peter Menser

Subject: Sophiea Parkway zoning changes

Dear Mr. Menser:

I am concerned that the township may have redevelopment plans and a hearing scheduled without adequate
notice to those who may be affected by the proposed changes. Rather than hearing about this from neighbors, I
expect that the township would take seriously the responsibility to inform residents. I understand that a hearing
is scheduled for 10/22/18. Please confirm and advise if there is an opportunity for residents to review the
complete proposed plans, with accompanying statements from the developer prior to this meeting.

Thank you,

Jayson Chizick



Peter Menser

From: Jayson Chizick <chizick@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 09, 2018 8:46 AM
To: Peter Menser; Sara Chizick

Subject: Re: Sophiea Parkway zoning changes
Attachments: image003.jpg

Hi Peter,

First, thank you for taking the time to respond to my email. I imagine you are very busy with calls and emails
on this issue, and I will not take too much of your time. Sara and I did not receive a letter as of yet. Our property
is 2695 Sophiea Parkway, so we are relatively close to the parcel, and may be impacted by traffic and drainage
issues. I am less concerned about alleged promises made by other developers or builders to Champion Woods
homeowners, and more concerned about the traffic and drainage problems that could arise. I will be in
attendance at the meeting. Is there any chance that the rezoning materials will be made available at the
meeting?

Thank you as well for clarifying the process and current status of the issue. I misunderstood where things
stand.

Have a great day,
Jayson Chizick

On Tue, Oct 9, 2018 at 8:29 AM Peter Menser <menser @ meridian.mi.us> wrote:

Jayson,

Thanks for writing. In accordance with state law, the Township published a legal notice and sent out
letters to all property owners within 300 feet of the property proposed for rezoning notifying them of
the upcoming public hearing. The letters and notice are attached. Did you receive a letter? Also, I just
want to be clear that the Township does not have any development plans for the property, but instead it
is a company that has applied to the Township for consideration of a rezoning of the property.

As is typical with a rezoning, plans were not required nor submitted for any development of the
property. This process is focused on determining the appropriate zoning of the property. If and when a
development project is proposed on the property detailed plans will be available to the public for
review. We do have application materials related to the rezoning that are available here at my office for
review.

[ am available to answer any questions you may have about the proposal or upcoming public hearing.



Peter Menser

From: Jayson Chizick <chizick@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 11:02 AM
To: Peter Menser

Cc: Sara Chizick

Subject: Re: Sophiea Parkway zoning changes
Peter,

Thank you for your response and for the follow up to verify notification requirements for our property. Please
confirm that Champion Woods Condominium Association was formally notified, as the Association is the
owner of the property beyond the individual association members property lines.

Thank you,

Jayson Chizick

On Wed, Oct 17, 2018 at 10:54 AM Peter Menser <menser @ meridian.mi.us> wrote:

Jayson and Sara,

[ double checked it this morning and your property is just outside of the noticing area. [ am confident
that we complied with state law notification requirements. Just for your consideration, I often hear from
property owners that they do not think we notified enough properties, but state law is very clear on
what is required. We can't decide on a project by project basis who should or should not be notified of a
proposal, as standard practice we stick with the state law (300 feet from boundary of subject property)
and nothing further as it provides a very clear standard. You will find this is the case in other
communities as well. If you would like to see the Township provide noticing beyond the state law
requirement, say 1,000 feet notification for every proposal, you should share that with the Planning
Commission and Township Board as this project progresses.

If you have any further questions please let me know.

-Peter

" Peter Menser

I
w /' Principal Planner

A Prime Community ~ enser@meridian.mi.us

517.853.4576



Peter Menser

From: Jayson Chizick <chizick@gmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2018 9:24 AM

To: Peter Menser

Cc: Eric Torng; Jingjing Chang; Krista Grettenberger; Steve Delp; Uday Korganiji;
championwoodsokemos@gmail.com

Subject: Re: Request for postponement discussion of requested rezoning

Peter,

Respecting this as a legal process, when there is a serious question of adequate notice to the correct property
owner, I would have thought the township would err on the side of providing notice. The condo association
board has rules about meetings that likely could not have produced a response on a timely basis.

Personally, I appreciate the desire of the applicant to get things moved through the process as quickly as
possible. That does not obviate the duties of the township to be responsive government to established

homeowners.

On Thu, Oct 18, 2018 at 9:01 AM Peter Menser <menser @ meridian.mi.us> wrote:

Eric and neighbors,

A rezoning is a legal process, the procedures for which are outlined in both state and local law. The
applicant has paid an application fee to rezone the property, a legal notice was posted in the newspaper,
and letters have been sent out. It isn’t as simple as skipping ahead to November 5... we would have to
halt this current process, send out a new batch of notices, and post a new ad in the newspaper. At the
earliest, we would have to re-schedule for November 26. If the Township had make a mistake in
noticing the public hearing [ would stop this process and re-schedule the public hearing without
hesitation. We owe it to the applicant and to the dozens of neighbors that have already told me they will
be attending to honor the established public hearing date.

It is standard practice for the meeting packets of both the Planning Commission and Township Board, as
well as the 14 other Township boards and commissions, to be sent out the Friday before the meetings
scheduled for the following week. The members of those groups are able to review the contents and
consider the agenda items without concern. I am confident your condo association board will have time
to digest the staff memo on the rezoning as it will be reasonably short and comprised of mostly maps
and tables. The crucial time will be at the public hearing itself and the meetings that follow. I will be
available on Monday should you have any questions or wish to discuss the contents of the staff

memo. Further, I can be available any time after the public hearing to meet or speak with your condo
association or any of its members.



Peter Menser

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Dear Mr. Menser,

etorng@gmail.com

Wednesday, October 17, 2018 12:59 PM

Peter Menser

championwoodsokemos@gmail.com; 'Jingjing Chang’; 'Steve Delp'; 'Uday Korganji';
'Krista Grettenberger’; 'Jayson Chizick'

Request for postponement discussion of requested rezoning

As the Champion Woods Condominium Association, which is distinct from Champion Woods LLC, has not received any
official notice of the proposed rezoning of the property neighboring our property, the Champion Woods Condominium
Association requests a postponement of the discussion of the proposed rezoning as we have not had sufficient time to
review any documents or initiate a discussion among all the Champion Woods Condominium Association members. We
also would appreciate having notice sent to our current location which is listed below.

Sincerely,

Eric Torng

Champion Woods CA Board President

4138 Benca Way
Okemos, M| 48864
517-944-5179

From: Peter Menser <menser@meridian.mi.us>

Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 11:29 AM

To: Jayson Chizick <chizick@gmail.com>

Cc: Sara Chizick <sarachizick@gmail.com>; etorng@gmail.com
Subject: RE: Sophiea Parkway zoning changes

Our ownership records show Champion Woods, LLC at that address. Maybe that is the mailing address
for the condo association, I am not sure.

A Prime Community

Peter Menser

Principal Planner
menser@meridian.mi.us
517.853.4576

5151 Marsh Road | Okemos, MI 48864
meridian.mi.us

From: Jayson Chizick [mailto:chizick@gmail.com]
Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 11:24 AM

To: Peter Menser
Cc: Sara Chizick

Subject: Re: Sophiea Parkway zoning changes



Peter Menser

From: etorng@gmail.com

Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 1:35 PM

To: Peter Menser

Cc: championwoodsokemos@gmail.com; 'Jingjing Chang’; 'Steve Delp'; 'Uday Korganji';
'Krista Grettenberger’; 'Jayson Chizick'

Subject: RE: Request for postponement discussion of requested rezoning

Dear Mr. Menser,

Thank you for your prompt reply. Given that the Planning commission has another meeting scheduled so soon
afterwards (November 5), we believe it is in the best interests of all parties to delay the first step of this process to that
meeting. | believe that the goal of such a process is to ensure that all interested parties have full ability to participate in
the entire process, not just later steps of the process. Delaying the start of the process by two weeks to ensure that all
parties have such a chance seems a minimal inconvenience. As a public servant, of which we are members of the public
that you serve, we respectfully ask you to postpone the discussion to the next Planning Committee meeting.

Sincerely,

Eric Torng

Champion Woods CA Board President
4138 Benca Way

Okemos, M| 48864

517-944-5179

From: Peter Menser <menser@meridian.mi.us>

Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 1:26 PM

To: etorng@gmail.com

Cc: championwoodsokemos@gmail.com; 'Jingjing Chang' <jingjing.changl@gmail.com>; 'Steve Delp'
<delpstev@gmail.com>; 'Uday Korganji' <uday.korganji@gmail.com>; 'Krista Grettenberger'
<kggrettenberger@gmail.com>; 'Jayson Chizick' <chizick@gmail.com>

Subject: RE: Request for postponement discussion of requested rezoning

Eric (and neighbors),

[ started responding to your previous email, but will instead respond here. [ understand your concerns,
but we are not going to postpone the public hearing for the rezoning. Our noticing of the rezoning
request was done correctly and in accordance with state law. The Township should have been notified
when the developer turned the open space property in Champion Woods over to the condo association; it
was the responsibility of the developer/association to do so. Typically a HOA/condo board will list the
address of their Treasurer or other officer with the municipality to ensure bills are received, taxes are
paid, etc. In this case unfortunately that did not happen as our official tax rolls show Champion Woods
LLC at 3695 Okemos Road as the owners of the property. The Township correctly sent notices to the
property owner listed on our tax records. We have already noticed the rezoning and are proceeding
toward a public hearing on Monday, October 22.



Peter Menser

From: Eric Torng <etorng@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 8:28 PM

To: Peter Menser

Cc: championwoodsokemos@gmail.com; 'Jingjing Chang'; 'Steve Delp'; 'Uday Korganji’;
'Krista Grettenberger’; 'Jayson Chizick'

Subject: RE: Request for postponement discussion of requested rezoning

Dear Mr. Menser,
Thank you for the advice.

Just one comment. We are very disappointed that the township could not grant this seemingly minor delay so that we
could be better prepared for the start of the process. Note, the issue is less about whether the Township followed the
letter of the state law but instead the spirit of the law and trying to minimize harm to any group. | do not see how a two
week delay would significantly harm the developer of this project (the North Pointe project by the same developer
seemingly has sold only 3 homes this entire year; a 2 week delay at the start of the process would hardly present them
with any significant inconvenience) whereas it would provide significant benefit to our neighborhood and perhaps other
interested parties too. For example, as you have noted, you plan to provide us with a memo on the rezoning proposal
that would be available Friday afternoon which is only a very short time before the meeting itself. Would not all parties
benefit from having more time to review the memo before the meeting so that the meeting can proceed more
productively with everyone having enough time to digest the information in your memo?

We ask you to again reconsider this decision in the interests of minimizing harm and ensuring that the process proceeds
as smoothly and productively as possible.

Sincerely,

Eric Torng

Champion Woods CA Board President
4138 Benca Way

Okemos, M| 48864

517-944-5179

From: Peter Menser <menser@meridian.mi.us>

Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 5:31 PM

To: etorng@gmail.com

Cc: championwoodsokemos@gmail.com; 'Jingjing Chang' <jingjing.changl@gmail.com>; 'Steve Delp'
<delpstev@gmail.com>; 'Uday Korganji' <uday.korganji@gmail.com>; 'Krista Grettenberger'
<kggrettenberger@gmail.com>; 'Jayson Chizick' <chizick@gmail.com>

Subject: RE: Request for postponement discussion of requested rezoning

Good afternoon everyone,

The Township is going to proceed with holding the public hearing on the rezoning at the Monday,

October 22 Planning Commission meeting. [ was able to speak with the Township Manager this

afternoon and he agreed we need to move ahead. [ am confident that the Township followed state law
1



Peter Menser

From: etorng@gmail.com

Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2018 12:53 PM

To: Peter Menser

Cc: '‘Uday Korganiji'; Jingjing Chang’; 'Steve Delp'; 'Krista Grettenberger’; ‘Jayson Chizick’;
kalamc@ameritech.net; 'Bill MacLeod'; '‘Comcast’

Subject: FW: Champion Woods Common Land and LARA

Dear Mr. Menser,

| just received this email from Scott Fairmont (excerpted below), who | understand you have spoken with. As this email
indicates, it is NOT clear that the Township has properly notified Champion Woods, LLC of the rezoning hearing.
Specifically
e Champion Woods, LLC had updated their address which the Township’s Treasurer office is aware of, but the
notice was apparently sent to the wrong address.
e |tis also unclear it was sent to the wrong address as Bill MacLeod should have received the notice if it was, and
he has not.
¢ Finally, as noted by Scott’s email, the first Champion Woods Master Deed was filed and thus the Township was
notified of the transfer of property but somehow did not update their records.
With all of this, it is not clear that all the owners have been notified as required by law and thus calls into question the
timing of this first Planning Committee meeting.

We respectfully request again that this item should not be discussed at next Monday’s planning meeting but should be
delayed to a later date.

Thank you for your consideration,

Eric Torng

Champion Woods CA Board President
4138 Benca Way

Okemos, M| 48864

517-944-5179

From: Scott Fairmont <sfairmont@icloud.com>

Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2018 12:09 PM

To: Daniel McCole <mccoleda@anr.msu.edu>; Eric Torng <etorng@gmail.com>; Kathy McCurdy
<kalamc@ameritech.net>

Cc: Bill MacLeod <billm@cb-hb.com>

Subject: Champion Woods Common Land and LARA

Hello Dan, Eric, Larry

First of all, thank you for informing me about the zoning change request on the Sturk property. As Champion Woods,
LLC, you should know that | changed our mailing address with the Township's Treasurer's office, but somehow that
change never made it to whichever Department sent out the notices, so | never received the notice. The Township says
they sent it to the CB-HB Okemos Office, but if that office received it in the mail, they would have forwarded it to Bill

1



MaclLeod and Bill says he never saw it. Anyway, I've asked the Township to figure out who sends their notices and to
make sure that Champion Woods, LLC notices are sent to me. I'll forward any notices | receive to you.

Second, | have absolutely no idea why the Township still shows Champion Woods, LLC as the owner of the Champion
Woods Condominium Association common land. This land was conveyed to the Association with the recording of the
first Champion Woods Master Deed. Obviously, the change in ownership was missed by the assessors office. There are
no specific property taxes on the common land. The taxes for the common land are included in the assessed value of
each individual Champion Woods property. Each unit owns their specific unit plus and equal and undivided interest in
the common land. Champion Woods, LLC does not get a property tax bill for the common land.

Third, | have asked our attorney and engineer to prepare a deed for the common land and Champion Woods LLC will
quit claim our ownership to the Champion Woods Condominium Association. Frankly, I've developed about ten
condominiums in Meridian Township and NEVER had to execute a separate deed for the common land as it has always
been done through the master deed, but since it wasn't done with Champion Woods, we will do what we can to
facilitate the change of ownership.

Scott Fairmont



From: Wei Li, Assistant Professor at Michigan State University
Yingxin Zhou, Equities Trader
To: Mr. Peter Menser, Principal Planner, Meridian Charter Township
Re: Open Sophiea PKWY to Bennett Road (Rezoning #18120)
Date: October 18, 2018

Dear Mr. Menser,

We live on Sophiea Pkwy, Okemos, Michigan. We were unaware of the notice regarding Meridian
Charter Township rezoning #18120 until yesterday which is October 17, 2018. We are surprised by the
proposal and would like to express our concerns.

We made the decision to build a house in Champion Woods (CW) and moved in Mid 2015. The major
reasons we picked CW were 1) It is close to Bennett Woods Elementary School. 2) Itis a closed
subdivision with only a single outlet and little traffic so we feel safe to let our kids play outside.

We are very concerned about the rezoning proposal because 1). It will make Sophiea Pkwy open to the
public and change our peaceful neighborhood into another busy street that everyone can use as
shortcut. Based on the Traffic Assessment provided by the Township, the new proposal would increase
the traffic on Sophiea Pkwy almost six times, leading to serious concern over the safety of our children
and pedestrians alike. 2). Increased number of housing units will cause increased water drainage into
CW neighborhood, raising concerns of flooding.

We strongly object to the rezoning proposal and would hope the staff from your office will address the
concerns from us residents.

Sincerely,

Wei Li
Yingxin Zhou



Peter Menser

From: wei bing <bingwei_xu@hotmail.com>

Sent: Saturday, October 20, 2018 1:02 AM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Re: Rezoning on Sophiea PKWY to Bennett Road (Rezoning #18120)

Dear Mr. Menser,

[ am a homeowner in Champion Woods neighborhood where Sophiea Pkwy is, in Okemos, Michigan. I heard there
is a notice regarding Meridian Charter Township rezoning #18120 and call for meetings and comments on
October 22nd, 2018.

[ moved in Okemos area 5 years ago when my son and daughter are approaching school age. My wife and I did a
lot of research in the areas and was very much attracted by Champion Woods neighborhood. It is a secluded
neighborhood so my children can play safely and it is also in walking distance from Bennett woods Elementary
and close enough to middle school and high schools.

As result of this location advantage, a lot of families with school age children are in the community. Our neighbors
are conscientious and watch out for each other because we are able to keep our community relatively closed. The
traffic in the neighborhood is limited and families are driving responsibly here. Our kids are safe when they are
playing on the streets. They feel comfortable because they know who lives here and who they can play with. That
was top reason my son got in love with this community when we first moved in. I would like to keep it that way.
So would our neighbors.

[ am very concerned that the rezoning plan will change this peaceful neighborhood into another busy streets that
everyone can use our road to get in and out to the Bennett woods as alternative route.

Other than the safety and traffic issue, I am also very concerned the drainage issue when more houses are built in
the area. As [ understand, our community serves as the flood reserve in town. More houses may contradict to such
purpose. If the drain is not being properly address, are we all expecting special assessment in the future to fix the
drainage from the drain commission?

[ would hope the staff from your office or the board meeting will address the concerns from the residents. I
assume the public hearing and meeting minutes will be available for the public inspection.

Respectfully,
Bingwei Xu , Ph.D.



Peter Menser

From: Selena Zhang <selenal207@hotmail.com>
Sent: Saturday, October 20, 2018 4:02 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Objection to Rezoning #18120

Dear Mr. Peter,
| am a resident of Okemos. | write this letter to express my concerns about proposal of rezoning land #18120.

I moved here two years ago when | felt comfortable about the traffic and a good reputation of schools.
However, | have noticed that it has a heavy traffic during the rush hours of working days recently. And in the
beginning of this year, the score of Okemos High School was degraded to 9.

More people may bring more money. But more people also means more cost. It costs environment being
destroyed. It costs education foundation to support more children. It costs more police resource to monitor
traffic and criminal events. | have a child attending school here. | know the schools here are almost at their full
capacity. | don't have my own house here, but | don't mind the price of house increases if more people want
to come in. However, if the environment deteriorates, | would rather to leave Okemos. | believe some people
will think like me. Then Okemos won't be a popular place. The overheated economic will finally cool down.

However, | still love our community. | deem it as my second hometown in my life. So | hope the city will
become more and more attractive and adorable. | believe Okemos can get its own economic and ecology
balance without building more houses to accommodate more people.

Best Regards,
Shu Zhang



Peter Menser

From: vijpankaj <vijpankaj@aol.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 21, 2018 12:11 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Proposed rezoning #18120

Hello Mr. Peter

[ have received information from Okemos community about a proposed rezoning of land at Sophiea Pkwy
and Bennett Road and building of new houses by Mayberry builders.

If this information of rezoning proposal is true; being an Okemos resident for the last 18 years and
knowing that the capacity of Okemos to absorb new residents is limited, I want to register my concern
about the same. I would also be interested to understand the balance that the township tries to strike
between development and quality of life. With the significant decrease in tree cover in the last decade in
Okemos and the increase in pressure on resources like roads and schools, | want to make sure that
decisions are taken keeping those in mind.

Thank you for your time.
Regards
Pankaj Vij

4532 Mistywood Dr,
Okemos, MI 48864



Peter Menser

From: Charlie Thompson-Orsua <charliethompsonorsua@hotmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 21, 2018 12:36 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Concerns about proposed rezoning #18120

Before you consider accepting this proposal I hope you ponder all of the things I would like to say about the
rezoning. My first reason to hope against the rezoning is all the wildlife that would be destroyed. I have been in
the woods there many times and I know that there are plenty of animals that already call this space their home.
Cutting the trees down would cause severe damage to all that live there. For one, by cutting down a single tree
at least one animal will lose it’s home. Due to this there will be quarrels over the small amount of woods left by
this area causing many deaths and departure of the animals that live there.

I also recall the beauty of walking out of Bennett Woods Elementary and seeing the soft mist enfolding all of
the rocks, bushes and trees. I can not imagine what it would be like for the children that go to this school to see
the woods they once ran by being cut down and replaced with houses. It would be sickening to see and hear all
of the construction going on. Seeing trees collapsing and animals dying would not be something anyone would
want to experience at such a young age. The noise I can imagine would also be bothersome to hear during class
and time outside.

With all the wildlife and emotions of those who live nearby there is another problem I hope you will
understand. Four hundred houses would bring in around five hundred children to Okemos. All the people that
already go to these schools will have to learn with now many more people. All the schools - especially Bennett
Woods Elementary - would become immensely overpopulated causing severe distraction and over-stimulation.

Not only that, but does Okemos even have enough staff to take in a hundreds more kids?

The last concern that I have is the road safety. You might already know that the roads in Okemos are not newly
paved. Many accidents already happen. Especially since this is so close to a school, I think that adding in all of
this population can cause more accidents and possibilities of unsafely crossing for all the people going there.
The traffic would not be a positivity in this area due to the already unsafe traffic circle so close by. I am worried
that this could cause major accidents that we don’t want.

Due to these reasons I therefore object to this proposal. Please take in mind all the things I have listed. Thank
you for spending your time considering my suggestions.
~ Isabella Thompson-Orsua

Sent from myMail for i0S



Peter Menser

From: Fukang Wang <Im.fw2008@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 21, 2018 12:54 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning #18120

Dear Mr. Menser,

I am writing to you about our concerns of the Rezoning. I think that the rezoning will damage environment,
impact schools, especially create traffic problems. During peek time, the traffic is getting very tighter now after
other areas built so many new houses, so the new development will make the traffic worse. I hope you consider
our concerns of public safety and better living environment for our community, please DO NOT rezoning this
area. Thanks for your time.

Sincerely,
Fukang Wang



Peter Menser

From: AB <archpb7@yahoo.com>

Sent: Sunday, October 21, 2018 4:15 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Proposed Rezoning #18120

Hello. I am unable to make the meeting regarding this rezoning but wanted to make you aware that myself,
along with several other members of the community are strongly against this proposal. Having even more
homes built in this particular area will not only overload the schools, it will also cause a significant increase in
traffic and subsequently compromise the safety of the many children that walk home from school. Mayberry
Homes already owns the land off Bennett and Hagadorn and this area still has multiple lots available for

sale. There does not appear to be any "need" or "demand" currently for these types of homes so allowing yet
another empty neighborhood to be built would be quite unfortunate. Thank you for taking the time to read this
e-mail and I hope you listen to the concerned community.

Sincerely,
Archana



Peter Menser

From: Tokashiki Hiroshi <htokashiki@hotmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 21, 2018 5:32 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Say NO to Rezoning

Mr. Peter Menser,

| would vote to "NO".

If there is a form, please let me have it.

I am not U.S. Citizen (Permanent Resident), | am not sure | have a right to vote it.
Thanks,

Hiroshi Tokashiki

2631 Elderberry Dr.
Okemos, M| 48864



Peter Menser

From: Dennis Reese <djreese77@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 21, 2018 5:52 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning #18120

| am writing to oppose the proposed rezoning #18120. The continued clear cutting of Meridian Township is a major
environmental concern. The pressure on our schools and the already crowded roads continue to impact the quality of
life and the desirability of our neighborhoods. | strongly oppose the rezoning of this property.

Dennis J. Reese
3898 Baulistrol Drive
Okemos Ml



Peter Menser

From: Mattes, Brian <brian.mattes@ora.msu.edu>
Sent: Sunday, October 21, 2018 8:52 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Proposed Rezoning #18120

Dear Mr. Menser,

I write to you requesting the rejection of rezoning #18120 to medium density. As a resident in the Bennet
Woods school district, I am concerned with the environmental damage, the overcrowding of our schools, and
increased traffic this would create.

Thank you for your consideration.

Best regards,

Brian

Brian D. Mattes, JD, MPH
Faculty Conflict of Interest Officer
Michigan State University

4000 Collins Road, 108

Lansing, MI 48910-5883

Phone: 517.884.8045

Fax: 517.432.4503
http://coi.msu.edu/




Peter Menser

From: Meridian Township, MI <meridian-mi@enotify.visioninternet.com>
Sent: Sunday, October 21, 2018 10:36 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning #18120 (Bennett Road Holding LLC)

Message submitted from the <Meridian Township, MI> website.

Site Visitor Name: Steve Thomas
Site Visitor Email: stevet1 6@att.net

Dear Mr. Menser,
The proposed rezoning would increase the number of houses that could be built in what is now a wooded area.

Increasing the building density on this property will lower the quality of life for Meridian Township residents
such as myself. Our quality of life will be reduced because the more that our natural environment is destroyed,
the less healthy we become—both physically and emotionally. I have chosen these words carefully based upon
a growing body of scientific research. Consider these research findings from within the last 20 years:

* People score higher on problem solving tests after being in nature.

* People living near green space have lower levels of mental stress.

* People who live near trees have less heart disease. People have lower overall rates of disease (including
depression, anxiety, heart disease, diabetes, asthma, and migraine headaches) when they live near nature.

* People living near green space live longer than similar people who live in built environments.

* People who can see trees heal more quickly from diseases, do better in school, and are less prone to violence.
* People walking in natural landscapes have lower stress hormone levels compared to walkers in urban areas.
* When children spend time in nature, it improves creativity and problem solving, cognitive abilities, and
academic performance in social studies, science, math, and language arts; reduces attention deficit disorder;
increases children’s activity levels; improves eyesight; raises happiness and improves ability to get along with
others; improves self-discipline; and reduces the children’s stress levels.

The idea that we should replace nature with more roads and more buildings is an outdated way of thinking. It is
time to listen to science, and create sustainable plans that recognize human biology.

Please maintain our health and welfare as your priority while considering this issue.
Thank you.
Steve Thomas

2372 Sower Blvd
Okemos



Peter Menser

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Dear Mr. Menser,

Mukundan Agaram <mukundan.agaram@gmail.com>
Monday, October 22, 2018 6:16 AM

Peter Menser

Mythli Mukundan

Rezoning #18120

My wife and me are long time residents of Champion Woods. We are deeply concerned about this rezoning
initiative and would like to voice our concerns and objections on the matter.

1. The increased number of housing units due to the rezoning, significantly increases the water drainage
into the Champion Woods raising grave concerns of flooding. Given the fact that the Champion Woods
sub-division is already enmeshed in a delicate eco-system with the protected wetlands, this poses an

even graver issue.

2. Another consequence of the proposed rezoning is the significant increase in vehicular traffic through our
idyllic neighborhood, which is the home of several young families and senior citizens not to mention
children. This would make the main artery road Sophiea Parkway a busy street significantly increasing

the risk of accidents.

3. Lastly, the increased burden of additional students on our existing public school systems with the current
infrastructure in the vicinity would seriously impact the student to teacher ratio.

Kindly accept our official objection on this proposal, duly recording our concerns on the subject.

Thank you,
Kind regards,

Mukundan Agaram & Mythli Mukundan



Peter Menser

From: Yangfan (Phoebe) Liu <liu.yangfan@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, October 22, 2018 12:20 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning #18120 (Bennett Road Holding, LLC.)

Dear Mr. Menser,

My family is an MSU family living on Long Leaf Trl, Okemos, Michigan. I heard there is a notice regarding
Meridian Charter Township rezoning #18120 and a call for meetings and comments. I do have some concerns
as follow.

When we moved to MSU in 2015, we chose Okemos for our home for its beautiful natural environment, the
suburban setting of the township, and the wonderful schools. Rezoning #18120 will have to convert a big
natural area of land preserves to residential housing area, leading to tons of tree removal and severe
environmental damage, the dramatic change of suburban setting, and the influx of students to the already
overburdened schools in Okemos. Though new residents may bring in new tax money that may eventually solve
some problems such as school capacity, temporary difficulties in the school system and the long-term, if not
forever, sacrifice of the natural environment and town setting will never be compensated by just more money.

Therefore, we strongly object to the rezoning proposal and would hope the Planning Commission of Meridian
Township will address these concerns.

Best regards,

Yangfan (Phoebe) Liu



Peter Menser

From: uma Nathan <uvnathan@gmx.com>
Sent: Monday, October 22, 2018 2:53 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning#18120

I am a resident of college Fields and live on Baulistrol Dr.

I want to express my opposition to the prposal to rezone and build

large number of houses next to Bennet Woods.

The rezoning would cause enviornmental damage-cutting down of numerous trees and more vehicular
traffic,automobile pollution.the quality of school education may also suffer.

Please do not allow this proposal to go forward.

Thank you,

U.Viswanathan



Peter Menser

From: rod stumpf <rod.stumpf@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, October 22, 2018 5:20 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: rezoning

there is too much land being gobbled for any kind of homes. | know the taxes it brings is rather taste for those who receive it but it

doesn't benefit the homeowners in Meridian/Haslett township and only stresses police, fire and medical serves all of which creates a

millage which doesn't pay byr the new addition but by all.

no one says they want to pay more taxes but increases to the burden requires increases taxes from everyone who hasn't had a pay raise in years or RETIREES|
like myself who getting total 3/4 of what they got at work.

Except my vote NO

rod stumpf
4266 Graystone dr.
okemos

Cloccam pulsa. Claudere librum. Extinguatis candelam



Peter Menser

From: Steve Thomas <stevetl6@att.net>

Sent: Monday, October 22, 2018 5:28 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning #18120 (Bennett Road Holding LLC)

Dear Mr. Menser,

I wish to comment on this request (#18120) to significantly increase the number of houses that could be
constructed in what is now largely a forested area. I sent this message yesterday to you via the comment link
on the Township website, but now that I have your proper email address I am sending it here as well.

Increasing the building density on this property will lower the quality of life for Meridian Township residents
such as myself. Our quality of life will be reduced because the more that our natural environment is
destroyed, the less healthy we become—both physically and emotionally. I have chosen these words carefully
based upon a growing body of scientific research. Consider these research findings from within the last 20
years:

e People score higher on problem solving tests after being in nature.

e People living near green space have lower levels of mental stress.

¢ People who live near more trees have less heart disease. People have lower overall rates of disease
(including depression, anxiety, heart disease, diabetes, asthma, and migraine headaches) when they live near
nature.

¢ People living near green space live longer than similar people who live in built environments.

e People who can see trees heal more quickly from diseases, do better in school, and are less prone to
violence.

¢ People walking through natural landscapes have lower stress hormone levels compared to walkers in
urban areas.

e When children spend time in nature, it improves creativity and problem solving; improves cognitive
abilities; improves academic performance in social studies, science, math, and language arts; reduces
attention deficit disorder; increases children’s activity levels; improves eyesight; raises happiness and
improves ability to get along with others; improves self-discipline; and reduces the children’s stress levels.

The idea that we should replace nature with more roads and more buildings is an outdated way of thinking. It
is time to listen to science, and create sustainable plans that recognize human biology.

Please maintain our health and welfare as your priority while considering this zoning request.
Thank you.

Steve Thomas
2372 Sower Blvd.

Okemos, Michigan



Peter Menser

From: C. Xie <xiexq2011@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, October 22, 2018 5:48 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: objection for rezoning #18120

Dear Mr. Menser,

I heard there is a notice regarding Meridian Charter Township rezoning #18120 and a call for meetings and
comments. I do have some concerns as follow.

When we moved to Lansing area, we chose Okemos for our home for its beautiful natural environment, the
suburban setting of the township, and the wonderful schools. Rezoning #18120 will have to convert a big
natural area of land preserves to residential housing area, leading to tons of tree removal and severe
environmental damage, the dramatic change of suburban setting, and the influx of students to the already
overburdened schools in Okemos. Though new residents may bring in new tax money that may eventually solve
some problems such as school capacity, temporary difficulties in the school system and the long-term, if not
forever, sacrifice of the natural environment and town setting will never be compensated by just more money.

Therefore, we strongly object to the rezoning proposal and would hope the Planning Commission of Meridian
Township will address these concerns.

Best regards,

Cindy X



Peter Menser

From: Qi Hua Fan <gfan@egr.msu.edu>
Sent: Monday, October 22, 2018 6:28 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Concerns about rezoning #18120

Hello Mr. Menser,

We just heard about the rezoning proposal #18120. We live in a nearby neighborhood and believe this rezoning will lead
to severe environmental damage and cause big concerns over the safety of our children in the nearly schools. Therefore,
we strongly oppose this rezoning proposal.

Thank you for your consideration!

Dr. Qi Hua Fan

Dept. Electrical and Computer Engineering
Michigan State University

1449 Engineering Research Ct, B111

East Lansing, Ml 48824-1226

Ph: 517-432-4651

Email: gfan@egr.msu.edu




Peter Menser

From: Gang Teng <tenggang@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, October 22, 2018 7:16 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: objection to rezoning proposal #18120
Dear Mr Menser,

We live in College Fields and I'm writing in connection to rezoning proposal #18120.
We learned this from friends and we are expressing our concerns for the following reasons:

First of all, the proposal will greatly the traffic around the schools, especially the elementary school. We are
concerned about the kids safety and I believe the same is shared by other parents as well.

Secondly, the increased residential population will demand certainly for more education resources and I am not
convinced that the same quality of education can be maintained for the local school district.

Thirdly, there is no evidence to demonstrate the benefits that the rezoning could bring to the established
community nearby.

Thus we strongly object to the proposal and hope the Commission could consider and address the concerns.

Best Regards,
Gang



Peter Menser

From: frank baldwin <frankjbaldwin@yahoo.com>

Sent: Monday, October 22, 2018 7:23 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Proposed rezoning #18120

Hello, I am a concerned citizen that lives close to the proposed rezoning area in Okemos. I believe if the

rezoning passed it would be unfortunate for our area. The congestion of 400 plus additional homes would stress
the nearby roads with too much traffic. The neighborhood school does not appear to be able to absorb the
significant population change. There are many walkers in that area and would be negatively impacted by the

rezoning. Both leisure walkers and school walkers would be affected. I respectfully
suggest this rezoning be rejected.
Sincerely, Kathy Baldwin. 2432 Turning leaf lane

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android




Peter Menser

From: jane li <jiae48108@yahoo.com>

Sent: Monday, October 22, 2018 10:46 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: A concerning of rezoning #18120 from Meridian Township

Dear Mr. Menser,

I am a resident of okemos, my family lives in the Meadow neighborhood. I recently heard that there is a
proposed rezoning #18120 from Meridian Township, I very concerne over the proposal because 1). Tons of
trees would be cut down leading to severe environmental damage. 2). It could have significant impact on
Okemos schools, such as quality of education. 3). There will be gnificant increase in automobile traffic in the
this area.

Therefore, we strongly object to the rezoning proposal and would hope the Planning Commission of Meridian
Township will address these concerns.

Best regards,

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone




Peter Menser

From: Leigha <leigha.faith@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 11:10 AM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning #18120

I have severe concerns regarding the rezoning suggested in this issue. I was unable to attend the meeting a
week ago, but [ want my voice, as a community member, to be heard.

I share the concerns of many in my community in regards to the:
1. Severe environmental damage

2. Significant impact on school numbers and capacity

3. Increased traffic and risk of flooding

Please take my concerns under advisement.

Thank you.



Peter Menser

From: Dean Parrott <deanfparrott@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 12:35 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning Proposal#18129

Mr. Menser,

I was recently made aware of rezoning proposal #18129 by Mayberry Homes. I am adamantly opposed to their
proposal. Looking at the housing density in College Field's and the eyesore that development has become, this
proposal must be turned down. It is not a step forward for our community. High priced, low quality spec homes
will not benefit our community. Homes stacked practically on top of each other is not going to improve the
quality of life in Meridian Township for anyone. It will only serve to put stress on our roads and infrastructure.
Further, it will block access to the Uplands Preserve. The only beneficiary of this proposal is a corporate builder
that has a history of repurposing developments in unasthetic ways, undercutting subcontractors, building homes
of questionable quality, overpricing said homes, and leaving communities and homeowners to deal with the
aftermath. Please, do no pass proposal #18129.

Sincerely,

Dean F McFarlane-Parrott, M.D.
4324 Aztec Way

Okemos, MI 48864
913-945-0815

deanfparrott@ gmail.com




Peter Menser

From: Beretta, Alan <beretta@msu.edu>
Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 1:25 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Proposed rezoning of #18120

Dear Mr. Menser,

I would like to express my firm opposition to the proposed rezoning of #18120 to 'single family medium
density'.

As a resident of Sundance Estates, | am concerned by the inevitable effect on the environment, the inevitable
increase in road traffic, and the obvious challenges that would confront the local schools.

Thank you for considering residents' concerns.
Yrs,

Alan Beretta



Peter Menser

From: Teri Thornburg <teri.thornburg@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 3:32 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Proposed rezoning #18120

Dear Mr. Menser,

My husband and I are TOTALLY OPPOSED to changing the zoning from Single Family Low Density to
Single Family Medium Density, in effect doubling the number of units which could be built.

We live in Bennett Village off Bennett Road. Traffic on Bennett is already very heavy during "rush hours", and
when Kinawa, Chippewa, Bennett Woods and Okemos High School begin and end their days. Accommodating
traffic from another 216 homes will be bad enough, but to make that number 416 is terrible!

We're also concerned about the effect on the environment. in an era of climate change and global warming, we
should be planting trees, not chopping them down to accommodate houses which could be built in areas where
that impact would not be felt. We're also concerned about the wetlands around this area.

Please do your part to deny this request for rezoning this parcel for the betterment of all its current neighbors.
Thank you.

Teri and Roger Thornburg

4044 Highland Terrace
Okemos, MI



Peter Menser

From: Service <mollywingrove@comcast.net>
Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 11:47 AM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning Request #18120

Peter Mesner, Principal Planner
Meridian Township
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, Michigan 48864

Dear Mr. Menser:

I am writing to express my opposition to Rezoning Request #18120, Mayberry Homes. I am very concerned
about this request for the following reasons:

Over 200 homes may be built on this location as it is currently zoned; that is adequate and appropriate for the
size of the property.

MANY trees would be removed leading to severe environmental damage.

It could have significant impact on Okemos schools especially Bennett Woods Elementary, Okemos Public
Montessori at Central, Kinawa 5-6, Chippewa 7-8 and Okemos High. Could they accommodate a large influx of
students without compromising the quality of education? The district is currently looking at a very expensive
small expansion of Bennett Woods Elementary due to current increases in student population, adding more
students will be hard to accommodate.

Houses will be built in/around wetlands and floodway leading to great risk of flooding.

The rezoning would cause significant increase in automobile traffic in the area and thus cause concern over the
safety of our children and pedestrians alike. I travel Bennett Rd. on my way to work each day and it is already

1



nearly impossible to navigate the round-a-bout and in front of the school now, adding more cars/car trips would
make things much more difficult.

Sincerely,

Molly Wingrove

3877 Crooked Creek

Okemos, MI 48864



Peter Menser

From: Chi Lo <chiylo1955@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 4:11 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning #18120

Dear Mr. Nenser,

We oppose the rezoning request #18120 by Mayberry Homes. We agree with the reasons for opposition as
stated by the Champion Woods Board.

Sincerely,

Chi and Vivien Lo,

2516 Kevern Way



Peter Menser

From: DENISE KANE <kane.denise@comcast.net>
Sent: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 10:18 AM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Re: Copper Creek development

Dear Mr. Menser,

My name is Denise Kane and I live at 5600 Creekwood Lane. I am writing to express my objection to the new
plan proposed for the Copper Creek development that uses Creekwood as a through street for access.

Creekwood Lane is not suitable for the additional traffic that this plan will bring. As the westernmost road,
Creekwood will see the bulk of the traffic in and out of Copper Creek because most traffic from this area goes
west — towards the schools, East Lansing, Okemos, or Lansing. When Copper Creek residents are returning
home from one of these areas, Creekwood will be the first available entrance and will be used by much of the
traffic.

I am concerned that the township is deferring to the financial interests of the developer over long-term township
residents’ concerns over safety and quality of life. If the developer wants to build 88 homes, he should provide
adequate access to those homes without negatively impacting existing neighborhoods.

The road spur shown in the northeast section of the plans makes me assume that there will be additional homes
built at some time in the future — I’ve heard the number 400 mentioned. This would mean hundreds of more
cars funneling through our neighborhood.

This development should not be approved until the developer presents a plan that provides adequate access to
the new homes on roads that do not go through an existing neighborhood. I realize that the developer has a
right to develop his land, but not at the expense of other residents’ safety.

Please enter this letter into the record for the upcoming hearing on Monday, November 50,

Thank you for your consideration.

Denise Kane



5600 Creekwood Lane



Peter Menser

From: Pete Zawojski <pzawojski@prodigy.net>
Sent: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 10:01 AM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning #18120

Attn: Peter Menser

As a homeowner in the area, | am strongly opposed to the proposed rezoning #18120. The rezoning to
single family medium density will add way too many potential residential units. The environmental
impact to woods and wetlands along with added automobile traffic is unacceptable. I will forward my
concerns to the Michigan DEQ.

Sincerely,
Peter Zawojski

Bennett Village

Sent from my iPhone



Peter Menser

From: Robert Reid <sdsirehab@comcast.net>
Sent: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 9:43 AM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Proposed Rezoning # 18120

October 30, 2018

Mr. Peter Menser
Meridian Township Principal Planner

Okemos, M| 48864

Dear Mr. Menser:

My wife and | would like to go on record that we oppose the request to change the zoning in the
proposed rezoning #18120 from Rural Residential and Single Family-Low Density to Single Family
Medium Density.

A change such as this, in our opinion, would:
* Severely damage the environmental quality of the area

* Have a negative impact on the quality of education that is now being provided in the Okemos Public
School system by overtaxing the quality and class size of current classrooms

* Increase the risk of flooding due to construction in and around wet land areas
* Increase traffic in the area which then becomes a further concern for the children and pedestrians

who drive and walk this area (including a high number of beginner, inexperienced teenage drivers
who use these roadways to travel to/from school)

We urge the Planning Commission to keep in place the current zoning on this property as approved
and appropriate.

Please contact my wife or me should you or the Planning Commission have any questions regarding
our concerns.



Sincerely,

Robert E. Reid, Ed.S. & Cynthia A. Reid, B.A., M.Ed.
4061 Highland
Terrace
Okemos, MI
48864
Email - reidr8 @comcast.net




Peter Menser

From: Butler, Kirt <butler@broad.msu.edu>
Sent: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 9:00 AM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Proposed Bennett Road rezoning #18120

Mr. Peter Menser
Principal Planner
Meridian Township

This email is in regards to the proposed Bennett Road rezoning #18120 from Rural Residential and Single Family Low
Density to Single Family Medium Density. The Township’s Planning Commission will be voting on this proposed rezoning
at its November 5 meeting.

At the last meeting of the Planning Commission, my neighbors eloquently stated the reasons why the proposed rezoning
is problematic for the Okemos community. A new neighborhood packed with Single Family Medium Density homes
would be hugely inconsistent with the densities of the Okemos neighborhoods immediately surrounding the site and
would significant and negatively impact on the physical and cultural environment surrounding the site..

My own the biggest concern is that the proposed rezoning would make the property more valuable to new developers
than it is to the current developers.

| would hope that the current owners and developers plan to preserve the natural beauty of the site and would not
squeeze as many units into the site as Single Family Medium Density would allow. However, after rezoning the property
would have even more value to a less-scrupulous developer that would extract the last measure of value from the
property by building as many medium density units as allowable under the proposed rezoning. This would destroy the
beauty of the site and result in the negative impacts described by my neighbors in the Okemos community. Rezoning
would create a huge incentive for the current of owners of the property to entertain competing offers that would utilize
every square foot of the site to the maximum allowable. Such a development would be wholly inconsistent with the
surrounding neighborhoods.

My wife and | are on the faculty at MSU and have lived at our current location since 1992.

Kirt Butler

4279 Shadow Ridge
Okemos, M| 48864
(517) 351-8807



Peter Menser

From: Dianne murphy <diannemurphy0@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 7:28 PM

To: Peter Menser

Cc: dianne murphy; Tom

Subject: NO to proposed rezoning #18120 - Woods of Herron Creek/Champion Woods

Dear Mr. Menser,

We are proud residents of Meridian Township and we have lived happily at 2535 Sundance Lane for over
30 years. We do not oppose the current approved zoning #18120. Developers have rights... However,
we strongly oppose the ‘rezoning’ of #18120 from Rural Residential and Single Family Low Density to
Single Family Medium Density (resulting in almost double the number of homes) for many reasons
including but not limited to; negative impact on our environment (less green space/increase risk of
flooding), significant increase in traffic in our neighborhoods and schools (safety concern) and additional
homes putting additional capacity strain on our schools.

Regards,
Dianne & Tom Murphy



Peter Menser

From: Jeff Jacobsen <jeffsjake22@gmail.com>

Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 7:05 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning from Rural/Low Density to Medium Density

Dear Mr. Menser:

Register me as strongly against the rezoning (between College Field back 9 holes and the bus garage/Bennett
Woods Elementary School/Champion Woods) which would substantially and negatively impact this area and
adjacent areas. Multiple reasons as listed below:

1) Rural and low density housing as is now would not impact the environment nearly as much as medium
density housing. This area is full of surface waters, wetlands, wildlife and more natural features. More people
means more concrete, more surface area of roads/houses with which to add to the pollutant load in this

area. Less density less pollution in these sensitive areas.

2) Bennett Road was completely redone not too long ago. With its existing load of traffic, it is already
exhibiting significant degradation to its surface due to the frequency and type of traffic. Increasing the amount
and kind of traffic would accelerate its demise and it would be added to the deplorable list of unsafe

roads. What types of mitigation and enhancements is Mayberry Homes doing due to its impact with either
scenario?

3) In addition to #2, the increased traffic would substantially increase the safety risks to drivers, bike riders,
children and pedestrians.

4) I have no idea about its potential impact to water, electrical, sewer and other public services, yet wonder if
they will overwhelm the infrastructure that is already exists.

5) Additional areas of infrastructure concerns: can the school systems handle this increased volume, can
fire/police handle this increased volume, etc? All the while not by increasing taxes.

There should be more to consider than pure profit by a developer.The existing zoning must remain the same and
would provide options for a credible developer.

I will not be able to attend the hearing as I will be out of town on business on November Sth.
Sincerely,

Jeff Jacobsen

4053 Highland Terrace

Bennett Village
517-388-3794



Peter Menser

From: gouletkj@aol.com

Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 6:29 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: rezoning

Mr. Menser,

| am a resident of Okemos and have lived along Bennett Rd for 26 years. | am totally against the rezoning of #18120. The
traffic has become worse and | can wait 2-3 minutes just to get out of my subdivision to go to work. | can't imagine adding
other 400 homes(800+ cars to the roads.) The open space that existed when | built my home was substantial, from open
fields to baseball diamonds and more. You have allowed every inch to be developed. We know longer can enjoy the
wildlife in their natural habitat but now in our yards destroying our landscaping. It MUST stop. You need to protect the
residence and natural areas that remain and not put more profits in the hands of the builders. Please do not change the
density. They originally wanted low density and that is what they should get.

Kari Goulet



Peter Menser

From: Tim Goulet <timgoulet@aol.com>
Sent: Monday, October 29, 2018 6:23 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning 318120

Dear Mr Menser
Please do not rezone #18120 from Rural Residential and single family low density to medium density.

| live at 3996 Sun Rapids Drive. And the traffic since | purchased in this area has increased way too much. The speed on
Bennett is 45MPH while on the other side of Okemos Rd it changes to Kinawa and drops to 25MPH.

The size of Bennett has doubled since | bought in this area 25 years ago, and the traffic has tripled. | can barely get out of
my neighborhood during High School traffic.

Hundreds of houses have already been built by along Hulett Rd, in the new Mayberry Holmes neighbor hoods. And the
high quality homes are no longer being built.

Think what this area will look like in 30 years. The prestigious homes in Hiawatha, Santuary, Champion Woods, Briarwood
will age gracefully. But medium density less expensive housing will lower all existing property values, and crowd our roads
even more.

My vote is no.

If you need more housing, don't destroy our natural areas, build a high rise on the eyesore at Okemos and Hamilton.
Thank you,

Tim Goulet

3996 Sun Rapids Dr
Okemos MI 48864



Peter Menser

From: Alpa Patel <apatell13@yahoo.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 12:07 PM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning Proposal

Itis NOT a good idea for more homes in that area. We already have a lot of traffic, flooding & drain issues.
Do we need more issues????

Thank you

Alpa & Samip Patel

Sent from my iPhone



Peter Menser

From: Martyn, Donald <donald.martyn@axa-advisors.com>
Sent: Tuesday, October 30, 2018 2:27 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: REZONING #18120 BENNETT ROAD

Mr. Menser | live at 4052 Highland Terrace in Bennett Village and very concerned in about the
rezoning that would double the units from low density to medium. The traffic on Bennett
Road is already busy with the school and College Fields etc. There is certainly a lot packed in
there now. | would hope we could keep the zoning as is. Thank you for your consideration.

Donald W. Martyn, ChFC, CLU
Financial Consultant

AXA Advisors, LLC

2378 Woodlake Dr,. Ste. 200
Okemos, MI 48864

Phone: 517-347-4646

Fax: 517-347-0769

E-mail: donald.martyn@axa-advisors.com
Cell: (517) 290-1245

Donal W Martyn is a registered representative who offers securities through AXA Advisors, LLC (NY, NY 212-314-4600),
member FINRA, SIPC and an agent who offers annuity and insurance products through AXA Network, LLC. AXA Network
conducts business in CA as AXA Network Insurance Agency of California, LLC, in UT as AXA Network Insurance Agency of
Utah, LLC, in TX as AXA Network Insurance Agency of Texas, Inc., in PR as AXA Network of Puerto Rico, Inc. Investment
advisory products and services offered through AXA Advisors, LLC, an investment advisor registered with the SEC. AXA
Advisors and AXA Network are affiliated companies and do not provide tax or legal advice. Representatives may
transact business, which includes offering products and services and/or responding to inquiries, only in state(s) in
which they are properly registered and/or licensed. Your receipt of this e-mail does not necessarily indicate that the
sender is able to transact business in your state.

skt sk sk sk sk st sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sostke skt sk sk sk sk skt sk sk sk skt skt sk skeosk skt skt sk sk sk sk skt sk skeosk skt skt sk stk stk skokeskoskok skok

This message and any attachments may contain legally privileged and/or
sensitive information. Any unapproved disclosure, use or dissemination
of this e-mail message or its contents, either in whole or in part, is

not permitted. If you are not the intended recipient of this e-mail
message, kindly notify the sender and then securely dispose of it.

>k s sfe sk sk sk st sie st sfe s sfe sk sk skt sie st sk s s sk sk sk st sie st sk s sl sk sk sk st sie st sie s sk sk sk sk st sie st st s sk sk sk sk st sk st st sk sl sk sk sk skt sk sk sk skoskokok



Peter Menser

From: David Raffo <raffinator@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 8:27 AM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Proposed Rezoning #18120

Dear Mr. Menser,

I am writing on behalf of my elderly parents, whom just moved to a condominium neighborhood on 4030
Highland Terrace, just East of the proposed rezoning area mentioned in proposal #18120.

My parents are opposed to this rezoning, and hope the planning commission votes NO on it. As they are
elderly, they will be driving on Bennett Rd. and walking on the sidewalks and neighborhoods near there
often. They enjoy the trees and forests and wetlands nearby, but most importantly are worried about the
additional major influx of traffic on Bennett and surrounding roads if this proposal passes. Please vote NO on
it.

Thank you,
David Raffo, on behalf of Lynne and George Raffo
4030 Highland Terrace, Okemos



Peter Menser

From: Armeney Mazian <detamie@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 11:55 AM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Mayberry's Re-zoning request

Dear Mr. Menser,
I'm writing to let you know how much [ am opposed to the above referenced request.

What do we get out of the request? Road congestion? Building in and around wetlands? Increased
flooding? Over-packed classrooms? Environmental destruction?

As a homeowner, I don’t understand how this request improves the quality of life here in Okemos, other
than increasing our tax base. But at what cost?

[ don't support this proposal. I have been damaged enough by the overbuilding in this section of Okemos
without even more!

Sincerely,
Armena Mazian

3958 Sun Rapids Drive
Okemos, MI 48864



Peter Menser

From: M.W. Casby <casbymw@yahoo.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 12:07 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Copper Creek dev - Nov 5 Planning meeting

Decisions should be made on facts - not subjective opinions, viewpoints, preconceived notions, or poor
understanding.

Here are the facts-

From the beginning the Planning Commission repeatedly asked for a second access road to the east off of
Haslett Road - for expressed safety concerns. Its requests were repeatedly ignored.

The Township Board has previously rejected a subdivision proposal with an exact traffic pattern plan -
declaring it to be unsafe and unsuitable.

The Board also rejected such a plan with an exact traffic pattern because it violated a Township regulation
which requires subdivision roads to be arranged so as not to encourage through traffic. This plan forces illicit
through traffic.

This previous Board action is relevant today. It is, if you will, the - “law of the land.”
(Supportive sources have been submitted numerous times.)

(cf. The Meridian Township Board of Trustees, the final local authority with regard to plat approval, considered
the proposed plat at its regular meeting of September 20, 1988, and disapproved it by a vote of five to one. At
meetings on October 3 and November 22, 1988, the board amended the minutes of its September 20 meeting to
specify the reasons for its disapproval of the plat:

(1) Such a design is not consistent with Section 101-4.12(a) of the subdivision regulations, which states that
streets shall be so arranged so as to discourage their use by through traffic.

(2) The alignment of Wood Knoll Drive provides sole access onto Creekwood [Lane], which requires egress
onto Haslett Road at a point where there is less than 750 feet of sight distance — in violation of Section VIL.B.1
of the County Road Commission Plat Procedures. (Altman v. Meridian))

As for the Wood Knoll Drive stub facts. If the prior submitted materials were read, and understood, it would be
clear that it was laid out prior to when the traffic safety concerns became apparent. When those concerns
became known the stub basically became unusable. It was further noted that the stub’s prior existence did not
guarantee any future use, let alone unsafe use. It has had that status for 30 years. People purchased homes on
Creekwood with that understanding. Not with the understanding that it might be opened one day.



(cf. Quoting from the relevant Michigan Supreme Court materials: “Equally untenable is the suggestion that the
[T]ownship’s prior consent to the construction of the existing Wood Knoll Drive stub street adjoining
Creekwood Lane constituted some sort of irrevocable advance consent to the development of any new
subdivisions seeking to use that stub street for access. The township was not under any legal requirement, at the
time the Creekwood subdivision was developed, to give advance notice of what hypothetical future subdivisions
adjoining Creekwood Lane it might approve or disapprove, and on what grounds.”)

Commissioners stated that building another safe access onto Haslett Road would cost the developer
money. This is their responsibility. Lack of the access may very well cost someone life or limb. There are
dangers on exit and entrance. Other cars come up blindly very quickly on exit and entrance. Approval will
make a dangerous situation worse.

Commissioners have clearly acknowledged, the dangers of the roadway. Yet many making excuses for the
developer, and trying to predict the future, while ignoring the facts of the past and present. The Chair (Tresize)
of the last meeting stated - “I don’t know why anybody would use an exit onto Haslett Road that is difficult
and/or dangerous.” At the August 27th meeting Commissioner Tresize stated: “I do not want to get into the
driving through the Creekwood neighborhood. I think that's inappropriate, and their roads are too narrow to
begin with, and to have an egress or entrance through that neighborhood is inappropriate."

It was remarked that drivers would just need to be more careful. No. The onus for safety is on the developer
and the Township. And in fact, there are other safe options.

It’s like saying it’s ok for one to park cars and trailers in a front yard, even though it’s a violation of a Township
ordinance. This plan is in violation of ordinance, regulation, and Board action.

The interests of the Township and its citizens should be foremost - not those of a developer. Support for a
known unsafe, unsuitable, illicit access proposed by a developer is not in the interest of the Township or its
citizens.

Vote to deny this plan. Voting for it puts the Township and its citizens at significant risk. Funneling more
traffic into the Creekwood/Haslett intersection via Wood Knoll is in fact significantly unsafe and unsuitable,
and in violation of a Township ordinance and decision. This is a shame, when there are safe alternatives.

Michael & Betty Casby
5624 Creekwood Lane
Haslett, MI 48840

Below you will find Table 3 from the Ingham County Road Commission regulations regarding sight
distance. You will also find a map addressing the relevant intersection and distance. Traveling at 35 mph it
functionally takes less than 4 sec. to travel the distance.



TABLE 3 - INTERSECTION SIGHT DISTAN
SUBDIVISION ROADS & TWO-LANE LOCAL C
ROADS (Single Unit Trucks)

Local or Primary Road P
Posted Speed (mph)

rfn

55
45
35
25

Table 3 values were taken from the AASHTO manual, A Policy ¢
and Streets, 2001 edition.

(a)

(RE Sege o 8 oo aanectss & rad, from & point on th

eye located 3.50 feet above the pavement surface of the
located 3.50 feet above the pavement surface of the loc

Intersection sight distance requirements for commercial or in
vehicle, as determined by the County Engineer, is a WB-50 will
basis. A case by case evaluation of required sight distance will
subdivision roads that intersect with multi-lane local collector a|

All'intersection sight distance requirements shall be subject to
forth in Table 4 - Effect of Grade on Sight Distance.

TABLE 4 - EFFECT OF GRADE ON SIGHT DISTAN(



Peter Menser

From: Dawn Kettinger <dawnkett@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 3:42 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Re: P.U.D. Plan for Copper Creek Condominium

Hello, Peter. Please enter this into the record.
Best wishes,
Dawn

Re: P.U.D. Plan for Copper Creek Condominium

The township planning commission would be violating one of the Master
Plan's core principles -- public safety -- if it were to recommend approval
of the P.U.D. for Copper Creek Condominium.

When the plan included one egress/ingress (on Haslett Road) and using
Wood Knoll as emergency access only, the feedback to the developer was
to come back with at least two thru roads. That clearly meant two safe and
viable entrances.

Instead, the developer came back with a plan that adds traffic to an already
dangerous intersection (Haslett-Creekwood Lane).

Regardless of who is responsible, that hazardous curve on Haslett is here
to stay. Creekwood Lane is the most dangerous point at which to send
more traffic into it.

That hazard's effect on the safety of residents and motorists must be taken
into consideration with any development; that consideration here would
lead to denying the current plan.

I urge you to act according to the government's primary duty -- protecting
public safety -- and recommend rejection of the plan.

1



I respect the developer's rights, but I think the voices of those of us on
Creekwood Lane should be respected. That will not be the case if the plan
is recommended for approval.

Mayberry is trying to get away with the cheapest, easiest way - that's to be
expected. It should also be expected that our representatives on the
commission put the safety of township residents - not the interests of a
corporation -- first.

Respectfully,

Dawn Kettinger

5600 Creekwood Lane
Haslett, MI 48840



Peter Menser

From: Mark Bird <mark@bird-design.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 01, 2018 6:50 AM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning #18120

Mr. Peter Menser

[ am writing to you as a resident of Sundance Estates in Okemos. | am deeply concerned about and
opposed to the proposed rezoning and possible expansion of the development by Mayberry Homes. I
urge you to deny their request for the following reasons....

1. The impact of increased density and its effects on the environment and wildlife.

2. The burden that will be placed on the school system

3. The diminished quality of life that will result from the increased density in terms of traffic and the
aforementioned. Are there plans to expand Bennet road and hagadorn to 4 lanes or will they remain 2
lane roads? Sounds like a lose lose to me.

If you wish to discuss this further feel free to contact me.

Best regards,

Mark Bird
616.638.6885



Peter Menser

From: nagraj kota <nagraj.kota@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, November 01, 2018 10:15 AM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: rezoning

Hi,

I am a resident of Okemos and hereby sending my objection to rezoning #18120. So, it is NO vote for the
mentioned rezoning.

Nagraj Kota
3990 sun rapids dr. okemos, mi - 48864



Peter Menser

From: Kota, Himabindu (DTMB) <KotaH@michigan.gov>
Sent: Thursday, November 01, 2018 10:20 AM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: NO for rezoning

Hello,

My name is Himabindu Kota and | am a resident of Okemaos. | hereby sending my objection to rezoning#18120. So it is
NO vote for the mentioned rezoning.

Himabindu Kota,

3990 Sunrapids dr, Okemos, Ml, 48864



Peter Menser

From: Geffrey Colon Rivera <gcolon@emich.edu>
Sent: Thursday, November 01, 2018 10:48 AM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: Rezoning #18120 for Mayberry Homes
Mr. Menser

I want to express OPPOSITION to the rezoning #18120 for Mayberry Homes.

As a resident of Stonebrook Subdivision I am concerned about the impact of more homes on the surrounding
area which has really important wetlands that are crucial to the ecological stability of the environment, not to
mention the wildlife that occupies such habitats. Also concerned about homes built on such wetlands, thus,
creating a higher probability for flooding in the area.

Okemos Public Schools are a model of excellence but such is also connected to the teacher/student ratio that
currently exists, more students will create a burden on the system and teachers.

Mayberry Homes is only looking to further their profits, once they build they leave and are no longer
responsible for the impacts of expanding the community unnecessarily. The Okemos housing market has a great
revolving door due to professionals that are transient and are only in the area for a short-lived timespan.

Sincerely,

Geffrey Colo6n, Ph.D.

Professor

School of Health Promotion & Human Performance
Eastern Michigan University

Ypsilanti, M1 48197

734-487-2806  Office-Porter Bldg 319R

734- 487- 0090 School of HPHP



Charter Township of Meridian, Planning Commission
% Peter Menser, Principal Planner

5151 Marsh Road,

Okemos, Ml 48864

B,
0,
5 e,
pal
......
T
“a,
e
LS
@«

Dear Members of the Planning Commission and Mr. Menser:
We first thank you for your time and work on this important issue.

By now you will have received dozens of comments and concerns from individual homeowners
in and around the Champion Woods neighborhood. The purpose of this correspondence is to
supplement the concerns previously raised with communication supported by a community of
homeowners.

As homeowners and taxpayers, we respectfully remind the Commission and Mr. Menser of the
general obligation toward consistency with the Master Plan and the Green Space Plan.
Preservation of land and wildlife is a central focus of the Master Plan and the Green Space
Plan. We add concerns with regard to preservation of safety, avoidance of flood-plain disruption,
movement of water from the rezoned area to ours, preservation of property values and general
development density concerns.

Mr. Menser and the Planning Commission have been made aware of the inadequate notice of
the rezoning proposal and this meeting to the Champion Woods Condominium Association,
owners of the common land abutting the area of the proposed rezoning request. Despite
multiple requests from members of the Champion Woods Condominium Association to adjourn
the October 22, 2018 Planning Commission meeting, that request was denied. Just as the
Planning Commission has bylaws governing meeting procedures, so does our Association. The
manner in which notice was provided was insufficient to allow for the Condominium Association
to formally meet and present a response under bylaws. We renew our request for an
adjournment of considering of this rezoning request.

We submit that the burden must be placed on the Applicant to identify the basis upon which the
present zoning is unreasonable. As per the Rezoning Application, the Applicant offers three
reasons as to why the present zoning is unreasonable:

1) “Development to the east is completed. Twp sanitary and water extended to this
property.”

2) “Master plan allows up to 3.5 units/al”

3) “Rezoning would allow logical development and infill vacant land in residential.”

We submit that the allegations regarding completion of development and extension of sanitary
and water fails to support a basis for unreasonableness of the present zoning. Specifically, the




present zoning shows a reasonable use for the surrounding areas by preserving flood plains,
natural areas, use of vacant land. The current zoning is not unreasonable. While the master
plan may well allow for a more dense zoning, a more dense zoning does not make the land use
more reasonable. In other words, the present zoning adequately addresses a population density
that preserves the intent of the master plan. Applicant’s allegation that the present zoning is
unreasonable because “rezoning would allow logical development and infill vacant land in
residential” belies the fact that if this Commission does nothing to change the zoning, logical
development and residential units may still be reasonably built under the present zoning. The
health, safety or general welfare of the public is not enhanced by “..logical development and
infill vacant land in residential.” To the contrary, and as expressed below, the health, safety or
general welfare of the public is enhanced by the rejection of the rezoning request.

We submit that the health, safety or general welfare of the public may be adversely impacted by
the rezoning of the land in the following fashion and suggest that more information should be
gathered to determine the answers to these important questions:

1. The Herron Creek drain is a fragile infrastructure that could be adversely impacted by
the significant change in unit density. Prior to rezoning the land, a request for evaluation
and comment should be directed to the Drain Commissioner.

2. Traffic patterns will, at a minimum, be significantly altered by the proposed rezoning.
With the present zoning, there will be a significant increase in traffic resuiting from the
development of the land at issue. Using the Applicant’s own traffic assessment,
weekday daily trips will increase by over 84% over existing zoning trips. A significant
portion of these increased daily trips will travel through Sophiea Parkway to Hulett Road,
causing an increase in dangerous conditions to residents, children and impact traffic
patterns in a negative manner.

3. Preservation of the natural wooded and wetland areas including Priority Conservation
Corridors and Fragile Links is important use of property. We do not presume to request
the Planning Commission to address property land use in a rezoning request hearing.
However, with a more dense zoning comes the ultimate question of impact on those
natural areas that should be addressed by an impact study prior to the rezoning.

4. Our Okemos School District Board of Education may be impacted by a more dense
zoning of this land. To the extent that taxpayers and the District may be impacted,
sufficient time for a District meeting should be given prior to this Commission rendering a
conclusion on the rezoning request.

5. We submit that logical development and infill of vacant land would consist of mirroring
the precedent set by this Commission as to logical development in the area. Specifically,
the Woods of Heron Creek lots and Champion Woods lots, set a reasonable standard,
hased upon prior Planning Commission decisions, for the development of the area in a
responsible and safe manner, and in the public interest.

The Applicant has proposed that the requested zoning is appropriate by citing the Master Plan.
We submit that the Master Plan has well-established guidelines for development. As it was



when Champion Woods was developed, attention must be paid to preservation of wetlands and
wooded areas. What the Master Plan allows versus what the Master Plans seeks to preserve
should be balanced by this Planning Commission.

We submit that the requested rezoning is not compatible with existing and proposed
surrounding Meridian Township uses which consists of a land preservation area, RAAA density
housing, and RAA density housing. Land outside of Meridian Township and not subject to the
Township Master Plan should not be used to support or reject a proposed rezoning. We submit
that the current zoning of the land at issue is more compatible with existing and proposed uses
than the proposed changes. The proposed changes may infringe on right of way rights to the
preserved area adjacent to the lands of Champion Woods Condominium Association.

Part Il Section B3 of the rezoning request makes a bold statement without support. The
Planning Commission must insist on the ways and means upon which “wetlands will be
protected, trees will be saved if reasonable.” We further note that no mention is made of the
Priority Conservation Corridor and Fragile Links within the area. One may say that there are
other mechanisms down the road for assurance of protection of the wetlands. However, once
the density of the zone is altered, legal avenues for convincing protection of wetlands and trees
may become more limited. By way of example, when and who shall render the reasonableness
of saving a tree rather than bulldozing that tree? Who is the individual or company responsible
for protecting the wetlands?

Part Il Section B4 of the rezoning request seeks a response from the Applicant as to the:
Requested rezoning would not result in significant adverse impacts on traffic circulation, water
and sewer systems, education, recreation or other public services, explain. The response to
this inquiry is telling of the insufficiency of information being present to the Planning
Commission on this rezoning request. The Application writes: “sanitary & water stubbed to
property; see traffic study.” We respond by reiterating the above concerns as to traffic
circulation and education. Furthermore, the Applicant should be required by this Commission to
respond in writing as follows:

1. To confirm the impact of and increase by over 84% in traffic circulation, and the impact
of that traffic routing through Sophiea Parkway. Further, to confirm the impact of traffic
on a two lane Bennett Road and two lane Hulett Road by an 84% increase in traffic
routing. Analysis must be required as to a more case specific impact study resuiting
from the connection of traffic to Sophiea Parkway and other roads, in consultation with
the Ingham County Road Commission.

2. To communicate with the Okemos School District Board of Education as to any adverse
impact on education and then present that information to this Commission.

3. To communicate with the Drain Commission as to significant adverse impacts on water
and sewer systems resulting from a higher density zoning.

4. Analysis should be completed prior to a rezoning as to the impact of property values of
surrounding properties resulting from a rezoning of the land. Specifically, the Township



should consider whether the rezoning reduces the value of existing properties in a
fashion as to reduce taxable income to the Township, and result in a diminution of value
to the property owner as a result of an adverse rezoning density.

Responses by the Application to Part Il Sections B5, 6 and 7 emphasize the need for single
family home sites. The current zoning provides access to such home sites. The distinction we
propose is the responsibility of growth pursuant to the master plan, versus growth for the sake
of maximum density. We submit that rezoning does not comport with the Master Plan goal of
better use of township lands. Instead, we believe that the present zoning is more in line with the
Master Plan, and with the open space suggested by the Applicant in response to B7. Applicant
has provided this Commission with no documentation (that we are aware of) to substantiate that
a demand exists in the market for a higher density than zoned.

As taxpayers, property owners and members of the Meridian Township community, we
respectfully request that members of the Planning Commission and Mr. Menser deny the
Application submitted by Bennett Road Holding, LLC (Mayberry Homes) and Mr. Straub. In lieu
of a denial of this Application, we request that the Planning Commission solicit the written
advice and opinions of the Okemos School District Board of Education, the Ingham County
Road Commission, the Ingham County Drain Commissioner and allow for further discussion at a
meeting of this Commission upon receipt of such documentation. We further request that this
Commission seek written documentation from the Applicant in more detail to substantiate the
details listed in the Application dated September 25, 2018.

Sincerely,



Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian, Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

__Name Address _ Signature
0 Dana, Bl | 271 Siphiea Py

P W nge) Pl

277V Sso\q 2 a”w\‘wml /

2 G odee hhn

LA 20 ('\)V‘O\/f""ji"(/

5 72 H. Ahn

4237 Pain E’Owd Gv

/

2075 jw L

) Epe Defp

2075 Sophieo- Pic wy

8IFAG Lo /A SA GOMNE

V67 LAFORET CIRCLE

/aﬂu (dsa@fm

i
o ¢

of oS

208t fafled Chrzl

Jorg (aaa P
O —__

11) \<ﬂ A ! 1’”\1\\\\()5

&0 Laforet Gicle

12) Kézﬁ/m f@l{’/

2\)0 Lafered o

ALET-

B AV ana fatol

2o Lafe® iy

A Le 1l 1oy

%ﬁ /s /D wed

287 Fapest— gl

7% <20

15)" \i\\;&%j & i\@\/w

7 ¢ I oA,
£ @ g / L 5%;4:;:‘(_@}; (e,

/z/m[/ L \/y(f/ Q

25% ] Coppiens Py

Eof

17) df I\ UN

25712 SoPHEEA IKT
O Kzt 0

VRSE /L’%

A

18L ﬁfﬁ“ U L S/; [}ES Mz\/q::fm@u ? WVWA/ }\ C%“ ﬂ
(\Sww) D S f“?(&jb{ﬂi\%u& (’L(WZ 0\/

20)NAREN TORTMELUN

22 Lophdea Pl

Y

o le ol

QA .




Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian, Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

; ~ Name ‘ Address -  Signature
g,ggg SEWER .
RN \ [ =
NP‘@?&\\%’»M Segeyes; X %%fﬁ)@ a(\ﬁ"@”‘["?

2) [easvacat Kaw

< U3BE Bertkiar \0ay
D EEmos , M SBA0L4

DK aviia Kace

B 36 RenpAM AAT
O eHos, M| c;«%/%%

) <,>a’7/f7(:57//)@q ﬁu‘? 57

5 @&7/4& Cie
Ohimes ML “/SKE /

6) A 5\,\\(3(\ ‘i\W RQLJ

l‘[ff? ?cjx/cu Cw
Olkemas . M| L}%%‘;é(/

" fndy ¥

C\nhea

Y1y "Lawn Brert car”
O Xemf MU L{(&i"f

8) - a
)g hrm%@! N

IS Nn(@( vl
Q)Yonx()"{ P'HL%YC(K

i \\\ il ket

HIHO Bontee (vile.
O \ceimus M) 80

Lristalre flenberg

212 5 i ea Fllunisy.
78 Olleaps, Ml YSEh &

11) /x *{{/Luz&ﬂ%) Jl/()”\fl/! J"J/\

2613 Toplhre ("’V/ Lo
O'l/léwu’f' ML /’7;)36

+2 Jﬂﬁ‘\/’b@(/\fv\b}v\/k\ 5

204 § sophwa PRl
(/, »m:ﬁ M Yg Zg&ﬂ»/

13) r%%ﬂc /7 éa C /:

éll/> b fences (e le
OAENS, MI HSEE o

AN f)fet A/F& U\\/L

) Aszm

VA A N (’/%

O r=f Y ffe

15) THUY @AcH TIEU

4159 @Qn(:a, Cir.
OKiEMes, MT 48864

16) Rﬁn q}ﬂm (:)i’;‘)cf( "tzfnlj ~

I EEU So [917/& e s ey
OlCepmos, M _Ygsey

2709 ks fortona

Pmmfc Mwﬂ, deerm, ME [ 9664
g N Mwﬁ B(l;zvl(\ LSt Bem Yeonn Vot
DA OW\A\)“ %L(
Ul/fﬂ’m
Tt Sheghenam, —| 15T W !meuwb
9) 7 ﬁg /\/\t;(;c?);/ (’me’z‘ /}/b( 3/1{/7
Danie] Melol 3F Benhom Way
20) che rle OKeW,gl M1 g5 0




Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian, Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

> K{w;w & sty Mo

723(0 %IIU ;(F)ﬁ(?é/f (i1

Name Address Signature
! Cer @7%:/1@//] 45.53 &éﬁ‘ﬂ /%;%571“ /’%é é# oA
2 ;j;’TWI ?317 /76/1 [/(9\33 )Qm’/( /%i’c"ﬂz“ S?lm Vﬂjﬂl\,&’v\ W
4) A;\L{M\)/} S‘QMLA 42:61 é(/aﬂw ﬁj(Z(ng CIE /\}_Mﬁv& Qu, 9#»\(/““”

6) C/l/\r‘“s ”6&,

L 601’ »Qiﬁ\?\/\i&a i )LW((A\/]

7 S)U&(i/\omm@ Wl 9

J% Zﬂ//}ﬁ%é(’ (/L/)W&%D

\ | /
AR Sovieo Py

\'s d\ﬁw\ Qm WL

10//\0“1 £ ¢ N m Cz/t

20 10 Sopllie= K/mz/
fl/\/ L’(rﬂyh Q?ﬂ

A M . /
'\)'3 \C) L 2L Sopluen Platot < - TN \ . \J
lZaﬂ\%gt v 1b %T( en g W M&g\\/"

| 11)/ o Y"r“y '/V)(/CVH ij

12) \) /
ASorsS J e sy

1«7 /6 90/}9//5"{& Flew y

Hiuy, ¢ B&mcn Was, Z
Cinpfina lnman | dl B Bonca Wiy / /‘ \Q/ YO

M B Torn, | UBT E b Wy, | D00 =

15) -

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)




Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian, Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

 Name

Address

Signature

Y oSttt Kalaucin

2902 Soph,ea Pm\,

Lo tike \COWL 2 5

L, 2l02 ﬁxqu;fkw4ﬁﬁg&mfﬁmﬂj\ggg

2 é<0~w/; D JGsauck,

‘” éﬁﬂﬂ by

2-HZ (wf}u(‘ Giucle

| o
o \é ’@/\/4/]\/ S%?Df/t’% %&7 J/g—u e Y V’ﬁ’/é 2
? Wolavi fpecbedity 2701, Sephixa Py

/) S)(m/‘/ ?/ (twq((ft § ba b

A1/ 5)/9%/’(4 /CW\/

NLWﬂd A

8 l ZUV\ OW @ﬁ%’cm

21¢3 {adriet Ciy

9)

10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)

“,




Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

JAN cASEY

26711 LAFOLET ¢ (eeeE
Steve C;se/ O leeptos AT 4964 /54&)/

Name Address gign



Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

“Jose pf? /74’///
SV 2 ry héfr/ 4/,) 147 Benca LJM

Name Address




should consider whether the rezoning reduces the value of existing propetrties in a
fashion as to reduce taxable income to the Township, and result in a diminution of value
to the property owner as a result of an adverse rezoning density.

Responses by the Application to Part ll Sections B5, 6 and 7 emphasize the need for single
family home sites. The current zoning provides access to such home sites. The distinction we
propose is the responsibility of growth pursuant to the master plan, versus growth for the sake
of maximum density. We submit that rezoning does not comport with the Master Plan goal of
better use of township lands. Instead, we believe that the present zoning is more in line with the
Master Plan, and with the open space suggested by the Applicant in response to B7. Applicant
has provided this Commission with no documentation (that we are aware of) to substantiate that
a demand exists in the market for a higher density than zoned.

As taxpayers, property owners and members of the Meridian Township community, we
respectfully request that members of the Planning Commission and Mr. Menser deny the
Application submitted by Bennett Road Holding, LLC (Mayberry Homes) and Mr. Straub. in lieu
of a denial of this Application, we request that the Planning Commission solicit the written
advice and opinions of the Okemos School Disirict Board of Education, the Ingham County
Road Commission, the ingham County Drain Commissioner and allow for further discussion at a
meeting of this Commission upon receipt of such documentation. We further request that this
Commission seek written documentation from the Applicant in more detail to substantiate the
details listed in the Application daited September 25, 2018.

Sincerely,

5‘,\; nedd L y Pm/w*e/ Dunie Adddrecs

Sl T 263) Soploss PR

g 2694 Sefhien TV

v 2161 Sopniee. Py

e IS Y Usialk Giv.

e %A/B/ T Usink Gy,

/;"Wv[ .2407 §o}e>lweq ?/(w?

/A % /»:A/ 2(°] ?491\2% P ¥




should consider whether the rezoning reduces the value of existing propetrties in a
fashion as to reduce taxable income to the Township, and result in a diminution of value
to the property owner as a result of an adverse rezoning density.

Responses by the Application to Part Il Sections B5, 6 and 7 emphasize the need for single
family home sites. The current zonhing provides access to such home sites. The distinction we
propose is the responsibility of growth pursuant to the master plan, versus growth for the sake
of maximum density. We submit that rezoning does not comport with the Master Plan goal of
better use of township lands. Instead, we believe that the present zoning is more in line with the
Master Plan, and with the open space suggested by the Applicant in response to B7. Applicant
has provided this Commission with no documeniation (that we are aware of) to substantiate that
a demand exists in the market for a higher density than zoned.

As taxpayers, property owners and members of the Meridian Township community, we
respectfully request that members of the Planning Commission and Mr. Menser deny the
Application submitted by Bennett Road Holding, LLC (Mayberry Homes) and My. Straub. In lieu
of a denial of this Application, we request that the Planning Commission solicit the written
advice and opinions of the Okemos School District Board of Education, the Ingham County
Road Commission, the Ingham County Drain Commissioner and allow for further discussion at a
meeting of this Comimission upon receipt of such documentation. We further reguest that this
Commission seek written documentation from the Applicant in more detail to substantiate the
details listed in the Application dated September 25, 2018.

Sincerely,
/”//“%QS\\ 28 bE 55/94—'54 Sl wry

/%/\/v .><f\n Lu W36 Kegpy Wﬁg/

<

(/ | ?Cévlt\ Ly YIS N feg han (4/«7

[0
o\ MWQW PEPE; K&\/&V\;V«'M

Q/?f\ N2 E’W“) 2520 Keye/u Nm]/

(2 (AT 450 Benhom Loy

—g Z(QM %Zﬁ%m 19@ Mj



should consider whether the rezoning reduces the value of existing properties in a
fashion as to reduce taxable income to the Towngship, and result in a diminution of value
to the property owner as a resuli of an adverse rezoning density.

Responses by the Application to Part il Sections B5, 6 and 7 emphasize the need for single
family home sites. The current zoning provides access to such home siies. The distinction we
propose is the responsibility of growth pursuant to the master plan, versus growth for the sake
of maximum density. We submit that rezoning does not comport with the Master Plan goal of
better use of township lands. Instead, we believe that the present zoning is more in line with the
Master Plan, and with the 6pen space suggested by the Applicant in response to B7. Applicant -
has provided this Commission with no documentation (that we are aware of) to substantiate that
a demand exists in the market for a higher density than zoned.

As taxpayers, property owners and members of the Meridian Township community, we
respectfully request that members of the Planning Commission and Mr. Menser deny the
Application submitied by Benheti Road Holding, LLC (Mayberry Home' ., and Mr. Straub. in fieu
of a denial of this Application, we request that the Planning Comimission solicit the written
advice and opinions of the Okemos School Distiict Board of Education, the Ingham County
Road Commission, the Ingham County Drain Commissioner and allow for further discussion af a
meeting of this Commission upon receipt of such documentation. We further request that this
Commission seek written documentation from the Applicant in more detail to substantiate the
details listed in the Application dated Sepiember 25, 2018,

Sincerely,

S'ijn eap 4\/ VZ ro/w‘ly Purdsr Adblrecs

Huop'ng 349 2713 Splien PEOT

__/#Wng M,% 2)0b So,lieq AT




Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

A’DNM( SHEDAR 4229 foin Fovest Cvety ‘@‘w %

Name Address Sighature

0@«.1/\4.@‘, ﬂ// L/??{%



Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

Sarc Chizidl 20095 Soohien P/cuu/ \%WJ @K D

Name Address SlgnaturU



Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

:7:'?‘{”} CL":U\(/& (695 S5s, Lice Dby %/

Name Addfess OM AL W




Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

/\//l (ﬁ ZZ%L%
:Ts:m a e';; 0 /i//} eri j Q{?z! 35 Ltgq (,UL' C:/( r, _ / Z,/I.if/mw:;\j é

Name Address Signature

Signztory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Princips! Planner

| | 7
Jorhpun s alnq Loplien ploy 02

Mame Address O /ét’/}”’[ o Signalure




Signatory to the letter to Charter Township of Meridian, Planning Commission % Peter Menser, Principal Planner

~ Name . - Address ~ Signature

D Mer Yoo | 2686 Sphs pku G

2 C, ophie Shi | 511 H€=2077 S

NPk Ko v gy LH T Rence ¢y N ZV /

5)

6)

7)

10)

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)




-
-
-

Frs

Once you are stopped
in the drop off zone,
ALL students (including
Kindergarteners) MUST
exit the vehicle. Please
do not wait until your
vehicle is in front of a
specific set of doors (ie:
Kindergarten) as this
creates back-ups in the
carline.

P
- 3

** Parking route ** I o
Not a drop off route U\

© 2015/Google

AM Drop-Off:

Drop-off zone is anywhere between the 2 large orange cones.
Pull up as far as you can before stopping (2" large orange cone).
Once you are in the drop-off zone, all students (including K) MUST exit the vehicle. PLEASE do not
wait to drop off your child at a specific door (ie: in front of the Kindergarten doors). This creates back-ups
in the carline.
Students should exit the vehicle on the passenger side ONLY.

e Parents need to remain inside the vehicle during pick up/drop off.
PM Pick-Up:
Place a sign with your child/ren’s name written in large BLACK letters in the front window
(passenger side) for our carline supervisor to identify who you are picking up. Share this detail with
babysitters, grandparents, etc.
When you approach the pick-up zone (just beyond the 1% orange cone), the supervisor will direct your
child to a colored cone, which is your anticipated stop and pick-up location.
Students should enter the vehicle from the passenger side ONLY.
Important Details:
Drop off/pick up your child/ren in the designated locations only (by using the carline or by parking

and walking students to/from the sidewalk). We cannot have “exceptions to the rule” as this creates a
safety risk for ALL children! (ie: dropping students off on Hulett Road; picking up at another sidewalk

area (ie: by the Kindergarten playground), etc.)

If you need to spend time talking with your child or if your student requires a great deal of
assistance getting out/in the car/carseat, please park in a designated parking spot and walk your
child to the sidewalk. (Additional parking is sometimes available in the church lot located to the east of Bennett Woods.)
Our younger students should practice having backpacks ready and getting out of the car quickly.

Do not park or drop-offipick-up in undesignated locations! If you are not able to find a parking space
please either use the carline or return in a few minutes. Parking spots do become available as people

leavell :

“When ¢ ling east on Bennett Road do NOT atte 0 a left turn into the parking lot
-off/pick- e. Please travel down to the roundabout and enter the parking lot from the

right.

OPTIMAL time to drop students off is between 8:35 — 8:45] Students that arrive after 8:50 will be

marked tardy.

Be patient - A few extra minutes of time will increase the safety of our drop-off and pick-up procedures.




Lynne S. Page
3912 Raleigh Drive

Okemos, M| 48864 ﬁ@@@H\V@/D .

517-347-7403

October 22, 2018

Planning Commission

Charter Township pf Meridian
5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M! 48864

-
-
-
______
-
-~
~-

Re: Rezoning #18120 — Bennet Road Holding, LLC (Opposition)
To the Planning Commission:

| am writing to express my opposition to Rezoning Request #18120. The applicant has requested rezoning of 7
parcels (96.74 acres) located on the north side of Bennett Road, east of Hagadorn Road from RR (Rural
Residential), RAA (Single Family-Low Density), and RAAA (Single Family-Low Density) to RA (Single Family-
Medium Density). The current zoning consists of approximate 13 acres of RAA zoning, 75 acres of RAAA
zoning, and eight acres of RR zoning.

My objections to this rezoning request are as follows:

1. The property can be developed for single family housing as currently zoned.

2. The requested zoning (RA) is inconsistent with the less dense zoning of the adjacent single-family low-
density properties (RAA, RAAA, and RR).

3. The requested rezoning will have a significant adverse impact on the natural environment. The
rezoning would essentially double the potential number of dwelling units from 176 to 345.

e This higher density development will result in additional impervious surfaces, such as roofing and
pavement, which reduces infiltration and increases water runoff. The increased volume of water
runoff will adversely impact the surrounding properties, contiguous wetlands and woodlands, the
Heron Creek Drain and the Red Cedar River.

e Parcels included in this rezoning request contain regulated wetlands. Piercing these wetlands will cause
irreparable damage to the contiguous wetlands and woodlands.

4. The requested rezoning will have a significant adverse impact on traffic circulation and congestion.
According to the applicant’s traffic study, the proposed rezoning will generate an additional 1,808
Weekday Daily Trips, an 85% increase. This huge increase will adversely affect the safety and quality of
life of Meridian Township residents, especially given the project’s close proximity to nearby Okemos
High School and Bennett Woods Elementary School.

5. The increased density-and its resulting adverse impact on the natural environment and traffic
congestions will devalue neighboring properties, diminish potential green space and detract from the
quality of life for all Meridian Township residents.

Please consider the significant negative impact that this rezoning will have on our community and vote to
deny this rezoning request.

Sincerely, '

Lynne S. Page



A@@@@

%r , @@
‘A community petition to the Meridian Towr’i'shl.Q oy
Planning Board and Township Board e,
October 18, 2018 el
We, the undersigned residents of Creekwood Lane, oppose any version of the Copper
Creek development plan that will compromise current residents’ safety by increasing
traffic on our narrow street. With 88 proposed homes, the new subdivision could pour
dozens of vehicles into our small cul-de-sac every day. Our street, which turns into a single-
lane road when cars are parked on either side, cannot safely accommodate an influx of traffic.

Children on our street play outside frequently and catch the school bus on the corner. We
urge rejection of any plan that includes funneling additional traffic through Creekwood Lane.

Dawn Ke#nmxer (S Sheila Sanﬁ cnan (5648

WW%Q

\:ﬂc(/@./eua)e SH 100

U ki Kma (5642) " B0
\l ek Kindy Chyrishina More 4
Pty conea) / (5415
Randy R K0Y /jﬂ./V\u, e le

Knskn iy 3 Rscee—57 ;>

W ::sze Qu’*—/i Ah\f\ S}L i

John M sest B 505
ﬂ/rﬁ\ H'wﬂ Joshva Mo cev

/




A community petition to the Meridian Township
Planning Board and Township Board re: Copper Creek development

October 18, 2018
A Tl Tovw Bamap

(continued)
{ ;me_ﬁ_fuﬁﬁjﬁ 5100 Dwepessdl
66 3 Gag lcwme! C
ﬁm_«;/ /4//(7/‘/"W ) Tﬂ ;L -

Davur/ gé/ﬁ/a‘/'“/’/‘ (%/zﬂ@ C\L(Z\u /Q
S Cralwand Lu j’o
& Ko /fvw( llww{d élwck/
5/0,4 b I S Uy MO LMol
5Cr7 Cpesraantne. $ho3 ctctranop CN
Olye Gt S A
Alyae Amard SN Garcin
: 5_(0/03 Cveeviuooo] Ln S602 Creelcwird L}/\‘
X Stae, &, Slte 4K
S’S’c«( w“%lﬁ“ Lo “77[02/ ;: 21";”2’: sl

St g lowoo 0 m cool

Qfo‘v\\/\\rc %CN‘Q, /j @(W

f{é; 5 cxec K{/\)L)O Qk E)/Ar/JJ?{/’Q (ZJM/«]U(SéS?)




A
s
ot

A community petition to the Meridian Township |
Planning Board and Township Board re: Copper Creek development
October 18, 2018
(continued)

Robect Glffed [ 5@3@
o A ome.

e A. Sonenawscliasd)

ﬂmﬁ%/uw/cﬂ 54574

0%

Larraimme look  5¢5Y

C/Q)(qu o (paK
Dwotan P08 (5657)

i Gengs HoNY

Denge Kane (Géoo)

D fr




Peter Menser

From: Pyle, Ralph <pyler@msu.edu>

Sent: Friday, November 02, 2018 10:10 AM
To: Peter Menser

Subject: proposed car dealership

| have some reservations about the proposed car dealership located near Powell and Grand River Ave. | think the
dealership will lead to increased traffic and congestion in the area, and | am not sure how the addition of the dealership
will positively affect residents of the community.

Ralph Pyle

1664 Forest Hills Dr.

Okemos, M| 48864



Peter Menser

From: Jessi Wortley Adler <jessicawortley@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, November 02, 2018 10:19 AM

To: Peter Menser; Mark Kieselbach; Brett Dreyfus

Cc: Chris Buck; glaundroche@lafontaine.com

Subject: Objection to Special Use Permit #18081

Attachments: Objection to Special Use Permit #18081 - Jessi Adler.docx

Peter, Mark, Brett,

Please see my attached letter (also pasted below), regarding Special Use Permit #18081 that is scheduled for a
public hearing at Monday's Planning Commission Meeting regarding a proposed LaFontaine Automotive Group
dealership. Please pass this letter on to the Planning Commission Members prior to Monday's meeting.

Thank you,

Jessi Adler

1580 Hillside Dr, Okemos, M1 48864
jessicawortley @ gmail.com

November 2, 2018
Re: Special Use Permit #18081

Dear Planning Commissioners and Planning Department,

My husband and I live at the corner of Hillside and Northview, within visual sightline of
1560 Grand River Ave. This is the address for the ultimate planned primary location of a
LaFontaine Automotive Group dealership. While the special use permit #18081 before
you is for the properties at 1492-1448 Grand River on the northeast corner of Grand
River and Powell, my concerns regard all of the parcels that LaFontaine plans to develop
on both the northeast and northwest corners of the intersection because they essentially
are a package deal. I strongly object and urge you to reject/vote no on this
special use permit.

I am an avid runner and regularly train on Powell Road. I have a hard enough time
crossing Grand River to get there now due to it not being the most pedestrian-friendly
area. I am concerned that a dealership on the corner with increased traffic and de-
acceleration lanes will prevent me from being able to safely reach Powell on foot. As it
is, I have to carefully watch traffic before darting across the road since the nearest
actual crosswalk would add an additional half-mile if you had to go there. This township
continues to say it wants to be trailway and pedestrian friendly, but this proposed
development is quite the opposite of that and will deter runners and walkers from
heading down Powell. Powell is designated as a scenic road corridor and yet continues to
be pilfered for development.

Along with our neighbors, we have watched this township continue to rezone acres upon
acres of rural residential property into commercial zones and allow way too many

commercial entities to move in. Many of us purposely bought houses in the more rural
1



sections of the community. Now, we are being subjected to decreased property values
as well as increased traffic, light pollution, noise, deforestation, and displacement of
wildlife. The words “they paved paradise and put up a parking lot” couldn’t be more true
for what this planning commission is doing to our township, specifically if you allow yet
another car dealership.

A car dealership will bring all of those items I just mentioned and negatively
impact our daily lives and house values. Listed below are my major concerns
and reasons why you should reject this special use permit.

1) Light Pollution. Car dealerships are known to have more light poles than
any business ever needs. Our dark sky area will now be lit up like a major city.
Light pollution is an increasing problem globally and we need to stop this. Why
does a dealership need to be lit up like a runway 24-hours a day? If they're
concerned with security there are other ways to handle this, without having all the
lights on. Even the new LEDs and downward facing or angled lights aren’t enough
- people are still shorter than a light pole so we would be subjected to seeing
these lights and if you look up at the sky they will block your vision.

2) Water redirection. Car dealers also need as much pavement as possible to
park their cars on - pavement is not environmentally friendly because it generates
heat, is not permeable, and contributes to global warming. Water that drains into
the ground helps replenish the aquifer. If the ground is paved over, that water will
be redirected and quite likely contaminated with runoff from the parking lot. As a
household that is still on a well, this is extremely concerning to me as we rely on
that water.

3) Deforestation. Grass and trees are necessary to cool the earth, produce
much-needed oxygen, and help with water runoff and drainage. The wholesale
removal of large mature trees that they will attempt to replace with tiny sticks that
do not even cast a shadow is alarming. We must act now to save these mature
trees. The site plan shows teeny pockets of grass with little to no trees or shrubs
dispersed on islands throughout the parking lot. That is not enough to counteract
the vast amount of pavement planned. Again, for a township that has a
Greenspace Plan, you sure are doing a good job of trying to get rid of all of it.

a. Have you considered working with LaFontaine and other parties in town
to allow them to build on sections of land already paved over, such as the
Meridian Mall? That parking lot sits empty now most of the time and would
be an ideal location for a car dealership that desires lots of pavement. This
would prevent additional deforestation and greenspace destruction.

2



4) Wildlife destruction. A study released recently by the World Wildlife
Foundation says that in the past 40 years, humans have been responsible for
causing the wildlife populations to fall by more than half due to deforestation and
pollution - both things a car dealership will contribute to. We already have a large
deer herd in this area, and it is well-known they live in the woods on Powell and
cross regularly into Forest Hills. Where are those deer going to go if you eliminate
their entire forest? And not just the deer, but the rest of the wildlife that live there
and who have made that their home much longer than any of us? Deforestation up
and down Powell and Grand River has caused more and more animals to move into
our neighborhoods because they have nowhere else to go. As the study says
"We’re facing a rapidly closing window for action and the urgent need for
everyone—everyone—to collectively rethink and redefine how we value, protect,
and restore nature.” The township is already paying hunters to unnecessarily
reduce the deer population in the township that is seen as a threat. But the deer
woudn’t be a threat if we would stop removing the natural areas they want to live
in for the sake of more tax revenue.

5) Increased traffic. Grand River is heavily traveled and in the 10+ years we
have lived in Forest Hills, we find it harder and harder every day to exit our
subdivision due to increased traffic from the urban sprawl east of us. Almost
exactly at the corner of Northview and Grand River, the speed limit changes to 50
mph. That will be right at the entrance to what is the Phase 2 portion of this
project. For the phase 1 SUP that is before you, the driveway will be on a hill as
people are barreling down Grand River headed west. It appears there is a de-
acceleration lane planned, which would be helpful, but it’s not reassuring.

a. While you are not considering Phase 2 at this time, we are, because if
you approve Phase 1 you will likely approve Phase 2. I'm even more
concerned for that development about the ability to get in and out of the
subdivision and crashes from cars trying to turn every which way. The curb
cuts are already too close together and every day it's a serious crash waiting
to happen when someone is turning out of Northview headed west and
someone is trying to turn north into Sparrow, and someone else is trying to
get in or out of Baryames. I have witnessed and been party to many near-
misses. Adding a car dealership will add to an already bad situation.

b. We also are concerned about increased traffic in our neighborhood from
customers test-driving vehicles through it. Too many cars speed through our
neighborhood already. We should not be subjected to additional traffic from
people who aren’t familiar with the area or the vehicle they are driving

3



testing out cars and not paying attention to their surroundings. The past
decade has seen an increase in families living in our subdivision, and every
day we are noticing more kids on foot and on bikes traveling through. They
should not have their neighborhood streets turned into a test track.

6) Poor drainage and flooding. You must be aware that the Daniels Drain
runs behind my house, under Walden Ponds, under Grand River and would be
directly under LaFontaine’s proposed dealership. We've already been contacted by
the Ingham County Drain Commissioner about a planned drain reconstruction and
how much it will cost us to fix the drain. LaFontaine would contribute a lot of water
to an already overburdened and failing drain system. This would be bad for
everyone. Many of the condo units in Walden Ponds are already unusable because
they flood regularly from the drain backing up.

7) Decreased property values. Realtors always tell you Location, Location,
Location. Where a house is located is important — and across the street from a
large car dealership probably isn’t the first location a family would choose when
looking for a house or condo. It's not a business you frequent regularly, unlike a
grocery store, pharmacy or restaurant. We were sold on our house because of its
proximity to a grocery store, as well as how rural it was - there was nothing
commercial to the east of us except the driving range, which is still rural because
it's 99% green space. The land north and east was all zoned rural residential,
which appealed greatly to us. Now it's been rezoned commercial and you want to
add a car dealership to the mix - a business that isn’t great for what was
supposed to be a semi-rural family neighborhood. Our property value has finally
recovered after the recession and I worry significantly that it will drop again if this
proposal is approved.

While my husband and I object to this proposal and again, strongly urge you to
reject it based on the concerns listed above, I assume it is likely a foregone
conclusion that you will be approving it.

Therefore, the following items need to be considered and required as a
condition of the special use permit:

1) Require LaFontaine to shut off all their parking lot lights at night, especially
since they close around 6 p.m. most evenings. For security reasons, the lights
could be on a motion sensor so they only go on if tripped. For lights that are on
during evening business hours, require the lights to be covered, dimmed and
angled so light does not leave their property.

2) Require any maintenance facilities to be placed as far back from the road as
possible to minimize sound. This includes any service bays, car wash, loading

4



docks, etc. In addition, there should be requirements for bioswales or other
measures to help filter the water runoff from this industrial space prior to it
reaching the aquifer.

3) Do not allow any outside sound like a public address system, music or
honking.

4) Require them to preserve as many of the existing mature trees as possible
and design and construct their parking lot and buildings around the established
trees instead of cutting them down and planting new tiny ones. Design the car
layout to cluster cars together, allowing for as much green space as possible to be
saved and incorporated.

5) Require that no test drives be allowed in our neighborhood.

Again, overall we feel this project will be extremely detrimental to the environment,
our property values, and quality of life. We urge you to vote no on this special use
permit. Meridian Township was already special and continued approval of these types
of permits is ruining that.

Jessi Wortley Adler

1580 Hillside Drive
Okemos, MI
517-230-9923
jessicawortley@gmail.com




To: Planning Commission
From: Peter Menser, Principal Planner

Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner

Date: October 31,2018

Re: Special Use Permit #18081 (LaFontaine Automotive Group), request to
establish a new car dealership on the north side of Grand River Avenue, east
of Powell Road.

LaFontaine Automotive Group has requested a special use permit to establish a new car dealership
at four parcels addressed as 1492, 1478, 1476, and 1448 Grand River Avenue, located on the north
side of Grand River Avenue, east of Powell Road. The approximate 5.47 acre subject site is
currently occupied by a vacant 3,136 square foot commercial building built in 1955 (formerly
occupied by Sports by Sager, an online sporting equipment vendor), four sheds, two barns, and a
1,285 square foot single family house built in 1930. A special use permit (SUP #95011) was
granted in 1995 for a rental car facility at 1492 Grand River Avenue.

The proposed dealership will contain sales for Chrysler, Dodge, Ram, and Jeep automobiles. The
submitted plans indicate development of the property would occur in two phases. Phase One,
which is approximately 1.85 acres of the overall project site, would include the following:

e Renovating the existing commercial building (Building A on the submitted plans) for new
car sales operations.

e Site clearing and grading as necessary to construct Phase One parking lot and detention

area.

Installation of storm sewers for full site development.

Upgrading the existing parking lot.

Site lighting for Phase One.

Landscaping for Phase One.

The applicant has indicated their anticipated target completion of Phase One would be July 2019.
Phase Two would include the expansion of the parking area for automobile display, completion of
site landscaping and lighting, and the conversion of the existing single family home (Building B on
the submitted plans) to an office. The house will be required to meet commercial building
standards. The submitted plans show the other buildings on the property would be removed in
Phase Two. The applicant has indicated Phase Two would commence within two years of special
use permit approval and be completed within the three-year special use permit timeframe for
completion.

The submitted application materials indicate the applicant’s intention is to run the Chrysler,
Dodge, Ram Truck, and Jeep sales operation temporarily from the currently proposed location
while they continue to develop plans for a permanent facility on the northwest corner of Grand



Special Use Permit #18081 (LaFontaine Automotive Group)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 2

River Avenue and Powell Road. At that time, the applicant would utilize the current location as
their permanent Ram Truck store, and other operations would move across Powell Road to the
other facility.
Master Plan

The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject site in the Commercial
and R1-Residential 0.0-0.5 dwelling units per acre categories.

FUTURE LAND USE MAP
5=
e
©
3
=]
n-
-—-#-F-‘--
f L
\\_\\
Gr.
and%\u\
~Ave —
~— 5
Commercial :
MR-Residential 5.0-14.0 du/a
R1-Residential 0.0-0.5 du/a
r:l R2-Residential 0.5-3.5 du/a
A \ ‘ ~ R3-Residential 1.25-3.5 du/a
L |

Zoning

The subject site (four parcels) is located in the C-2 (Commercial) zoning district, which requires a
minimum of 100 feet of lot width and 4,000 square feet of lot area. All four parcels conform to the
minimum lot area and lot width standards of the C-2 zoning district.

The proposed automobile dealership is an allowed use in the C-2 zoning district by special use
permit. A zoning ordinance amendment (ZA #07160) adopted in January 2008 permitted new car
dealerships to operate in the C-2 district, subject to special use permit approval. Prior to the
zoning amendment new car dealerships were only permitted in the C-3 district. Section 86-
404(e)(16)(1) requires a minimum lot size of four acres for new car dealerships. The four parcels
which make up the subject site would need to be combined to meet this standard.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Special Use Permit #18081 (LaFontaine Automotive Group)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 3

ZONING MAP
RA i RAA*
2
5 RR
C-2 LT CR IRR
) C-2
"\
\/ Granq% .
Ve
1o
RC e
w :
A Ran [ / 3

Physical Features

The topography of the site slopes from 863 feet above mean sea level near the northern edge of the
property to a high point of 889 feet above mean sea level at the eastern edge of the site. The Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for Meridian Township indicates the property is not located in a
floodplain. The site does not have any special designation on the Township Greenspace Plan. The
Daniels Drain, an enclosed (underground) county drain, flows south to north through the subject
site.

Wetlands

The Township Wetland Map shows Wetland #23-2A may be located along the northern extent of
the subject site. Section 86-471 of the Code of Ordinances requires all structures and grading
activities be set back 20 or 40 feet from a delineated wetland boundary and that a natural
vegetation strip be maintained within 20 feet of the wetland boundary. The applicant’s wetland
consultant completed a wetland delineation to determine the boundary, regulatory status, and size
of the wetland. The Township’s environmental consultant must verify the wetland delineation.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Special Use Permit #18081 (LaFontaine Automotive Group)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 4

WETLANDS MAP

Ingham County Drains

|:] Wetlands

T

Streets and Traffic

|

The site fronts on both Grand River Avenue and Powell Road. Grand River Avenue is a four lane
road with curb and gutter and a center turn lane classified as a Principal Arterial on the Street
Setbacks and Service Drives Map in the zoning ordinance. Powell Road is a two lane road classified
as a Collector street. The Pedestrian and Bicycle Pathway Map shows a required seven foot wide
pathway along the Grand River Avenue frontage, which the applicant will be required to install as
part of the project. The most recent (2008) traffic count information from the Ingham County
Road Department (ICRD) for Powell Road, between Grand River Avenue and Tihart Road, showed
a total of 121 vehicles in a 24 hour period. The most recent (2016) traffic count information from
the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) for Grand River Avenue, between Dobie Road
and Cornell Road, showed a total of 15,980 vehicles in a 24 hour period.

The applicant submitted a trip generation analysis which estimates future vehicle trips that could
be generated by the proposed automobile dealership. The Institute of Transportation Engineers
(ITE) trip generation rates for Automobile Sales (New) (Land Use Code 840) were selected to
represent the dealership. The following table summarizes findings from the submitted trip

generation analysis.

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Special Use Permit #18081 (LaFontaine Automotive Group)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)

Page 5
I . AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Description Size In Out Total In Out Total Weekday
Automobile 2,950
Sales (New) sq. ft. 4 2 6 3 4 7 55

A traffic assessment is required for new special uses which could generate between 50 and 99
directional trips during a peak hour of traffic. A traffic impact study is required for new special
uses which would generate over 100 directional trips during a peak hour of traffic, or over 750
trips on an average day. Based on the projected traffic volumes neither a traffic assessment nor
traffic impact study is required.

Utilities

Municipal water is available in the vicinity to serve the proposed development and sanitary sewer
is not currently in the vicinity and would have to be extended to serve the subject site. The
location and capacity of utilities will be reviewed in detail during site plan review if the special use
permit is approved.

Staff Analysis

The special use permit review criteria found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances should be
used when evaluating the proposed special use permit. Section 86-404(e)(16) outlines the
regulations pertaining to new car dealerships in the C-2 zoning district, which are as follows:

e Minimum lot size: four acres.

e Vehicle service and repair and used car sales shall be permitted ancillary uses to the
principal new car sales use.

e Body shops shall not be a permitted ancillary use.

The dealership would not have a service facility on site. The applicant indicated corporate
standards require the dealership to display a service sign (as shown on the submitted building
elevations). In the absence of an onsite service facility, they will accept service customers and
direct them to their Lansing Chrysler location, until a permanent facility on the northwest corner
of Grand River Avenue and Powell Road is developed. At that time, the applicant would utilize the
current location as their permanent Ram Truck store, and other operations would move across
Powell Road to the other facility.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Special Use Permit #18081 (LaFontaine Automotive Group)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 6

Parking

The Code of Ordinances requires one parking space for each 200 square feet of useable floor space
of sales room, and one for each one vehicle displayed for sale. Building A is approximately 3,136
square feet in size, therefore 16 parking spaces are required to serve the building and 17 spaces
are provided. The submitted plans indicate 367 vehicles will be displayed for sale, 80 vehicles in
Phase One and an additional 287 vehicles in Phase Two. 373 total parking spaces are provided, 86
in Phase One and an additional 287 parking spaces in Phase Two. The required number of parking
spaces is provided.

C-2 zoned sites are allowed 70 percent impervious surface coverage. Impervious surface coverage
would be 19.5% in Phase One and 40% in Phase Two, with total site impervious surface coverage
at 60% when development is complete.

Typically, all construction related to the special use must be completed within 36 months from the
effective date of the special use permit, unless specifically approved as a phased development. The
applicant has indicated development of the subject site would occur in two phases, with both
phases to be completed within the three-year special use permit timeframe for completion.

If the Planning Commission decides to approve the special use permit request, staff recommends
the following conditions:

e Vehicle service and repair and used car sales are permitted at the subject site only when
ancillary to the principal new car sales use.

e Paintand/or automobile bodywork are prohibited uses at the subject site.

e The applicant shall combine the four subject parcels to meet the minimum four acre lot
size requirement for new car dealerships.

o Phase Two shall meet all ordinances or policies in affect at the time of commencement.

If the project is approved by the Planning Commission, the applicant will be required to submit for
Site Plan Review before work on the project can begin. Site Plan Review is a detailed staft-level
analysis of the project which includes reviews of storm water, utilities, landscaping, grading, and
other issues to ensure compliance with all applicable ordinances as well as confirmation of approvals
from local agencies such as the Ingham County Drain Commissioner’s Office and Road Department.

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.
A resolution will be provided at a future meeting.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Special Use Permit #18081 (LaFontaine Automotive Group)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 7

Attachments

1. Special use permit application.

2. Trip generation analysis prepared by Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc., dated September 24,
2018, and received by the Township on October 1, 2018.

3. Tree inventories prepared by Marx Wetlands, dated March 27, 2018 and June 22, 2018, and
received by the Township on October 1, 2018.

4. Site plans prepared by Kebs, Inc., dated September 26, 2018, and received by the Township on
October 30, 2018.

5. Building elevations and floor plans prepared by Studio Detroit, dated September 21, 2018 and
August 30, 2018, respectively, and received by the Township on October 1, 2018.

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2018\SUP 18081 (Lafontaine)\SUP 18081.pc1.doc

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



§?WQ 000
{
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN i1 0CT g1 2018
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMEN
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MI 48864 WU
PLANNING DIVISION PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

Before submitting this application for review, an applicant may meet with the Director of Community
Planning and Development to discuss the requirements for a special use permit and/or submit a
conceptual plan for review to have preliminary technical deficiencies addressed prior to submittal of the
application. If the property or land use is located in the following zoning districts RD, RC, RCC, RN then
the applicant must meet with the Planning Director to discuss technical difficulties before filing a formal
application.

Part | -
A. Applicant, AFoRTAINE A\)TDMGT (V€ GROUP il GAK\-I Lp\O!‘JbKOLHb
Address of Applicant {000  WEST HIGH.AND RoAD

Telephone - WorkZ4%- ) 14/- | 5O Z Home Fax Email VNOROCHE
Interest in property (circle one): _—OWner > Tenant  (~Option” Other LAFosTaINE  LomM

(Please attach a list of all persons with an ownership interest in the property.)

B. Site address / location / parcel number ILMZ GI?RNG BwER
Legal description (please attach if necessary) SA\CET | - ATTALHED SET
Current zoning ~Z ]
Use for which permit is requested / project name Astomotive KetAlL Sales [ | AFORTAWE CDRD
Corresponding ordinance number .

C. Developer (if different than applicant) QP\ME

Address
Telephone — Work Home Fax

D. Architect, Engineer Planner or Surveyor responsible for design of project if different from applicant:
Name _KE RS InC Gone DETROIT ’ZF:S-q 19- 5386
Address_Z1/6 Heslett RoaD - Raslerr M| Z1l \WoodwarDd Avs Ste )00!
Telephone — Work S11- 339\~ 1014 Home Fax

E.  Acreage of all parcels in the project: GrossD." ] Net 5.35
Phase | < Builawk ReOVATio

A4 S |RFRASTROCIRE

E. Explain the project and development phases: ' sl palLFE OF Pﬂpk‘,a(.. LoT
Q. Total number of:
Existing: structures ' bedrooms offices L\ parking spaces‘b carports _L_garages
Proposed: structures bedrooms offices parking spaces carports ____garages

H. Square footage: existing buildings-f_b_égfoposed buildings
Usable Floor area:  existing buildingdd, %4 Jproposed buildings

If employees will work on the site, state the number of full time and part time empl?ees working per shift
and hours of operation: Tug%, WED \FRI - Aam o b Pn/]wmn & THnS Cram ~u 2\ pm
Sat= Uam o Hpa g Full Time - H paRT Tmé
J. Existing Recreation: Type Acreage
Proposed Recreation: Type La 4 Acreage
Existing Open Space: Type IR€st0emtial [ [pmmemeint (Awp Acreage _ H. &9
Proposed Open Space: Type _ lommercial  Lawel Acreage 2.l P

Page 1



If Multiple Housing:

Total acres of property

Acres in floodplain Percent of total

Acres in wetland (not in floodplain) Percent of total

Total dwelling units

Dwelling unit mix: Number of single family detached:  for Rent Condo
Number of duplexes: for Rent Condo
Number of townhouses: for Rent Condo
Number of garden style apartments: for Rent Condo
Number of other dwellings: for Rent Condo

The following support materials must be submitted with the application:

ISR B A

Nonrefundable Fee.

Legal Description of the property.

Evidence of fee or other ownership of the property.

Site Plan containing the information listed in the attachment to this application.

Architectural sketches showing all sides and elevations of the proposed buildings or structures,
including the project entrance, as they will appear upon completion. The sketches should be
accompanied by material samples or a display board of the proposed exierior materials and
colors.

A Traffic Study, prepared by a qualified traffic engineer, based on the most current edition of
Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities,
published by the State Department of Transportation.

a. A traffic assessment will be required for the following:
1) New special uses which could, or expansion or change of an existing special use
where increase in intensity would, generate between 50 to 99 directional trips
during a peak hour of traffic.

2) All other special uses requiring a fraffic assessment as specified in the Township
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article IV, Division 2.
b. A traffic impact study will be required for the following:
1) New special uses which would, or expansion or change of an existing special use

where increase in intensity would, generate over 100 directional trips or more
during a peak hour of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day.

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article iV, Division 2.

Natural features assessment which includes a written description of the anticipated impacts on the
natural features at each phase and at project completion that contains the following:

a. An inventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. Natural
features shall include, but are not limited to, wetlands, significant stands of trees or
individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, floodways, floodplains, waterbodies, identified
groundwater vulnerable areas, slopes greater than 20 percent, ravines, and vegetative
cover types with potential to sustain significant or endangered wildlife.

b. Description of the impacts on natural features.
C. Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative impacts.

The natural features assessment may be waived by the Director of Community Planning and

Development in certain circumstances.
,”‘sﬂf.\:"“lﬂﬂ i
0CT 01 2018
H DL CR

Page 2

e



Any other information specified by the Director of Community Planning and Development which is
deemed necessary to evaluate the application.

In addition to the above requirements, for zoning districts, RD, RC, RCC, RN, and CV and Group
Housing Residential Developments the following is required:

1. Existing and proposed contours of the property at two foot intervals based on United States
Geological Survey (USGS) data.

2. Preliminary engineering reports in accordance with the adopted Township water and sewer
standards, together with a letter of review from the Township Engineer.

3. Ten copies of a report on the intent and scope of the project including, but not limited to: Number,

size, volume, and dimensions of buildings; number and size of living units; basis of calculations of
floor area and density and required parking; number, size, and type of parking spaces;
architectural sketches of proposed buildings.

4. Seven copies of the project plans which the Township shall submit to local agencies for review
and comments.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application in zoning district RP requires the following
material as part of the site plan:

1. A description of the operations proposed in sufficient detail to indicate the effects of those
operations in producing traffic congestion, noise, glare, air pollution, water pollution, fire hazards
or safety hazards or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation.

2. Engineering and architectural plans for the treatment and dispésal of sewerage and industrial
waste tailings, or unusable by-products.
3. Engineering and architectural plans for the handling of any excessive traffic congestion, noise,

glare, air pollution, or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Floodway Fringe of
zoning district CV requires the following:

1. A letter of approval from the State Department of Environmental Quality.

2. A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours at a scale of one
inch representing 100 feet.

3. A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage
easements, the limits, extent, and elevations of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation.

4. A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of

Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Groundwater Recharge
area or zoning district CV requires the following:

1. A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours.

2. A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage
easements, the limits and extent of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation.

3. A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of

Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.

In addition to the above requirements, the Township Code of Ordinances, Article VI, should be reviewed
for the following special uses: group housing residential developments, mobile home parks,
nonresidential structures and uses in residential districts, planned community and regional shopping
center developments, sand or gravel pits and quarries, sod farms, junk yards, sewage treatment and
disposal installations, camps and clubs for outdoor sports and buildings greater than 25,000 square feet

in gross floor area.
ARIATRiI i
[7(
r

Page 3
nrT 1 7148

Lo T T L



Part Il SUP REQUEST STANDARDS
Township Code of Ordinances, Section 86-126

Applications for Special Land Uses will be reviewed with the standards stated below. An application that
complies with the standards stated in the Township Ordinance, conditions imposed pursuant to the
Ordinance, other applicable Ordinances, and State and Federal statutes will be approved. Your
responses to the questions below will assist the Planning Commission in its review of your application.

(1) The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter.

(2) The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township's Master Plan of
current adoption.

(3) The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such a
use will not change the essential character of the same area.

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses.
(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the community.

(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, stormwater
drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the persons or agencies
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such service.

(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site sanitation
facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and storm water are proposed, they shall be
properly designed and capable of handling the longterm needs of the proposed project.

(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions of
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors.

9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural resources of
the Townshlp, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, water recharge areas, lakes, rivers,
streams, major forests, wetlands, and wildlife areas.

Part llI
| (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or Commissions,
Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of gathering
information mcludlng but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.

o the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate

By the Blgnatuyg(s) at
accompghying ¢ldcume
?%: f} A28 1%

Sngnature of Applicant Date

(Gary  LAINAROERE

‘rype/P':Et gade /J/“ St &{"aj | W

Fee; ZC) Received by/Date

(Please check one)

—

reto, | (we) certify that the information provided within this application and

Page 4




September 25, 2018

Charter Township of Meridian
Department of Community Planning and Development
5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864

Re: Special Use Permit Application, Natural Features Assessment;

Dear Commissioners,

We are excited to present you with our proposed new car sales facility on the Northeast corner of Grand
River and Powell roads. Our intention is to run our “Chrysler, Dodge, Ram Truck, Jeep” sales operation
temporarily out of this location while we continue to develop the proposed permanent facility on the
Northwest corner of Powell and Grand River. At that time, we would like to maintain this proposed
location as our permanent Ram Truck store. The only item necessary to change at that time would be
the building brand signage.

This plan combines 1492, 1478, 1476 and 1448 Grand River into a 5+ acre parcel for new vehicle sales.
We propose modifications to the existing commercial building to comply with Fiat Chrysler Americas
current branding standards. The existing parcels contain no wetlands, significant natural features,
floodways or floodplains. We have included a tree survey, removal plan and the new landscaping
planting plans with the submittal set. While our operation as an automobile dealership does influence
our designs to market vehicles, we have tried to incorporate any existing naturally desired features into
our plan as is practical within the Township ordinances. We look forward for the opportunity to present
this plan to you.

Sincdirely,

Gary Laundroche

LaFontaine Automotive Group



October 30, 2018

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND
DEVELOPMENT
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, M| 48864

Re: 1492 Grand River, LaFontaine CDR-J Proposed Phasing Plan

Dear Commissioners,
Please accept the following narrative identifying the detailed proposed phasing plan.

We would like you to consider this project in two phases. Phase one is to include the existing .6
acre existing site and building along with another 1.25 acres developed for parking and

stormwater retention. Phase 1 will include the following:

e Renovate building “A” for a new car sales operation.

e Existing lot to be resurfaced and adjusted for storm water requirements

e Tree clearing necessary to construct the additional parking lot and retention area

e Deceleration lane as required for the entire site per Road Commission standards and
approvals

e Retention pond to the East sized for its portion of the entire site calculations as required
by Ingham County Drain Commission standards and approvals

e Storm sewers for full site development

¢ Site lighting for the phase 1 parking lot

e Stone base and asphalt pavement within phase 1

e Concrete curbs for drives and islands within phase 1

e Llandscaping and irrigation within phase 1



Schedule

Phase 1 to begin immediately upon permitting and as the weather allows for sitework. Targeted
completion for phase 1 is June-July 2019. Phase 2 to commence within 2 years of SUP approval
and be completed within the 3-year SUP timeframe. Building “B” will be used as a commercial

ancillary office supporting the dealership. All other existing building structures are to be
removed while work is being done in that phase.

Thank You

Gary Laundroche

LaFontaine Automotive



Traffic Engineering

Mr. Gary Laundroche ASSBEIﬂtBS, "":-
Corporate Facilities Manager a17/627-8028 FAX: §17/627-6040
Lafontaine Automotive Group : PO Box 100

4000 West Highland Road Saranac, Michigan 48881

Highland, Ml 48357

September 24, 2018
Dear Mr. Laundroche:

Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc. (TEA) conducted a trip generation analysis to
determine the approximate future vehicle trips which could be generated by the proposed
Lafontaine Dealership development to be located at the northeast corner of Grand River
Avenue (M-43) and Powell Road in Meridian Charter Township, Ingham County,
Michigan. ‘

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed development will be located at the northeast corner of Grand River Avenue
(M-43) and Powell Road. The parcel is approximately 3.5 acres and is currently zoned as
Commercial (C-2). There is an existing 2,950 square foot building on the site, of which it
is projected that 1,250 square feet will be used as a sales area. The purpose of this study
is to show the trip generation for this parcel for the proposed development of a new car
dealership. The proposed dealership will have a car sales office only. There will be no
automobile service at this site.

TRAFFIC ANALYSIS

For this analysis, trip generation rates were derived from the ITE TRIP GENERATION
MANUAL (10th edition). The ITE trip generation rates for Automobile Sales (New) (Land
Use Code 840), were selected as representing the 2,950 square foot dealership. The ITE
description of Automobile Sales (New) is as follows:

A new automobile sales dealership is typically located along a major arterial street
characterized by abundant commercial development. The sale or leasing of new cars is
the primary business at these facilities; however, automobile services, parts sales, and
used car sales may also be available. Some dealerships also include leasing options,
fruck sales, and servicing.

It is projected that the proposed dealership development will generate 6 vehicle trips

during the AM peak hour, 7 vehicle trips during the PM peak hour, and a weekday total
of 55 vehicle trips.

-[% 0CT 01 2019




Vehicle Trip Generation Summary

.. . AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Description Size |1, " 0ut | Total | in | Out | Total | Weekday
Automobile Sales 2,950
(New), Code 840 sqft | 42| 8 [ 3] 4] 7 55
FINDINGS

In accordance with the guidelines set forth in “Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies, A
Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities,” sponsored by the Tri-County
Regional Planning Commission and the Michigan Department of Transportation, if a
proposed site is expected to generate at least 100 directional trips during the peak hour
or at least 750 trips during an average day, a traffic impact statement is required. If the
traffic generated by the site is expected to be between 50 and 99 directional trips during
a peak hour, a traffic impact assessment shall be required. Using the Meridian Charter
Township traffic impact guidelines, neither a traffic assessment nor traffic impact
statement would be required for this development based on projected volumes.

If you have any questions, please write or call.

Sincerely,

Heather L. Zull, PM




Memo

TO: Mr. Erick Friestrom; KEBS, inc.

FROM: Bryana Guevara; Marx Wetlands, LLC

DATE: March 27, 2018

RE: Grand River Avenue Sites- Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

Marx Wetlands LLC (MW) completed a tree survey on March 24, 2018 for two (2) parcels # 33-
02-02-23-301-004 and 33-0202-23-301-011 totaling approximately 3.5 acres within Meridian
Township, Ingham County, Michigan (hereafter referred to as “Site”). The Site is located directly
northeast of the intersection of Powell Road and Grand River Avenue/M-43. The tree survey
was conducted to document existing protected trees and determine tree condition.

Methods

MW conducted a tree survey following Meridian Township Tree Ordinance and recorded all
protected trees—any tree 12.0 inches diameter at breast height (DBH) or larger. DBH is
measured at approximately 4.5 feet above ground level. MW limited the survey to exclude
dead and/or dying trees. Trees with multi-trunk(s) that total 12.0 DBH or larger were also
recorded whenever the additional trunk(s) separation occurred at or below 4.5 feet above
ground level. These trees were noted as “multi-trunk” trees. Each tree was measured using a
DBH tape, identified to genus and/or species epithet whenever possible, tagged with a unique
identifier tag number, flagged with orange tape, and was assessed for current health
conditions. This survey included all trees on site that met the criteria explained above. The
condition of each tree was recorded based on the following criteria:

1. EXCELLENT: A tree that has no observable structural defects. This tree likely
is growing straight and vertical and has a full and/or balanced crown. The
tree has no evidence of stress, pests, diseases and do not have the presence
of any cankers or blemishes. The tree has living leaves and twigs.

2. GOOD: A tree that has few defects serious enough to warrant a fair rating.
The tree may have minor defects, such as leaning trunk, some dead
branches, minor stress indicators, superficial blemishes/cankers, etc. The
minor defects are not likely serious enough to lead to tree death.

3. FAIR: A tree that is alive but exhibits some level of stress that may limit the
longevity of the tree. Defects that warrant a fair rating include the following:
inner bark trunk rot, some crown dieback, one dead major limb or several
dead branches, and/or evidence of pests or disease, or damage, etc.



4. POOR: A tree that is alive; however, has a severe problem(s) that likely could
result in tree death in the future. Defects that warrant a poor rating include
severe inner trunk rot, unbalanced or significant crown dieback, extreme
insect damage, or evidence of extensive decay, etc.

5. DEAD: A tree that appears to be dead (50% or greater) above breast height
(4.5 ft). Not included in the enclosed Tree Survey Data Table.

Findings & Recommendations

MW recorded 93 protected trees within the Site, 12.0 inches DBH or larger. The average tree
size was approximately 14 inches DBH, with a maximum tree size documented at 28 inches
DBH. All surveyed trees were hardwood species, particularly weedy species or landscape trees,
which include box-elder (Acer negundo), cottonwood (Populus deltoides), Norway maple (Acer
platanoides), American elm (Ulmus americana), Siberian elm (Ulmus pumila), tree-of-heaven
(Ailanthus altissima), paper birch (Betula papyrifera), silver maple (Acer saccharinum), honey-
locust (Gleditsia triacanthos), common apple/crabapple (Malus spp.), and black walnut (Juglans
nigra). Please refer to the enclosed Tree Survey Data Table for specific details on individual
trees.

MW identified 41 trees (approximately 44%) that were categorized as GOOD and EXCELLENT.
40 trees (approximately 43%) were categorized as FAIR and exhibited stress and/or defects that
may limit the longevity of the tree or require tree maintenance. Several FAIR trees categorized
as such were due to the presence of visible stress indicators, dead branches, or inner bark rot.
In addition, some fair trees were categorized due to structural defects, such as codominant
trunks or multi-trunk forms, and/or leaning trees. Based on Marx Wetlands, LLC’s preliminary
tree health assessment of the surveyed trees, FAIR trees are considered low quality trees that
may require additional maintenance work and/or may present liability issues if tree care is
neglected. Trees categorized as POOR (12 trees; approximately 13% of surveyed trees) should
not be preserved due to the high likelihood of tree failure, which could cause damage and/or
injury. In conclusion, Marx Wetlands LLC determined that trees categorized as GOOD and
EXCELLENT have minor defects and have a high likelihood of survival. Results of the survey are
enclosed in the Tree Survey Data Table.



poo9 G917 saplo3jap snindod POOMUO0110) 3a0d 119¢ w
Squil| peap 104 j4eq Jauul JO 3JUIPIAT Jood 0'9¢ saplo3jap snindod POOMUO0110) 3aod 0T9¢ 8%
poo9 09T saplo3jap snindod POOMUO0110) 3a0d 609€ ot
Squil| peap 104 j4eq Jauul JO 3JUSPIAT Jood 0vT saplo3jap snindod POOMUO0110) 3aod 809¢ 6€
Squwii| peap ‘104 3Jeq Jauu] JO 3DUBPIAT Jle4 (ol opunbau 132y Jap|a-xog INDV /09€ 8¢
Ssquwli| peap ‘104 3Jeq Jauul JO 32U3PIAT Jlood ST opunbau 132y Jap|a-xog INDV 909¢ L€
poo9 0CT opunbau 430y Jap|a-xog INDV S09€ 9¢
poo9 0vT opunbau 420y 1apja-xog INDV ¥09€ 13
HEd .S, ‘1T pooo q'8 opunbau 4oy Jap|a-xog INDV €09€ 3
j0J 3jJeq Jauul ‘HAA ,S°L 1T Jreq S8 opunbau 420y 1ap|a-xog INDV 209€ €€
j0J3jJeq Jauul ‘HAA ,ET ‘LT Jreq SLT opunbau 430y Jap|a-xog INDV 109€ 143
poo9 0¥l 1af1ikdod pjnyag yaaig Jaded vd3ig zese €
pooo S /1 pJ3fliAdod pjniag yoJig Jaded vd3ig T€SE 0€
pooo S'L wnulIpy220Ss 130y a|deN JaA|IS NVSOV 0€S€ 6C
HEQd .. ‘1T Jreq S pjiwnd snwijn w(3 ueuaqis Nndin 6CS€E 14
)Jeq Jauul peap ‘H4d ,S°S ‘HAA S (LE) syunJL € lood S8 opunbau 420y 1apja-xog INDV 87S€ LT
pooo 0CT pjiwnd snwijn w|3 uelaqis Nndin LTSE 9z
pooo STt buwiIssIy|o snyauojly UaAeay-jo-aai| IV 9zs€ ST
pooo X4 saplo3jap snindod POOMUO0110) 3a0d GTSE 144
pooo 0¥l saplo3jap snindod POOMUO0110) 3aod vZSE €T
pooo G'ST saployjap snindod POOMUO0110) 3a0d €75¢€ a4
pooo 0Tt opunbau 420y 1ap|a-xog INDV Tese ¥4
pooo ST pUDIIIBWD SNWN W|3 uesuawy AVIN T2SE 0t
pooo 0'€T opunbau 420y lapja-xog INDV 0ZS€ 6T
pooo G'ST saploupipo|d 132y 9|dey AemuonN 14DV 6TSE ST
pooo 0'ST saplouniojd Jaoy a|de\ AemioN 1doV 8TG¢E LT
pooo 0¥l pUDIIIBWD SNWN W|3 uesuawy NVIN LTSE 91
pooo X4 saplouniojd Jaoy a|de\ AemioN 1doV 9TG¢€ ST
quwi| Jolew peap g yJeq Jauul peaq 100d 06T opunbau 132y Jap|a-xog INDV GISE VT
93.] Sulueaq Jle4 0O'€T opunbau 132y lap|a-xog INDV YTSE €1
Jreq ST opunbau 4oy Jap|a-xog INDV €TGE 45
Jreq 0'¥T opunbau 420y 1apja-xog INDV AR5 T
93J] Sulueaq Jle4 0'1¢C opunbau 132y Jap|a-xog INDV T1TSE 0T
93.] Suiueaq Jle4 S']T opunbau 132y Jap|a-xog INDV 0TSE 6
HEd .TT ‘12 pooo ST opunbau 430y Jap|a-xog INDV 60S€ 8
sayduelq Jamo| peaq Jle4 99T opunbau 132y Jap|a-xog INDV 80S¢€ /
104 Jeq Jauul ‘HAq ,8 ‘(LZ) sHuniL g Jood 06 opunbau 4oy Jap|a-xog INDV LOSE 9
AVETIERME 0'T¢C saplo3jap snindod POOMUO0110) 3aod 90S€ S
JU9||99x3 X4 saployjap snindod POOMUO0110) 300d S0S€ %
pooo 0'ST saplo3jap snindod POOMUO0110) 3aod ¥0S€ €
pooo G'ST saplo3jap snindod POOMUO0110) 3a0d €0S€ z
pooo G'ET opunbau 420y 1ap|a-xog INDV 70S¢€ T
(sayour) Haa
Sjusawiwo) /sa10N uonipuod/ e 1y3S19H 1seaag awpp [p1dupnlog dweN uowwo) e # Se] aau] Aiu3
EET : : sa1dadg ejeq
Je J9jowelq

ueSIYdIIAl ‘SOW) O ‘@NUANAY JaAIY puelD 10} S} NSY ASAING 9341




Haa .SvT ‘L poooH 091 saplo3jap snindod poomuono) 3a0d S99¢€ 98
Had .6 ‘1t Jied S'6 S0YlubdLII} DISIIP3|D 3snd0j-AsuoH 4119 ¥99¢ S8
10949p |e4N3dNIIS 'HEA, S TT 1T Jied ST opunbau 122y Jop|e-Xog INOV €99¢ v8
poo9 0zt pabiu subjbnr Inuem xe|g INOF 759¢ €8
poooH §'ee saplo3jap snindod poomuono) 3a0d T199€ 8
Jied RA! opunbau 432y Jap|e-xog INOV 059¢ 18
Sayoueuq Jamo| peaq Jied 061 opunbau 433y Jap|a-xog INDV 6%9¢€ 08
sayoueuq Jamo| peaq Jied ST opunbau 133y Jap|e-xog INDV 819¢ 6L
Sayoueuq Jamo| peaq Jied 0'€T sapi03jap snindod pOOMUO01II0D) 300d LY9€ 8/
9341 ulues| ‘sayduelq Jamo| peap ‘Hgd ,9:1¢C Jied S'6 opunbau 133y Jap|e-xog INDV 99¢ Ll
Saydueuq Jamo| peap 9941 Suluean Jied STt opunbau 432y Jap|a-xog INDV St9¢ 9/
Sayoueuq JaMO| peap g/ 1z Jied S0t opunbau 133y Jap|e-xog INDV Y¥9€ S/
saydue.q Jamo| pesp ‘H4Qd ,S°9 *1¢ Jied 59 opunbau 122y Jop|e-Xog INOV 17413 VL
sayoue.q Jamo| pesp ‘Hgq ,S'S ‘HEA .G ‘L€ J00d 09 opunbau 432y Jap|e-xog INOV c9¢e €L
1UBWJINSEAW YunJy pasn4 Jied S'qt saploupio|d 433y a|de\ AemioN 14OV Iv9¢€ L
S9UIA 30949p |eanlonis ‘HEA ,L‘HEA ,0T “LE Jled S0t opunbau 432y Jap|e-xog INOV 0)74°13 TL
Haa .G ‘L¢ Jied S'6 opunbau 122y Jop|e-Xog INOV 6€9€ 0L
SQUIA 1JUBWJNSEIW YunJl pasn4 Jied S 9T pjiwind snwijn w3 uelaqis Ndin 8€9¢ 69
JUdWAJNSEaW MunJ} pash4 lie4 ST ‘dss snjpy 9|ddy/a|ddeqes) dSYN L€9¢€ 9
HEa .s'7T e Jled oVt S0YjubdLIi} DISIIP3[D 1snd0j-ASuoH 4119 9€9¢ L9
Ae23p 13 104 yJ4eQ JBUUI JO BIUIPIAT Jied 0'€T opunbau 432y Jap|a-xog INDV Ge9¢ 99
934] Suiuea Jied S6T opunbau 133y Jap|e-xog INDV V€9€ 59
poooH SET opunbau 122y Jop|e-Xog INOV €€9¢ ¥9
pooH S'LT opunbau 432y Jap|e-xog INOV [43°13 €9
9941 Suluea Jied 0l opunbau 432y Jap|a-xog INDV 1€9¢ 29
pooH 0'€T opunbau 432y Jap|e-xog INOV 0€9¢ 19
qui| pead Jied O'€T opunbau 122y Jop|e-Xog INOV 6¢9¢€ 09
qui| pesp ‘HGQ :L:1¢ J00d 0¢t opunbau 432y Jap|e-xog INOV 8¢9¢ 6S
93J] Suiuea’ Jied G€r opunbau 432y Jap|a-xog INDV 1L79€ 85
3unJy 31ds 1104 3jJeq JaUUl JO 92USPIAT 100d 0'8¢ saplo1jap snindod poomuono) 3aod 9¢9¢ LS
poooH [A4) saplo3jap snindod poomuono) 3aod S79¢ 9§
pooH 0'ST saplo1jap snindod poomuono) 3aod 14413 SS
poooH S 9t saplo3jap snindod poomuono) 3aod €79¢ 145
pooH 0'€T opunbau 432y Jap|e-xog INOV [44°13 €S
quwi| Jolew peap g yJeq Jauul peaq J00d SyT opunbau 432y Jap|a-xog INDV 179¢€ ZS
pooH S'6t saplo1jap snindod poomuono) 3aod 0¢o¢ TS
$yunJl pasny ‘HEA ,ET°LC Jied 0'ST bubdtiowb snwin W3 uedslawy AIVIN 6T9€ 0S
9341 Suluea Jied oVl opunbau 133y Jap|e-xog INDV 8T9¢ 61
9241 Suluean pooo R4 opunbau 432y Jap|a-xog INDV LT9€ Y
9941 Suluea pooo 0'€T opunbau 133y Jap|a-xog INDV 9T9¢ LV
9941 Suluea Jied R4’ opunbau 432y Jap|a-xog INDV G19¢ Y%
UMOJD paduejequn Jied 0l opunbau 432y Jap|e-xog INDV YT9€ St
UMOJD paduejequn Jied 07l opunbau 432y Jap|a-xog INDV €19¢ P
UmMoJd pasuejequn Jled S'qt saplo1jap snindod poomuono) 3dod ¢19¢ 1217

uolupuo)/yiesaH (s3you) Haa 3po) Anu3

SjuBWWO) /910N 1yS19H 1seaag awpp |p1oupjog SWeN uowwo) # 8e] aau)
CETT| saads eleq

je Jojoweliqg




pooo STI sap1o3/ap snjndod POOMUO1I0) 300d 799¢ €6

HgQ .6 ‘1¢ pooo q'qal saplo3jap snindod poomuo110) 3A0d T99¢€ 6

10943p [edn1onJis ‘HEA ¥ ‘HEA £ ‘HAA ,¢T ‘HAd.. ‘HAA .6 ‘19 Jled O°€T opunbau 430y 19p|a-Xog INOV 099¢ 16

Hga .S ‘Had .9 ‘H9a.S'v ‘HEa .G ‘1S Jied 09 opunbau 132y 19p|e-xog INOV 699¢€ 06

109}3p |eJn1onJis ‘HEA ,S°6 ‘HAA.S ‘HEA .G'€ ‘1Y Jled Sl opunbau 430y 19p|a-Xog INOV 8G9¢ 68

19949p [e4n1dnAIs ‘HEA ,S'9 ‘HAA S ‘1€ 1004 S6 opunbau 132y 19p|a-xog INDV £S9€ 88

109}3p |eJdn1onAs ‘HEA ,S°9 ‘HEA .S ‘HEA .S ‘HEA .S ‘1S 100d 9’9 opunbau 430y 19p|a-Xog INOV 9G59¢ L8
uonipuo)/yiesH (s3you) Haa apo) Anu3

SjusaWWOo) /SAI0N 1ySiaH 1seaug awnp [p1punjog awepN uowwo) 4 Sej aaa)

CEITE sapadg eieq

je Jojoweliqg




Memo

TO: Mr. Erick Friestrom; KEBS, inc.

FROM: Bryana Guevara; Marx Wetlands, LLC

DATE: June 22, 2018
RE: 1448 Grand River Avenue- Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

Marx Wetlands LLC (MW) completed a tree survey on June 20, 2018 for parcel #33-02-02-23-
301-007 totaling approximately 2.0 acres within Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan
(hereafter referred to as “Site”). The Site is located at 1448 Grand River Avenue/M-43, north of
Grand River Avenue and approximately 0.10 mile east of its intersection with Powell Road. The
tree survey was conducted to document existing protected trees and determine tree condition.

Methods

MW conducted a tree survey following Meridian Township Tree Ordinance and recorded all
protected trees—any tree 12.0 inches diameter at breast height (DBH) or larger. DBH is
measured at approximately 4.5 feet above ground level. MW limited the survey to exclude
dead and/or dying trees. Trees with multi-trunk(s) that total 12.0 DBH or larger were also
recorded whenever the additional trunk(s) separation occurred at or below 4.5 feet above
ground level. These trees were noted as “multi-trunk” trees. Each tree was measured using a
DBH tape, identified to genus and/or species epithet whenever possible, tagged with a unique
identifier tag number, flagged with orange tape, and was assessed for current health
conditions. This survey included all trees on site that met the criteria explained above. The
condition of each tree was recorded based on the following criteria:

1. EXCELLENT: A tree that has no observable structural defects. This tree likely
is growing straight and vertical and has a full and/or balanced crown. The
tree has no evidence of stress, pests, diseases and do not have the presence
of any cankers or blemishes. The tree has living leaves and twigs.

2. GOOD: A tree that has few defects serious enough to warrant a fair rating.
The tree may have minor defects, such as leaning trunk, some dead
branches, minor stress indicators, superficial blemishes/cankers, etc. The
minor defects are not likely serious enough to lead to tree death.

3. FAIR: A tree that is alive but exhibits some level of stress that may limit the
longevity of the tree. Defects that warrant a fair rating include the following:

“ 3

Bl MARX WETLANDS LLC



inner bark trunk rot, some crown dieback, one dead major limb or several
dead branches, and/or evidence of pests or disease, or damage, etc.

4. POOR: A tree that is alive; however, has a severe problem(s) that likely could
result in tree death in the future. Defects that warrant a poor rating include
severe inner trunk rot, unbalanced or significant crown dieback, extreme
insect damage, or evidence of extensive decay, etc.

5. DEAD: A tree that appears to be dead (50% or greater) above breast height
(4.5 ft). Not included in the enclosed Tree Survey Data Table.

Findings & Recommendations

MW recorded 56 protected trees within the Site, 12.0 inches DBH or larger. The average tree
size was approximately 17.0 inches DBH, with a maximum tree size documented at 38.0 inches
DBH. Majority of the surveyed trees were hardwood species (approximately 75%) , particularly
weedy species or and/or landscape trees, which include box-elder (Acer negundo), cottonwood
(Populus deltoides), Norway maple (Acer platanoides), black cherry (Prunus serotina), American
elm (Ulmus americana), Siberian elm (Ulmus pumila), hackberry (Celtis occidentalis), common
pear (Pyrus communis), silver maple (Acer saccharinum), common apple/crabapple (Malus
spp.), and black walnut (Juglans nigra). Approximately 25% of the surveyed trees were
softwood species, including Scotch Pine (Pinus sylvestris), white pine (Pinus strobus), and blue
spruce (Picea pungens). Please refer to the enclosed Tree Survey Data Table for specific details
on individual trees.

MW identified 30 trees (approximately 54%) that were categorized as GOOD and EXCELLENT.
23 trees (approximately 41%) were categorized as FAIR and exhibited stress and/or defects that
may limit the longevity of the tree or require tree maintenance. Several FAIR trees categorized
as such were due to the presence of visible stress indicators, evidence of pests, dead branches,
or inner bark rot. In addition, some fair trees were categorized due to structural defects, such
as codominant trunks or multi-trunk forms, and/or leaning trees. Based on Marx Wetlands,
LLC’s preliminary tree health assessment of the surveyed trees, FAIR trees are considered low
quality trees that may require additional maintenance work and/or may present liability issues
if tree care is neglected. Trees categorized as POOR (3 trees; approximately 5% of surveyed
trees) should not be preserved due to the high likelihood of tree failure, which could cause
damage and/or injury. In conclusion, Marx Wetlands LLC determined that trees categorized as
GOOD and EXCELLENT have minor defects and have a high likelihood of survival. Results of the
survey are enclosed in the Tree Survey Data Table.

“ 3

Bl MARX WETLANDS LLC



saydueuq Jamo| peag lie4 0O'€T S141San|As snuid auld Yy2102§ ASId €Ty 1€
SaYIUBEYH:ZEH+I] JaMO| peaq Jled 0'ST slsanjAs snuid auld Y2103s ASId Ty o€
pooo Q€T susanjAs snuid auld Yy2300s ASld 12TV 6C
saydueuq Jamo| peag lie4 R7an S141San|As snuid auld Yy2102§ ASId Y4 8C
HEQ .§'S ‘.6 (LE) syunL € e S'6 sIwiofipiod pAin) AoxorH inuwisig | 0ovd 6TCY LT
pooo 0°0¢ pabju supjbnf nujepn yde|g INAT 8Ty 9z
1U9||99x3 S'9T SI[p3U3PI20 S13{3D AlsagyoeH 20312 LTTY [¥4
3uiinoadsau ‘aul| uoiINQIISIP 2143092 01 anp paddo| 100 59T DUI043S shunid Audyd yoelg 3S4d 91V e
Jled 0'€T snqo.js snuld auld dUYM 1S1d STTY [
pooo 0LT bUI043S shunid A11ayd syoerg 354d A%4% 44
pooo 0'8¢ baqnJ snuijn w(3 pay ny1N €TTY 1C
saydueuq Jamo| peag Jie4 0T $nqo.3s snuld auld aUYyM 1SId rA N4, 0¢
pooo 01¢ snqo.js snuld auld dUYM 1S1d TTCY 6T
pooo SYI snqo.js snuld auld dUYM 1S1d 0Ty 8T
pooo 0'LT winipyops 433y a|dey Jedns VSOV 60CTY LT
pooo 0'ST suabund paid aonuds anig Ndid 80Ty 91
pooo 08T suabund paid donuds anig Nndid LOTY ST
pooo S'LT wnJpyoos 1oy a|dey Jedns VSOV 90Ty v1
\G’9 dAOQE JUBUIWOPOD pooo G'Se WnNuLIDY2IDS 430y a|de|N JaA[IS NVSOV | SOzv €T
pooo G€e WnuLIDYIIDS 130y a|de|N JaA[IS NVSOV | t0zTv 45
pooo G'ST WnuLIDY2IDS 130y SICERENTIS NVSOV | €0zv 1T
HEa .0t ‘12 e 0'sT pUDILIBWD SN Ww|3 uedBWY al z0TY 01
saydueuq Jamo| peag lie4 OR7an S141San|As snuid auld Yy2102§ ASId 102 6
10949p |eun1dniis ‘H9a, S TT-1¢ lie4 ST opunbau 132y Jap|e-xog INDV €G9¢ 8
pooo oct pabju supjbnf nujepn yde|g INAT 759¢€ L
pooo 44 saployjap snindod poomuo110) 3a0d 199€ 9
Jied ST opunbau 133y Jap|a-xog INDV 059¢€ 5
saydueuq Joamo| peag Jie4 06T opunbau 132y Jap|e-xog INDV 679€ v
saydueuq Joamo| peag Jie4 ST opunbau 132y Jap|e-xog INDV 81Y9¢ €
saydueuq Jamo| peag Jie4 0'€T sapio3/ap snindod poomuono) 300d LV9€E Z
9941 ulued)| ‘saydueuq Jamo| peap ‘Hda ,9 ‘(LZ) Sunal ¢ Jie4 56 opunbau 132y Jap|e-xog INDV 9t9¢ T
(sayour)
uonpu Hea o) Anu3
sjuaWwWo) /sa10N od/yyesaH | ysisH awpp [pduvlOg QWEeN uowwo) e # Se] aau) .-
EETN jseaug je :
J918wWelq

ueSIYdIAl ‘SOW)|O ‘DNUBAY JIAIY puelD ‘M 8T 104 S}NSaY AdAIng 9341 -diysumo] ueipudAl




‘HE9Q .S'VT ‘1T pooo 0LT ojiwnd snwijn w|3 ueudqis ndin svey 9s

pooo oct $3103ds snjoy a|ddeqes)/a|ddy | dSYIN LTy cS

saulA Anl-uosiod Jied G9T slsanjAs snuid auld Yy2103s ASId oty S

HEd .S VT LT e 0'sT $3103ds snjoy a|ddeqes)/a|ddy | dSYIN S24% €S
aul|adudy Ul pue Aedap dJeq Jauul ‘HEQ ,ZT Pue ‘b1 ‘ST ‘1¥ e 0'sT $3103ds snjoy a|ddeqes)/ajddy | dSYIN ey s
pooo 0've suabund padid 2onuds an|g Ndid 5444 18§

HEa .S ‘12 pooo G'ST sapiouniojd 1oy a|dey AemioN | 1dDV ey 0S

pooo 0¥t DUJ043S SNUNId Asiayd yoelg L Ty 6%

HEq .ST ‘12 pooo 0'ST DUJ043S SNUNid A1iayd yoelg L ovey 8y

auljdup uiyum pooo X3 wnuLpYIIDS 433y 3|de\ JaA|IS NVSOV | 6€ty Ly

9243 8uluey) pooo STl opunbau 132y Jap|e-xog INDV iord [e17

pooo 0'9¢ opunbau Jasy ap|e-xog INDV LETY %

WG9 pue ‘0L .S L (Ly) Sunily poo9 08 opunbau Jasy ap|a-xog NIV 9gTy v
9aJ) Bulues| Sy ‘1 Je4 q'8 opunbau 423y lap|a-xog INDV GETY 137
yunJy yids 100d 0'TC wniAp snunid Audy) 19ams AVHd ey 42

9941 uluey) Jie4 0¥ opunbau 132y Jap|e-xog INDV €€y v

104 dJeq Jauul Jie4 0°'€C opunbau 132y Jap|e-xog INDV 447 oY

pooo 0'€T siunwwod sniAd Jead uowwo) 0ODAd IXY4 7 6€

104 3Jeq Jauul ‘H4q ,S'8 '1¢ l100d 06 siunwwod sniAd Jlead uowwo) 0DAd oStV 8¢
104 Jeq Jauul ‘H9a ,9 ‘L ‘1€ Jieq 0’8 siunwwod sniAd lead uowwo) 0DAd (a4 VA
1U9||99x3 08¢ DUDILIBWD SNWN W|3 ueddWY AVIN 8Tty 9¢

1U3||32x3 0'€e pabiu supjbnf nujep djoe|g INNT LTTY 93

1uswaJinseaw yunJl pasnd pooo ovT pabiu supbjbnr nujepn doeld INNT eYd4 ] V€
Jieq 0Ct opunbau Jasy Jap|e-xog NIV STTY €€

sayoueuq Jamoj pead Jie4 0'ST S1415an|As snuid auld Y2102 ASId ey €




Uyoequiiedy ‘Wd SO:€0:CT 8T0Z/0€/0T 'BMP L68€6-I\BMP\L68E6\E6\T

L6856 dnoJg sAljOWO}NY BUID}UOJDT LNOdSNMOQ s 'AF13 8¥ND 40 dOL 03SO40¥d 00'008 9/1W
# gor - ‘A8 Q3ZINOHLNY LINN SNINOILIANOD ¥IV g 1HOIM ANNOHS = > %0078 1SNYHL v
9 40 | 133HS woN Logrony| 8L-sz-£ 13lva 1504 . I3L SNOYIAINOD = 3 IATVA H3LVM i
. AMr . Ame OF =, 37vOS NSIS e I34L SNONAnia = mHUw INVYAAH 34 2
‘A8 _a3A0¥ddY ‘HINDISIA T73M ONIMOLINOW ® SIYIM AVIHYIAO = 03 3NN ALYIOYd = —_
NVId HOLINS AHYNINMINd AVM 40 LHOI¥ Qvod
NVId ALNILN % 3LIS TIIM ® ONVHY3IAO ONIQIING = ——————————— avoy 40 3INM ¥3IINIO —3— — — 3
QAY JOALY pueld) Q171 FILIL ANVIASOV/VLTY 9 Y3LIN SVYO 2 NOILVATI3 ¥NOLNOO ONUSIX =\ _o® O IN3W3SYI ALALLN — — —
003oH0 TSI NY1 39VOSONYT S MALIN ORLOTTI @ NOILYA313 10dS ONUSKX3 = %" 0 e =
: NV1d SNOIAYdAdNI/SNOIAYAd ¥ = o
TV1S3A3d ALMILN = %03 == (M3N) FTOHNVI
($08—6EE—LIS 'XVd ¥101-6EE—LIG "Hd NV1d ONIAVHOD % WHOLS ¢ v = [ ] YIM3S WHOLS Q3S0dOo¥d — ® =
0¥88F IN ‘LLIISVH ‘QY0N LLIISVH 9112 . 3dIM AND — ¥IMIS AYVLINVS 03SOONd ®
IvLLAGNS NV'1d ALMLLN ¢ NIV Y3LVM Q3SOdONd ——p A
SAIANNS ANV NVANE ° ¢ dns 81-9¢76 133HS d3A00 L 370d LHON bod JLIYONOD = E —_ T
ONINIINIONT SIAN OZ_ mmmx SNOISIA3Y  ENIEETS 370d ALMILN jot LIVHASY = SNOLLVAN3 "1X3 %
IATVA ® JONI4 = Y3IMIS WHOLS 1X3 —s T —
L1v'e8e6AINNNS $988% IN ‘SON3Y0 ‘INNIAV ¥3IAI ONVND M 8b¥l 'SSINAQY LIS SMRn v ha el
LNVYOAH 314 ) 3OS 0L LON FONVISIA = —N\—— NIVIN ¥3LYM "1X3 x ‘M
SINIS ONSIVA 27 X 6 40 SN Il Jevhd sdloNdd 0 NISYBHOLYO GILON SV NOMI GNNO4 = [ S - Yoo
JIOHNYA 3OVNIVHQ Q@ dvO HLIM ¥vE .2/l 13S = ®
STINS ONDRIVA 27 X 6 40 dFINN dHsododd saionaa (0) ON39T1 X3
SINAS 4/d S539% NYA SALONd g "ANNIAY ¥3AIM ANVYEO 40 €dND 40 MOVE 40 HLYON
— S'ZL ANNIAY HIAIM ANVYO 8hyI#F OL 3AINA LIVHASY 40
— 3903 1SV3 40 1SV3 ,0C ‘I10d ALMILN 3AIS HLNOS “IIVN Md
SINIS u_\ d 40 AIINN SAIONd E — (88AAVYN) £6'Z2/8 = "AJ13 Z# MYVNHON3A
692798 = ‘AIT3 dANS
T "avod T13Mod % ¥6'298 = 'ANI M dO¥ .81
| 3SVHd HLIM d3dIN0Yd ¥ T INNIAY H3AI ANVYHD 40 LNVAVND LSVIHLYON ‘LNVHOAH 0,298 = 'ANI 3 d0¥ 2L
S3ovdSs L = ¢ = 0l/§ T 34 . MIr3, NI 3, ¥3ANN ‘1709 FONVT4 1SVIHLEON 69798 = 'ANI 3N dO¥ .¥C
S30vdS 0L/ — (88AAVYN) 9¥°G/8 = "AF13 # MYVWHON3A $6°0/8 = ‘A313 NIN
034IND3Y ONIMMVYd 3IMIG — GOI# NISVE HOLVO
NIVIANHON
L00—10£—£2—20—20—€¢ — I 1304vd T 86'¢98 = ‘AITI dANS
110~ L0S—€2~20~20~5¢ — QI T30NvVd T Od d3INOZ £6'798 = 'ANI M dO¥ 8l
010—10£-£2-20—20—£¢ — I 1304vd —— 66798 = 'ANI 3 dO¥ 8L
¥00—10£—-£2—-20—20—¢¢ — dl_1304vd — (dAL) Q3AOW3Y 38 OL S3UL SILONIA @ 0/°698 = ‘AT13 dWNS 8¥°0/8 = 'AITA WIY
. v988y N SOW3A0 Jog = - yOI# NISVE HOLVO
AV YIAY ANVYO M 8bbL 1SSI¥AAVY ILS T 1¢£98 = 'ANI M dOd Sl
a314Iaon —— (dAL) 3ON34 8¥°L98 = 'ANI S d0d .CI 69298 = ‘AF13 dANNS
h 39 0L JAING ONLSIXT / NOILO3108d 3341 d3SOd0dd S3LON3d 12298 = ‘ANl 3 dO¥ .Gl 06998 = ANI W dod 81
%09 = 4'S ¥Zv'0OvL =(3LS v1I0L) Il ISVHd — 02°€48 = "A313 WIY 08598 = ANl 3 Jou ‘sl
‘4'S 2/6°Sy = (AINO V3YV d3d013A3A) | ASVHA HNINILO IAING 601# NISVE HOLVO _ “
G8'G98 = 'ANI S dO¥ ,Z!
V3V SNOIAYAANI N, 3dAL Loa T . _ . "
%0v = "4'S  £2¢'66 = (LS TVLOL) Il ISVHd — ’ SZ'$G8 = 'ANI'S dO¥ .bT B % Neve oS
'4'S 826°0L = ( AINO V3WV 03d0713AIA) | 3SVH < — < \m\u&mﬁ%& D D £cess = ANIN dod .be
30VdSN3dO 5 .6 — X (T T v698 = AJld NIH ¥5'698 = ‘AT13 JANS
"4'S L¥/'SST ="MOY QVOM LNOHLIM ALY3dO¥d vLOL 2 - — = S o — - I SN TIV) LJ i ‘ 80U FIOHNVA WMOLS  goegag = ANI MS dOY L2
"4'S 226'0¥Z AlY3IdOdd SSOM9 & - ~ = — 7 =l f@ . ) GZ'Z/8 = "A313 WIM
S EE Ty =~ LEVE o ~_§ Wi 204 ) .w?: 99¢s8 = ANI'S d0d ¥e Z0l# NISYE HOLVD
SNOILYINOTIVO SNOIAYIAdINI/SNOIAY3d ) _ 122y =L ~ S~ T —~— g 2<§EN§ i : mm.mmmmmn.mm\wz_ z.>%mu v”_q_m
. (4447 ) = . = -
‘ ﬁw | %w i =~ —1z s LOl# FIOHNYA WHOLS i&wwmmmw.>z_»>u._womzmwr
A__ 4ASVHd—/82Z | mm<In_|©mv d3dIN0dd S3IVdS /¢ ® 6Ly _ .VF n.mr Yo, \noha | JQIS 3ISV3 NO a3I4IdoN P q3SSI0TN MV4 00L mn__nm_. 3
. _ - = 38 OL INYA ONILSIX3 198 = ANI MS d9d V¢ q3553035 uv4 00L 3did IN
(Il 3SVHd—/82 ‘| ISVYHA—08) S3IvdS G9¢ = | X £9¢ ONINIdO 3AMA g £6°¢48 = 'ANI'S dOd .¥¢ 88°Z7/8 = ‘A3 WIY
‘SATIIHAN AVIdSIA _ y _ M N, 3dAL 10aNW 3 ¥6°198 = 'ANI 3 dOA I LOW# NISVE HOLYO
| [ o> JONVIEL | 2 % £7'198 = 'ANI AN dWO 0!
(I 3SYHd HlIM J30IA0Y¥d) SIOVdS 9 d3¥INDIY 101 m_smmw _ N NOISIA G | ¥ Choee _ = Ly’€S8 = 'ANI N 0¥ ,¥C 82'698 = ANl M dO¥ .ZI
S30VdS 9 = | X 002/002'L _ | N : ! QO 3 66°698 = "AI1I NIM Y9’ 1/8 = ‘AT WIM
< _ « .%.oud@ _.u 901# FTOHNVA WHOLS 00l# NISVE HOLVO
AV1dSIQ NO 3T0IHIA HOVA HO4 30VdS | ) g | ) <
NIN 3D 002/ - & % | %ss % i 77 54 S6'6z —_ STPOINIANT §IMTS X3
SININHSINEGVLST 30IAY3S ¥0 SITVS IWOH ITGON O ‘LvOE ‘IT0IHIAA TYNOILYIHOIY ‘ITOIHIA HOLOW ONDIVA S) "dOdd o\ | 202y zvas o _
| - X
:q3IN0IY ONINYV sizy ' 2 N T 7 | 7 e m% 5 F-
602 y ‘ c I 909
Il 3SVHd HUM Q3IHSMON3A 38 0L (‘4'S 050'Z) ONIANNG 1IN0 oo - ) | PN > bl a Mu“ S <88
(‘4's 682‘L) 8 ONIdINg soey @ | Qv _ ) !
(‘4's 9gi'e) v ONITTINg . N oz | ©
- | (R%)
Ylva oNIaling d0 (J3NOZ __ vl '8 N
Nispz— 802y sozy | eves 15 X FTONVIML
INVOVA 3Sn X3 “ ! @ NOISIA ,GS
Z—0 d3INOZ = oz 2 _ _ N oNpvd 07 08
LSO SCT | | ‘
viva 3LS g ¢ dTx > Z 2 (I
Mw i 2 " "He _m
e v 83y V- Tey [P
e | o e Sl 2 3 (v} =3
! STYL gz o N I~ ; =
gl [ % i 2 z—0 Q3aNOZ S g
o rﬂ L & N 825¢ S n_qm
> 3 N z {©o
A4 |G | v . < 387
Y Lvey ! n\.a—.ﬁ = =
: I~ =2
g ONIATING g, | S me_m 2 33
|Vl A b | ¢ < = 7 225
0¢_ T | € — 8 =
‘AuD }| SUOI}DJJ}SB] puD S}uawWaspa ||D 0} }239(gns U vl = ) “ ) 5 V4 2 N
[924pd pIDS (SS®| JO 9J0W S8UID $(O°Z DPuluibjuod |paipd pips :HBuuuibsq jo julod By} o1 1884 GO'OEL °ul| Al4BYlION PIPS mmmw Il 3SVHd =z v _ / m &
Buojp M,9G,6G.9ZN 80UBY) BuUll Al)BULION PIDS 0} 399} 9p°0lS 3,8Z,6L00S 90UsYy 4884 9/°68L 3,lE,04.Z8N 90Uy} 108} svzy X ISy N 6 9 ¢—0O U3INOZ
GGy M,LG,GY.00N 99usy} ‘uonyduossp siyy jo Buiuuibsqg jo juiod sy} 0} 3894 ZH 961 Sull Al4SYRION pIps Buop 3,95 66.9/S ﬁm@ 1 S iz ) | Il * s@m§ y
BOUBY} 'BNUBAY JBAIY PuDpltd jo dul]l Aom—jo—3ybls AlUBYlION Sy} O} 389} GO'C96 JO SIUDISIP D ¢ UOIJO8S PIDS JO BUI| ISOM 1% ) ¢l = W_._VL 33wy —_—— — =8 o T o
ayy Buo|p 3,87,61.00S 80UBY} (UOI}O8S PIDS JO JBUIOD 4 /| }S8M 8y} 3b Bupuswwo) :sp paequosep [sodod pibs jo Auppunoq * . repe " c._ i ONaIng &y
pakeains ayy ‘uobiyoiy ‘A1unod woybu| ‘diysumol UDIPLBN ‘MLY ‘N¥L ‘©Z UoOnDeS Jo 4/| 1S8myinoS ayl ul pup| Jo [9oJod v / n o FLeoL T \ A ‘ | v N 1z5s e .,mNIPmPr
D) 71304vd 622y I N S/yl -1 L0 '9G1(Y) LSVA(N . Negen:
TIVM K\ — . " 99%¢ - . Sl eg'gS1(W) 3.96,0+.68N(W) i go'd
‘AUD JI SUOI}O1J}SBJ puD S}uUSWSSDS ||b 0} }0a(qns oz_z_<._.m_m\ > Ll ! o SIWV L8CF, 7 | HovaL3s "
|90Jpd pIDS :SS§9| 40 9JoW S9JoD £8'Z Buiuipjuco [9ouod pips :Buiuuibsq Jo juiod Sy} O} 198 ZH'RCE Sull A|UBYJON PIPS Q3S0d0¥d 6 2 “ g 71304vd | s g n\w,u 14 ONIMEvd &) "d0dd
Buojp M,9G,6G.9/N 8ousy} dull ABYRON PIOS 0} 199} GG'¢H+ 1,/G,G%.00S 9ouUsy) 1399} $2°GZ¢ 3,18,0#.C8N d0usy) ‘193 — ! _ = | 3svHd ; T3 T
16°GZ¢ 3.6G,Z1.00N dousy} ‘uonjdiiossp siuyy jo Buiuuibeq jo juiod sy} 0} 388y 0Q'8GL dull AeypdoN pios Buolp 3, 95,6G6.9/S Sl L1 ! ¢l | sseppHUM a3zrun /| ¥z 02 HoaNm MOGNI
20U3Y] (SNUDAY JOAIY PupPJy Lo auj] Abm—jo—1ybia A|J9YJJON 94l 01 1994 GO'$96 1O 90UDISIP D ¢ UOI}OIS PIDS JO U] IS9M N|O DMZON " Z] 1304vd m 8 o N | N \\*»\\
oy} buo|p 3,87,61.00S @oUBY} fUOI}O8S pIDS 4O JBUIOD /| }SBM Oy} b Bupuswwo) :sp pequosep [8d4od pips jo Auppunog evey I ) I A Poa— < T
T ! sses N8 L 7308vd 22sE
pakenins oYy ‘uobiyoiy Ajunod woybu| ‘diysumol UDIPLIBN ‘MLY ‘N¥L ‘©Z Uon08S Jo 4/| 1S8mMYylnoS 8yl Ul pup| Jo [9oJnd v _ @ | asRs Zl ! Ye, @ [
. 822¥ | logg | N ETT
g 1304vd " Il 3SVHd “ N coos m “ y oooh_ 3JSVHd F oNIgTINg
‘AUD JI SUOI}DIJ}SSJ puUD S}uswWasDa || 0} 3}93(gns |9oupd pibs ‘Abm—jo—3ybu o1gnd spb asn " A veoe ! OL=NVA vzge
ul Ajjusseud sso| Jo aJow 940D ||'0 Buipnjou) iss9| 5_ 9Jow sa4oD 0Q9'0 buiuipjuod |9oupd pips bBuuuibsqg jo julod sy 0} _ mv “ J— m" =2 ) 29@ NIV S o
199} 06°CSL oul| }seM pios buop M ,87.61.00N 89Usy} 'sull 39\ pIDS O} 3994 00'8G| dull APayiioN plos bBuojp M,9G,6G6.9/N _ | 2ebe g oo i3
90UaY} eNUBAY JoAlY puplty Jo aul] Aom—jo—3ybls AlJSyLIoN dyy 0} 199} L£'68lL M,6G,CL00S BdUSY} 188 £G'GGL _ Em@ | coss o
3,9G.0v.68N @dudy} ‘uondudsep siy} jo bBuiuuibeq jo juiod 8y} o} 388} GL'0L8 4O SOUDISIP D T UOI}O8S PIDS JO BUI| }SOM _ cac ¢l ) z
syy bBuo|p 3,87,61.00S 90USY] (UOI}D9S PIDS JO JBUIOD 4/| 1SS0\ 9Y) 1P Bupuswwo) :sp psquUossp [9o4od pips Jo Auppunog _ ® SINOV $0ZF 3 | x 5 5
pakaains ayy ‘upbiysiy ‘Ayunoy woybuj ‘diysumo] ubipUBN ‘MLY ‘N¥L ‘€ UOII8S o 4/| ISBMUINOG 8y} ul pup| jo [92ind vy ey om ._“._ow_<n_ AVMTIIS | 2 — N X
'V 1304vd _ d3S0d0¥d ! - ¢—0 ({d3IANOZ S o
o N
(uonnduosep pepiroiad 8y} sp pup| jo [9a4pd swbs 8yy sequosep uonduosep |pbe| Buimoloy ay) _ -1 \;“\ M M
‘d3AIAYNS SV NOILAINOS3IA 1vVOTT _ 1 3sVHd— “ ww
- \ERL | S ©
TS ON 0zl 08 oF 0 NOLIN3L30 | R &
dVIN NOILVOOT - — MHW d350404d _ ; i oY ) 3.00.L8.68N) &
\\\\\\\w\\\w\\\ \\\w\\\\\\. 682y “ B—QM%NOAM viog s# ﬂ Y9 mwrﬂm ..\ —
1 2@ v . | Si0e e .ﬂmw\
ﬁ _ ) 7)) @ k w_wmmmawwmn;mg u..on.hn.nwz@\. =0 IC. or.ceN(N 3 oo wommww
N O = 1 J1VOS veey ! S — — “yC'ST mww
a—
.uo.u_ L6vsSt o0se
I o dvo % yva
< S <
g ™ b T W) b
o W f
v/

ay NOLVAVH

dd T3amod

90 Mavd Wy

[¥08—65¢ (£1G):XV4
7101—6¢¢ (£1S):Hd
088+ IN ‘L13ISVH

‘¥ LLIISVH 9llZ
‘ou| ‘sgaM

dd J3INOZ

¢625—/88 (8¥Z):XV4
Zosl—+ 1/ (8%2):Hd
L5E8% IN ‘ONVIHOIH

ANVTHOIH "M 000%
dnoJs eAl}oWO}NY SUIDIUO 4D

"HOAIAYNS/ YIIANIONI

-IN3ITO

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WYHINI ‘dIHSNMOL NYIQIM3AN

DAY IOATY PUBID) 8|
404 'd'N'S




yoequiiedy ‘Wd L¥:60:CT 8T0Z/0€/0T 'BMP L68€6-I\BMP\L68E6\E6\T

L68S6 dnoug aAl}oWO}NY SUID}UO 4D

# aor ‘A9 Q3IZIYOHLNY
SIMF —er, -

9 40 ¢ L33IHS ON LoTrosy| 8+-ST—L ALva
v_;_o. V*;_J = .

A8 GIN0YLdY :yanois3g] O7 =«+ FIVOS

AV JOARY PUBID 8]

NVid ALNILN

0086—1BL—69C "ud

30440 IIDYSION

LP08—6EE—L1S XVY +101—-6£€—L1S "Hd
0¥88% IN ‘LLIISVH ‘OVOY LLIISVH 911

IVLLINGNS

SAIAUNS ANV NvVANE
ONIYIINIONT S3AM

"ONI ‘Sa3X

dns 81—-9¢—6

SNOISIA3S

17V £68C6#AINNNS

$988% IN ‘SOW3N0O

IvVOS ON
dVIN NOILVOO’]

30 MIAHLHON

dd T3amod

ay 3ig0d

ay NOLVAVH

90 Mavd Wy

ANNIAY Y3AIY ANVED M 8v1L

-SS34AAQv 3lIs

0cCl

GHVOHWIQ
auvogmig

Sizy

14%44

%44

<«

'SYIM3IS TIV
NO¥4 NOLLVYHVJ3S TVOILY3A 8l % NOILVIVCIS
VLINOZIMOH 0l 3AVH TIVHS d31VM ‘310N

INIW3ISVH
arngnd ,0¢ VvV NIHLIM 39 TIVHS ‘MO’
40 3dISLNO d41vm Jrdnd 11V “310N

(SNV1d ¥3d)
NIVA 32204
NVS ¥

AEL]

602

‘A373 9dNnD 40 401 d3s0dodd

A00718 LSNyHL
JATIVA d3LVM

INVIAAH 314

AN ALY340dd

AVM 40 1HOIY AVO0d
avod 40 INIT ¥3LN3O

LNINISVYI ALMILN
(*X3) FTOHNVYW

‘g0 a3S0d0o¥d

(M3AN) FTOHNVYI

YIMIS WHOLS d3S0d0o¥d
YIMIS AYVLINVS aISOHONd
NIV ¥3LVM d3SOdodd

SNOILVAITT "1X3

d3IMIS WYOLS "LX3
dIMIS AYVLINVS "1X3
NIV d3LVM "1X3
SYNOLNOD "LX3

00'008 O/1lW
v
&b
2
3 — —3
—_ - —_
[ ]
@
1S . 1S
NVS . NVS
e
— is k s -
NVS ~ NVS
_h_
ANUDAT

1NOdSNMOQ KT
1INN 9NINOILIONOD ¥IV @ LHOIM ONNOHO = >
1S0d . 3341 SNOYIHINOD = 3
NOIS —_ 3341 SNONAIN3IA = mmw
T1IM ONIMOLINOW ® S3dIM dVIHAIAO = o3
TIIM ® ONVHYIAO ONIQTING = ——————=—==—
¥ILIN SVO 3 NOLLVAIT3 ¥NOLNOD ONILSIXF =\ _o®®~
¥3LIN OIMLDTT3 a NOILVATT3 L0dS ONILSIXI = o2%"
WLS3A3d ALMILN ] wia = E==
JAIM AND — TvEe = [
370d LH9N o AL34ONOD = E
370d ALMILN o LIVHASY = :
INTVA ® N34 =
INVHQAH 3314 o IIVOS OL LON FONVLISIA = —N——
NISYEHOLYD ) Q3LON SY NOdl ONNO4 = 0
FIOHNVIN FOVNIVHQ @ dvO HLIM ¥ve ,z/1 L3S = °
AN3931 X3
“INNIAY ¥IAIN ONVYEO 40 8dND 40 MOVE 40 HLYON
S°ZL INNIAY H3IAN ANVYD 8vPL#F OL 3AINA LIVHASY 40

vy

mﬂw.vﬁw

— g— 03— — —

B \
; B t
i’ sozh \ 6ese z/0L 39V
$ | , DL
g ze9 3ovd ‘LzLl ¥f8
|| 7 €1z 39vd ‘2z1l o \
a0 o | W] FAENINGSY 3 z_<w_®m STINVA
& = 3\ i L1698
7]t { ) @
\ )
|
D&.vmuww / u n_,m o _ @
\ £59¢
WM,MwS# \ __

ey

— AN
m V -
34 GHOI ¥3d NeflvooT _

|
T TN SN Sk pau

V 777777/ /2
V 7%/ /7

777 202 T
Oy = .1 31voS

J
|

_
19 ININLNVC3A |
| 2 APl || 7
@ —~ __ | l_, _ _ 608

| muu@ __ | “

I __I _— I__ _ u.mm:.w®
oNIGING PNILSIX3 ¥O4 |
3znun (SKN0Y3N QHOI ¥3d _

NOLVJ07) SNOLLVJ01 0T34

NIVNG ONV YNVL X3 AJREA |
|
m~w..® _ _
Il 3SVHd _ _
(QHOI ¥3d) YNVL ¥ Iv9 00g | |
_ _
% i
vy _

2

LyZy

|
(SQ¥0O3¥ GHOI ¥3d\ |
NOILYJ01) SNOWLVI0T\ [~ 7
Q1313 NIvdQa ; 9z9¢
| 3SVHd anv ynve X3 adnay/| | ® oes N FSVHd
vINY \ \ bl $29¢ 2log
NOILN3L3a
a3sodoyd \ / e e £19 So5s =
\ \ 01 L19¢ $29% vioe
LS Glog — \.MM“
@ hl\ waanw D — Gose
14%44 —
a—— -_—

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WYHINI ‘dIHSNMOL NYIQIM3AN

DAY IOATY PUBID) 8|
404 'd'N'S

3903 1SV3 40 1SY3 ,0C F10d ALMILN 3AIS HLNOS “IIVN Md

(88AAVN) L6248 = "AT13 Z# MMVWHON34

‘avod 1IMod ®

ANNIAV M3IAIY ANVEOD 40 LNVHAVND LSVIHLYON ‘LNVHAAH

34 LMIP3. NI L3, ¥3IANN ‘L1709 FONVIH LSVYIHLYON
(88AAVN) 9¥'G/8 = "ATT13 L# MYVYWHON3S

AIVINHON

(dAL) @3AOW3Y 38 0L S33Y¥L SILON3A @

(dAL) FoN34
NOILOFLOYd 33¥L d3SOd0o¥d SILONIA

(3344-T70L) 3 L.K g
T
= g X
Sty =L
S 7 3>

(SNV1d ¥3d)
NIV 30804

\ NVS 7

]

—o3— — — — —03— — — — —03—

\ - NV
A RN
ANV

v

ONIaTINg

i

T13M

/MOANIM

ONIaTINg

(‘wo'¥ 3am .99 — oMand)
avod 13amod

‘(INOLSYIATS) SYIHLO Ad
Y3LVM ,Zl 03S0do¥d

04698 = "'AJ13 dANS
12°£98 = 'ANI M d0d .Sl
8%°L98 ‘ANI' S dod CL
12°£98 = 'ANI 3 d0d .Sl

02¢/L8 = 'AJ13 NIY
601# NISVYE HOLVO

G2'¢G8 ‘ANI'S d2d . ¥¢C
£2'¢G8 ‘ANI'N d0d . vC
Y6298 = 'AJ13 NId

80L# FTOHNVA WHOLS

99°¢G8 ‘ANI'S d0d .¥¢C
99'¢G8 = 'ANI N d0d .¥¢
86898 = 'AJ13 NIY

LOL# FTOHNVA WYOLS

w198 = 'ANI MS d0d ¥C
£G°¢G8 = 'ANI' S d0d . vC
767198 = ANl 3 4OA 21

£¥°198 = ‘ANl AN dWND 0l
L¥'¢G8 = 'ANI N d0d . ¥¢
66698 = 'AJ13 NI

901# FTOHNVA WHOLS

G97798 = 'AJ13 dANS
Y6798 = 'ANI M d0d .8l
047298 = 'ANI 3 d0d 2L

G9°298 = ANl 3N dOd .¥¢C
¥6°048 = "AJ1I NIY
GOl# NISVE HOLYO

86°¢98 = ‘AJ13 dANS
£6'7v98 = 'ANI M d0d .81
66'¥98 = 'ANI 3 d40d .81
8¥'048 = 'AJ13 NId

¥OI# NISVE HOLVO

697C98 = 'AJ13 dANS
06'v98 = 'ANI M d0d .81l
08'¥98 ‘ANl 3 d40d 8l
G8'G98 = 'ANI S d0d 2|
66048 = 'AJT13 NI

¢OI# NISVE HOLVO

5698 = 'AJ13 dANS
6G°698 = 'ANI MS d0d . Z1L
G2'C/L8 = 'AJ13 NId

ZO# NISVE HOLVO

£9°998 = "'AJ13 dANS
v£°/£98 = 'ANI M d0d .GI
d3SS303y dv4 001 3Idid 3
d3SS303d dv4 O0L 3Idid 3N
8¢°2/8 = 'AJ13 NIY

LOl# NISVE HOLYO

82°'698 = 'ANI M d0d .ZL

Y9148 = "AJ1I NIY
00l# NISVE HOLVYO

SIIFMOLNIANI ¥3IM3S X3




yoequiiedy ‘Wd §5:90:CT 8T0Z/0€/0T 'BMP L68€6-I\BMP\L68E6\E6\T

/68S6 dnoJs sAIOWOINY SUIDJUO DT

# aor A8 Q3ZINOHLNY
M o) oo -

9 40 € 133HS won Logremr! eL-gz— ELva
v_g_o. v*g_) = .

‘A8 QIAONALY :yanois3g] O7 =«+ FIVOS

NVId ONIQVYO % WYOLS

AV JOARY PUBID 8]

0086—18.-69Z "uUd
30440 IIDYSION

LP08—6EE—L1S XVY +101—-6£€—L1S "Hd

0¥88% IN ‘LLIISVH ‘OVOY LLIISVH 911

IVLLINENS
. ; dns 81-92-6
Sonaanona ssor. NI 'SE3IAA SNOISIAZH

1V 268 6#A3ANNS

IvVOS ON
dVIN NOILVOO’]

30 MIAHLHON

ay NOLVAVH

dd T3amod

90 Mavd Wy

+$988% IN ‘SONIMO "INNIAV ¥3IAIY ONVYO ‘M 8Vl

ay 3ig0d

'SS3AQY LIS
——
/
/ /
/
/
N
1
7By
[ \3
A T
A
| ,
/
// ﬂ
Y
_ SN
N
- .
RN _ g, /AJF
NI % 7!
ML
\ | b
\ - :
> \
// N
.
W_,.mv \ f J\/
Y
/ /
ol \ /
A
)| A
/
/ /]
T aw
0zl 08 oig 0 ;T o=~~~ Nowaian,
Y o T T T
OF = .1 3IV0S ////t
L)
ﬁ%i\ y
/ 2
\\\\\\\\\\ \\\ e Wl@\lmmw\ .//\\\
| — — =TT
S T
#ﬁ,:\‘_q/ o S
g k: ,:_ \ &
! _; / ) “

I
|

(SNVd ¥3d)
NIV 32304

/
/)
\\\ / ]

| \ /__ m‘\m<_._
%\j\

d

|
i_
/

_ L~

~

s (CEQ 39Vd FLEf
>€1Z 39vd ‘LTIl 'Y

LNENA <m_\2_<m_ﬂmu_

| ¥ /

Il 3gvHY-

1NOdSNMOQ e "AJ13 g4ND 40 dOL a3S0dodd 00008 O/LW
1INN ONINOILIONOD ¥IV 8 LHOM ANNOYD = > M0018 LSNYHL v
1S0d . J3¥L SNOYIHINOD = 3 IATVA Y3LVM o
NOIS —a J3¥1 SNoNAn3ig = mmww INVYQAH 3414 2
SIYIM QVIHYIAO = 03 INIT ALY3dOdd =— -_
T713IM ONIYOLINOW ® UM 10 LHOM avos
TI3M ® ONVHY3AO ONIATNINE = ——————————— avod 40 IANIT ¥3LN3D 3 — —3
H313dN SVoO 6] NOILVATTT dNOLNOD ONILSIX3 = g |\O@@ N ._.ZmM—zm_mv,qm_ AN — -
- X 'X3) JTOHNYN s
¥3LIN 0110373 @ NOILVATT13 LOdS ONILSIX3 o g q3S040xd ™
Tv1S3d3d ALMILN = wia = E== s %@Wm_vow%u_wmu °
- ®
3 ANO — Taawvee = [T ¥IMIS ANVLINVS 03SOdONd —me —
J10d LHOM x JLIYIONOD = E NIVA ¥3LVM 03S0dO¥d —g— - -—
I9NI4 = Y3IMIS WHOLS "IX3d —s . T —
VA ® HIMIS AUVLINYS "IX3 —s = NvS
LINVYQAH 3414 ) 3Iv¥0S 0L 1ON FONVISIA = —\—— NIVIN ¥3LYM "1X3 n "
_ SYNOLNOD “IXd — — — — — — — — —
NISYEHOLVO B8 ® Q@3LON SV NOdl ANNO4 = (] ANTOTT
JTOHNVYN FOVNIVYA © dvO HLIM ¥vE .2/l 13S = ®
AN3931 X3

— 3.

- — — %61 30v

‘6/2¢ ¥3an
AVM3AINA
Isn LNIOF

.

e _ & yre—

ANNIAY YIAIY ANVYD 40 84ND 40 MOvE 40 HLYON

SLL 'ANNIAY MIAAIY ANVYD 8¥vI#F OL JAIMA LIVHASY 40
3903 1SV 40 1SV .02 ‘F10d ALMILN 3AIS HLNOS “TIIVN Md
(88AAVN) L6248 = "AT13 Z# MMVWHON34

‘avod 1IMod ®
ANNIAV M3IAIY ANVEOD 40 LNVHAVND LSVIHLYON ‘LNVHAAH

34 LMIP3. NI L3, ¥3IANN ‘L1709 FONVIH LSVYIHLYON
(88AAVN) 9¥'G/8 = "ATT13 L# MYVYWHON3S

SYIVANHONIE

(dAL) @3AOW3Y 38 0L S33Y¥L SILON3A @

(dAL) FoN34
NOILOFLOYd 33¥L d3SOd0o¥d SILONIA

I
90 0F 305 Pémﬁf&
B

(SAV@ ONIXHOM £) @v
o 2 RS

(SNV1d ¥3d)
NIV 30804
NVS ¥

S

(,8G6/~) FTOHNYW
ONILSIX3 OL NIVA
30404 3ddH .2

(‘wo'¥ 3am .99 — oMand)
avod 13amod

Y
/. Tam &

MOQNI \
Diwy,

NYYH

iy
%

Il 3SVHd

—

—~0y

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WYHINI ‘dIHSNMOL NYIQIM3AN

DAY IOATY PUBID) 8|

404 'd'N'S

04698 = "'AJ13 dANS
12°£98 = 'ANI M d0d .Sl
87°'L98 = 'ANI S d0d .<I
12°£98 = 'ANI 3 d0d .Sl

02¢/L8 = 'AJ13 NIY
601# NISVYE HOLVO

80L# FTOHNVA WHOLS

99°¢G8
99'¢G8

‘ANI'S d0d .¥¢C
‘ANI'N d0d ¥¢

86898 = 'AJ13 NIY
LOL# FTOHNVA WYOLS

w198 =

‘ANl MS d0d ,¥¢

£G°¢G8 = 'ANI' S d0d . vC

767198
£¥'198 =

‘ANl 3 dOA 2L
‘ANl AN dWO 0L

L¥'¢G8 = 'ANI N d0d . ¥¢
66698 = 'AJ13 NI
901# FTOHNVA WHOLS

G97798 = 'AJ13 dANS
Y6798 = 'ANI M d0d .8l
047298 = 'ANI 3 d0d 2L

G9°298 = ANl 3N dOd .¥¢C
¥6°048 = "AJ1I NIY
GOl# NISVE HOLYO

86°¢98 = ‘AJ13 dANS
£6'7v98 = 'ANI M d0d .81
66'¥98 = 'ANI 3 d40d .81
8¥'048 = 'AJ13 NId

¥OI# NISVE HOLVO

697C98 = 'AJ13 dANS
06'v98 = 'ANI M d0d .81l
08'¥98 = 'ANI 3 d40d 81
G8'G98 = 'ANI S d0d 2|
66048 = 'AJT13 NI

GZ'$G8 = ANI'S dO¥ b2
(ERTI0N) N S £Z'€G8 = 'ANI N do¥ ,¥Z COl# NISVE HOLVO
WI-85-008 _ -EJ ¥6798 = ‘AJ13 WY ¥5'698 = 'AI13 dWNS

6G°698 = 'ANI MS d0d . Z1L
G2'C/L8 = 'AJ13 NId
ZO# NISVE HOLVO

£9°998 = "'AJ13 dANS
v£°/£98 = 'ANI M d0d .GI
d3SS303y dv4 001 3Idid 3
d3SS303d dv4 O0L 3Idid 3N
8¢°2/8 = 'AJ13 NIY

LOl# NISVE HOLYO

82°'698 = 'ANI M d0d .ZL

Y9148 = "AJ1I NIY
00l# NISVE HOLVYO

SIIFMOLNIANI ¥3IM3S X3

013 SN0SdOL ‘ST0dS INJFW3ISvE {04

AdVSSIOAN SW33d d3d013A3d dHL 4O AJHL SV
S3AvHO NMOd ONIQTOH d04 F14ISNOdS3S S

dOLOVHINOD ANV SNOILIANOD d3LONYLSNOD
IVNI4 404 34V NMOHS S3Avdd 11V 310N




yoequijexp] ‘INd €0:80:ZT 8T0Z/0€/0T 'BMp£68£6-3\BMP\/68E6\E6\]

L68C6 dnoug aAl3o0WO}NY SUIDIUO 4D

# gor ‘A8 Q3ZIYOHLNY
MMP 7y

9 40 ¥ L133HS WON 103r0¥d| B8}—Se—L 3Lva
MNP MNP -1 :

A8 Q3A0¥ddY :yanoisag] 07 =-b FIVOS

NV1d SNOIAY3dNI / SNOIAY3d

AV JOARY PUBID 8]

0086—18.—69Z "ud
3030 IIOYSION

L¥08—-6EE—-LIS XV] VI01—-6€€—LIS "Hd

0¥88% IN ‘LLIISVH ‘GVOY L1JISVH 911T

IVLLINGNS
dnsS 8L—9C—6

sanuns anv1 A *N|| ‘ST

ONIYIINIONI SN

SNOISIAFY

17v°£68¢6#A3ANNS

'4'S 826°0L =

4'S L¥L'GET

IVOS ON
dVIN NOILVOO01

ay NoL

ay T3Imod

%0L = SNOIANYAdNI F18VMOTIV XV

%09 = 4'S ¥Z¥'0¥l =(3US WLIOL) Il 3SVHd
%S'6lL = "4'S 2/6'Sy = (AINO V3dV Q3d0T3A3A) | 3SVHd

V3dV SNOIAY3dNI

%0y = "4'S ¢zg'G6 = (LS ILOL) Il ISVHd

( AINO V3¥V Q3d013A3A) | ISVHJ
JOVASNIdO
="M'0’¥ avVOY LNOHLIM AL¥IdO¥d WV.LOL
"4'S 2Z6'0¥Z AL¥3dONd SS0¥9

‘SNOILYINOTVO SNOIAYIJI/SNOIAYAd

0cl

08
Ov

ay 31904

WVH

J
|

$988% IN 'SON3X0 '3NN3AV Y3AIM ANVED ‘M 8¥¥l :SS3¥AAV 3LIS

OF 0

«b JTVIS

/
/
/
/
/
iS 8¢¢
/
/
g
JS 909
90 W
4S 00lL'8
Il 3SVHd
IS 6vv
iS 10¢
Il ISVHd
| 3SVHd

"4S 00¥8 V3dV NOILLN3L3d

//
E VAN
g [ 4
S iS £92°T
iS L &
iS 10¢
iS vz8
iS 10¢
[ 3wy
96¢C —— T
_ 4S 29¢
4S ¥52 _
4S €1gl

7/

IS 198

JS 208

L 1|

_‘“uw
4

d

INSRRRRW
4S 169°]

LNOdSNMOQ &0
LINN ONINOILIONOD ¥IV g LHOIT ONNO¥O = >
1504 . 334L SNOY3HINOD =
NOIS — 3341 Snona3a =
T13M ONIYOLINOW ® S3YM QVIHY3AO =
TIam ® ONVHY3AO ONIGTING = ——————--———
¥3LIN SVO @ NOLLYAIT3 ¥NOLNOD ONISIXI =\ _o®
¥3LIN OLOTT3 m NOILVAT13 10dS ONUSIX3 = "
IVLS3A3d ALMLN ® wi = [ ]
M AND — vy = [ ]
370d LHON Xx AIWON0D = [nr]
370d ALMLN Jol LIVHdSY =
INVA ® 30N34 =
LNVYQAH 3314 P 3IvOS OL LON FONVISIA = —N\——
NISYEHOLVO B @ Q3LON SV NO¥I ONNO4 = m]
JTOHNYIN 3OVNIVYQ o dvO HLIM ¥vE 2/} 135 = .
AN3931 X3

iS 6gS

s
f

AV Ly'S
4S LyL'GeT

MO LNOHLIM LIS

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WVHONI ‘dIHSNMOL NVIQIM3IN
OAY IOATY PUBID 8|

404 'd'N'S

ANNIAV d3AIM ANVYO 40 88NO 40 XMOvE 40 HLYON
G'LL "ANNIAY ¥3AIY ANVYO 8¥vL# OL 3AINA LIVHJSY 40

3903 1SV3 40 1SV3 0T ‘I10d ALIMILN 3AIS HLNOS “TIVN Md
(88GAVWN) £6'2L8 = "AT3 Z# MUVYWHON3E

‘avod T1IMod ®
ANNIAY H3AIY ANVYO 40 LNVYAVYND LSYIHLYON ‘LNVMHAAH

34 MIPE, NI 3. ¥3ANN 1709 JFONVIS LSVYIHLYON
(88GAVN) 9¥'G/8 = "AT3 l# MNVWHON3E

SUMYVANHON3IE

(dAL) Q3IAOW3Y 38 OL S33YL SILON3A @

(dAL) 30N34
NOILO3108d 3341 @3S0dON¥d S3ILON3d

M M 054

(SAVA INIXHOM £)

)

(‘M0 3am .99 — dnand)
avod 113M0d

‘AJ13 gdnO 40 401 d3S0d0oyd

%0078 1SndHL
JATVA d3LVM

INVYOAH 3y

3ANIT ALY3d0d¥d

AVM 40 1HOIM avod
avod 40 3INIT ¥3IN3ID

LNIW3SVY3 ALMILN

(*X3) IIOHNVA

‘8’0 03S0do¥d

(M3N) 310HNVA

¥IM3S WHOLS Q3ISOdo¥d
YIMIS AYVLINYS Q3ISOdONd
NIVIN ¥3LVM Q3SOdodd

SNOILVATI3 "LX3

43IM3S WHOLS 'LX3
dIM3IS AYVLINVS “LX3
NIVAN ¥31LVM “1X3
SYNOLNOD 'LX3

00°008 9/1W

v
@

2.

-3 — —

o4

047698 = "AFT13 dANS
1°£98 = ANl M dOd .Sl
8¥°/,98 ‘ANI' S d0d ¢l
12’298 = 'ANI 3 d0d .Gl

02¢/48 = "AJF13 NIM
601# NISVE HOLVO

G2'¢G8 = 'ANI' S d0d .¥¢
£2'¢G8 = 'ANI N d0d . ¥C
¥6°¢98 = 'AJ13 Al

801# FTOHNVYIW WMOLS

99°¢Ge8 ‘ANI'S d0d . ¥C
99'¢G8 ‘ANI' N d0d . ¥¢
86898 = 'AJ13 NI

LOl# FIOHNYIWN WYOLS

l¥°198 = 'ANI MS dOd ,v¢C
£6°¢G8 = 'ANI' S d0d .¥¢C
¥6°198 = ANl 3 dOA ¢l

£¥°198 = 'ANI 3N dWO .0l
L¥'€G8 = 'ANI N d0d . ¥C
66698 = 'AJT13 NIY

901# JFTOHNVA WHOLS

G9°798 = "'AJT1I dANS
¥6°298 = ANl M dOd .81
04298 = 'ANI 3 d0d .21

G998 = 'ANI AN dOd .¥vC
¥6°048 = "AJ13 NI
SOl# NISVE HOLVO

86°¢98 = ‘AJTI dANS
£6'498 = 'ANI M d0d .8l
66¥98 = 'ANI 3 d0d .8l
84048 = 'AI13 NI
¥0I# NISYE HOLVO

69798 = 'AJ13 dANS
06'¥98 = 'ANI M dOd .8l
08'v98 ‘ANl 3 d0d .81
G8'G98 ‘ANI' S d0d 21

6G'0/48 = 'AJT13 ANIM
cOl# NISVE HOLVO

¥G'698 = 'AJ13 JANS
6G°698 = 'ANI MS d0d .ZI
GZ2'¢/8 = 'AI13 NIM

Zol# NISVE HOLVO

£9°998 = "AJT1I dANS
v£°£98 = ANl M d0d .Sl
d3SS303y d¥v4 001 3did 3
d3SS303d d¥v4d OO0l 3dld 3N
8¢'¢/8 = 'AJT13 NIM

lol# NISVE HOLYO

82°698 = 'ANI M d0d .2l

¥9°'l48 = 'AJT3 NIH
00l# NISVE HOLVO

S3HOLNIANI ¥3M3IS X3




Uyoequiiedy ‘Wd £S5:80:CT 8T0Z/0€/0T 'BMP L68€6-I\BMP\L68E6\E6\T

FSVE YFHIO OGNV SIUITUN AHIVYO0LO0L ANVANNOg 3LIS £

NOLLINHLSNOD INISNG AFOVNWYT ‘SLNININOHGWY/ S TVIHILYIN

901# FTOHNVA WHOLS

00l# NISVE HOLVYO

L68C6H dnoug aAl3oWOoINY BUID}UO DT LNOJSNMOQd = &3 ‘A313 84ND 40 d0Ll a3IS0d0¥d 00°008 O/LW
# gor - ‘A8 QIZINOHLNY LINA ONINOILIONOD IV = @ LHOMN ANNOHS = > M0078 LSNYHL v
—c7—/ ¢ = JATIVA d3LVM @
9 406 133HS ON LoTrosy| 8+-ST—L ALva 1S0d = . 3L SNOYIAINOD 3
A8 QINOHIY aanoigaq) 07 =«b IS NOIS = == 3L SNONAOIA = €:3 e
- - TTAM ONINOLINOWN = ® SFHIM AVIHAIAO = 03 INIT ALY3dOdd =— -
NY1d 3dYOSANY AVM 40 LHOI¥ QvOd
Tam = ® ONVHY3AO ONIQTING = ——————————— avoy 40 3INM ¥3LN3D 3 — —3
®>< HO\/MMH ﬁgwhw w.v.—ﬂﬁ ¥3LIN SYO = = NOILVATTT dNOLNOD ONILSIX3 = |\O@@ N INIWNIASYI ALMLN — — S
0086—18,-69Z vid “LNOD 1H 2 N3R4O QIVHING 0 vonsL |  IVAAMOBMY N3O GTVMINI| o3 st M3LIN OINLOTTI = @ NOILVA3T3 10dS ONILSIX3 = o £x3) 310HNYA °
92|, DYSJD . .
4O IIDYsIoN LNOD 1H 2 N33YOV3S SnyadINnr Y3dINAM N33HOVIS|  sP St W1SIAId ALMLA = - wia = E== (M3IN) ITOHNVYW °®
[Y08—65E—/1S XY4 +10I-6SC—/1S "Hd "LNOD ‘LH ¥2 N3O ¥3ALNIM, VTIAHJONOIN SNXNg aoomxod 4vIFLLn| wa 9l 3 N - i d3IM3S WYOLS Q3S0do¥d — ® =
Ov88Y IN ‘LLIISVH ‘QV0d LLTISVH 9LIZ VIS IN0O | IH .95—42 SNLOVANOO SMLYTY SNNANONI HSNE ONINNNE | v3 ol M AN = ¥3IMIS AYVLINVS 03SOdO¥d —ge i
dns 81926 : I10d LHOM = & 3L3ON0D = [T NIVA 43LVM 43S0d0¥d —— - - 5
SAIAYNS ONV] NVANE ° ; "LNOD 1H ,92—.¥C 0709 GOOMNAT , VIGIWYILNI X VIHLASYOA VIHLASH04 @109 GOOMNAT 14 Gl . o,
ONIMIINIONI SN ONI "S83X SNOISIAZY SANYHS J10d ALMILA = o 1IVHdSY = SNOLLYAZT3 "1X3 %,
- JONT4 = ¥IMIS WYOLS “LXT —s T —
L1v'26826FAINANS £988% IN ‘SOWN3XO ‘INNIAV ¥3AIN ONVHD ‘M 8¥+l SSINAAY 3LIS -~ y SIS JVLINYS X3 T s
. a» 9 o ST IINVN33¥4 ¥30V IdVYN 3Zv18 NANLNY v 8 INVYAAH 3¥I4 = o) JIVOS 0L LON FONVISIAd = —N—— NIVIN d3LVm “1X3 T .
a»g V0 ST ANMAMS, SINYINI SOONVHLYINL YISLIQ31D 1SNO0T AINOH 3NIAMS 19 4] NISYEHOLYD = M@ ® g3LON SV NOMI dNNO4 = O SYNOLNOD "IX3 — — m mmmml.._l -
ONILSIX3 S3FUL € o 52
/1T = 0L / ZSL :Qvoy T1Imod g% 4 “ ,JUIISNIIYO, VSOLNINOL VIIL | N3ANMN 4vITILLN IMIISNIFNO oL 8 FJIOHNYN OVYNIVNG = @ dvO HLM ¥ve .z/b L3S = °
g% 8 VO LS VNVAYITIVO SN¥Ad ¥v3d YITTOUNYHO dd L
03dINO¥d S3IFYL AdJONVO 6 a% 9 WO ST LL3ISNNS 034, WNYENY ¥30V I1dVYWN L3ISNNS a3y |  wv ol aAN39231 X3
€6 =0, / ,S5°TS9 ¥INY ANVHO SNoNan3a
0/ / 3341 1 100 3zi1s 3INVN TVIINVLOS INVYN NONNOD ._omz>m_ "INVND "ANNIAY M3AIM ANVYD 40 g4ND 40 MOVE 40 HLYON
‘ ~— " : SLL INNIAY HIAIN ANVED 8vvL# OL JAINA LIVHASY 40
S33dl 1334lS — (1 3SVHd) I3 1NA3IHDS ISIT INV1d 3903 1Sv3 40 1SV3 ,02 ‘F10d ALMLN 3AIS HLNOS “NIVN Yd
(I 3SvHd) Q3aN0Yd —~— (880AVN) £6Z/8 = "A33 Z# MYVYWHON3S 9708 = ATT3 4N
'4'S 6£6'C ‘(I 3SVHd) 03AINOY¥d “4'S ££Z°G)(A3AIN0Yd “4'S FZlZ'8) "4'S Ov¥'L = Q0T X 0L/ZL¢ T -QvON T1IMOd % $6°298 = 'ANI M dD¥ .81
S30VdS OL/°4'S 2/¢ T ANNIAY H3AIM ANVYD 40 INVHAVND LSYIAHLYON ‘LNVHAAH 0L'¢98 = 'ANI 3 d2d 2L
(I 3SYHd) a3AIA0¥d 8¢ ‘(I ISVHd) Q3AIN0Yd 9€) SIFML ¥Z = T X L§ = 0L/2LE —— 4 L MIP3, NI 3, ¥3ANN ‘1708 IONVTA LSYIHLEON 69798 = ‘ANl AN dO¥ 4T
S30VdS 0L/33dL ¢ — (88AAVN) 9¥'G/8 = 'A313 L# MYVWHON3IE ;.owm = "AJ13 NN
T GOl# NISVE HOLVO
‘SININIHINO3IY —~— SYIVNHONIA
JdVOSANYT LOT ONIMYvd — | 86'¢98 = "AJ13 dANS
NOUVTTVLSNI OL YO/ FALLVINTSTHSTS TIZIMOHLIV S,HINMO HLM — o8 d3INOZ £6'v98 = ANI'M dOd .81
SINUYNSILTY MINTS OGNV (SNOLLIGNOD FOVHHNSENS/STOS NO dISVeE) “UAH 66'¥98 = 'ANI 3 dOd .8l
STXIN TUIHOVE INUNY TS FLVIMHONESY ININGTLIA TIVHS HOLOVHINOD £l T (dAl) Q3AOW3Y 38 OL SI3L S3LON3A . = - 8%'0/48 = 'AJ13 NI
92 598 A3 NS ¥0I1# NISVE HOLVO
SIOUOVHL TYHLTINOUEOH GNNOS HIM FINYAH0IIY NI GIITddV T 12°£98 = 'ANI M dOd .SI
SI GNV SNOILVIIAIIFAS S,H4FINLIVIINYA THL SMOTIOH NOILVIITIdY —— (dAL) 30N 8Y°£98 = 'ANI S d0¥ ,ZI . _ .
FAIIGYTH LVHL ONY STULSTI0H FAIGHTH FHL OL LNVLSISTY NOILOZLONd J34L ISOd0oMd SILONIA 17798 = ‘ANl 3 dod Gl 697798 = 'AIT3 dANS
SI TYMILYA LNVTd GISOJOY LYHL FYNSNI TIVHS HOLOVHINOD T ; " “ 06'¥98 = "ANI M dO¥ .8l
FAOIGHTH LNFONINT~Fod HIM ILY3IHL 38 0L SAIF ONUNYId TV ZI —~— 0c¢L8 = A1 NId ‘yo8 = °
601# NISVE HOLVO ow.¢ 8 _ .>z_ 3 do¥ .8l
TIGVIITdSY FYTHM VLI INIMYLS/INUNY TS (SNV7d ¥3d) —— G8'G98 = 'ANI S d0¥ .Z!
_SFFML SNONAIIIA ¥O “UVLIA INANS/INUNY TS T3l NIF¥IENT 735 NIV 30304 — GZ'€S8 = ANI'S dO¥ .+T 8G°048 = 'AI13 WIM
‘FHNOFS AINVLS/AHUND A8 TIVHS VI .Z ¥INO STFHL GISOd0dd TIV “Li . VS — \wauﬁﬁw‘.w%& N Sy €Z'¢G8 = 'ANI N d0¥ .¥¢ £OI# NISVE HOLVO
U VINTSIHSTY “lE — 3 - _ -‘Sx.s/ ¥6°298 = ‘AF1T NIY . _ .
TIZIYOHLNY S,HINMO FHL WOYT TAO¥IY LNOHLM FGYW 38 TIVHS 2. .2 4 T ap5698 = NI dANS
WIMILYW INVId 40 SNOINLLSENS ON  FAUVINISTLITY AIZINOHLNY |5 . w T - W SSN TV) @li‘_-_ g a‘ 801# TIOHNVW WaOLS 65°698 = 'ANI MS d0d .ZI
S,YINMO FHL AS ANOSdY ONY GILOTSNI 38 TIVHS SIFL sle — A Ak M4 ?P‘ : = - §¢¢L8 = ‘AI1d NIY
7V LIS WOMd GINONIY 38 TIVHS H04 ITIVO SV ALITVNO H0O/aNY 7/ 1658 AN 99°¢G8 = 'ANI'S dod . ¥C
a3ZIS FHL ONUIFN LON TVIHZLYA INVTd ANY  STINATHIS LNVTd . Vi % 9N T s (sava ozEM\og £) o 99'¢G8 = 'ANI N d0¥ .bC 20i# NISVE HOLVO
FHL NI 404 GFTIVO S3ZIS FHL 40 38 TIVHS TVIMALYW INVId TTV 0L — = am 86998 = ‘AT NI . _ .
. . A T 2 22 2 _£9'998 = 'AF13 NS
INUVINTSTIATS TIZISOHLNY o L0l FIOHNVIA WHO0LS ¥£°£98 = 'ANI' M dO¥ .Sl
S, HINMO FHL A8 TWNOHDdY QL L2Fr8nS F8 TIVHS TVINILYW * sley « g3sSSIDIY ¥v4 00L 3did 3
LINVId TIV 40 NOUYIOT FHL AYVSSIOIN SV ‘G134 NI SNOILYIOT * 7198 = 'ANI MS dO¥ YT 3523573y Mv4 00L 3did 3N
TVIMILVA INYTd OL SINFNLSIIrGY YONW FXYN TIVHS HOLOVMINOD 6 Z $6¢G8 = ANI S dD¥ .+2 80778 = A3 AN
: S “ =
NMVYAG STUUNVNO 40 NOLVTTV.LSNI M ¥6°198 = ANl 3 4dOA <L LO# NISVE HOLVD
H05 FIEISNOISTY S| HOLOVHINOD SNVId NO_GILVIIGNI FSOHL NV b £¥°198 = "ANI 3N dWO 0l
STINAIHIS ANVId NO NMOHS SIULIUNVNO AJEIN TIVHS HOLOVELNOO g m_NmW = /¥'€G8 = 'ANI N d0¥ ¥¢C 82698 = ‘ANI M do¥ .ZL
SYFHLO A8 AITANOY NOLVYWIOINI _ 2 66698 = ‘AI1I NI Y9148 = "AFTT WIY

ONILSIXT OL FOVIWVA ANV HOS FTEISNOLSIY S HOLOVHINOD 9

‘NOUVIUFLON HINS N9 OL FHNTV4

QL 3Nad SNOISNIFY TTV HO4 ALITIEISNOLSIY TiN4d IWASSY TIVHS

HOLIOVHINOD  'NOISIOIT OGNV MINFY &0 FNILVINISINSFYS TIZIHOHLNY

S HINMMO FHL Ol GILYOdIY ATILVIAINNI 38 TIVHS SNOLLIGNOI
INIUSIXT GNV STIVLIG SILON SNVId NIIMLIE STIONVIIYOSIT ANV 6

SININTTT aIvS

40 TYAONIH/FOYNYA OL 3NA AIHHNINI LSO ANY 04 FTGISNOLSTY

34 TIVHS HOLOVHINOD NOILVIIOFN OGNV S3IFHL  INIUSIXT

40 NOLVOOT FHL SV TIM SY SI¥NLONYLS ANV S3dld SIUITLN
ANNOYOYFANN TIV 40 NOILVIOT FHL AHHIN TIVHS HOLOVHINOGD  #

dO J3INOZ

1004 FHVNOS 000°L 834 'S8T £ 0L Z 40 FUVY JHL LV ATddV
SSVH9 Y TVINNINIL Z01
SSVHIFNTE AXINUININ TOLSINYE Z0C
SSVHIINTE AAINUINIH WVSSYN %52
SSVYYH9INTE AHONLNIH LHODSEAS %58

ONMOTIOS FHL HIM SVY3I&Y 43S Ve

SaIM S0 FFMS
S AVHL (ALFIMVA (FOVYHS/NAS) TGOS SSYHIFNTE ANINUININ V TIVISNI €

(WIH—AT0d ON) SHFoNYS F34L OGNV
8a7q/SYIHV ONUNVIE TTV OL HITNW MYVE AFAAIYHS J3F0 & TIVISNI

(ATNO SGNYHS aNNoYV,)
T78 INUNYTd WOHS MUV FLVHVETS 0L INI9GT V9 &l X & TIVISNI L

S310ON IdVOSANY']

‘AUD 4| SUOI}OIIS8J pUD S}USWSSDS |0 0} }08[gns

[9o4pd piPS (SS9| JO SJOW S849D H$(0°Z Dujuipjuod oupd pips Buiuuibeq jo juiod By} 03 1884 GO'06L SUll AMSYION PIPS
buojp Mm,95,6G.9/N 9oUsY} Bull AlISYLION PIDS 0} 389} 94°0LlG 3,8Z,61.00S 92uUsyy 399} 9/°68l 3,1E,04.C8N 9oUsY} 183}
GS'CHy M.LG,S.00N 9ouUsy) tuondiossp siyy jo Buuubaq Jo juiod ay) 01 195} ZH'96+% dull AJaylioN pips Buoip 3,95,65.9/S
S2U3Y} ‘8NUBAY JBAlY PuUDJH 40 aull Aom—jo—3ybls AlJSY}ION 2y} O} 199} GO'COE 4O SOUDISIP D ¢Z UOI}O8S PIDS O oUI| ISOM
oy} Buoip 3,87,61.00S 90UBY) :UOI}O8S PIDS JO JBUIOD f/| }S8\ 9y} o Bupuswwo) :sb paquosep [8oiod pips jo Auppunoq
pakeains ayy ‘upbiyoiy ‘Ayunod woybu| ‘diysumol UPIPLBIN ‘MLY ‘N¥L ‘CZ UOIO9S JO 4/| 1S8MYINoS a8y} ul pup| Jo [eoJnd v
20 130dvd

‘AUD JI SUOI}O1J}SBJ puD S}uUSWSSDS ||b 0} }0a(qns

[9o4pd piDs (sS9| 40 SJow s940D /@7 Puiuipiuod |eoupd pips :Buiuuibeq jo juiod By) 01 1984 ZH'RSE oull AlUSYLION PIPS
Buoip Mm,9G,6G.9/N oousy} ‘eull ApsypioN pIos 0} 189 GG'CHY 3,/G,G¥.00S 90usyy 4884 $7°GZ¢ 3I,lE,04.C8N 9ousyy 108y
16°GZ¢ 3,6G,Z1.00N @dusyy :uonduosep siyy jo Buiuuibeq jo juiod sy} o} 388} 00'8GL dull AlJeyjioN pios Buolp 3,95 .6G6.9/S
20U3Y] (SNUDAY JOAIY PupPJy Lo auj] Abm—jo—1ybia A|J9YJJON 94l 01 1994 GO'$96 1O 90UDISIP D ¢ UOI}OIS PIDS JO U] IS9M
sy} buoip 3,87,61.00S 90USY} fUDI}O8S PIDS JO JBUJOD 4 /| }s8M 8y} }p Bupuswwo) :sb pequosep [8o4od pips jo Auopunoq
pakenins oYy ‘uobiyoiy Ajunod woybu| ‘diysumol UDIPLIBN ‘MLY ‘N¥L ‘©Z Uon08S Jo 4/| 1S8mMYylnoS 8yl Ul pup| Jo [9oJnd v
‘g 1304vd

‘AUD JI SUOI}DIJ}SSJ puUD S}uswWasDa || 0} 3}93(gns |9oupd pibs ‘Abm—jo—3ybu o1gnd spb asn

ul Ajjueseud sso| 4o aJoW 940D ||°0 DBulpnjou) iss9| 4O SJow s9JOD 090 Puluipiuod |9oupd pips buluuibeq jo julod 9yl o}
1994 06°CS| @ul| 1som plos buop M,87,61.00N 2oUdL} 'aul| 1sOpM pIDS 0} 3994 00'8SL dull APayjioN pios Buoip m,95,6G.9/LN
90UaY} eNUBAY JoAlY puplty Jo aul] Aom—jo—3ybls AlJSyLIoN dyy 0} 199} L£'68lL M,6G,CL00S BdUSY} 188 £G'GGL
3,9G6.0v.68N @ousy) :uonduosep siy} jo bBujuuibeq jo juiod 8y} 0} 388} GL'0L] JO 9OUDISIP D ¢T UOI}O8S PIDS JO BUI| ISOM
syy bBuo|p 3,87,61.00S 90USY] (UOI}D9S PIDS JO JBUIOD 4/| 1SS0\ 9Y) 1P Bupuswwo) :sp psquUossp [9o4od pips Jo Auppunog
pakaains oy} ‘upbBiyoiy “Ayjunoy woybu| ‘diysumo] ubipusy ‘MIY ‘N¥L ‘©Z UOI308S 40 4/| }SSMYINOg sy} ul pup| jo [saund vy
'V 130dvd

(uonnduosep pepiroiad 8y} sp pup| jo [9a4pd swbs 8yy sequosep uonduosep |pbe| Buimoloy ay)

‘03A3AENS SV NOILAI¥IS3A 1voI
.08 OF 0

V 777777/ /2
V 7%/ /7

IvVOS ON
dVIN NOILVOO’]

f

0cCl

777 202 T
Oy = .1 31voS

ay 3ig0d

30 MIAHLHON

ay NOLVAVH

dd T3amod

90 Mavd Wy

J
|

6s9¢

SIIFMOLNIANI ¥3IM3S X3

AIdNVL GNYH TEINMOHD .9

SNNNH YO 1Y3d Lovd |
SV £ 3FSN FHNUXIN INUNVId

did INUNYId 40 S3FAIS AHHVIS

‘THOI NOUN 2 ONIKIM TIY INONIY
NV LN12 ‘dvi¥ng 40 £/t NONFY

ANISYNN FHL NI NMOY9 NVHL YIHIH
4 QAUNVId 38 TIVHS TIVELOOY

Favyo8ns ad3Lovdnoo |/

IVL3A ONILNVId 8NYHS

NOWLO3S

JWos al LoN

TIVELO0Y 40 ,

XIWN_ a13IINOVE

TVISILYW
¢ 0SdOL

Javeo aIHSINL

HIONVS TOS UH &
HIIN HevE GIAOFYHS .£

SovL ® SIHM TIV

FNONIY (F18VTdY H)) ‘&IavTT

3HL F9VWVT Y0 N2 LON 04 ‘ONUNVId
JALIY £/1 FW04 ANV STHONVEE ‘STHONVYE
IMISSOY2 aNVv a3owwa avaa TIv INNdd

=== ===1=1=
P ,"H“a %ﬁh LT

Vg Xz

ozy \d9 zva =~ . N ,:// - ~—
\ ; - — A SN (SNV1d ¥3d) —
B~ 2 0 Qf . e
| 8008
\ _ % cvog DuAmn S °
vizh T @ W / ) m_:u L%
o129 v o / T _mu\ 5 |
431 / T ' _m L B S
d) sozy N\ Shog | g Bege zLoL Jav
j 3 ‘642¢ ¥3an
w/ _ \\_ o ovog | cb L AVM3AINQ
é)/_/w c W 9 39Vd nﬁ L | L 3sn LNIOP —_
< | Ergn |
~ ¢ z
Ll s ] (P c1z 3ovd ‘szl e o 5
) N o o
g2t | Y 8 avis 1y prprs WINPT TENEANTSY NIVEA ST13 g
m -%o‘ _ ) : ISNOH Y0078 Ayoyer? # - 74 “m X | =5
D= _ D I _ N B
g | /® O = o : s 2 ¢—0 [d3INoZ o & N ar (:88L~) FI0HNW
‘g LB o D - \ Ve et = | 3 OM ONILSIX3 OL NIVA
. \ ~ a | 30404 3dAH .2
3 B W & \| o [0 1S 2 ey 22 M
) \ 1 \r(@ “C 2] “ \93/: [ -
s [ av _ § _ ] ® _ =
vy M Zﬁmmww \ v d W S @ v |
@ Ogg WM,Mw = b 7 ) c9g " “ 1= ™ unw
~ — =y
m'\ lezy /IS vyL® o “ d _ 250
L& s | g 3 I8 E
L % __I iy = _ = “ gl® |
oL L _
! | Hd = 3
b ” T 1RENINE Sty v, ¢—0 Q3NOZ
I (9 | oser Ql® 1o v i _ R 3NN
¢ | | SE) 3 aNv¥9
A! g CON f2 19 () VH cerid
| | 1) < ! aNIging
¢ _ & F—
@ ¢ __ 6224 _ 2 __ _ o _.mo | % p VA A
LO'9GIQY) 1S .
@ 3 " | 2 atd o Zoc 2\ e6°6GI(WN) 3,95,07.68N(N) go'd
L ! _ R SIYIV 18TF! f = -
— g 130dvd
\ ! A _TQ gl NE,
o @ | | - A‘ “ omon‘\w\w: \."\A e
_ & | ‘ - ¢ \;; ~
¥ 03INOZ _ i “ i »5 - —=
ol gd [ L NAYE
B0 O e e _. Hes
Il 3SVHd | U %\\m\ S Q I~ [ & \p ASY oNIgTIng
® || ﬁv@ qnow,&\\% L8 X F o B G
| ’ 2 :
v | 2,
| 629¢ o Q
= [] | zes L m“ - A%
vey S “ | S v cooe 1 ! <
® S0\ ! 35 cog ol =
. O 2
o SIUY $OTE o _ N | A o C 2 S
0 T308vd n zZ _ 2 N B 2 ¢—20 (d3INOZ R &
| 129¢ E] = N
\v_ | 93 - 3 g ww“
ﬁ “ 029¢ $09¢ i =m
9z9¢ c z0s BN
35w 03 Pt TS t
v3dv \ o $29¢ 219¢ = N %
NOLIN3L3C 2H o oor 3 2 o
43s0d0¥d 0R? o%sE ol S p0cg c 8
i \ o :ﬁ%&w @& .“ pesi(h) IR — :
o? |
X loc§ - ) AT ) m m MMHw
_ £98 : umﬂhwz SR T e.0v.e8N cogs
h J [ Bh6e () - .¢N.mN\.m.m ) 3.80 8088
TP P mmw JON34 JLLSY1d FONVYHO ¥O
' - 9068 3ON3I4 MONS HOIH 8% QAVANVLS
. ol LEYSSH
mmuw odgy avo® e | m“.w SONIMVYG NOLLONYISNOO ¥3d—INOZ
sEer sezy O g) 3..8.07C8N W) _ £ost i
o 5 Sk .06} 15v3Q) m m DM Z ON

NVOIHOIN ‘ALNNOD WVHONI ‘dIHSNMOL NVIQI¥3N
DAY IOATY PUBID) 8|

3avyd

X2 X N DX

SNOLLOT143a LV ¥0
Y3IN3O NO S 1SOd FON3A
N3IQOOM d0 133LS QUVANVLS

404 'd'N'S

..o—.v—| 0- |——

41v0S Ol LON

1IvV13d JON34
NOILO310dd 3J3dL

"ONILYHO MO ONIAYD ANV A8 @3H3IA0D LON ANV ‘ANS IHL OL N3JO ‘INVNdS
ﬁ.._.._mv::ochzs._._.wmoz(._m_“._o<n_woz_._.z<._..._u:._.._.<:._.mu==wm<.__<._|.._cm_1.—"u._.oz )

‘L4HS ION $30Q TVE 100Y LVHL
3sva TIvE 1004 ANNOXY TI0S dNVL

QALVAYDXANN NO TIvE 100¥ 30v1id

"TI0H ONLNVId OLNI (NI 8) WN 00Z NMOQ @104 ONY
S3IV1d 4N04 NI L3INSVE 3¥IM 3HL LD “TivE 100Y
3HL ONNOYY 13NSVE JHIM V HUM Q3ddIHS SI INVId dI

TIvE 100Y 40 JIVH dOL NOYd dving i,
ANV “JdIM ONV 3d0Y “INIML TIV IAOWR

"TIVe 100¥ 40 3903 ANOA3E ” X
YIONVS HIMVA HOIH (NI ¥) NN 001 7=

710S HUM Tive  100Y

3HL 40 dOL 3HL ¥3A0J 1ON 00 “@3L03r3y
38 TIVHS JNEISIA 1ON S| 3dv1d  MNNiL
3HL 3¥3HM S33¥L "TIvE 10OYW 3HL 40

dOl 3HL IV JNEISIA S| 34V MNNYL FHL
IVHL HONS Q3INVId 36 1SN 33Y1 HOV3

0S JUNSSIUd 1004 HUM ATWYI

710S Q3dNYL ¥0

S3dAL TI0S TIV NI S33¥L 8%8 - TIV13A ONIINVId 3381\ __/

ZS1—-%0L  My¥vE 3INId QITIN

IQVHO-TVINLINOLLYOH ‘%00-%0S (ONVS
WNNIG3N OL 3S¥N0J "%0C-%EZ 110SdOL

ANY0T 40 ONILSISNOD XIN ONLLNVId
¥V HUM 310H ONILNVId TIlNOVE

"SIYE30 NOLLONYLSNOD
40 33ud 0S ILUS 9NUSIXT

'ONILNYTd M3LV SYVIA TIWHL

40 ANNININ V ¥04 T3u4-Q3IM
HOTNW 3HL NIVINIVA “NNNL

UL HUM LOVINOD NI HOINN 30V1d
ON 00 "HOINA (NI 9) WW 0SL

('NI 8) NN 00z <08

ONINIVYA ATMOTS NI YIHOIH

7 1
[ERHERE)T I
"NIN “Nvid

ONIY HOINW

xv4 9156-6¢ (£12)
LI¥6-SSE (£12)

17819 T ‘NOVINVHO
NG ANOHINV ISIM 00|

JNLINDPOBYY 4O ALZINOS TVNOLLVNYALNI

__n_L .w#xzsu 00z} _

(NI 2-1) NN 06-GZ ¥0 3aV¥9
0L HSN14 TvE 100N 40 dOL 135

‘318ISS0d

Y3A3 N3HM 3US 3HL Lv HINON 30vi
DL 33M1 3LVI0N ANV ‘AMISMNN 3HL

NI 3341 3HL 40 3QIS HIMON 3HL MdvA

"NMONMNN

S| AJISUNN 1V NOLLVINIHO NNNUL NIHM
4O 1031IHOYY 3dVOSANYT JHL 40 TVAQYddY
3HL NOdN ATNO SHNNYL I3UL JViM

A0S AVIO LIM

0 AGNYS AM3A SI TIvE L0OY dl ¥0 SYauy
ANIM HOIH NI ¥O LOILIHOMY 3dVOSANY1 3FHL
40 TVAO¥ddY 3HL NOdN AINO S3F¥L VLS

"NMOY¥D JHL 40 3903 3FHL OL ONALX3

1IVHL S3HONVYE 40 SN TYNINY3L JHL
JAONFY L1ON 00 'MIAIMOH ‘GINNUd 38 AVN
SIHONWNE MMALYT ONV SOIML MOIRELNI JNOS
"SIHONVYE Qv3a HO NINONE ANV ‘S¥Iav31
INVNINOG—0D ‘SHNIM ¥3IA0SSO¥D ATNO NN
ONUNVTd LV 3341 3HL 3NMId ATIAVIH 1ON 00

JINLINON0ERV 40

ALFI)0S TVNOILVNYALNI




17V°S8SCE 9 40 V9 133Hs
MIENNN 801 | YY/TS A8 MdomM 73l W0 'SgoY® WO04}S21J4)o
- - /6%$G "ON JOASAINS |DUOISSS404d
MIY 'N¥L '€¢ NoILO3S 4SS A8 NMVHd IVNIA d3INDIS 8L02/L2/L0 ”QO_\/_ JO 1D|d JO 21p(Q WIoJ1Sald{ "y Yol3
- - . - NIANW
NOD'SEIN MMM SNOILVOI4ILY3D 8102/52/0 40 84N2 40 MOVE 40 HLI¥ON G°ZL “ANNIAV d3IAIY
L¥08—6£E—LIS XVd +10L—6£E—LIS "Hd o d31vadn ANVYD 8¥vI# OL 3IAINA 1IVHJSY 40 3903 LSV3
ovesy 1N _LLITSVH Qvod ._.._.u._mw_._ St by AMVYNINN3Yd  |8102/£1/+0 ‘810C ‘C7 YOJDW UO paie|dWod SDM MJOMPJely Syl "J08JoU} Y o|qDl JO 6| pup 8| 40 1SV3 ,0Z '310d ALMILN 30IS HLNOS "IVN Md
ONLIANNS ANV * y ‘1 ‘9L ‘vl ‘el ‘POL ‘B ‘8@ 9L ‘19 ‘P/L ‘PQ ‘G ‘v ‘© ‘T ‘I Sw8}| S8pnoul pup ‘SSN Pup Y1y Ag psiydopp pup (88QAVN) £6°C/8 = ‘A313 Z# MIVNHON3g
aw owzwoa YN S8 SININWOO - | SNOISIA3S poys!|qoyse Ajjuiof | ‘sAeAing oIl PUDT SJSN/VLTY 40} Sjuswaunbey [I0}9Q PJOPUDIS WNWIUIN, 9107 U} UM
20UDPJOOOD Ul opDW 2JoM PasDg S| )} ydiym uo Aaains oy} pup ypjd Jo dow siyy Ipyy A}13J4ed o) s) siyj ‘avod T1amM0d ® JNNIAY H3IAIY
ANVY9 40 INVHAVND 1SVIHLYON ‘INVHAAH 3¥I4
:subissD puD ‘sJ0SS800NS ‘S8IDI|IHID JIdY} 4O AUD 0} pup “IVIONVNI4 WO SD ssauisng LMIP3, NI 3, ¥3ANN ‘1109 JONVI4 LSVIHLYON
Buiop “ONI ‘SIOIAYIS TVIONVNIIL LIAIYOIMINY pup Aupdwo)d Ajupiong o3I JDMS}S DT ‘WOXIM 9V o] (88GAVN) 9¥'G/8 = ‘AF13 I# MYVWHONIS
‘NOILVOI4IL &30 U R OANEE
¥G'698 = 'AJT3I AANS SHIVIANHONIY

6G'698 = 'ANI MS d0d . Cl

GZ'¢L8 = 'AJ13 NI
Zol# NISVE HOLVO

‘20UDJNSU| A}1IgDIT |DUOISSS}0Jd S814IDD OU| Sg3M 07 W8y

‘UosJay UMOYS S| jUsLWSSDd
PIDS  “JUSWIIWWOD 331} papiroid pIDS JO ||—g 2|npaydS Ul umoys suolydsoxs oy} Jad

|2oJpd 108/gns sy} suspJng puD S}ljausg IDY} juswasps ADMaAlIp julof D sl aJay| :f| W8} £9°998 = "AJ1d dANS

v [98 = 'ANI M d0¥ Gl

‘seluppunoq Aysedoud ayy uIyyIm g 0} paullIs}ep SJ9M SPUD|}@mM ON d355303d dvd OO0l 3did 3 MLY ‘NYL ‘©Z NOILD3S
‘QL0Z ‘Y7 UOJIDN UO ‘DT ‘SPUDjIOM XJDWN AQ pele|dwod SDM UOIIDBUIeP PUD[IeM Y Q| Wa}| m_m_mmm_ou._m_m,w_w,mn_w OIO._.>W..__m___m_n_ _\,w.__w__ Y3ANY0D ku\s_._gowﬁ
. lOl# NISVE HOLVO T
sJipdaJ JO UOI}ONJISUOD 3|DMBPIS JO }88J}S }jU208J JO —~
‘saul] Aom Jo 1ybi 19o43s Ul sebupbyo pesodoud JO 2OUSPIAG S|GDAISSCO OU S| aJay| :/| W8}y . . T
8C'698 = 'ANI M d0d¥ .Cl «.\s.o _
‘SYIUOWI JUSD8J UIY}IM suolyippd Buip|ing Y918 = AT NIH S ~
JO ‘UoilonJISuUOS BuIp|iNng ‘YJom BUIAOW U}uDd JO 90USPIAS ©|GDAJSSQO OU S| aJay] :Q| Wa)| 00l# NISVE HOLVYO S
-_— ©
‘dow AsAns sy} UO UMOUS 4| W) SJIHOLNIANI d3M3S R 3, ] #
Mg, 2
‘dow A8AJNS 8y} UO UMOUS :¢] Wa}| - =
0o
"9}1IS—UO0 S||pm AyJpd ou eJD BJdy| :DQ| W8} // % \
\ (SNvd yadf> |
g| :seopdg HBupBJUD4 8}IS—UO |DIO]| \ NIV 30404
| :seopdg bBujdpd pa|gpsiq ~ \
G| :seopdg bBupupg Jp|nboy O
Buripyg g woy|
‘dow A8AJNS 8y} UO UMOYS :Q Wa}|
/
‘dow A8AJNS @Y} UO UMOUS D/ W8} e
"uosJay umoys pup 9|gpiyo|d sup ‘jpoJpd ssouo ‘z/0|L 9bpd ‘6/ZS 40417 -
'dow AoAUns By} UO UMOYS :|q/ WS} Ul pPapJ0daJ 1UsWaa4by ADMBAIIQ JUIOP Ul YlJO) 189S SIUSWSSDS pPuUD SUOISIAOJD ‘SUOIIIPUOD ‘SWJD| 9| WI}| 3 2,01 39Vd
‘6/2¢ 34N
"dow AsAins 8y} UO UMOYS D/ WSY| "UOSJBY UMOUYS 10U 840JoJdy} ‘Juswinoop H._W/ﬂ_;w\_//___wm T
pIDS Ul papiroid s) uondiuosep ou 1ng ‘9 8bpg ‘YWE/ J2QIT Ul JUSWNDOP S82USJSLed ‘|904Dpd SS0JD
'J9}}e| pIps ul palsi| aJem Ajuedoud ey} Joj sxopQ}es pauinbeu Abw ‘z| 9bpg ‘¢/ J2QI7 Ul papJodad wbybu| jo A1uno) syl 4O JOADS Ul ADM O 1ybly JO 9sSDa|ey G| Wa}| _y8— A
wnwiulw oN ‘Je)}e| pips Jad paysl| spm saopds bBuupd G| Jo Jequinu wWnwiulw Y Q107 - \
‘Gz AInp pajpop ‘diysumo] upiplepy ‘Buiuupld % juswdojers Ajunwilo)/Jeuub|d jup}sISsy "UOSJaY UMOYS 10U aJojoJay) ‘o|qibajl SsI 1uswnoop ‘jooJpd SSO0UD —~
‘Ubwdoby)y yyey wody jusld Aq papirodd Jsyys| b Jed g—) pauoz s| [92JDd DG WY Aow ‘g|G 9bpg ‘cg Jag] ul papJodad woybu| Jo A1uno) Byl JO JOADS Ul ADM 4O 1ybly JO 9SDaRY 4| Wa)| = M
= @
Z
‘dow AsAins syy U0 UMOUS G WISY| "uoaJay UMoys pup o|gpiyold si ‘jeoupd singp ‘z/| 9bbg ‘|| J49gI7 Ul pPapJodau 8 Wnnnuu
upbIyoIN JO 931P1S 9y} JO Jauolssiwwo) AbmybiH 91P1S Sy} JO JOADS Ul ADM 4O 1yDIy JO 9sSDajoy ¢ wWa}| = =
(393} aupnbs G/$°97) 240V 090 F Way _ = 13 M
"uosJay umoys pup 9|gpiyo|d si ‘jeound singp ‘4 8bpbd ‘|| 49917 Ul pPopJ0ISI &) e ) | @ %__H
"LL0Z ‘9l 1snbny peipbp ‘Q B6SL0 $6009Z ON |2upd Ayunwiwo) ‘upbiyoiy ‘A3uno) woybuj upbIyoIN JO 931P1S 9y} JO Jauolssiwwo) AbmybiH 91P1S Sy} JO JOADS Ul ADM 4O 1yDiy JO 9spajey :Z| wal| B =43P 1= ~
‘UbIplJe o diysumo| Js14DpyD Syl Jo) dDpy 91Dy S90UDJNSU| POO|4 ‘wDJbOoUd 92UDPJINSU| POO|4 S 3 1. [~ M Py
IDUOIIDN @Y} 0) BulpJodoD ‘UID|dpPoOo|) 80UDYD [DNUUD %Z'0 @Y} 8pISINo sbaup ‘ X, 8uoz pool4 (8107 ‘Sl eunp pepp ‘6Z00SS0008L ON juswijwwo) ‘Aupdwo) Ajupipng o3| 34omelS Aq pepiroud sy) M ooy G 1Z£ mO
ulyim Ajpdnnus sal| Ajasedouad siyy ‘Ajuo bujiold ojydoub pup uoiypoo| dow papds Ag ¢ wWal| SNOILdIDXT 1T NOILD3S ‘g J1NA3ADS Z %m/\\/%_u ’ . m “aqu
e z6yI# 1> O
®
‘$988F IN ‘SOWSMO ‘ONUSAY JBALY puplt9 Z6% | Ajuedoud psheains oy} JO SSeuppy g WY "AUD JI SUOJ1D1J1SSJ4 PUD S1uUBWISPa ||P 01 1939[gns |9oJpd pips ‘Apm—jo—1ybis ojgnd sp asn ONIgTiNg - %‘ (M\
ul Appussaud ssa| JO 240w 2J4oD | |'0 Pulpnjoul !sss| JO sJow s840D0 Q90 Dbuluibiuoo |soJdpd pips buluuibaq %
‘dow AeAJns 8y} U0 UMOYS 1| Wisy| 40 julod By} 0} 399y 06°¢Gl dull }SOM PIps Dbuop M, 8Z.61.00N S0USY} BUl| }SSM PIDS 0} 1994 00'8G| “GAY MIAIY ONVYO 991
SINIGAN3FIINO3FY [V, J19GVL — AIAINS F1LIL ANV SdASN/ V1V aul| AlJeyrdoN pips buolp M,.9G,6G.9/N 22UdY} BNUBAY JSAIY puDJS JO dul| Abm—jo—3ybla AjuaylJdoN ay3 ONI “LNIWLSIANI
0} 189} |£'68l M,6G,21.00S 8oUsU} 488} £G'GGL 3,9G,0%.68N @ousyy ‘uopduosep siyy jo bujuuibaq jo juod SAVOHSSO8I ooz Y X e
9}IS Uo saijliyn MJow SY} O} 1994 G|'Ql8 JO SOUDISIP D ¢Z UOI}DSS PIDS JO Sull 3sopm Sy} buop 3 87 .61.00S 9oUSY} [UOI}OSS ww AW \.| LHOBA 4 s
0} Pa}OD}IUOD J0U SDM 9|J SSIN 'UOI}ONIISUOD Joj asn 0} Jold saljioyino sjplidoiddo sy pIDS JO JBUJIOD /| 1S9p oY) 1p DBulouswwo) :sp paquossp [9oJ4pd pips Jo Auppunog pakseAins ayy ‘UbbBIYdIN =
AQ plaly @y} Ul uonpboljlJeA 0} 10afgns sI pup ‘e|gissod aJdaym ‘suolypasesqgo pjal) buiyioddns “Ayunoy woybu ‘diysumo] UDIPLIBN ‘MLY ‘N¥L ‘©Z UONRD3S JO /| }SSMUINOS Sy} Ul pupb| jo |9oupd vy BN
WwoJ} pup spJooal olgnd 9|gD|IDAD WOJ) PauiD}go SDM UMOUS SD UolDWJoUl AYIIIN °6 ' o ’ ’ L
2107 b7 UOID UO posiDu (uondiuossp papiaoid 8yl sb pup| JO [9040d BWDS 8y} $9QIOSep Uol1dlIosep _omuw_ Buimojjos ay]) H *.L l/x/ﬁolwo\ HXH .L* b__m_v ho.@m_znm{u?v // \_ ....\ﬂ.m.o.a
SD D77 ‘SpPUPpReM XJDN AQ paljljuspl sidequinu bpy Jad sup UMOYS S88J) ||ID JO) S|2gpT g -JJAIAINS SV W crg— 3 .m,m.mm_g_v J:@@.PY@@ZAEV /R
~ / - H / / \ /
‘PDOY [|oMOd 21|gnd puD BNUBAY JBAlY pupli oljgnd 0) SS800D 100lIp SDY [904Dd “/ ‘butuuibag o quiod sy} 03 1839} 8GL IsaM //v@ 1 \\ ‘Q N J /oy /]
sea4bap // YldoN S2uayl ‘buluuibag jo juiod syl wod) 1994 gG| 1uiod D b ApMYblH PIPS JO QUl| YIJON /\)/ [ | ¥ 8 / & V A /
‘uoaJoy °UY} 0} 193} 88| YINoS 8dusy} ‘388) /(0'9G| ISDJ SdUsy} 188} 89'CGl YJJON Sdusy) ‘UOl}O8S pIbS JO aul| -~/ \)(3%0._%% «%/ ! am % < \\ A
umoys so 1deoxe ‘spup| bBuiuiofpp ojuo Ayuedoud 108lgns ayy wod) Jo ‘spup| Buiuiolp ISSM 9y} pub gl ‘m.D,\Ao;r_,@_I 4O dul| AlUsYpION Sy} 4O UOI}OSsJISUl SY} 30 buluuibaq sp paguosep ‘upipla / & Y N%\\sooz_\s\ \ & oouo\ / s\m
woJ) Aysedoud 108[gns ayy 0JUO SIUBSWIYDODOJOUS |DIUSYOd B|QDAJISSCO OU 24D aJ4dy| ‘9 Jo diysumol ‘MLY ‘NyL ‘€g UOI}08S 4O /| }SOMYINOS SU} 4O /| }SOMYMION Sy} o pipd 3oyl :¢ [9940d /o hiﬂ \\ b % o \% .wﬁ
Iy s~ — = g 90°c.8 2 /s ..
'soul| Ayuedoud ey} bBulysigpyse Joj pesn ©g 0} aJp suolsuswip i} buip|ing oN g (810Z ‘Gl aunp peIpp ‘6Z00S£0008L ON juswiwwo) ‘Aupdwod Ajupiong 83l }Jomals Aq papiroud m|<v N%wmw o MWOONIM =34 ' / \ / \\9 ol
b =S Oy
‘NOILdI¥OS3a vOI1 -~ o £/ \oB/ avoy TIIMOd ¥89% *
"(88AAVN) 8861 4O WNIDJ [DOIJSA UDDIUBWY UJJON 24D SUONDABID |IY '} A Iy aNIgTINg 33LSNYL ‘Y8 113X038
| PRVAR . M MOIY303YS
'JO9J2Y) S|DWIOSP pUD 1834 Ul 24D SUOISUBWIP |IY ¢ / 7 / Wx @mw_! 4 \
[ PR S J
‘S°Y'0°D buisub] oy} WOl pauIDIgO SUOIID8JJ0D BUISN SUOJIDAISS]O LHOMT aNNoY9 = > m
Sd9 wod) pauipygo sbuupag pib suoz yinog aup|d 93PS upbiyoly eJo sbulpaqg ||y ‘pajou _ _ 5
9SIMJOY}O SSO|UN paJnspbaWl puD pJodas 24D A9AJNS By} UO SaoUDISIp pup sbulpsqg ||IV 7 1LNO4SNMOQ = &0 3341 SNOY34INOD = M\\ww \W)_m
g doud £ LINN ONINOILIANOD dIV = © 3341 SNONAIo3d = me 5 H
‘Q10Z YOJDWN Ul pawiojled uomplaly wod) padodeid AsAUng "esn oibipawwll Jiay)y Joy _ . _ ol%
A|2|0S pspusjul S| puD UO2JaY pawDU s313Jod ay) JO UOIOSJIp 9y} ID appw som upid siyl | 1S0d = S3dM QVIHIINO = — —03— — Q18
NOIS = — dIM3S ANYOLS = - Mw S
'S3LON S,d0AJAINS TIIM ONIMOLINOW = ® ONVHY3IA0 ONIQTING = ————————————~ gu_m
m
TaIm = = NOILVATTI dNOLNOD ONILSIXT = —~,z
Z|o
d313IN SVYO = B NOILVATTI 1OdS ONILSIX3 = =S
—_ | O
.06 .09 0¢ .0 J1VOS ON Y3L3IN OI¥1033 = El M03a = ol
7 dviW NOILVOOT VLS3d3d ALILN = X J3AVYO = al<
. = = 1
P JdM ANO = — J134ONOD = _m
0f = L JIWVOS 2 310d LHOI = x LIVHdSY = | . &
m 310d ALITILN = o JON34 = MLY ‘N¥L ‘€2 zo:oum&
I S Y3INY0O ¥/1 1SIM
a = JANTIVA = o JF1vOS OL LON 3JONVLSIA = N
. S INVHOAH 3JdId = » JNIM 4330 =
Oy NOLTINVH NISYEHOLVD = @ (310N SV NOdI dNNO4d = O
JFTOHNVI FOVNIVIA = © dvO HLIM ¥va .2/l 13S = ®

AN3931

79887 I ‘SOWHEMO ‘ANNIAV JAAId ANVID 2671,
AJAYNS ATLIL ANVT SdSN/V.ITV

dy 113mMod




1V ¥8S¢6 9 40 89 133HS
MIENNN 801 | YY/TS A8 MdomM 73l
: : W00 SQoY@ W0J}Sa14) T
MLY 'N¥Ll '€C NoILO3S 4SS AS NMY¥A IVYNI4 Q3INDIS 810Z/.2/L0 /B6yeG ON JOKOAING [DUOISSa10 g — /
0086—18L—69Z ‘Ud — 92440 IIPYSION W_M_Hn_zw_\m,___w_,wm 8102/12/10 :dD 4O 1D|d JO 8IDQ  WOJISBlH Y o] — —_
. . (SNV1d ¥3d) —
NOD'SE3X' MMM SNOILYOI4IL¥30
LY08—6£E—LIS XV ¥10L—6££—LIS "Hd A a3Lvadn 8loz/s2/.0 z&zz@ommmw_ /
ov88y IN 1131SVH "aQvod ._.._.m._m.<_._ gilie ANYNINMING 8102/L1/%0
ONAIAYNS ONVT  ° . .
awv onemnona NI SEIN SLNIWAOO | SNOISIAZY . ... '8l0C ‘cC YION U0 p333|dWOD SDM SIOMPIDY
oYl Jo9J49y} V dI|9PL O g pub 8L /L 9l vl ¢l POl 6 8 9L 'l9L BL P9 G ¥ ¢ ¢ | SWs}| sopnoul pub ‘S4SN

puo v17y Aq psidopp pup paysijgpiss Apuol | ‘sAeaung spil PupT SJSN/VLIV J0) Sjuswsiinbsy [1D}9Q PIPPUDIS WNWIUIN,

/ (t— ML ‘N¥1 ‘€Z NOILO3S
9107 2Y} Y}IM 20UDPIODOD U] 9pDW aJom Paspqg S| ) ydiym uo Aaains ayy pup ipjd Jo dow siyy Ipyy A}13J4ed o) s| siy| ZGMDE\Q . SINY0S LSIMHLNOS
4
:subissp pup ‘sJ0SS200NS ‘S8DI|IHD JIdY} JOo AUD O} pup “IVIONVNIA /@oz/vmo " g
WO spb ssauisng buiop “ONI ‘S3IOIAYIS TVIONVYNIIS LIA3FYOINIAY pup Aupdwoyd Ajubipng o}l }OMBYS (DT ‘WOXIM OV OL ézmo
-NOILVOIdIL&§30 - Ap
‘UOBJaY UMOYS 24D ABAJNS jUs4inD AQ PosO|SIp SD SWa}| :g| Wa)| ~
o
Sl
. . . ‘uoaJay umoys pup 9|gpyyo|d | =
SoUDJNSUl AJIIGPIT [DUOISSD404d SOLUDO "OUl SEIM 0T W3 240 ‘|ooJ4pd sso4d ‘Z/0| obpd ‘6/Z¢ JoQi7 ul pepJodad juswaslby Abmanliq /] ; | m
‘U0SJSY UMOUS S| JUSWSSDS JUIOP Ul U}JO) }8S S}USLUBSD PUD SUOISIAOJD ‘SUOI}IPUOD ‘SWJ| /| Wa}| aNod m\\\\ o % \m \ \ | <
PIDS  "JUSWIIWIWOD 331} Papianocid pIDS JO ||—g 2|NpPaydS Ul umoys suol}deoxs syl Jod ) ) 2 &/ =t —— ;] >
|[ooJpd 108[gNs 2y} SuUSPJNG PUD S}IJOUSQ IDY} 1USWSSDS ADMBAIIP U0l D S| 2Jay| 6] Wa}| . . oS ey UMOUS pub o_Qoio_o_ Sl 19940d $9880.0 o L3 mm / e ro &
2$9 ebpd ‘/ZLL Jeqi] ul peploded—eld pup ¢z 9bpd ‘/Z|L J4oqI] Ul papiods %e%w\&\ <[l [ 2D | oS
'selopunog Ajiedosd syl UIYIIM ©G O} PIUILWIISIEP 249M SPUD|}®M ON 1oL3sIg 9bouIDIg S[elUDQ BU} JO JOADS Ul JUSWISSDI UIDJQ 4O JUDID 9| Wey 5\\\%\8 7 == \ _ ’
. 13 3 ,. 1 i i . H \ ] (] AN ZZG /
Q107 ‘2 Y2J4DN UO ‘DT ‘SpPup;Iopm XJDWN AQ pola|dwiod sSDM UOIIDBUIPP PUD|IaM Y Q] WSl ‘UOBJBY UMOUS }0U 21040Joy} W/l[“\\“\\ /M__Mw , |
‘'sJIpdaJ JO UOI}ONJISUOD X|DMSPIS JO 1994}S 1USD8J JO JUBLINOOP pIDS Ul papiaold s| Londiiosap ou Inq ‘9 8bbd ‘HWgL J8qIT U/\\[\\// \wwm oovM
‘soul] Aom Jo 1ybld 18843 Ul sebupbyo pesodoud JO S0USPIAS B|GDAJISSJO OU S| SJay| /| W} Ul JUSWINOOP S80USJ3J8Y ‘[904bd sso4o Apw ‘Z) obpd ‘gz Jeqn ul wov\_ooog / MH% /° =
wpybu| jo A3uno) ay) jO JOAD) Ul ADM JO 1ybly O 8sDo|ey G| Wel| - / Qom / J/ %
@
'SYjuoOwW Jusd34 UIYYIM suolyippp buipjing . o / \m [ =
JO ‘Uol3onJisuod buip|ing ‘YJom BulAOW Y}JDS JO SDUSPIAS 9|gDAJISSCO OU S| 2J9Yy| 9| Wa}| ) ) . coot_ws.c\so% you 2Jojslaly S | -/ \ V_:NJ
2|1q1bg1 w_ ucormsooo [2oJ4pd sS0UD xo;» 61G @@O@n_ ¢g Joqgl] ul papJodad \ o y / > bo.mf@t @Amgc o
: ks 3
‘dow AaAUns SU} U0 UMOUS 4| Waj| woybu| jo Ajuno)y 8yj jO JOAD) Ul ADM JO 1YDIY JO 8SD3[oY | W3} oow._;._,\.m / \\ N/ — /\\ Wa \\\Rm///// e Uvoy jm\_\_oMNWAw«& M
‘dow A9AJNS 8Yl UO UMOYS | Wal . _ UOSI3Y UMOYS pud 9|qp}0ld S| ‘[9040d S3ngD \H \?@ : - M 7 T~ K /m/m; M
TLL 8bpd ‘|| J4oq] ul papJodas UDDIYDIN JO 9}D}S SU} JO JSUOISSIWILLIOD \\ d 9v9¢ 7 = P & 2.0l 39vd W
51/S_U0 S[|pM A1UDd OU BJD BJBYL DOL Wol| AomMyBiH 21D1S oyl 1O JOADS Ul ADM 10 1yBly 1o osDs|sy :¢| Wal| \\ \¢wm shoe \\ mn - 62s¢ ;:mﬁw%gw_\m__m_z_m |
. , / z 7 3sn INIOP e
0 :s990dg BUpDY 9)S—UO D10 , . ‘uoaJay umoys pup s|gpyyo|d si ‘jeoupnd J /zn_mp_m o z / Q
0 :5550dS BupDg Po|AoSI] syngp ‘7 ebbd ‘|| J49QI7 Ul peapJooald UDDBIYDOIN JO 93DIS By} JO JSUOISSIWWOYD N N <o AV B e/ = I ©
0 :s90pds Buppog Jojnbay AomMybBIH 21D}S oy} Jo JoADy Ul Abm JO Yubly jo espsjey iZ| Wy _ | | P | eVvee \\ \\\ ///(IET\LM e - \ M
:buipg 5 wey . ) , | | \ | / ~ M J N
(810¢ ‘Iz A4oniged peIop ‘0£00S£0008! ‘ | *mww . / R = y 3
‘dow AoAJNsS oy} UO UMOUS g W)l "'ON juswiwwo) ‘Aupdwo) Ayupiongy syl 1Jome)ls Ag pepiaoud sy) _\ \ \ 1998 /ﬁ \\ /M \\ 66 — LHOIFH \mwmf _m
_ o 2 \// 7 1
‘dow AsaAJns By} UO UMOYS 0/ Wa}| / | / // 259 o 5 / o_\.w\ \ _ /
‘AUD }I SUOI}DJJ}S8J pUD S}UBWIBSDD /f \ \ f < / \ { ..won — ' ~
‘dow ABAJNS 9yl UO UMOYS :|q/ Wal| [o 0} 109[gns |9oJpd pIDS !SS3| JO 2JoW S2JoD /g'Z buluipbjuod |9o4pd pips ~ \ / / \ / / mﬁpwzmm.__mm__@vw \ =
butuuibaqg jo julod sy} 03 1894 Z¥'gee dull AsyoN pios buopp m 9G,6G.9ZN _ \ , \ / - / \ 3 5o b 5
‘dow AeAuns By} UO UMOYS D/ WS} 90UBY} ‘aul| AlJBYIION PIPS O} 3199} GG'CH¥ 3,./G,.G4.00S 90UBY} 199} $Z°GTC = \ / \ coot / vige \i% | / orcs O o / S
) 5 < q ) 3,.1C.0¥.28N 20Uy} 3984 |6°GZE 3,.6G,CL.OON 20oUsyy tuoidliossp siyy jo a3Hs R %_//@,@ \ | /\ 98" | _Qu / / _— / =375 N,
paJinbaJ sp JsJnsul ayy AQ popiAoJd 10U SDM UOIIDWIOLUI XODQleS :gQ Wa}| Bujulibag Jo julod ayy O} 198} 00'8S| OUl| AlIBYION PIDS BUOD 3.9G.6G.9/S 9l m_ o / “ / A\f :\\ o \\ 971l — LHOEH N mm
. . 20UBY} ‘9NUBAY JBAlY PUDJ9 JO dul] Abm—jo—1ybiu AjJsylJoN 2y) 0} 198 o o | — : m ~
dow AsSAJUns Sy} UO UMOYS G Wad}| GO'$96 JO @0UDISIP D ¢Z UOI108S PIPS JO aul| 1sepm 8yl Buop 3 .87,61.00S m 4 _o_m v._o \ \)/4//\}/ / ] .mtz = /M\
(300} 2.onbs goyiGZL) SeUOV /8T b Wojl 90UaY} :UOI}O8S PIDS JO J9UJOD /| 3ISOpm 2y} 3D Bulouswwo) :sb paqliosep m \_ | w %Q \@///\ // = S = o
[ooJdpd pips jo AJppunoqg paksAldns ayy ‘upbiyoiy ‘Aruno) woybu| ‘diysumo | e \.WJ_ : _ | / \Aﬁé\ \\ / / 671 4 % <
‘ . . F.o = Ol $
“L10Z ‘9l ysnbny peipp ‘g 6510 £6009Z ON [PUDd Ayunwwoy ‘UpbBiyoly A3unody woybul UDIPLIBN “"MLY ‘NPL 'SC UOROSS 4O /1 3SOMUINOS oU3 Ul pup| 40 [2040d Y < /| \\w@\\ == | / W.om 09) © |
‘upbiplJeN 4o diysumo| Joydby) ay) Joj dopy 91Dy oupINSU| poo|q ‘wpaboid eouUpINSU|l POO|4 g g W_/ / | \ /) e ® NOLLVATTS ALG/SNOLNGD SI 22(y) \\ s . o]
IDUOIYDN oy} 0} BuipJoooD ‘UiD|dPOOl} SOUDYUD [DNUUD %Z°0 ©Y} 9PIS}NO SDaUD “ X 9U0Z Poo|4 (uonrdosep papinod AN | \\\iwl ONNOW 40 WOLLOS ~ NMOHS 1Sv3) |~ mme — m
ulyym Ajpainue sall Ayiaedoud siyy ‘Ajuo bunnyold oiydolsb pup uolpoo| dow pa|pds Ag ¢ wa)| Sy} SP pup| jo [9oJpd SWDS By} $9quIOSap uol1dluosap |pba| buimoljo) ay]) ol \ \\\\\\\\\l&mmf j 3avyo ﬁmnrmvz@zﬁo.._%w%m 1S3m(y) _\ .\vm_ — LHOIEH ¢99¢ /M F =
: _ : r S| 3AV ¥InRE anv, 267 1T =
7988+ GIAIAGNS SV Nyv8 g 7 vi s ) FLE PE 1 7 —~bso_ Rﬁmﬁw ¥ 0Tl szzl_\élo%ﬁo@ &
[N ‘SOWdXQ ‘@nuUdAY JaAlY PUDJI9 Q/+| % 9/t Ardodoud pakaains oyl JO S8SSaUppy g Wal| ‘Buiuuibaq /w_ | / ///,mu,\ | \\ mu //// o — X - X = .M_
Jo juiod syl o3} Apm Jo 1yblJ pIDS UO 183} ZTH'GY| 1SS\ Se1nulw /7 saa4bap 8 | | /) / /ﬁ@ GGo¢ 6C¥/8 ~ ~ > oS _ a
d . . ] 2 |/ N / N uh_n_\lk 199 ™~ __ ~ _ m ) _fug
DW ASAJNS BYl UO UMOUS :| Wal| 9/ YlJON 20UsYy} .M¢WE ApmybiH pips jo Apm Jo 1ybid syl 01 193} |7 BSY iy _ | st o.e \ e . /\ ~ = =
1SDJ |G S9nuiw (0 Sea4bop OO0 YinoS SouUsy) 1994 09°'6T| ISP SPUODSS (QF gi _ A O £ = . s —~ = Z
sejnuIW /¢ seaJbsp ¢8 YJJON 90Uyl 199} GE°9/| 1SOM SPU0DSS |G S81NUIW mN..m,mw = ..>Z_ S d0¥ .¥¢C 571 l_ memmmm/\\ 26*.6\\\ — S3HOV hw/mm_u/ S A_M._o..wvm m 7 mm/\)/ m > m
"9}IS U0 S8I}I|1}N MJDW ¥0 so34bsp 00 UYION 90USY} [}99) g7 }SD3 90USU} 1994 00'80C ISOM ¢£2'¢G8 = 'ANI N d0d .v¢ \\ &l [ _ [ _/r/ / 20 V NYVE \\ I 1304dvd /\W \)(;mﬂ_uﬁn S
0} P910DPIUOD 10U SDM 9|Q SSIN "UCIIONJISUOD Jo) asn 0} Jolud sa)ydoyine aiplidoisddo sy SPU029S |G SIINUIW H( S83.D5p oo U3oN Bousyy Buuubeg jo juiod Buy ¥6°¢98 = 'AJ1I NI 3anaay yaay gaveo svvl & Pt /w\..e B@ = mM.Mw\ / 1 W_
WOJ} PUD SpJo2aJ 2i|gnd S|gD|IDAD WOJ) PauID}gOo SDM UMOYS SD UollDwWJojul AYIlN '6 ooUdY} - o&s 14 oU} JO SUllisjuso oLy Wodl 9bUb 34bL D 4D 399 000§ 1P . . OM ~ ( N / 3 \ / zese [ )=y es— — = &)
paJnspaw ‘cy—N AbmybiH jo aull Aom Jo 3ybli AusyjdoN By} 0} ¢g U0I}O8S 99'¢G8 = ‘ANl S d40¥ V¢ 2 f&é mmw,w = be Pra m?w d MOQNI 5
8102 47 UOIDWN U0 padJDwW PIDS JO SUI| 1SOM 24} UO 199} $9°296 1SOM SPUODISS (0 S2INUIW Q7 Soo4bsp 99'¢G8 = ANl N d2¥ .+¢ / ) __ 59 e BQWMW ” yalks ~ T~ - =aa W 08— N
SD D77 ‘SpPupP|ISM XJDN AQ paljiiuspl sidequinu Bpy Jod ouD UMOYS S88J} [P JO) S|9gpT ‘g 00 WiNos eololy -1SoMm ._ obupy F.ti_oz v UMOL m.N UOlosS 40 \_oc\_oo. v/l 86'898 = 'AJ13 AIY / / P T m \p INZT ( A \\d\p \ Y
}som 2y} 1o bBulouswiwod ‘upbbiyoiy Ayunoy woybuj ‘diysumo] UDIPLIBIN ISOM LOI# FTOHNVA WYOLS / / = - ma&m . -~ o | s /
‘oNUBAY JoAIM PUDI9 o1/gnd 0} SS899D 08I SPY 894Dy /. | obuby ‘YlJON ¥ UMO] ‘©Z uonosS 10 4/| 1S8MUINoS ayy Jo yod 1oyl / / m M/Mw £0c oggc| N\, %// MMMMSM | P \\m <
‘¢ [994bd l¥'198 = ‘ANl MS d0d . ¥¢C S 2cos (14 0s zzz) |\ Y 2o - P _ _\Nm _f° )
"uooJay ¢€G6'¢Ge8 = ANl S d0d . vC = \ OL—Nv31 N MMWW 7 0ese o°
umoys sp 1deoxs ‘spup| bujuiolpp ojuo Aruadoud 109[gns ayi wod) Jo ‘spup| buiuiolp . ‘Bbuiuuibag jo juiod sy} oy \A,o; 40 3ybu pips uo $6°198 = 'ANI 3 dOA C| M s sl .\w a8
woJy Ajuadoud 109[gns syl OlUO SIULWIYDODOJDUS |DIJUS10d 9|gDAJSSQO QU 24D 243Yy| 'Q }99) Q0°¢/ZL ISOM senulw /z soaubep 9/ YyploN ddusyy gy —N Apomybiy pios ScH198 = ANI AN dND .0l = =y % / Y, Flvii
jo Apm Jjo ybi ay) 0} 398} Q0'ROZ ISPJ SPUOOBS |G S8}nuUIW (O soaJbop /908 = ANl N dON :#N = s y, e
'saul| Aysedoud ayy buiysijgoise Joj pasn ag 03} 24D suolsuawip 21} buipjing oN ‘G 00 UYINOS S0UsY} 389} Q0'CC ¥SSM 90Usy} 1938} G6'9/L 1SDJ Spu0odss 66698 = ‘A1 ._.z_w_ % / @%w@\\ /o sleesE ) xo@ | _ME
|G seynulw 0 seaJbap QO Yinog 2ouUsy) {198} $9'GQ| ISPJ SPU0DIS (OF 901# TIOHNVI. WNOLS ‘o Pay e \Cm\ \%@\\
"(88UAVYN) 8861 JO WNIDQ |DDIIIBA UDDLIBWY YJION ©4D SUOIIDASIR ||V ¥ ssjnulw /¢ momt@obomw U}JON 9dUsy} :gg UOI}OsS QU_Om JO 3ull }ssMm suy3 4o o / - //y -
sSb3 sajnuw soaubo JON 190 : ulod b 03} 199 : sD N -
. . ' W_ cowom. OMo nuiu ; mMonmvz i omuwmo_owo. M@c_ucw@o% Lwow mﬁmmayo R G9°¢98 = 'AJ1d dANS A \Am<om TIMOd vB9Y
JO2J2Y] S|DWIOSP PUD }93) Ul 94D SUOISUSWIP ||V ¢ P LS SSiNUIW g P 00 UiON Ui luubeq O Ul Ui . — . > 33ISNYL ¥ 113H038
’ : ’ : 0} aul| Aom jo yybl pips UO 3188} OO'KG| ISPT seynuIW /g seaubap 9/ yinosg ¥6 .wa = .>z_ M dOd .8l 7o MO1¥30344
‘S4°0°D BuisUDT 8y} WOJ) PaUID}IJO SUOI}O8II00 BUISN SUOI}DAISSPO eousLy Aomybiy syy jo sulRIUSO Byy wody 3Bub Jubl D 1p 3994 0°0G 3P 0L Nwwln. ANI 3 dod el @x /\l\T\ -
Sgo WoJy paup}qo sbupeq pLb 8UO7 UINoS auD|d 230}S UDPBIYOIN eJo sbuupeq ||y pejou paJnspaw ‘o —N Apmybiy jo aull Abm Jo 1ybis AjJoyiJoN 2y} 0} ¢Z UOIYOSS G9'298 = ANI m_z. dod . ¥¢ lewm@%\\
SSIMJ2U)10 SS2|UN PaJNsSDaW PuD PJodaJ 9JD ASAJNS SY) UO S80UDISIP pub sbulupbeq ||y °Z PIDS JO BUI| }SSM SU} UO 383} $9°C96 ISOM SPUOISS (O Sd}nulL g ssaubap ¥6°048 = 'AJ13 WM — \oow\ml\\ |
00 Yynos oousy} fssop | obupy ‘YpON § UMOL ‘CZ UOI}DS8S 4O Jaulod /| GOl# NISVE HOLVO —65
‘2107 YOJDWN Ul pawdojiad Muompialy wody paJdpdsad AsAUNg esn 91pIpaWIWI JI9y) JOj }seM 9y} 3o bupuswwoy ‘upbiydiy ‘Ayunod woybuj ‘diysumo] UuDIplBIN ‘ISOM . .
A|2|0S popuUslUl S| PUD UOSJBY PaWDPU Sa)3Jpd Yl 4O UOIIO2JIP 2y} 1D 2pbw som up|d siyl | | obupy ‘YpON $ UMOL ‘¢z UOI}O8S JO 4/| }SBMUINOS sy} jo jpd oyl . 86 mmw.u AF13 dANS %
;] [924Dd £6'¥98 = 'ANI M d0d .81
‘SJ1ON S,dO0AJAENS . . 667¥98 = ANl 3 dOd .8l MIY ‘N¥L ‘€Z NOILO3S
(8102 ‘Lz AJ4onigs4 psipp ‘0£00SS00081 8¥°048 = 'AJ13 NIY YINY0O ¥/ s
"'ON juswijwwo) ‘Aupdwo)d Ajupbiongy s3] 140mMo)S Ag paplaold sy) ¥Ol# NISVE HOLVO
06 09 o 0 31vOS ON ‘NOILdIZ0S3A VO 69798 = 'AJ13 dANS
. . : . dVIN NOILVIOT "INNIAY ¥IAIY ONvyo 06798 = ANl M dO¥ .8l ) _ Vo — B |
40 84N0 40 MOVE 40 HLYON ,G°ZL ‘INNIAV ¥3AIY 08'v98 = 'ANI 3 d0d .8l \@@@ Y \\ O e N INNIAY ¥3AIY ONVYD — - LNOdSNMOA = Ed
ANVYD 8b¥I# OL JAINA LIVHISY 40 3903 1SV3  G8'G98 = 'ANI S dO¥ ,Z) - A T ONVAIVO VNe3d LINN ONINOLLIONOD IV = o 33YL SNOY34INOD = bee
0¢ = I 31voS 40 1SV3 ,0C ‘310d ALMILN 3AIS HLNOS “IIVN Md 6G°048 = 'AF13 AIY g AR Y 1S0d = . 3941 SNONAIDIa = me
8 (88QAVN) £6°CL8 = 'AFT13 Z# MYVYNHON3E COM# NISVE HOLVO P y
3 o . F 72 S NOIS = —e S3IYM QVIHYINO = — —o03— —
5 o ‘avod TIIMOd ® JNNIAV d3AId ¥S'698 = 'AJ13 AANS g S - _ -
2 m ‘ TI3M ONIYJOLINON = dIM3S NYOLS =
M 2 ANVYO 40 LNVHAVNO LSVIHLYON LNVHAAH ¥4 65698 = ‘ANl MS d0¥ .2 ®
2 © MIP3, NI 3. ¥3ANN ‘1708 3FONVI4 1SVIHLYON GZ'Z2/8 = ‘AJ13 NN TIEMm = ® ONVHY3AO ONIdTIING = ———————77—7~~
ay_NOLTINVH (88GAVN) 9¥°G/8 = 'AIT3 l# MYVWHON3g ZOl# NISVE HOLVO d313IN SYO = ] NOILVATTI dNOLNOD ONILSIX3 =
——— JEEEEEEE=—————— = 3 =
SYIVWNHONIE  SIWOINIANT ¥IMIS J,ww“m‘um_w%u_w NOWVAI13 1045 OJZM_N_“M
o = X =
(@]
m m JHM ANO = — J134ONOD =
3 w_ 310d LHOIN = XX 1 IVHdASY =
: 79887 IIN 'SONHIMO0 "HANHAV dHAIY ANVID 8L¥T % 971 T e s
Y
M 66 39 AANTIVA = ® J1vOS OL LON FONVLSId =
N INVHOAH 4 = » INIM d33a =
NISVEHOLVYDO = H @ d31ON SV NOdl dNNO4d =

AJAINS HATLLL ANVT SAdSN/VIIV 51




17V° /6856 9 4009  133s

M3IENNN 801 | MY/TS A8 MdOmM 73l

MLY ‘N¥L ‘€2 Nowo3s 4SS A8 Nmvya
0086—18L—69Z Ud — SO0 IIDYSION N4 G3IN9IS | 8102/£0/80

NOD'SEIN MMM ASVNINI38d
LY0B—BES—LIS XV PIOL—BEE—LIS "Hd a3snay | 8108/ 90/80
Ovésy IN "LLTISVH ‘OvOd LLTISYH 9112 YNNI | 8r0z/20/80
ONAIANNS ONVT .,

awv onmmnona NI SEIN SLNIWNOO | SNOISIAZY

:doy 4o ID|4 JO 831P(Q

'810C ‘9Z SUNP U0 ps}a|dWiod SDM MIOMP[Sl) Syl JOSJSY) Y SIGPL JO 6| PUD g
‘L1 9L L ‘€l ‘POl ‘6 '8 oL 1L ‘DL ‘DY ‘G ¥ ‘¢ ‘T ‘L SWS}| S8pnpuUl pub ‘SASN Pup Y1y Aq psidopp pup
paysiigpse Apuiol | ‘sAeaing sl pup SISN/VLIV 40} Sjuswaiinbsy [ID}9Q PJDPUDIS WNWIUIN, 90T 8Yl Yim

S0UDPJODOD Ul 9pDW 2JaM pPasbqg SI } yoiym uo AaAadns ay)y pup 3ojd Jo dow siy} 1pbyy Aj13ded 03} sI siy|

:subISSD puD ‘SJ0SS800NS ‘S83IDIID JIay} JOo AUD 0} pupb “IVIONVNI4 WO SD ssauisng
buiop “ON| ‘SIOIAYIS TVIONVNIIE LIGIYOIYINY pup Aupdwod Ayupbiong S}iL JUOMSYS D77 ‘WOXIM OV OL

‘NOILVOI4dI1d30

"uosJay UMoys pup a|gpijold
sl ‘|ooJpd singp ‘/ 9bpd ‘|| SPJ0O29Y SNOSUD|SISI Ul papJodas sb Abm—jo—1ybly 9| Wal

"UOSJaY UMOYS }OU 2404249y} ‘|9204pd INgD JO SSOUD
JOU so0p ‘ge| 9bpd ‘|| SPJOO9Y SNOSUD||I9ISIN Ul pPapJdodad sb Abm—jo—1ybly G| wal|

"uoaJay umMoys pup s|gpiold s]
‘904pd sIngp ‘z/| 9bDd ‘|| SPJ022Y SNOSUD|RISIN Ul papJodas sb Abm—Jo—1ybly 4| way|

"UoSJaY UMOYS }OU pPuD 9|gpliojd 10U S| 3} 2404242y} PoglIOSap S| UOIIPO0|
10DX2 OU ‘|9oJ4pd S8SS0J4D ‘G/¢ 9bDJ ‘0G J9QI7 Ul popJodas SD ADM—Jo—1ybly ¢ Wal

"uosJay umMoys pup a|gpijold
sl ‘[ooJpd sessoud /¢ 9bpd /||| 4G Ul POpPJODSS SD JUSWLSDT UIDJ( 7| WS}

(8102 ‘lg aunp
Pe}op ‘B800GSO008L ON Yuswwwoy “Aupdwod Ajupiong o3l 3ome}s Aq pepiroid sy)

-SNOILdJOX4d

‘AUD }I SUOI}DIJ}SOU

puD Sjuswasba ||p 0} 108[gns |90Jpd pIDS (SS9| JO 2JOW S8JOD (0’7 Buluipjuod

|9oJpd pips Buiuuibeq jo julod By} 03} 3994 GO'06L dull AUdYyIoN pips Buoip M, 9G,6G.9/N
9oUay} ‘aul| AlJsypIoON PIDS 0} 3994 9%°0LS I,.8¢,61.00S 9oUsy}y 389 9/°681 3,1¢.07.28N
9oULY} 399 GG'CHY M,./S.SF.00N 9oUsyy fuonduossp siy} jo buiuuibsq jo julod

9y} O} 389} ZH'96% oull AUayydoN pips DBuo|p 3 ,9G 6G.9/S S0USBYY BNUBAY JBALY PUDI)

40 aull Aom—jo—3yblu AudyyIoN 8y} 03} 383} GO'C96 4O SOUDYSIP D g UOI}OSS PIDS JO BUl|
1ssM ayy bBuojp 3,87,61.00S S0USY) ‘UOI}OSS PIDS JO JaUJOD /| 1SSpm Syl 1D Bulouswwo)
'SD paquosap |224pd pIDS JO AJppunog pakaAdns 2yl ‘upbiyoly ‘A1uno) wpybu

‘diysumo] UpIPLBIN ‘MLY ‘NYL ‘CC UOIIISS JO 4 /| 3SOMYINOS ay} ul pup| jo [924od vy

(uonydiiossp
pspiroid ayy sp pup| Jo [904pd SwWDS 8y} s9qossp uonduossp |pbs| buimolo) ay))

‘@3IA3AYNS SV

"ONINNIOFE 40 LNIOd @Y} 0}

199} 76| A|491SOMU}JON 8oUBY) PUD ‘o —\ JO BUl| YJJON By} O} 199} /0G 2ous) pips buop
YynOoS 2oUsY} ‘edUl) D 0} )83} Q6| ISDPJ SoU3Y} 198} BSH YIION 22UBY} ‘©Z UOI}08g JO
SUl| }SOM By} JO IsD3 anp 389 ¢g¥ julod D 1D ¢y— PIDS JO BUl| YpoN ay} uo bBuiuuibaq
sp paquossp (91—Sn Aomybiy Ajswio)) ¢y —N 4O YyjdoN Buik| ‘diysumo]| upiplidy ‘ISom

| 8Bbupy ‘YlON $ UMOL ‘gz UOND8S JO /| 1SemMyInos suy Jo z/| Isem 8y} jo 1uod oy

(8102 ‘lg aunp
Pe}op ‘B800GSO008L "ON yuswwwoy “Aupdwod Ajupiong oyl 3ome}s Aq pepiroid sy)

‘NOIL4IdOS3d VOl

JVOS ON
dVIW NOILVOO1

|

06 09 0¢ 0

0¢ = .1 3OS

dd_MIAHLYON
ay 31god

Gy NOLTIWVH

A\\\N\N\NN\N

dd 113ImMod

40 M4vd vy N

79887 IIN "'SONHMO "INNHAV dHAIY ANVID "M 8F¥T,

W00 SGaX@W04}SaLi}d
/B¥$S "ON JOASAINS |DUOISSSL0.d
WoJ}Saldq "y 213

1HOIT ANNOYO = >
1NOdSNMOA = Ed 3341 SNOY3HINOD
LINN ONINOILIONOD IV = @ 3341 SNONAId3d
1S0d = ° S3YIM AVIHY3EAO
NOIS = —= d3IM3IS WHOLS
T13IM ONIYJOLINOWN = ® ONVHY3AO ONIATING
TIam = ® NOILVATTI dNOLNOD ONILSIX3
d3L3N SVO = ] NOILVATT3 LOdS ONILSIX3
d3L3N DI¥LOTF 13 = @ A03d
V1S3d3d ALMLN = b TIAVHO
JHM AND = — 31340NOD
310d 1LHOIN = X 1IVHJSY
J10d ALINLN = jof 3ON34
NTWVA = ® J1vOS 0L 1ON 3ONV1SId
INVHAAH 34 = » 3ANIT d33d
NISVEHOLVD = H ® J31LON SV NOdl dNNOA
J1OHNVIN FOVNIVYHA = @ dvO HLIM ¥va .2/l 13S

"'90UDJNSU| A31|IgDIT |PUOISS8}04d S8IJJDD "OU| ‘sgey 07 Wa}|

‘Aanins pjaly ayl buizonpuod

3|lym paaJdesqo Jo judl|d Ag papiroid sjuswnoop Jad Abm—jo—siybli JO S}uUBWSSDS JBY)O0
OU aJam aJay] -umoys s] Aysedosd buijingp uol3poo| Abm—jo—31ybld pDOJ 1USID[PY :F] W8}

‘'salippunoq AjJadoud 8y} UIYyM SQ 0} PaulWI9}ep SJ8M SPUD|}@M ON
‘8102 ‘97 aunp uo ‘D77 ‘spupjigpm XJDN AQ pal}e|dwod SDM UOIIDBUIISP PUD[IamM Y Q| Wa}|

'sJiIpdeJ JO UOI}ONJISUOD X|DMBPIS JO }88J}S 1u28J JO
‘soul] Aom jo 1ybis 198J3s ul sebupyo pesodoud Jo BOUSPIAG S|QDAJSSCO OU S| BJaY| /| Wd}

"'SYjuoWw 1Us28J UIY}IM suolippb bulpjing
JO ‘Uuol}onJisuod Bulp|ing ‘jJom DUIAOW Yl}JDd JO 2DUSPIAD 9|gDAJSSGO OU S| 2J4ay| :9| W8}

‘dow A8AJNS 2yl U0 UMOUS 4| Wa}|
"'sanioyino 9yplidouddo ayy Aq
uoIlPDIIIaA 0} 103[gns s) pub Ajuno) wbpybu| Joj buiddpw wa3lsAg uollpwlJolUl 21ydpibosg
auljuo Jad dpw Asauns syl uo umoys s| sallsedoud HBuuiolpp JOJ UOIIDWIOLU| ¢ Wd)|
'9}1IS—U0 s|Ipm Alupd ou 2UD 24ay]| :DQ| Wa}|
0 :s90pdg bupdpd 81S—UO |P1O|
0 :se2opdg bupdpd pa|gpsiqg
Q0 :seopdg bupupd Jpnbay
buping g wey
‘dow A8AJNS By} UO UMOUS g Wal|
‘dow ASAJNS 9yl UO UMOUS :D/ Wd}|
‘dow AsAJns 8y} UO UMOYS |G/ WY
‘dow A89AJNS @Y} U0 UMOYS D/ Wa}|

‘paJinbaJ sp Jaunsul a2y} Ag pepirodd J0U SDM UOIIDWIOJUI %ODJ}aS :DQg Wa)|

"dow A8AJNS 2y} UO UMOUS G Wdl|

(1e9) supnbs gQO‘6R) S840V $0Q'C F Way

'L10Z ‘9l ¥snbny pajop ‘g 6GL0 $6009Z ON [pubd Ajunwiwod ‘upbiyoipy ‘Ayunod woybuj
‘ubiplJely o diysumo| Joydoy) oY)y Joj dpopy 83py 8oupdnsu| poo|{ ‘wplbold 2oUDINSU| POO|4
IDUOIIDN 8y} 0) BulpioooD ‘UIp|dpOOl) 80UDYD [DNUUD %Z'0 SY) SPISINO SDaJD ‘ X, 8Uo7 pool4
ulyym Ajdnuas sai Aysedoud siyy ‘Ajuo buniojd oiydolsb pup uoipoo| dow papas Ag ¢ way|

‘Y9881 |N ‘SOWN(O ‘ONUBAY JoAlY Pupld gpy| Aysododd poaksadns sy) JO sSSaUppy 7 W)

‘dow AaAJns 8y} UO UMOUS :| Wa}|

-SINJWN3HINOJY |V, J18VL — AJAINS JILIL ANV'1 SdSN/ VLTV
"91IS UO S3}]|13N MJDW
0] P®10DlUOD 10U SDM 9|0 SSIN "UOIIONJISUOD Joj asn o) Jold saljlJoyino a3ipludouddop ay)

AQ Pl @y} ul uonbolldeA 01 10algns s| pup ‘s|gissod aJaym ‘suojibadesgo plel} buiysoddns
WwoJ} pup spJodoaJ 2Jjignd 8|gD|IDAD WOJ) paujD}gqo SDM UMOYS SD UOI}DWJoUl A1113N °6

‘'Q10Z ‘9¢ 2unp uo paxJpow
SD D77 ‘SPUD}oM XJDWN AQ paijijuspl sseqwinu boy Jed ouD uMOYs S8eJ) |ID JO) S[EgDT '8

"ONUBAY JBAIY PUDJ9 21ignd 0} SS820D 102JIp SDY [924Dd /

"uoaJay

umoys sp 1deoxa ‘spup| buluio[pp ojuo Ajsedoud 3108[gns sy} wodj Jo ‘spup| bujuiofp

woJ} Aysedoud 31098(gns a2y} 0OJUO SIUBWIYDODOJUOUS [PIIUSIOd B|gDAJSSJO OU 24D 2Jay| ‘9

'soul| Aysadoud ayy bulysijgpise Joj pasn 2g 0} 24D suolsuswip a1} buip|ing oN G
"(38AAVN) 8861 4O WNIpQ [DOIJSA UDDMBUWY YJION 94D SUOIIDASIS |V “f

‘JO9J2Y) S|DWIOSP PUD 1984 Ul 24D SUOISUSWIP ||V ¢

‘S'Y°'0°D buisub] sy} WoJL paUID}IgO SUOI}D84I0D0 DuISn SUOJIDAISSQO

Sd9 woJ) pauipiqo sbuupbsqg plub suoz yinog supb|d 93033 uPBIYDIN 24D sbupeq ||y pajou

9SIMJOY]}O SS3|UN pPaJnsDaW pUD PJodsJ 24D AdAJns 8y} Uo sadupisip pup sbuupsq ||V g

‘810 2unp ul pawdojiad Wiomplaly wouy paJdodsld AoAing osn 93ipIpaWWl 49y} JO)
A|9|0S papusiul S| pub UOSJoY paWDU sal3Jpd 2y} JO UOIIOLJIP 2y} 1D oppbw sbm upjd siyl |

‘SJLON S,d0AFAINS

L6CL8 =

9¥°'GL8 =

AN3931

04°G98 = 'ATF13 dANS
LC°L98 = 'ANI M d0d . GI
8¥°L98 = 'ANI S d0d .CI
le°'£98 = ANl 3 d40d .Gl

0¢'¢/L8 = 'AF13 NI
601# NISVE HOLVO

GC'¢G8 = 'ANI S d0d V¢
£2°¢G8 = 'ANI N d0d .¥¢

¥6°¢98 = 'AJ13 NI
801# FTOHNVYW WYOLS

99°¢G8 = 'ANI S d0d V¢
99'¢G8 = 'ANI N d0d ¢

86898 = 'AJ13 NI
LOI# FTOHNVYN WHOLS

77198 = 'ANI MS d0d . ¥¢C

£G6°¢G8 = 'ANI S d0d V¢
¥6°198 = ‘ANl 3 dOA ¢l

¢¥°198 = ANl 3N dNO Ol

Ly'$G8 = 'ANI N d0d .¥¢
66698 = 'AJ13 NI

901# F1OHNVIA WYOLS
SJIHOLNIANI 4IM3S

ANNIAY H3AIY ANVYO

40 84N0 40 MOvE 40 HLYON ,G°/L
‘ANNIAY Y3AIY ANVYED 8¥vI# OL 3JAINA
1VHJASY 40 3903 1Sv3 40 1SV3

.0Z ‘370d ALIMILN 3AIS HLNOS “TIIVN Md

(88AAVN)

UAERE! Z# MYVWHON3E

‘avod T113mod

% INNIAVY H3IAIY ANVYO 40 LNVYAVND
LSVIHLYON ‘LNVYOAH 3¥14 ‘ MIP3, NI

«Jo 83IANN ‘1708 FONVIS LSVIHLYON

(88AAVN)

UAERE! l# MYVWHON3E

SHYVAHON3H

AHAINS HATLLL ANVT SdSN/VIIV

T

o 60vazH
——d¥0 % dv8

guvoes

F.L79

FlYL

e

vy

QNW,Hw

L0S HLNOS(Y)
9¥°01S 3,8¢.61.00S(N)

mMNWMHHW

wMNWMHwW

£S091#

—

1N 444

dvO ® dvg

JNNIAY 43AI ANVIO
ONV13VO VNd3d
¢l0—10¢—¢¢—¢0—¢0—¢¢

o Am—F
155444

MY ‘N¥l ‘€T NOILO3S
T \ ¥IN¥OO LSIMHLNOS
w\:\ \ Ly Wy
RIE \ S VY %
"o i
(SNY1d ¥3d) 2 — z
NIV 30404 Iy S|
NVS ¥ £ =
61 N
(04]
=
>
(0]
©
0]
©,
GO'C8¥YN
00°'¢8vd
. =
<L m
/“N/ B
¢ V.@ o —
| 3,96 go?(W) 7T XS
— q@@. @Rw m
: 43N ()
L0z , Bmwmoo ALy3 %
W(m a d
3NN3A Voy dm\_\_\_quom s%mm — |8
Y3AIY ONVYD B/YL OL 964 2
"ONI SINIWLSIANI o
SAV0dSS0dO W
SO|—omIMN\yNOINO|mM
3 2
cocy / [A2S S
L c
N
\ i@mmm %
€3 -
/
c0zy ?@NMW m
N
/ s
Si
........ /
...... \
\ S¥9¢
) 9vog
6795
8¥9¢
LOL#
WLS
059¢ mww =
\Seey Ly 95 =
£ [ 7
o
; 4 S
£48 ‘ =
18'6/8 _RNWHWW BQWHW M‘_
= 9 1% =
HSIa zcoL8 |7 - 2S9¢ m
e=—3LMT3LYS =33 M\ =z
. 5 |
Nm Fsi-1HP# g9l | 5
o078 >
NV L . mMMw W
96—LH (
mmuw = NVe0HS [C o coos %_

Lvzh mww
L&y

be OMNWMHWW

@ 03IHS

>
> L£Cl—1H

N

X/XI\ 2

SJ4OV ¥0°¢F
wmmmwww

N§mew

¢MNWMHWW

MMN¢MHH

c ,oﬁmwzg

‘ r m:

JNNIAY d3AIY ONVIO
ONV13VO VNd3d
¢l0—10E€—¢¢—¢0—20—¢¢

LY 39Vd LLLL ¥38N
INIW3ISV3 39VNIVIA G'¢l

[4%44

<| NOILYA3Z13 WLO/¥NOLNOD Sl
g9l (n| ONNOW 40 WOLLOS — NMOHS
. ] 3avy9 SI ANNOW 40 dOL
mm_ (dAL) GNNOW L¥Id
-
0018\ CJ‘_
91'698 K .
2 al CL'G/L8x
=
> < =
— $59¢
“ ~
& g IN
Y NYvg S o 19
7 Sl
O
>
5 €3
o . *
. 9¢9¢ mom
(@]
T2
AV(
~~ m_
Z |+ 8z @
e
312
= 9
Zele Sl
=z |
mhcm N
m./_u £E9¢
Al D
(ON) 8K
B
I 9
.nz . vEL8
o z59¢ 08 ¢e
o .
[ 059¢
| 1e9¢ A
mN.v
wmmmmm
|
| o)

029¢
—
619¢ mmww
leog

| B
8o t@mm%
QHN LS

L6YSGH#
dvd % dve

MLY ‘N¥L ‘€Z NOILD3S
Y¥INYOD ¥/ LSIM




W0l = W91/€ 3105

NOILYAITd 1SV3

| (Y

LOOL 31S AV AQHVMAOOM LLLT

JOVNOIS A31INNOW ONIATING M3N

N
5S1o3d1lIHOdY INIVd ‘WILSAS VIOSYH S413 MAN LY S
SHO1LVAONNI . > VIoSv4 0’1
SAIHVYNOISIA ONIZV1O d3LVINSNI I-MOT ub HLIM /@

_ w_ w wm_ vt mon s sooa o
L2 (KINO 133HS SIHL TY)IdAL)

v [ S310N A3 NOILYAIT3 YOI¥3LX3

o,

‘ON 133HS
S3IVA A3
SNOILYATT3 HOIY3LY3 oy \ 313
133HS T B B | 5 ,0-001 "ATT3 4,
n— Y00 NiF P
© o
cc N _ & il ] = | &
=y =y
. — = o.m — N n_m
ON g0l dAL ) . .
— =
-— - ~ - ul M
dAL & *
o : B 4
NYOIHIIN ‘SONINO (9 i @@@ dAL e o |3
IAV YINIY ONVYD T6 {(e)— BARNZ &N —(v) S9AdOd | a5 mws REE
WY d33( 39000
YI1SAYH) INIYINOAY L —
D3l0vd - . s
03 .0-01 .0-01 40-0L .0-01 .0-01 03
IN ‘ANYTHOIH
“@Y ANYIHOIH "M 000%
dNOYD JAILOWOLNY INIYINO4YI
INIVINO4YT NVAY
INIIT)
Wl = W91/ TS W] = L91/€ TS
LEN —_
s 31)3H)
dNd
— |z>>$_o SINVA NI g
suoerd| X3 1-2v 0941 1714 ——— 20Va0
I G e O T B B 40-001 "A313 4
¥001d N7 P
5 ‘\ /Av . SIIYVA ‘AF13
U /MHW W o 3avy9
=0t o~ r = - 35 - >-:¥F>"7F7/+*t " = .0-001 "AI13
2 I (T S ottt B ) ) ¥001d ‘NI
y dAL ~ &
LINY3d 35N WID3dS 811760 b \AMV P4 /(@ YN
R N = xQ
aanss| - A%\ S dAL |
SONIMYYQ 31¥25 1ON 04 T () 0 O ,\‘ﬂ, = %
N e
Q N X
s s o S SUlENUIO©d]E g )
‘SISN3dXT TV 40 L10¥13Q 0IANLS SSTTWYVH QT0H ANV 0 N _On
MINWNIANI TIVHS 403¥3HL NOILYYILTY YO NOILYIIHIQOW Vq \\ =
ANV “L10¥13Q 01ANLS 40 NOISSINYId NILLIYM SS3Y¥dX3 .-_VH @lm_\_\ >ml_m .
L LNOHLIM Q3IHIQ0W YO QIYILY 38 LON TIVHS = uJ & { WS-LLL AT
- . . f1 i .
GHAO) KOLWNONI I Y 00 ) ~ viosvd o'l O8 B / 3NEA IOINETS O'L
)11 1104130 01an1S 81070 o3 000 000 0-00 o3 \\ \
W9°SL1 A3
VIOSV4 O'L
W] = L91/€ TS
16 A3
INERESE]
oL @
NIVINZY OL dINVa / HOMOJ GOOM ONILSIXT (fLy
Q3LNIVd 38 OL ONIQIS ONILSIX3 (EF) =
5 s e -—t—m—— 00— - .0-001 "AT13
NIVIVZY O NINNT00 QOOM ONILSIX3 {21y 1«/ Y004 NI
40074 HSINI4 ONILSIX3 40 3NIT s31volaNt {11 S o =0 (D
Q3LNIVd 38 OL MWD ONILSIX3 {DL) nan ]
: dAL —ED
NIVZH OL MOaNIM TANIA ONILSIX3 (6 w , N - (5) )
Q3LNIVd 38 OL LNOJSNMOA /M ¥3LLND ONILsiXa (8) . ) =
5 d - —
Q3INIVd 38 0L VIosv4 oNILsixa (L) % &
WOO LIOYM13d-01anLs W3LSAS 400¥ VLI WV3S ONIONVLS MIN {9) dhL ==
£09E 606 €LE - 9885 616 ELE INOMATNOLS P e\
L0Z8% NVOIHDIW 110¥13a HOLVIN OL JMNSOTONS NWNTOO TYLIN v NidZud {8) 2T

O
o



(v

‘ON 133HS

SNOILYAI13 ¥OI43LX3
133HS

09LI

"ON 90[

NYOIHIIW ‘SOWIN0

Y YA ANYYD T6bI
WYY 433[ 39000
YI1SAYHD INIVINOAY

173(04d

IW “ANYTHOIH

‘a4 ANYTHOIH "M 0007

dNOY¥D JAILOWOLNY INIVINOAYT
INIVINOAYT NYAY

IN3IT

V1S

s 044)3H)
and  NMYYA

suoperd X3 [-7v 0921 7] 4

MIIATY YINMO 81°50°01

ainssi
SONIMYY¥Q 3Tv2S LON 0Od

"SNOILYYILTY 4O SNOILVIIHIQOW
HINS  WOYd  ONILINSIY  ALITIGVIT  4O/ANY  SWIVT)
‘SISNIAXT TV 40 110413 01QNLS SSTIWYYH Q10H QWY
MINWIANT TTVHS 40343HL NOILVYILIV 4O NOILYIIHIQOW
ANV "L10Y13Q 01GNLS 40 NOISSIWY3d NILLIYM SS3¥dX3
JHL INOHLIM Q314IG0K Y¥O0 QFWILTY 3 1ON TIVHS
QNY 1104130 01aNLS 40 NOISSISSOd 310§ IHL SI NIFYIHL
QINIVINO)  NOILVWYOINI  JHL QNY INIWNIOQ SIHL

11 1104130 014n1S 8101®@

WOD 110d13d-0oldnNds
£09€ 606 €LE - 9885 6l6€ELE
L0Z8Y NVOIHDIW 110413d
LOOL 31S JAY QHYMAOOM LLLT

vp
a
O
Yy
k‘
!v""'w
e’
i

;

) L

-

I"
L
—_—

N
g

p—
)
E}L
‘““Mm‘hl

W0l = W91/€ 3108

NOILYAI1d HLNOS

&

dAl

L]
-0l
: MW L]‘

6

dAl

5

@geé : é(«;

// dAl

S

W00 = W91/€ WS

NOILYAITd HIYON

W0l = W91/€ -31NS

NOILYAZT 1SV3

O

i

o

Al L

{

L]

? ¢

400d FTONIHS IMVHS ONILSIX3

Hd33N3A INOLS ONILSIX3

JANVH4 ANV J00d ONILSIX3

dAL ‘NIVINTH OL SLNOdSNMOA ANV ¥3L1ND ONILSIX3
4004 FTONIHS LTVHASY ONILSIX3

NIVIATH OL MOANIM TANIA ONILSIX3

ONIAIS TANIA ONILSIX3

SICIOISICIOICIO

NND ONILSIX3

(KINO L33HS SIHL T¥IIdAL)
S3LON AIY NOILYAIT3 YOI431X3

dAL

dAL

dAl

©

// dAl

S

1At

\ b

w/ dAL I
&

RROEN

V4

W0n = W91/€ WS

NOILYAITA 1SIM

[T

TR T

o o |

X

dAl

dAl

6



|1V

‘ON 133HS

Y4OM MIN - NY1d 40014 15414
133HS§

09LI

"ON 90[

NYOIHIIW ‘SOWIN0

Y YA ANYYO 01§I
WYY 433[ 39000
YI1SAYHD INIVINOAV

173(04d

IW “ANYTHOIH

‘a4 ANYTHOIH "M 0007

dNOY¥D JALOWOLNY INIVINO4YI
INIVINOAYT NYAY

IN3IT)

JLED

aus (I1J3H)

and - NMYYA

ueigrooly -1y 0921 §7] 4

MIIATY 81°0€°80

ainssi

SONIMYYQ 3T¥2S LON 04

"SNOILYYILTV 4O SNOILVIIHIQOW
HINS  WO¥d  ONILTINSIY A YO/QNY  SWIVT)
‘SISNIAXT TV 40 1104130 0 WYVH Q10H QnV
MINKIANT TIVHS 40I¥IHL NOILYYILIY 4O NOILVIIIQOW
ANY - "L10Y13Q 01GNLS 40 NOISSIWY3d NILLIYM SS3YdX3
JHL INOHLIM Q314IG0K Y¥O0 QFWILTY 38 1ON TIVHS
QNY 1104130 01aNLS 40 NOISSISSOd 310§ FHL SI NIFYIHL
QINIVINO)  NOILVWYOINI  JHL QNY INIWNIOQ SIHL

11 1104130 014n1S 8101®@

WOD 110413d-0ldnds
£09€ 606 €LE - 9885616 €LE
LOZ8Y NVOIHDIN 1104d13d
L0OL LS IAY A4YMAOOM LLLT

S1DOd1IHD4YV
MMO._.<>OZZ_

|
VIOSY4 WOV M3N—

W0 =ab/1 - 3INS

YY4OM MIN - Nv1d 400T4 LS¥I4 z

VIOSVYd NOV M3N /

W3LSAS INOH43401S
WNNINNTY M3N

T
-
-
-

{1 [} {}

-
-
o —

|
|
_
|
|
|
— -

-—ml—mN x-—Nl- — @

HOOYMOHS

NJLSAS INOH43HOLS \\\
ANNNIANNTY M3N

- 5S3Q ¥IOVNYN | 7 7 7 7
| | | S31VS M3N 7
| | | H
1 7 |
|| \ | |
v | | |
:: | _ 7 7 9 lo o s
- | | | — | — |
LS IT _ — | | | — I i
[§ 1w v | | |
VS W W 01 X061 | W W
| (5 0] | |
C . SHIOVNWM o i
| | |
L | 7
Y—i— I

ININLEVHEA S18vd

STILINIAY ¥IWOLSND ‘

140ddNS / 30ING3S

S301440 134 Q

STTVS ANV WOOHMOHS Q
SANOZ dIHSYI VA

w876 X.9-8 w876 X.9-8
[s5u] [s5u]
DIHO DIHO

124 WL
| = — |




OWNS )

T H | PaYa
@

To: Planning Commission

From: Peter Menser, Principal Planner
Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner
Date: October 31,2018
Re: Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC),

construct mixed use project at the southeast corner of Saginaw Highway and
Newton Road.

Newton Pointe, LLC has submitted a mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD) proposal for a
project identified as Newton Park. The approximate 23.97 acre project site is located at the
southeast corner of Saginaw Highway and Newton Road and consists of two parcels, a property
addressed as 6276 Newton Road (17.97 acres) and a property recognized as Tax [.D. #04-252-005
(six acres). The site is zoned C-2 (Commercial). The proposal includes the construction of a new
86,468 square foot mixed use building with 85 multiple family dwelling units and 19,367 square
feet of commercial space, 10, 10-unit multiple family buildings, six, four-unit single family attached
buildings, nine single family dwellings, and a 4,778 square foot clubhouse. The map below depicts
the site location and surrounding land uses.

Vs

Smgle Fale/
Residential

i
Singlle Family Residential

o .
QS
| . g3
2 o 5 S
7 Limits GLIDRS 8 8
S  New Hope 3 - = | =
Vacant E Church = Té owner
Rezoned to C-2 4 % B
in 2018 EX
(REZ #18070) 3~
Towner
Road
Consumers Park
Energy
Water
Tower
Kingdom Hall

Jehovah's Witnesses

T
Hammond Farms
Landscape}Supply Sierra Ridge Single Family
99 lots Residential

N Singlel-Family—

A Residential
| MY ——



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)

Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)

Page 2

In addition to the MUPUD, a special use permit (SUP) is required for constructing a group of
buildings totaling more than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area (SUP #18091). The special use
permit is being processed concurrently with the MUPUD request.

In 2006 the property was rezoned (Rezoning #06050) to C-2 with a condition offered by the
applicant at the time to develop the property as a MUPUD. The condition also placed limitations
on the types and sizes of uses allowed on the property, as well as residential density. Three areas
of development were identified; Area A, Area B, and Area C. Overall, the entire property was
limited to no more than 10 dwelling units per acre. The exhibits approved as part of Rezoning
#06050 (attached) detail the uses allowed for each of the three areas of the property. A general

description of each is included below.

e Area A: limits the types of allowed land uses, restricting uses such as bowling alleys,
gasoline stations, and brewpubs, among others. It also limits first-floor commercial space

to no more than 25,000 square feet.

e Area B:is limited to single family detached (free-standing) units and single family attached
brownstone-type townhouses. The townhouses are limited to three or four units. The
density of Area B cannot exceed six dwelling units per acre.

e Area C: is limited to multiple family apartments (and/or condominium units) at a density
of no more than 14 dwelling units per acre.

The map below depicts Areas A, B, and C as established by Rezoning #06050.

AREA "A"

(SEE ATTACHED
AREA

PRESERVATION AREA \
7.24 ACRES j

2.89 ACRES {({ (

DESCRIPTIONS)

1 { / ( NEWTON ROAD

— A PRIME COMMUNITY
meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 3

As proposed, Area A would consist of a mixed use building with a total of 85 apartments divided
among the mezzanine level, first, second, and third floors. The first floor contains 13,280 square
feet of commercial space and the mezzanine contains 6,087 square feet of commercial space; total
commercial square footage is approximately 19,367 square feet in size, which complies with the
condition of Rezoning #06050 limiting first-floor commercial space to no more than 25,000 square
feet. The apartments consist of 24 studio units, 20 one bedroom units, 25 one bedroom lofts, and
16 two bedroom units.

Area B would consist of six, four-unit single family attached buildings (referred to as quadplexes, but
more commonly known as townhouses) and nine single family detached homes. 12 of the quadplex
units would be two bedroom units and 12 would be three bedroom units. All nine of the single
family detached homes would be three bedroom dwellings. Residential density in this area would be
5.74 units per acre, which complies with the maximum density established for Area B in Rezoning
#06050.

As established in Rezoning #06050, Area C is limited to multiple family apartments (and/or
condominiums). The applicant is proposing 100 apartments in Area C, which would be divided
among 10, 10-unit buildings consisting of 40 one bedroom units, 44 two bedroom units, and 16 three
bedroom units. Residential density in this area would be 12.09 units per acre, which complies with
the maximum density established for Area C in Rezoning #06050.

Common areas are located along the south side of the property, on the west end of Area B. A pool
and hot tub, 4,778 square foot clubhouse, 1,586 square foot maintenance garage and pool house, and
228 square foot mail pavilion comprise the common areas.

Master Plan

The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject property as MUPUD.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)

Page 4
FUTURE LAND USE MAP
|
=]
o
=
8 Towner-Rd
2
2 ,
o)
e
s
a8
I Business/Technology
Commercial
[ Institutional
MR-Residential 5.0-14.0 du/a
[ Parks
MUPUD
N Rl-Residential 0.0-0.5 du/a
l R2-Residential 0.5-3.5 du/a
’7 R3-Residential 1.25-3.5 du/a
Zoning

The proposed project is located in the C-2 (Commercial) zoning district. A MUPUD is permitted in
the C-2, C-3 (Commercial), CR (Commercial Recreation), and CS (Community Service) zoning
districts and is also permitted in C-1 (Commercial) and PO (Professional and Office) when public
water and sewer are available. All uses permitted by right and by special use permit in the
underlying C-2 zoning district are permitted in a MUPUD. Rezoning #06050 placed restrictions on
the uses allowed on the subject site.

\/ A PRIME COMMUNITY
meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)

Page 5
ZONING MAP
wa) L owm
il I
=
§ / Towner-Rd-
C-2 g |
RR
RAA RA
N
A £-2— RA
| A A —

Physical Features

The subject property is currently undeveloped. The topography of the site slopes from 877 feet
above mean sea level near the northeastern and southeastern portions of the property to a low
point of 869 feet above mean sea level near the central region of the site. The Flood Insurance
Rate Map (FIRM) for Meridian Township indicates the property is not located in a floodplain.

Wetlands

Four wetlands are located on the subject property. A wetland delineation was conducted by the
applicant’s wetland consultant to determine the boundary, regulatory status, and size of the
wetlands. The delineation was verified by the Township’s wetland consultant in July of 2018.
Township Wetland #4-19, labeled as Wetland A on the submitted plans, is 4.78 acres in size and is
regulated by the Township. Township Wetland #4-20, labeled as Wetland B on the submitted plans,
is 0.65 acres in size and is potentially subject to regulation by the Township. Section 22-156 of the
Code of Ordinances requires the Township Board to determine whether a wetland greater than 0.25
acre in size but less than two acres in size is essential to the preservation of the natural resources of
the Township. If the wetland is determined to be essential, the applicant will be required to obtain a
wetland use permit from the Township prior to performing a regulated activity in the wetland.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 6

Township Wetland #4-21, labeled as Wetland C on the submitted plans, is 0.18 acre in size and is not
subject to Township regulation. The fourth wetland does not appear on the Township Wetland Map;
labeled as Wetland D on the submitted plans, it is 0.12 acre in size and not subject to Township
regulation.

Section 86-471 of the Code of Ordinances requires all structures and grading activities be set back 20
feet (Wetland B) or 40 feet (Wetland A) from a delineated wetland boundary depending on the size
of the wetland, and that a natural vegetation strip be maintained within 20 feet of the wetland
boundary. As proposed, walking trails would extend into the wetland setback, which would require
a waiver as part of the MUPUD.

The applicant proposes to discharge stormwater to Wetlands A and B. As Wetland A is regulated by
the Township and Wetland B could potentially be regulated by the Township, a wetland use
permitted is required. The wetland use permit (WUP #18-03) is being processed concurrently with
the MUPUD and SUP requests. Wetland use permit applications submitted in conjunction with a
related land development activity are decided by the same entity that decides the related land
development activity, therefore the Township Board will make the decision regarding the wetland
use permit. Once the Planning Commission makes its recommendation on the MUPUD the Township
Board will hold a public hearing on the wetland use permit request at the same time it holds its
public hearing for the MUPUD request.

WETLANDS MAP

fowner Rd

Newton Rd

Wetland A
4.78 acres

Wetland C

7% 0.14 acre
Wetland D (on subject site)
N 0.12 acre o, 0.18 acre o:verall
A ‘ U {:} Wetlands

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 7

GREENSPACE PLAN

Towner-Rd

7 %

B

Newton
;
e
rs
"\
»,

% —== Off Road Pathway
N I nnn On Road Pathway
[ ¥ 7] Fragile Links
t Priority Conservation Corridor ;
’ -

1/

The Township Greenspace Plan shows a Fragile Link and Priority Conservation Corridor (PCC) on the
property. A PCC is a network of ecologically significant open spaces. A Fragile Link is an area where a
PCC is exceptionally narrow or fragmented.

Streets and Traffic

The subject site is located at the southeast corner of Saginaw Highway and Newton Road. Saginaw
Highway is a four-lane divided highway, without curb and gutter, classified as a Principal Arterial on
the Street Setbacks and Service Drives Map in the zoning ordinance. The posted speed limit is 55
miles per hour in the project area. Newton Road is a two lane road, without curb and gutter, classified
as a local street in the zoning ordinance. The posted speed limit is 45 miles per hour in the project
area. The Pedestrian and Bicycle Pathway Map shows a required 10 foot wide pathway along
Saginaw Highway and a required seven foot wide pathway along Newton Road. The applicant will be
required to install the pathway along the Saginaw Highway and Newton Road property frontages.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 8

The most recent (2008) traffic count information from the Ingham County Road Department (ICRD)
for Newton Road, between Lake Lansing Road and Saginaw Highway, showed a total of 669 vehicles
in a 24 hour period. The most recent (2017) traffic count information from the Michigan Department
of Transportation (MDOT) for Saginaw Highway, between Lake Lansing Road and the Ingham/Clinton
County line, showed a total of 12,835 vehicles in a 24 hour period.

Three proposed driveways provide access to the subject site, one from Newton Road and two from
Saginaw Highway. The Saginaw Highway driveways are designed to have one right-in and right-out
lanes.

A traffic impact study is required for MUPUDs which would generate over 100 directional trips during
a peak hour of traffic on adjacent roadways. The applicant submitted a traffic impact study prepared
by Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc. dated February 2018 that provides information on traffic
generated by the proposed MUPUD. The study looks at existing, background (future traffic volumes
without the traffic generated by the proposed development), and future level of service (LOS) during
the AM (7:15-8:15 am.) and PM (4:45-5:45 p.m.) peak hours at the following three intersections
around the project site:

e Saginaw Highway and Newton Road
e Saginaw Highway and East Median Opening (proposed, see following paragraph)
e Saginaw Highway and Towner Road

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) has plans to restructure Saginaw Highway
between Newton Road and Towner Road beginning in 2019. The new roadway design will close off
the existing boulevard (pass-through) openings at Newton Road and Towner Road. There are
proposed median openings east and west of the existing intersections. All traffic on Newton Road and
Towner Road will be required to make a right turn, then use one of the median openings to either
complete their route on Newton Road or Towner Road or to make a left turn. The traffic impact study
incorporated the proposed redesign of Saginaw Highway into the background and future traffic
information as the proposed improvements are not scheduled to be completed until the beginning of
2021.

The traffic study notes existing traffic at the studied intersections all operate at an acceptable LOS
(LOS C or better) during the AM and PM peak hours. The study shows background traffic at the
studied intersections will operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS D or better) during AM and
PM peak hours. Under future conditions, it is projected all movements will continue to operate at an
acceptable level of service (LOS C or better), except for the southbound right turn movement from
Newton Road to westbound Saginaw Highway during the AM peak hour. This movement is expected
to operate at a LOS E with a vehicle delay of 37.4 seconds, a 6.3 second increase from background
traffic.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 9

The traffic impact study estimated traffic generation for the proposed project based on 85 Multifamily
Housing (Mid Rise) apartment units in Area A (Land Use Code 221 in the Institute of Transportation
Engineers (ITE) trip generation manual), 13,280 square feet of Medical-Dental Office Building in Area
A (Land Use Code 720 in the ITE trip generation manual), 16 Single-Family Detached Housing units in
Area B (Land Use Code 210 in the ITE trip generation manual), 16 townhomes (Area B) and 100
apartment units of Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise) in Area C (Land Use Code 220 in the ITE trip

generation manual). The following table estimates traffic generation for the proposed project.

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Land Use Size In | Out | Total | In | Out | Total Weekday
Multifamily
Housing (Mid-Rise), U?lists 8 23 31 23 15 38 462
Land Use Code 221
Medical-Dental 13289
Office Building, ’ ft 29 8 37 13 34 47 423
Land Use Code 720 5q- 1t
Multifamily 116
Housing (Low-Rise) Units 13 | 42 55 42 25 67 836
Land Use Code 220
Single-Family _ 16
Detached Housing, Units 4 12 16 11 6 17 193
Land Use Code 210
Total Trips 54 85 139 89 80 169 1,914

The applicant’s traffic consultant recommends consideration be given to upgrading Newton Road
with dual southbound right turn lanes at the intersection of Newton Road and Saginaw Highway to
improve the level of service and reduce vehicle delays during the AM peak hour. If the existing
southbound right turn lane was changed to a dual southbound right turn lane, turning movements at
this intersection are projected to operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS C or better) during the
peak hours, as opposed to a LOS E with a single southbound right turn lane. Additionally, the traffic
study notes projected traffic volumes at the two proposed new driveways on eastbound Saginaw
Highway meet the MDOT guidelines to require installation of a right turn taper.

Utilities

Municipal water is available in the vicinity of the project site and sanitary sewer is not currently in the
vicinity and would have to be extended to serve the subject site. The location and capacity of utilities
for the proposed new buildings will be reviewed in detail during site plan review if the MUPUD and
SUP are approved.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 10

Parking

The Township Code of Ordinances requires two parking spaces for each dwelling unit plus an
additional 25% expansion capacity. Five (minimum) to 5.5 (maximum) parking spaces per 1,000
square feet of gross floor area are required for the commercial space. With 218 dwelling units and
19,367 square feet of commercial space, plus parking for the 4,778 square foot clubhouse, a total of
667 parking spaces would be required for the project.

The ordinance allows the number of required motor vehicle parking spaces on the site to be reduced
by one motor vehicle parking space for every two bicycle parking spaces installed on a site, up to a
maximum of 10 percent of the total number of required motor vehicle parking spaces. Using this
formula the required number of motor vehicle parking spaces can be reduced by 30 spaces. With the
allowed reduction granted for bicycle parking, the total required motor vehicle parking is reduced to
637 spaces.

In addition to the required motor vehicle parking, one bicycle parking space for every 10 required
vehicle parking spaces must also be provided. The maximum number of required bicycle parking
spaces cannot exceed 50, however more bicycle parking can be provided. With 637 motor vehicle
parking spaces, the maximum of 50 bicycle parking spaces are required for the project. 60 bicycle
parking spaces (30 bicycle racks) are proposed in different areas on the property.

The submitted site plan proposes 414 parking spaces on the site. With 637 required parking spaces
and 414 proposed spaces the applicant will be seeking a 223 space waiver from the Township Board
as part of the MUPUD approval.

Staff Analysis

The applicant has requested to construct a new 86,468 square foot mixed use building with 85
multiple family dwelling units and 19,367 square feet of commercial space, 10, 10-unit multiple
family buildings, six, four-unit single family attached buildings, nine single family dwellings, and a
4,778 square foot clubhouse using the MUPUD process for a project identified as Newton Park. In a
MUPUD request the Planning Commission makes a recommendation on the project and the Township
Board makes the final decision. When reviewing the project the Planning Commission should
consider the appropriateness of the requested waivers, the proposed amenities and related review
criteria, and the design standards as outlined in Section 86-440(f) of the Code of Ordinances.

The MUPUD ordinance generally waives the standard requirements for lot size, yards, frontage
requirements, setbacks, maximum impervious surface, and type and size of dwelling unit, provided
the purpose and intent of the ordinance are incorporated into the overall development plan. The
MUPUD ordinance is intended to provide flexibility for the Planning Commission and Township Board
to set appropriate standards during the review process.

The following is a summary of the project’s consistency with the MUPUD ordinance standards. As
part of this project analysis, standards for the underlying C-2 zoning district will be compared to what

is proposed on the submitted site plan.

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 11

Land Use: All uses permitted by right and by special use permit in the underlying zoning district are
allowed in a MUPUD. When the property was rezoned to C-2 the rezoning was conditioned on
developing the property as a MUPUD. The condition also placed limitations on the types and sizes
of commercial and residential uses. The applicant has not indicated a tenant(s) for the commercial
space. Restrictions to commercial land uses include the prohibition of bowling alleys, gasoline
stations, and brewpubs, among others. First-floor commercial space is limited to no more than
25,000 square feet.

Density: The submitted plan proposes 218 dwelling units on 23.95 acres for a density of 9.10 dwelling
units per acre (du/a). The conditional rezoning of the property limits overall density to no more than
10 du/a. Area B of the property is limited to single family detached units and single family
attached townhouses. The townhouses are limited to three or four units. The density of Area B
cannot exceed six dwelling units per acre. Nine single family homes and six, four-unit townhomes
are proposed in Area B, at a density of 5.74 du/a, which complies with the maximum density
established for Area B in Rezoning #06050. Area C is limited to multiple family apartments (and/or
condominiums). The density of Area C cannot exceed 14 du/a. The applicant is proposing 100
apartments in Area C, which would be divided among 10, 10-unit buildings, at a density of 12.09
du/a, which complies with the maximum density established for Area C in Rezoning #06050.

Phasing: The applicant has indicated the entire project will be completed in one phase.

Amenities: One or more amenities are required for every MUPUD project and should represent
multiple categories from the list of amenity categories which are Conservation; Environment; Parks,
Recreation, and Culture; Social Interaction; and Site and Building Design. Criteria to determine
whether a proposed amenity is acceptable for consideration can be found in Section 86-440(e)(2) of
the MUPUD ordinance.

The submitted site plan lists the following amenities: pocket park/public seating plaza, uncovered
bike racks, clubhouse, dog park, walking paths, raised garden areas, dog waste cans/relief area, trash
can receptacles, sports/rec area, and walking path connector to Towner Road Park. The Planning
Commission and Township Board should note bicycle racks are a requirement and therefore are not
considered an amenity for the project.

Building height: The maximum building height allowed in a MUPUD is 45 feet. Building elevations are
provided in the MUPUD application materials. The building elevations indicate all building types
comply with the maximum height requirement.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 12

Building materials: Generally, building materials in a MUPUD should include, but are not limited to,
wood, brick, clapboards, beadboard, glass, and stone. Other materials such as vinyl, aluminum, and
metal sidings should be avoided. All buildings should be completed on all sides with acceptable
materials. The design of the buildings should relate to and blend with the facades of adjacent
buildings and complement streetscape improvements in the area. The proposed building materials
for the project are a mix of stone and exterior insulation and finish system (EIFS) siding. EIFS siding is
a composite material that provides exterior walls with an insulated and water-resistant finished
surface. Elevations of the buildings were submitted that show the different building materials for the
project. A sample board of the building materials submitted by the applicant will be displayed at the
public hearing.

Architectural design: The MUPUD ordinance states that buildings wider than 50 feet shall be divided
into increments of not more than 50 feet through articulation of the facade. Scaled building elevations
have been provided which indicate the buildings as proposed provides the required facade
articulation. The MUPUD ordinance also requires that windows cover no less than 50% of
nonresidential street level facades. Based on the submitted floor plans a portion of the 19,367
commercial space is located on the mixed use building’s west building facade along Newton Road and
northwest building facade facing Saginaw Highway. The submitted building elevations show
windows along Newton Road and Saginaw Highway that cover at least 50% of facade at the street
level.

Railings, benches, trash receptacles, or bicycle racks: Accessory items such as railings, benches, trash
receptacles, or bicycle racks are required to be of commercial quality and complement the building
design and style. The submitted architectural renderings of the building shows railings for the
balcony units and benches but details were not provided to indicate the materials of these items. The
submitted site plan shows 30 bicycle racks on the site. The Township requires the use of an inverted
"U" shaped bicycle rack. The amenities plan indicates the proposed bicycle racks will be the inverted
“U” shaped style.

Trash and recycling: One commercial dumpster, compactor, and recycle center is shown on the
submitted site plan at the southwest corner of the subject property. The Township requires any
proposed trash or recycling structure to be screened by an enclosure.

Parking: The setbacks for a parking area and the number of parking spaces required can be waived in
a MUPUD. 637 parking spaces are required for the project and the applicant is proposing 414 spaces.

Landscaping: Proposed landscaping must generally comply with the provisions of the Code of
Ordinances. Landscaping should be designed to preserve existing significant natural features and to
buffer service areas, parking lots, or dumpsters. A mix of evergreen and deciduous plants and trees
are preferred, along with seasonal accent plantings. A minimum of four feet of landscaped area is
required around the perimeter of the mixed use building. While not required as part of the MUPUD
application, a landscape plan for the project was submitted. Landscaping will be reviewed in detail
during site plan review if the MUPUD and SUP are approved.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 13

Lighting: The MUPUD ordinance requires site lighting to comply with the Outdoor Lighting Ordinance
and limits street lighting intended to provide illumination for pedestrians on the sidewalk to no taller
than 15 feet in height. Information on site lighting was provided and will be reviewed in detail during
site plan review if the project proceeds.

Signs: A sign program is required as part of the MUPUD application showing the style, size, number,
and location of any proposed signs and is approved by the Township Board as part of the MUPUD.
The submitted plans show three 68.3 square foot (8’ 4” tall) monument signs proposed on the
property, one located on the south side of the driveway at Newton Road, and one each on the
southwest side of both Saginaw Highway driveways. Freestanding signs are generally not permitted
in a MUPUD. Exceptions for freestanding signs of the monument type may be permitted when a
building is set back a minimum of 15 feet from the right-of-way (ROW) line with the resulting yard set
aside for permanent public open space. The mixed use building is set back approximately 1.5 feet
from the Newton Road ROW and approximately 5 feet from the Saginaw Highway ROW. The
freestanding signs are required to be at least 10 feet back from the Newton Road and Saginaw
Highway ROW. The signs proposed on the south side of the driveway at Newton Road and on the
southwest side of the west Saginaw Highway driveway meet the 10 foot setback. A third monument
sign located southwest of the east Saginaw Highway driveway, north of Building C1, also meets the 10
foot setback. Building C1 is approximately 80 feet from the Saginaw Highway ROW.

The submitted building elevations show wall signs on the mixed use building. Each business is
permitted one wall sign. Seven, seven square foot wall signs are located on the front elevation (street
side) of the mixed use building. The elevations also show eight, seven square foot wall signs located
on the rear elevation (parking lot side) of the mixed use building. As proposed, the eight wall signs on
the rear building elevation would not be permitted without a waiver, which was not requested by the
applicant, as each business is permitted one wall sign.

Sidewalks: Generally, sidewalks in a MUPUD must be a minimum of five feet in width. Seven foot wide
sidewalks are required when a sidewalk is located immediately adjacent to an off-street parking area.
The submitted site plan shows seven foot wide sidewalks connecting parking areas to the mixed use
building and clubhouse, and both four and five foot wide sidewalks throughout Areas B and C,
generally around the buildings. A waiver cannot be granted for construction of four foot wide
sidewalks. All four foot sidewalks proposed must be expanded to a minimum of five feet in width.

Waiver requests

The MUPUD ordinance generally waives the standard requirements for lot size, setbacks, type and
size of dwelling unit, lot frontage, number of required parking spaces, and impervious surface
coverage, provided the purpose and intent of the ordinance are incorporated into the overall
development plan. Based on the submitted site plan the applicant is requesting the following waivers
for the Newton Park project.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 14

Front yard setback

A 100 foot front yard setback from the centerline along Saginaw Highway is required. At its closet
point the proposed mixed use building is located 75.5 feet from the centerline of Saginaw Highway. A
waiver of 24.50 feet is requested for the front yard building setback.

The applicant requested a waiver from the Newton Road front yard building setback, but incorrectly
requested a waiver based on a setback from the centerline of the road. For Newton Road the required
setback is 25 feet from the street right-of-way line. At its closest point the proposed mixed use
building is located 1.5 feet from the street right-of-way line of Newton Road. Therefore a waiver of
23.50 feet is required for the front yard building setback.

Setback from residential zoning district

In the C-2 zoning district no structure is permitted within 100 feet of any residential zoning district
boundary line. As proposed, Building B15 (a single family home) is located 20 feet from the RAA
(Single Family) property to the south, therefore a waiver of 80 feet is requested for the setback from
the residential zoning district boundary.

Buildings C4, C5, and C6 (10-unit apartment buildings) are located 20 feet from the RR (Rural
Residential) property to the east, therefore a waiver of 80 feet is requested for the setback from the
residential zoning district boundary.

Parking lot setback

Where a parking area with a capacity of 50 or more vehicles, or its associated internal access or
service drives, adjoins a residential district a landscaped buffer at least 40 feet wide must be provided
between the parking area and the adjoining property line. At its closest point the parking lot on the
west side of the property is located 10 feet from the RAA zoning district line. A waiver of 30 feet is
requested for the parking lot setback from a residential zoning district.

Where a parking area adjoins a public street a landscaped buffer at least 20 feet wide must be
provided between the parking area and the adjacent right-of-way. At its closest point the parking
area on the south side of the mixed use building is located 1.5 feet from the Newton Road right-of-
way. A waiver of 18.5 feet is requested for the parking lot setback from a public street.

Parking

The applicant did not factor the bicycle parking reduction into their calculation of the required
number of motor vehicle parking spaces. The submitted plan notes 667 vehicle parking spaces are
required, with 414 parking spaces proposed. 637 parking spaces are required for the project based
on the number of residential units, commercial space in the mixed use building, and the allowed
reduction granted for bicycle parking. 414 parking spaces are proposed by the applicant. A waiver of
223 parking spaces is required.

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 15

Signs

The submitted building elevations show seven, seven square foot wall signs located on the front
elevation (street side) of the mixed use building and eight, seven square foot wall signs on the rear
elevation (parking lot side) of the mixed use building. As proposed, the eight wall signs on the rear
building elevation would not be permitted without a waiver, as each business is permitted one wall
sign.

Wetland setback

All structures and grading activities shall be setback at least 20 feet (Wetland B) or 40 feet (Wetland
A) from the delineated boundary of a wetland. As indicated on the list of waivers submitted by the
applicant, walking paths would extend into the wetland setback at numerous locations around
Wetlands A and B. The submitted amenities plan does not depict the wetlands and wetland setbacks
in relation to the walking paths, therefore staff cannot determine the distance from the wetlands to
the closet point of the walking paths.

The applicant has requested a waiver from the 20 foot natural vegetation strip to discharge
stormwater to Wetlands A and B. This requires a wetland use permit, therefore the waiver from the
natural vegetation strip is not applicable. The applicant has applied for a wetland use permit.

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
proposed MUPUD. The Planning Commission is required to make a recommendation on the MUPUD
within 60 days of the date of the public hearing. A resolution will be provided at a future meeting.

Attachments

1. Application and attachments.

2. Site plan prepared by Kebs, Inc. dated October 5, 2018 and received by the Township on October
5,2018.

3. Architectural renderings, floor plans, building elevations, and sign plan prepared by The
Peabody Group dated September 17, 2018 and received by the Township October 5, 2018.

4. Landscape plan and amenities plan prepared by Luke Landscape dated September 18, 2018 and
received by the Township on October 5, 2018.

5. Rezoning #06050 conditions approved by the Township Board on March 20, 2007.

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\MIXED USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS (MUPUD)\2018\MUPUD 18044 (Newton
Pointe LLC) Newton Park\MUPUD 18044.pc1.docx

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, M| 48864
PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095

MIXED USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION

Before submitting this application for review, an applicant shall participate in the pre-application
conference with the Director of Community Planning and Development to discuss the requirements for a
Mixed Use Planned Unit Development.

Part |
A. App”cant Newton Pointe, LLC - Chuck Holman
Address of App”cant 2502 Lake Lansing Road, Lansing, MI 48912
Telephone - Work (517) 371-5300/(704) 626-0705 (cel)  E-Mail cholman@dtnmgt.com Fax (517)371-5356
Interest in property (circle one): Owner Tenant Option Other Developer
(Please attach a list of all persons with an ownership interest in the property.)
B. Site address / location / parcel number 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, MI 48840 Parcel Nos. 33-02-04-252-004 & 33-02-04-252-005

Legal description (please attach if necessary) See Attached
Current zoning ¢-2
Project name Newton Park

C. Developer (if different than applicant)

Address
Telephone: Work E-Mail Fax
D. Architect, Engineer Planner or Surveyor responsible for design of project if different from applicant:

Name The Peabody Group, Inc./KEBS, Inc.,
Address 4740 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864/2116 Haslett Road, Haslett, MI 48840

Telephone(s) (586) 243-5945/(517) 339-1014 E_Ma” trcallaway@hotmail.com/Jkyes@kebs.com Fax none
E. Acreage of all parcels in the project: Gross 26.11 Net 23.95
F Proposed Uses and Site Amenities:
1. Non-residential uses:
a. Type Commercial
b. Percent of project area 7-32%
C. Total square feet for non-residential uses 19.367 SF
d. Usable floor area 19.367 SF
e. Number of employees TBD
f. Hours of operation T80
2. Residential Uses:
a. Percent of project area
b. Total dwelling units
C. Dwelling unit mix:
i. Number of single family detached:  for Rent 2 Condo
i. Number of duplexes: for Rent Condo
i Number of townhouses: for Rent 124 Condo
iv. Number of garden style apartments: for Rent 85 Condo
V. Number of other dwellings: for Rent Condo

Page 1



3. Parking:
a. Non-residential uses 147 (used for non-residential & residential)

b. Residential uses 267

4, Proposed Amenities: Type Podketfaks

(General) Type Public Plazas
Type Raised Gardens

Type Clubhouse/Business  Office/Conference Room/Pool

Proposed Amenities: Type Dog Park

(Density Bonus) Type Walking Paths
Type Sports & Recreation Areas

Type Connector to Meridian Parks

The following support materials must be submitted with the application:

Nonrefundable fee. Payment included with application
2. Legal Description of the property. (A sealed survey may be required) See Attached

3. Evidence of fee or other ownership of the property or a letter from the owner authorizing the
request including the owner’s proof of ownership. See Attached

4. A written description of the project including, but not limited to: a site analysis; the principal factors
which influenced the site plan and architectural elements; and, the proposed phasing program for
non-residential and residential uses, installation and/or construction of amenities. See Attached

5. Fourteen copies (Thirteen (13) 24’x36” and one 82" x11”) of a Site Plan drawn to a readable
scale containing the following (may be a set of plans for readability): See Attached

Total property, its location in the Township, its relationship to adjacent properties

Boundaries of subject property

Location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures

Approximate location and distance of all structures within 100 feet of the subject property

Proposed means of vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress to the subject property

Public and private roads and streets, rights-of-way and easements indicating names and

widths of streets which abut or cross the site

Existing and proposed parking spaces and vehicular and pedestrian circulation patterns

Dimensions of setbacks from streets, property lines and between buildings on the site

Location of proposed amenities

Location and size of existing utilities including power lines and towers, both above and below

ground

e Amount and location and calculation of all impervious surfaces

o Verified boundaries of all natural water features and required setback lines

6. A reproducible two foot contour topographic map based on United States Geological Survey
(USGS) drawn at the same scale as the site plan and showing existing relief features on the site.
See Attached

7. A schematic layout of the proposed storm sewer system. See Attached

8. Architectural sketches of all elevations of proposed buildings or structures, including the project

entrances, as they will appear upon completion. The sketches should be accompanied by
material samples or a display board of the proposed exterior materials and colors.
See Attached. Samples & Display Board Included

9. Floor plans of proposed residential units. see Architectural Drawings

Page 2



10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

A Traffic Study (if the project will exceed 100 vehicle trips during the peak hours of the
roadway(s), prepared by a qualified traffic engineer, based on the most current edition of
Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities,
published by the State Department of Transportation. See Attached

Natural Features Study for previously undeveloped properties which includes a written description
of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. Natural features shall include,
but are not limited to, wetlands, floodways, floodway fringe, waterbodies, significant stands of
trees or individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, identified groundwater vulnerable areas,
slopes greater than 20 percent. See Attached

Preliminary engineering reports in accordance with the adopted Township water and sewer
standards, together with a letter of review from the Township Engineer.
This site is within the urban service boundary. Utilities are near site and can serve site.
A sign program illustrating size and location of each proposed sign type.
See Architectural elevations
A lighting plan (see Chapter 38, Article VII).
See photometric plan & lighting fixture cut sheets attached
Copies of comments from reviewing agencies such as, but not limited to, the following:
e Ingham County Road Commission
Ingham County Drain Commission
Michigan Department of Transportation (if applicable)
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (if applicable)
The appropriate school board (as applicable)
See letters of request attached

H. Any other information specified by the Director of Community Planning and Development which is
deemed necessary to evaluate the application.

Part Il

| (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or Commissions,
Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of gathering
information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.

[

Yes No (Please check one)

By the signature(s) attached hereto, | (we) certify that the information provided within this application and
accompanying documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate

Signature of Applicant Date
Newton Pointe, LLC - Chuck Holman
Type/Print Name
Fee: Received by:
Date:

Pre-Application Meeting Held:

Date
Application Complete: By:

Date Staff

Page 3



MANAGEMENT CO.
October 5, 2018

Mr. Mark Kieselbach

Community Planning & Development Director
Meridian Township

5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, M| 48864

Re: Newton Park
6276 Newton Road
MUPUD Application

Dear Mr. Kieselbach,
Newton Pointe, LLC is pleased to submit the MUPUD Application package for the referenced
project.

Project Summary —

This site received approved for rezoning (#06050) to Commercial (C-2) by the Meridian
Township Board on March 20, 2007. The approval for rezoning is conditioned on the site being
developed under the Township’s mixed use planned unit development ordinance and limiting
the types of permitted uses and the residential density of the development. This MUPUD
Application complies with these conditions and contains site data for the different types of
proposed uses, along with the proposed waiver list. We presented the project at the Concept
Plan Review stage to the Meridian Township Planning Commission and the Board of Trustees
earlier this year, at which time it received enthusiastic support.

This package includes the following applications and supporting documentation -

e Mixed Use Planned Unit Development Application
e Special Use Permit Application
e Wetland Use Permit Application

Please let us if we need to take any further action or you require further information to process
these applications. We look forward to receiving Meridian Township approval to proceed with
our development.

Thank you,
Chuck Holman

Vice President, Development & Construction
DTN Management Company

2502 LAKE LANSING RD., SUITE C  LANSING, MI 48912-3620
PHONE (517) 371-5300 « FAX (517) 371-5356 « E-MAIL: dtn@dtnmgt.com



‘MLY NPL ‘P O3S 938 40 “Ld OL 3N /1L M—3 AIVS ONOTV 14 09'8lZ M ¥ S1 930 88 N ¥

"03S 40 AN #/1L M—3 NO 'Ld Ol 14 06'+€ZL M .91 ,#Z 930 LO S ‘L4 I8'1EZ 3NN M/¥ GIVS ONOTY
3 .SS LS 930 LL N '8L—W AMH 40 3NIT M/¥ A1S NO 'Ld OL L4 S£'9GLL 3 91 ,#Z 930 10 N 938
40 "Ild OL 14 £¥°6£40L ¥ O3S 40 3N +/1L M=3 ONOTV 3 ¥ £L 930 88 S ‘¥ "03S 40 ‘N30 1V 'WOD
G00—2SZ—+¥0—-20—20—¢¢ -al XVL

‘MLY NPL ¥ 23S “938 40 "Ld OL 3INIT ¥/1L M—3 QIVS 9NO1TV 14 09'8lZ M ..V £

930 88 N ‘v "03S 40 3NN #/L M—3 NO 'Ld OL 14 06'%€ZL M .9l #Z 930 LO S ‘L4 IB'IEZ 3INIT M/Y
aivsS 9NOTV 3 .GS /G 930 LL N ‘BL—WN AMH 40 3INIT M/¥ AT1,S NO ‘Ld OL 14 G£'9GLL 3 .91 +#Z 93@
10 N 938 40 'Ld OL L4 Z¥'640L ‘¢ 23S 40 3NN #/1L M—3 9NOIY 3 .L¥ £1L 930 88 S ‘v "03S 40
‘N30 LY WO Ld30X3 0S¥ —'938 0L 3INIT N30 aivS 9NOTIV ATM G¥ ¥3NMOL 40 3NIT N3O OL 3NIT
8/L 3 ONOW N ¥ 23S 40 3NN 8/L 3 0L 3 .0 L0 930 2L S 14 00E M 0¥ 930 6S S— (Y ¥INMOL
40 3NIT N30 % AMH 3LVLS 8/—W 40 AMOY GNNOS 3 40 3NIT N30 40 ¥3LNI LV 938 OX3 0SSV

938 0L L4 00Z N 938 WO¥4 14 002 40 3FONVLISIA V ¥ 935S 40 3NN /L SN NO 1d OL L4 ¥¥'C€Cv M
OSSPy 930 6¢ S— 14 00€ 3 0¥ 930 65 N— ¥ 23S 40 3NIT #/1 SN % AMH 3ILVIS 8/-W 40 AMQY
ONNOB 3 40 3NN N32 40 ¥3LINI 1V 938 OX3 “AMH 8/—W 40 'S +/L 3N 40 +/1 MS 40 'Id LVHL
¥00—~2S2—%0—20—20—¢¢ Al XVl

(pepinocid sy)

‘NOILJIE0353d 1voT1

0v88% IN ‘L131SVH ‘AVOd NOLM3IN 9279 X¥Vd NOLM3IN



dr

MANAGEMENT CO.

October 4, 2018

Mr. Mark Kieselbach

Community Planning & Development Director
Meridian Township

5151 Marsh Road

Okemos, MI 48864

Re: Newton Property Partnership, a Michigan co-partnership, now
known as Newton Property, L.L.C., a Michigan limited liability
company, by merger (“Owner”)

Dear Mr. Kieselbach:
The above referenced entity is the Owner of the subject property. The Owner
hereby authorizes Newton Pointe, LLC, on its behalf, to submit and execute the Mixed

Use Planned Unit Development Application and the Special Use Permit Application.

If you have any comments, questions or concerns, please do not hfsitatc to

contact me.
2 I ‘/" pEa \ . il
:‘ / £ ‘ =
N

Very truly yours,

Newton Property, L.L.C.
By: DTN Holdings, LL.C
Its: Member

By:  Thomas F. Kuschinski
Its: Manager

2502 LAKE LANSING RD., SUITE C « LANSING, M| 48912-3620
PHONE (517) 371-5300 « FAX (517) 371-5356 « E-MAIL: dtn@dtnmgt.com



" KEBS, INC

Engineering ° Surveymg

October 5, 2018

Mr. Larry Thelen

Michigan Departinent of Transportation (MDOT)
2700 Port Lansing Road

Lansing, Michigan 48906

Re:  Newton Park MUPUD, SUP and WUP submittal
Dear Larry:

Please find attached a pdf set of Mixed Use Planned Unit Development plans for your
preliminary review and comment of the property located at the se corner of Newton Road
and Saginaw Highway in Meridian Township.

The project is in the early stages of design as part of the Meridian Township MUPUD
process. Your wriitten comments back to Meridian Township would be greatly
appreciated.

We are currently showing (2) right in — right out drives onto Saginaw Highway along
with a drive connecting to Newton Road.

If you should have any questions regarding the plans please do not hesitate to contact me
~at (517) 339-1014, or you can email me at jkyes@kebs.com.

2116 Haslett Road ¢ Haslett, Ml 48840 e Phone: 517-339-1014 ¢ Fax: 517-339-8047 ¢ www.kebs.com

'\I’l_|




e

¥ KEBS, INC

Engineering ° Surveying

October 5, 2018

Mr. Robert Peterson, P.E., Director of Engineering
Ingham County Road Department

301 Bush Street

P.O. Box 38

Mason, MI 48854-0038

Re:  Newton Park MUPUD, SUP and WUP submittal

Dear Bob:

Please find attached a pdf set of Mixed Use Planned Unit Development p]'ans for your
preliminary review and comment of the propeity located at the se corner of Newton Road

and Saginaw Highway in Meridian Township.

The project is in the early stages of design as part of the Meridian Township MUPUD
process. Your written comments back to Meridian Township would be greatly
appreciated.

We are currently showing (2) right in — right out drives onto Saginaw Highway along
with a drive connecting to Newton Road.

If you should have any questions regarding the plans please do not hesitate to contact me
at (517) 339-1014, or you can email me at jkyes@kebs.com.

\

Sincerely,

2116 Haslett R;Jad o Haslett, Ml 48840 e Phone: 517-339-1014 o Fax: 517-339-8047 o www.kebs.com

B 7] ' 14 a B
i il




KEBS, INC

Engineering ¢ Surveying

October 5, 2018

Mr. David Love :

Ingham County Drain Commission (“ICDC”)
P.O. Box 220

Mason, Michigan 48854-0220

Re: Newton Park MUPUD, SUP and WUP submittal

Dear Dave:-

Please find attached a pdf set of Mixed Use Planned Unit Development plans for your
preliminary review and comment of the property located at the se corner of Newton Road

and Saginaw Highway in Meridian Township.

The project is in the early stagesbof design as part of the Meridian Township MUPUD
process. Your written comments back to Meridian Township would be greatly

appreciated. ;

We are also requesting a Wetland Use Permit to store water in the Township regulated

wetlands on the site with the ultimate discharge south on Newton Road to the County

Drain. )

If you should have any questions regarding the plans please do not hesitate to contact me
at (517) 339-1014, or you can email me at jkyes@kebs.com.

Sincerely,

effrey W. Kyes, P.
'KEBS, Inc.

2116 Haslett Road e Héslett, Ml 48840 e Phone: 517-339-1014 ¢ Fax: 517-339-8047 ¢ www.kebs.com




'KEBS, INC

Engineering ¢ Surveying

October 5, 2018

Mr. Steven L. Cook, Superintendent
Haslett Public Schools

5593 Franklin Street

Haslett, M1 48840

Re:  Newton Park MUPUD, SUP and WUP submittal

7 Dear Mr. Cook:

Please find attached a pdf set of Mixed Use Planned Unit Development plans for your
preliminary review and comment of the property located at the se corner of Newton Road

and Saginaw Highway in Meridian Township.

The project is in the early stages of design as part of the Meridian Township MUPUD
process. Your written comments back to Meridian Township would be greatly
appreciated. .

The project consists of a mixture of several types of for rent residential units along with
commercial lease space. ‘

If you should have any questions regarding the plans please do not hesitate to contact me
at (517) 339-1014, or you can email me at jkyes@kebs.com.

Jeflrey W. Kyes, P.
KEBS, Inc.

2116 Haslett Road e Haslett, Ml 48840 ¢ Phone: 517-339-1014 ¢ Fax: 517-339-8047 ¢ www.kehs.com

F i il i

/ as |

il 1 | .
| | I 1 i
i i 1 B ’
/ g i |




Joe|q
uiodl] 8529 MS Ul
JOj0D W] Joualx3

‘0D LNIWISVNVN

U

10|00 1ured s413

IEIN=Te)=1\V
800Z MS ul

(Ajuo asnoyqgn|o Jod)
9zuoig {YBIUPIW, Ul JOOY [P}oW
weas buipuels avi10-OVd

208l ulsabulys
uoneing BuilioD suamo

S3HSINI4 4OI1441X4

NdVd NOLIMIN




NEWTON PARK
UNIT MIX AND AREA SCHEDULE

COMMERCIAL AREAS
# of Units Per
Building Type | Buildings Floor |# of Units SF Total SF Building
Commercial Bldg 1
Ground Floor 13,280
Mezzanine 6,087
Totals 19,367
COMMON AREAS
# of Units Per
Building Type | Buildings Floor |# of Units SF Total SF Building
Clubhouse 1 4,778
Maintenance
Garage & Pool
House 1 1,586
Mail Pavilion 1 228
Totals 6,592

MARKET RENT SCHEDULE (AREA A - MIXED USE BLDG - 85 UNITS)

# of Units Per
Building Type | Buildings Floor |# of Units NRSF Total NRSF | Building
Building 1 1
Studios 24 590 14,160 24
1br/1ba 20 714 14,280 20
Lofts (normal) 1br/1ba 20 820 16,400 20
Loft (end cap) 1br/1ba 5 1,045 5,225 5
2bd/2ba 8 1,030 8,240 8
2 Bd /2 Ba (end cap) 8 1,071 8,568 8
85
85 787 66,873
Ave
Building
NRSF
66,873

MARKET RENT SCHEDULE (AREA B - QUADPLEXES (24) AND SINGLE FAMILY (9)

# of Units Per
Building Type | Buildings Floor |# of Units NRSF Total NRSF | Building
Townhomes 6
2br/2ba 12 1,236 14,832 2
3br/3ba 12 1,399 16,788 2
Totals 24 1,318 31,620
Detached Homes 9
2br/2ba - 1,247 -
2br/2ba (Basement) - 1,247 -
3br/2ba | 9 1,422 12,798 1
3br/2ba (Basement) 9 1,422 12,798
Totals 9 2,844 25,596
33 1,734 57,216
Ave
Building
NRSF
57,216

10/2/2018
W:\construction\Development Projects\Newton Road\Newton Park - Revised Unit SF 10022018 9:50 AM



NEWTON PARK
UNIT MIX AND AREA SCHEDULE

MARKET RENT SCHEDULE (AREA C - BIG HOUSE 100 UNITS)
# of Units Per
Building Type | Buildings Floor |# of Units NRSF Total NRSF | Building
Type 1
Type 1* 6
1br/1ba 1 814 4,884 1
1br/1ba 2 890 10,680 2
1br/1ba 1 916 5,496 1
2bd/2ba 2 1,162 13,944 2
2bd/2ba 2 1,268 15,216 2
2bd/2ba 2 1,386 16,632 2
Total - Type | 10 6,685 66,852 10
Ave
Type 2* 4 Type 2
1br/1ba 1 814 3,256 1
1br/1ba 2 890 7,120 2
1br/1ba 1 916 3,664 1
2bd/2ba 2 1,162 9,296 2
2bd/2ba - 1,268 -
2bd/2ba - 1,386 -
3br/3ba 2 1,492 11,936 2
3br/3ba 2 1,564 12,512 2
Total - Type | 10 4,778 47,784 10
Ave
Mix Summary
1br/1ba 40% 40
2br/2ba 44% 44
3br/3ba 16% 16
Totals/Ave for Type | & Type Il 100 1,146 114,636
Current GPR (per T-12) Ave
Building
* Note: Gross Building Areas (GBA) and Net Rentable Sq Ft (NRSF): NRSF
All building types (Based on Quarry Ph Il calculations)
114,636
Unit Totals 218 1,095 238,725
Grand Totals 218 264,684

10/2/2018
W:\construction\Development Projects\Newton Road\Newton Park - Revised Unit SF 10022018 9:50 AM



NEWTON PARK
SIGN PROGRAM

Mixed Use Building -

e Each of the "signage" letters shall not exceed 7 sq.ft. for a total of 49 sq.ft. of signage area at the
front and 49 sq.ft. at the rear.

e The address sign located at the front of the building shall be an additional 3 sq.ft.

Monument Sign —

e Sign shall have letters saying "Newton Park" that shall not exceed 13 sq.ft.

e Address numbers not exceeding an area of 3 sq.ft

NOTE: Please see architectural elevations for sign locations.



SN d3IXIN - ¥dVd NOLM3N

'14°0S 67 40 VIIV TV1OL V 04

ONIA1ING 40 ¥OVE ANV INO¥4 1V SNOILYDO1
NOIS (2) 404 TI¥OIdAL ‘ONIQTINg 3N

Q3XIN 40 3AVOVH HORALXT LV VIIV IDVNODIS
40 "14'0S (2) $3LON3A V34V AFHOLVH

i
=
=

I

Heat




'SS34Aaav oONialng

dO4 IONVHLINI NIVIA 4V3IN VIHV IOVNOIS J 3SN daXIN - Y4Vd NOLM3N

40 "14'0s (€) S3LON3A VIV AFHOLVH

MELL T

I--

CA9INDIS
| FOYNDIS |

"JONVHINT NIVIA ¥V3N VIV IDVNOIS
40 '14'0s (2) S3LON3A V3IYY QIHOLVH



‘S'I'N :3TVOS
dOVNOIS Tvls3d3ad
'$3IS HLO8 LV TVDIdAL

'$S34AAV HO4 NOIS INFJWNNOW LV IOVNODIS
40 "14°0s (€) SILONIA VIYVY AIHDLVH

e

'S3dIS HLO4
1V TVOIdAL 'NOIS INFWNNOIN LV IOVNODIS
40 "14'0S (€T) SILON3A VIV QIHOLVH



'STI'N JTVOS

4OVNOIS TV1Sdddd - XdVd NOLMAN

||‘V_|Q

S

II‘V—I

AOVE ANV INOYd 1V TVOIdAL
"3IOVdS IDVNDIS 40 “14'0S €89

‘NOIS TV1S3d3d 40 %
S31ON3d V34V Ad3FHOLVH -

__Av.l_m _



TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY

For The Proposed

6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD Development

Meridian Charter Township, Ingham County, Ml

February, 2018

Prepared by:

Traffic Engineering
Associates, Inc.

PO Box 100 » Saranac, Michigan 48881
517/627-6028 FAK:517/627-6040




Executive Summary

Introduction

Existing Conditions

Background Conditions

Future Conditions

Significant Findings

Supplemental Information

Table of Contents

Project Description
Scope of Work
Aerial Site Map

Roadways & Intersections

Land Use

Existing Traffic Volumes

Level of Service Analysis for Existing Traffic

Scheduled Roadway Improvements

Background Traffic Volumes — Growth Related
Background Traffic Volumes — Development Related
Level of Service Analysis for Background Traffic

Site Traffic Generation

Site Traffic Distribution

Level of Service Analysis for Future Traffic

Level of Service Analysis for Future Mitigated Traffic

Driveway Analysis for a Turn Lane or Taper
Non-Motorized Transportation

Sight Distance

Recommendations

Site Plan

US Census Data for Meridian Township

Vehicle Volume Counts

ICRC 24-hour Volume Count for Newton Road
ICRD Guidelines for Right-Turn Lanes and Tapers
ICRD Guidelines for Left Turn Passing Lanes
MDOT Guidelines for Right-Turn Lanes and Tapers
LOS Computations

27
28
28
28
29

30




List of Tables
Table Title Page
1 Level of Service (LOS) Summary — Existing Traffic 10
2 Level of Service (LOS) Summary — Background Traffic 15
3 Vehicle Trip Generation Summary — 6276 Newton and M-78 18
MUPUD development
4 Level of Service (LOS) Summary —Future Traffic 23
5 Level of Service (LOS) Summary —Future Mitigated Traffic 26

List of Figures

Figure Title Page
1 Existing Traffic — Peak Hours 8

2 Background Growth Traffic — Peak Hours 13

3 Site Traffic — Peak Hours 20

4 Future Traffic — Peak Hours 21




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc. (TEA) conducted a traffic impact study for the proposed
6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD development in Meridian Charter Township, Ingham
County, Michigan. The purpose of this study is to determine the impact of traffic to be
generated on the surrounding road system. The new development will consist of 217
residential units with 13,280 square feet of office space on approximately 26 acres.

The new development will be located in the southeast corner of Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78
(BL-69) and Newton Road. The site plan shows two (2) proposed entrances on Saginaw
Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69), which are designed as a right-in and right-out only, as well as
one (1) proposed full access entrance on Newton Road. The proposed development is
expected to be completed and fully occupied by the beginning of 2021.

TEA, Inc. conducted vehicle counts during the midweek, of a non-holiday week in the month
of January, 2018, at three (3) locations along Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69); Newton
Road, East Median Opening, and Towner Road. The existing weekday AM and PM peak
hour traffic volumes are 7:15 — 8:15 AM and 4:45 — 5:45 PM, respectively. All existing
turning movements at the studied intersections operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS
C or better).

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) has plans beginning in 2019 to rebuild
Saginaw Highway between Newton Road and Towner Road. The new roadway design will
close off the boulevard openings at Newton Road and Towner Road. There are proposed
median openings east and west of the existing intersections such that all traffic on Newton
Road and Towner Road will be required to make a right turn, then use one of the median
openings to either complete their route on Newton Road or Towner Road or to make a left
turn. The new 2019 geometrics were utilized for the background and future traffic as the
proposed development will not be completed and fully occupied until the beginning of 2021.

Background traffic represents future volumes without the traffic generated by the proposed
6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD. The target year for completion is the beginning of 2021,
therefore, a three (3) year growth rate was applied to the existing traffic volumes. Under
background conditions, it is anticipated that all movements will operate at an acceptable level
of service (LOS D or better).

The trip generation rates for the proposed 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD were derived
from the ITE TRIP GENERATION MANUAL (10th edition). It is projected that the
proposed 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD will generate 139 vehicle trips in the AM peak
hour, 169 vehicle trips in the PM peak hour, and 1,914 weekday trips. Under future
conditions, it is projected that all movements will continue to operate at an acceptable level
of service (LOS C or better) except for the southbound right turn movement on Newton Road
to westbound Saginaw Highway.




The findings of this study show that consideration should be given to upgrading Newton
Road with dual southbound right turn lanes at the intersection of Newton Road and Saginaw
Highway to improve the level of service and reduce the vehicle delays during the AM peak
hour. In addition, the projected traffic volumes at the two (2) proposed new driveways on
eastbound Saginaw Highway meet the MDOT guidelines for a right turn taper.




INTRODUCTION




PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The purpose of this study is to determine the impact of traffic to be generated by the
proposed 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD development located in Meridian Charter
Township, Ingham County, Michigan. The new development will consist of 217 residential
units and 13,280 square feet of office space on approximately 26 acres.

The new development will be located in the southeast corner of Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78
(BL-69) and Newton Road. The site plan shows two (2) proposed entrances on Saginaw
Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69), which are designed as a right-in and right-out only, as well as
one (1) proposed full access entrance on Newton Road. The proposed development is
expected to be completed and fully occupied by the beginning of 2021.




SCOPE OF WORK

The scope of work contained in this report is as follows:

Analysis of existing traffic conditions on the adjoining street system, including the
following intersections;

» Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and Newton Road
» Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and East Median Opening
» Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and Towner Road

e Analysis of background traffic conditions on the adjoining street system, which includes
the above listed intersections, for the future year 2021 volumes without the proposed
6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD.

e Projection of future traffic volumes to be generated by the proposed 6276 Newton and M-
78 MUPUD for the future year.

e Analysis of the impact of future traffic for the proposed 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD
at the above listed intersections.

e Determination of what roadway and traffic control improvements, if any, will be needed
to accommodate future traffic volumes for the proposed 6276 Newton and M-78
MUPUD.




ggoogle

Aerial Site Map




EXISTING CONDITIONS




ROADWAYS AND INTERSECTIONS

Roadways

Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) runs northeast to southwest at the proposed site and is
a four-lane paved roadway with a grass boulevard and with paved shoulders. Saginaw
Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) is under the jurisdiction of the Michigan Department of
Transportation (MDOT). The posted speed limit is posted 55 MPH.

Newton Road is a paved, two (2) lane roadway with a paved shoulder. Newton Road is
under the jurisdiction of the Ingham County Department of Roads. The roadway is posted 45
MPH north of Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and is an unposted prime facie 55 mph
south of Saginaw Highway.

Intersections

Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and Newton Road

The intersection of Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and Newton Road is a stop sign
controlled intersection with northbound and southbound Newton Road stopping for Saginaw
Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69). The northeast and southwest approaches on Saginaw
Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) have five (5) lanes with one (1) exclusive left turn lane, one (1)
thru lane, one (1) thru-right lane and two (2) outbound lanes. The north and south
approaches on Newton Road are two (2) lanes with one (1) thru-right lane and one (1)
outbound lane.

Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and Towner Road

The intersection of Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and Towner Road is a stop sign
controlled intersection with westbound Towner Road stopping for Saginaw Highway/ Old
M-78 (BL-69). The northeast and southwest approaches on Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78
(BL-69) have four (4) lanes with one (1) left-thru lane, one (1) thru-right lane and two (2)
outbound lanes. The east approach on Towner Road is two (2) lanes with one (1) thru-right
lane and one (1) outbound lane. The west approach is a private driveway.




LAND USE

The proposed 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD will consist of residential units and office
space. The proposed site is currently vacant land. The surrounding land use includes
residential and commercial uses.

EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES

TEA, Inc. conducted vehicle counts during the midweek, of a non-holiday week in the month
of January, 2018, at the following locations:

» Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and Newton Road
» Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and East Median Opening
» Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) and Towner Road

The existing weekday AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes are 7:15 — 8:15 AM and 4:45 -
5:45 PM at the key locations, respectively. The existing volumes are illustrated in Figure 1.




g8 39vd

SIN FWOS

810z ‘fpnuqay

A1va

SInoH pad — ouyoi) Bupsix3 :L 3YNII4

sowniop (Wd S¥S—S¥#) JH dd Wd (XxXX)
sawn(op (WY GL:B-GIiL) JH Ad WV XX

8Z09-£29 (L1S) “INOHd
1888F IN ‘oDuniog
00} %08 Od
DNl "SAUVIDOSSY
ONRIFINIONT DLVl

J8UMO]

/

A 6 (5)
<« 86 (26)

&

L2
<0
\> v— 86 (24)

~

2<

‘J-J
)
(5]

ow

o -
Private Dr 1) 3’

AN39T1T
andni
pooY uOoIMaN
pesodoud g
ce
— M
M ™~

€ 36 (134)

(40) 81 —

(32) 103 —

(81) 141 >

R




LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR EXISTING TRAFFIC

The critical intersections defined for this study were analyzed according to the methodologies
published in the most recent edition of the Highway Capacity Manual. The analysis
determines the “Level of Service” of the intersections and is based on factors such as the
number and types of lanes, signal timing, traffic volumes, pedestrian activity, etc. The level
of service (LOS) is defined by average vehicle delay in seconds created by a traffic control
device for a given traffic movement or intersection approach.

Level of Service Delay per Vehicle (seconds)
Non-Signalized Signalized
A <10 <10
B 10to 15 10to 20
C 15t0 25 20to 35
D 2510 35 351055
E 351050 55 to 80
F > 50 > 80

Levels of Service are expressed in a range from “A” to “F,” with “A” being the highest LOS
and “F” representing the lowest LOS. Level of service “D” is considered the minimum
acceptable LOS in an urban area.

The above table shows the thresholds for Levels of Service “A” through “F” for non-
signalized and signalized intersections, respectively.

All Level of Service computations contained in this report were based upon the Synchro
software package which is approved by the Michigan Department of Transportation
(MDOT). Delay per vehicle includes initial deceleration delay, queue move-up time, stopped
delay, and final acceleration delay.

The Level of Service analysis for existing traffic at the subject intersections during the peak
hours is summarized in Table 1. All existing turning movements at the studied intersections
operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS C or better).




10

Table 1
Level of Service (LOS) Summary
Existing Traffic
Weekday Weekday
L ocation Movement AM Peak Hour | PM Peak Hour
Avg. Avg.
Delay LOS Delay LOS

Saginaw Highway/ Old | NEB Left 0.0 A 0.0 A
M-78 (BL-69) and NEB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
Newton Road SWB Left 0.0 A 0.0 A

SWB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A

NB Left-Thru-Right 9.4 A 16.7 C

SB Left-Thru-Right 23.7 C 10.6 B

Intersection 2.9 A 1.9 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old | NEB Left-Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
M-78 (BL-69) and SWB Left-Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
Towner Road NB Left-Thru-Right 9.7 A 13.6 B

SB Left-Thru-Right 0.0 A 10.0 B

Intersection 2.9 A 0.5 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old | NEB Left-Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
M-78 (BL-69) and East | SWB Left-Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
Median Opening Intersection 0.0 A 0.0 A

Note: Delay = Average control delay per vehicle in seconds.
LOS = Level of Service




11

BACKGROUND CONDITIONS




12

SCHEDULED ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) has plans beginning in 2019 to rebuild
Saginaw Highway between Newton Road and Towner Road. The new roadway design will
close off the boulevard openings at Newton Road and Towner Road. There are proposed
median openings east and west of the existing intersections such that all traffic on Newton
Road and Towner Road will be required to make a right turn, then use one of the median
openings to either complete their route on Newton Road or Towner Road or to make a left
turn. The new 2019 geometrics were utilized for the background and future traffic as the
proposed development will not be completed and fully occupied until the beginning of 2021.

BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES — GROWTH RELATED

Background traffic represents future volumes without the traffic generated by the proposed
6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD. The target year for completion is the beginning of 2021,
therefore, a three (3) year growth rate was applied to the existing traffic volumes.

According to the Meridian Charter Township Planning Department, the total population
growth for Meridian Charter Township from 2010 to 2016 is six point nine percent (6.9%).
An annual average growth rate of one point one percent (1.1%) was utilized for the
background growth period to project traffic to the build out date of the beginning of 2021
(three years). The proposed growth related background weekday AM and PM peak hour
traffic volumes are illustrated in Figure 2.

BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES - DEVELOPMENT RELATED

There were no new developments identified by the Meridian Charter Township Planning
Department in the immediate area that would influence the background traffic for the
proposed 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD; therefore, no background developments were
included in the study.




£l

*30vd SIN FWOS

810z ‘fpnuqay

A1va

SINOH pad — 921jpJ] punoibxoog :Z 3I¥NOIY

sowniop (Wd S¥S—S¥#) JH dd Wd (XxXX)
sawn(op (WY GL:B-GIiL) JH Ad WV XX

AN39T1

8Z09-£29 (L1S) “INOHd
1888F IN ‘oDuniog
00} %08 Od
DNl "SAUVIDOSSY
ONRIFINIONT DLVl

J8UMO]

Private Dr

(18) 0 —

andnw
pDOY UOMAN
pasodouyg

(74) 190 —

(v6)
(ez¥)

v ws\\)

ey =7




14

LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR BACKGROUND TRAFFIC

For background conditions, the MDOT 2019 scheduled roadway improvements were
incorporated. The level of service analysis for background 2021 traffic is summarized in
Table 2. Under background conditions, it is anticipated that all movements will operate at an
acceptable level of service (LOS D or better).




Note:

Table 2

Level of Service (LOS) Summary
Background Traffic

15

Weekday Weekday
Location Movement AM Peak Hour | PM Peak Hour
Avg. Avg.
Delay LOS Delay LOS

Saginaw Highway/ Old M- | NEB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
78 (BL-69) and Newton SWB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
Road NB Right 10.3 B 21.1 C

SB Right 31.1 D 12.1 B

Intersection 14 A 2.2 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M- | NEB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
78 (BL-69) and Towner SWB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
Road NB Right 9.7 A 14.1 B

SB Right 0.0 A 10.3 B

Intersection 2.9 A 0.4 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M- | SWB Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
78 (BL-69) and Crossover | NB Left 17.5 C 10.6 B
East of Towner Road Intersection 0.6 A 1.1 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M- | NEB Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
78 (BL-69) and Crossover | SB Left 9.3 A 13.6 B
West of Towner Road Intersection 0.1 A 0.2 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M- | SWB Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
78 (BL-69) and Crossover | NB Left 18.3 C 12.7 B
East of Newton Road Intersection 14 A 3.2 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M- | NEB Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
78 (BL-69) and Crossover | SB Left 104 B 17.6 C
West of Towner Road Intersection 3.9 A 1.5 A

LOS = Level of Service

Delay = Average control delay per vehicle in seconds.




16

FUTURE CONDITIONS




17

SITE TRAFFIC GENERATION

There are three areas specified on the proposed site plan. Area A consists of three floors of
apartments with 85 units and 13,280 square feet of office space. Area B is proposed to
contain 16 units of rental townhomes and 16 units of single family homes. Area C will
consist of two floors of apartments with 100 units. The trip generation rates for the proposed
6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD were derived from the ITE TRIP GENERATION
MANUAL (10th edition).

The ITE trip generation rates for Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise), Land Use Code 221, were
selected as representing the 85 units of apartments in Area A. The ITE description of
Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise) is as follows:

Mid-rise multifamily housing includes apartments, townhouses, and condominiums located
within the same building with at least three other dwelling units and that have between three
and 10 levels (floors).

The ITE trip generation rates for Medical-Dental Office Building, Land Use Code 720, were
selected as representing the 13,280 square foot office space in Area A. The ITE description
of Medical-Dental Office Building is as follows:

A medical-dental office building is a facility that provides diagnoses and outpatient care on a
routine basis but is unable to provide prolonged in-house medical and surgical care. One or
more private physicians or dentists generally operate this type of facility.

The ITE trip generation rates for Single-Family Detached Housing (Land Use Code 210)
were selected to represent the proposed 16 units of single family homes in Area B. The ITE
description of Single-Family Detached Housing is as follows:

Single-family detached housing includes all single-family homes on individual lots. A typical
site surveyed is a suburban subdivision.

The ITE trip generation rates for Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise), Land Use Code 220,
were selected as representing the 16 units of townhomes in Area B and the 100 units of
apartments in Area C for a total of 116 units. The ITE description of Multifamily Housing
(Low-Rise) is as follows:

Low-rise multifamily housing includes apartments, townhouses, and condominiums located
within the same building with at least three other dwelling units and that have one or two
levels (floors).

It is projected that the proposed 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD will generate 139 vehicle
trips in the AM peak hour, 169 vehicle trips in the PM peak hour, and 1,914 weekday trips.
The projected traffic to be generated by the 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD is summarized
in Table 3.




18

Table 3
Vehicle Trip Generation Summary
6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD Development

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Land Use Size In | Out | Total [ In | Out| Total | Weekday
Multifamily 85
Housing (Mid-Rise), Units 8 23 31 23 15 38 462
Land Use Code 221
Medical-Dental
Office Building, 132891 o9 | g | 37 | 13 | 34| 47 423
Land Use Code 720 sq. Tt
Multifamily
Housing (Low- 116
Rise), Land Use Units 13 42 55 42 25 67 836
Code 220
Single-Family 16
Detached Housing, Units 4 12 16 11 6 17 193
Land Use Code 210
Total Trips 54 85 139 89 80 169 1,914




19

SITE TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION

Traffic distribution for the proposed 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD development was
distributed based on the surrounding roadway patterns and the development use. A
residential facility is an origin type of facility and has a traffic pattern where vehicles are
exiting in the morning and entering in the evening. Therefore, the existing exiting traffic
pattern on the roadway system during the morning and the entering traffic pattern during the
evening generated the residential distribution for this study. The distribution for the
residential generated traffic is as follows.

. . AM Peak PM Peak
Direction of Approach and Departure Hour Hour
To/From the WEST on Saginaw Highway 72% 63%
To/From the EAST on Saginaw Highway 15% 25%
To/From the NORTH on Newton Road 3% 4%
To/From the SOUTH on Newton Road 9% 6%
To/From the EAST on Towner Road 1% 2%

An office or commercial facility is a destination type of facility and has a traffic pattern
where vehicles are entering in the morning and exiting in the evening. Therefore, the
existing entering traffic pattern on the roadway system during the morning and the exiting
traffic pattern during the evening generated the office building distribution for this study.
The distribution for the office building generated traffic is as follows.

. . AM Peak PM Peak
Direction of Approach and Departure Hour Hour
To/From the WEST on Saginaw Highway 14% 23%
To/From the EAST on Saginaw Highway 67% 59%
To/From the NORTH on Newton Road 11% 10%
To/From the SOUTH on Newton Road 3% 5%
To/From the EAST on Towner Road 5% 3%

Traffic was then further distributed by driveway. The distribution for the proposed
development driveways were based on the following; all traffic to/from the south on Newton
Road was distributed to the south drive on Newton Road. The remaining Area A traffic was
distributed to the West Drive on Saginaw Highway, the remaining Area B traffic was
distributed to the South drive on Newton Road and the remaining Area C traffic was
distributed to the East Drive on Saginaw Highway.

The total estimated site generated traffic for the proposed 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD
development during the AM and PM peak hours is illustrated in Figure 3.

Adding the project site traffic (Figure 3) to the background traffic (Figure 2) generates the
total anticipated future traffic which is displayed in Figure 4.




02 39vd

SIN FWOS

810z ‘fpnuqay

A1va

sowniop (Wd S¥S—S¥#) JH dd Wd (XxXX)
sawn(op (WY GL:B-GIiL) JH Ad WV XX

8209—£29 (L1S) T3INOHd
1888 IN ‘oouniDg
00} *0g Od

SINOH %D3d — OWypdl BYS ¢ F¥NIIJ onzom oo oSy
€
L]
aAug S
pasodoug L
andnw
pPoOY UOIMBN ) ¢-A
pasodoug (®) ot —y

o

JSUMO[ /
-~
z
™~

Lv ﬁrﬂu
M o (Y] m

o -7
T —7

Private Dr

Proposed
W Drive

(16) 6 —A




e 39vd SIN JWOS gloz ‘forugsy  :31vQ sawnop (Nd S¥S—S¥+) JH Ad Wd (XXX) 8209-£29 (£1S) :INOHd
. . 1g88F IN ‘ODuDJDS
sawnop (WY SL:B-GLiL) JH Ad WY XXX 00} *o8 Od
SINOH Dad — o1pJ] aimng ¥y IYNIIH ONREINENS DL
[ EREN
£
ORS)
w
M on
anug S
pasodoud & ._\
andnw
pooy uoImMaN e ¢-* J .ﬁ
pasodoug @ —~| ©°a5
()
o e
[ §4
2s
o=

J8UMOL

Private Dr




22

LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR FUTURE TRAFFIC

For future conditions, the MDOT 2019 scheduled roadway improvements along Saginaw
Highway/ Old M-78 (BL-69) were incorporated. The level of service analysis for future
traffic is summarized in Table 4. Comparing future level of service conditions to
background level of service conditions determines the impact that can be expected from the
addition of traffic generated from the 6276 Newton and M-78 MUPUD.

Under future conditions, it is projected that all movements will continue to operate at an
acceptable level of service (LOS C or better), except for the southbound right turn movement
from Newton Road to westbound Saginaw Highway during the AM peak hour. This
movement is expected to operate at a LOS E with a vehicle delay of 37.4 seconds, a 6.3
second increase from background traffic.




Table 4

Level of Service (LOS) Summary

Future Traffic

23

Weekday Weekday
Location Movement AM Peak Hour | PM Peak Hour
Avg. Avg.
Delay LOS Delay LOS

Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 | NEB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
(BL-69) and Newton Road SWB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A

NB Right 10.7 B 24.3 C

SB Right 37.4 E 12.7 B

Intersection 4.3 A 2.6 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 | NEB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
(BL-69) and Towner Road SWB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A

NB Right 10.0 B 145 B

SB Right 0.0 A 10.5 B

Intersection 2.7 A 0.5 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 | SWB Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
(BL-69) and Crossover East | NB Left 20.9 C 11.0 B
of Towner Road Intersection 2.0 A 14 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 | NEB Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
(BL-69) and Crossover West | SB Left 9.5 A 14.0 B
of Towner Road Intersection 0.1 A 0.2 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 | SWB Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
(BL-69) and Crossover East | NB Left 20.6 C 13.9 B
of Newton Road Intersection 1.2 A 3.7 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 | NEB Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
(BL-69) and Crossover West | SB Left 10.9 B 20.8 C
of Towner Road Intersection 4.3 A 2.2 A

Note:

LOS = Level of Service

Delay = Average control delay per vehicle in seconds.




24

Table 4 (Continued)
Level of Service (LOS) Summary
Future Traffic

Weekday Weekday
Location Movement AM Peak Hour | PM Peak Hour
Avg. Avg.
Delay LOS Delay LOS
Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 | NEB Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
(BL-69) and East Driveway | NB Right 9.5 A 145 B
Intersection 0.9 A 0.2 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 | NEB Thru 0.0 A 0.0 A
(BL-69) and West Driveway | NB Right 9.8 A 17.0 C
Intersection 0.7 A 0.5 A
Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 | NB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
(BL-69) and South Driveway | SB Left-Thru 7.4 A 7.6 A
WB Left-Right 9.2 A 9.7 A
Intersection 1.0 A 0.9 A

Note: Delay = Average control delay per vehicle in seconds.
LOS = Level of Service




25

LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR MITIGATED FUTURE TRAFFIC

For future mitigated conditions, the MDOT 2019 scheduled roadway improvements were
incorporated, except for the southbound movement on Newton Road. The existing single
southbound right turn lane was changed to a dual southbound right turn lane.

The level of service analysis for future mitigated traffic at the intersection of Newton Road
and Saginaw Highway during the AM and PM peak hours is summarized in Table 5. All
future mitigated turning movements at the studied intersection are projected to operate at an
acceptable level of service (LOS C or better) during the peak hours.

With the expansion of the southbound right turn lane from a single lane to a dual right turn
lane, the future level of service and vehicle delays are expected to be improved.




26

Table 5

Level of Service (LOS) Summary
Future Mitigated Traffic

Weekday Weekday
Location Movement AM Peak Hour | PM Peak Hour
Avg. Avg.
Delay LOS Delay LOS
Saginaw Highway/ Old M-78 | NEB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
(BL-69) and Newton Road SWB Thru-Right 0.0 A 0.0 A
NB Right 10.7 B 24.3 C
SB Right 22.7 C 12.0 B
Intersection 4.3 A 2.6 A

Note: Delay = Average control delay per vehicle in seconds.
LOS = Level of Service




27

SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS




28

DRIVEWAY ANALYSIS FOR A TURN LANE OR TAPER

The Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) has roadway standards to determine the
necessity of left turn passing lanes or right turn lanes/tapers at intersections. These standards
are found in their “Rules, Standards and Procedures for Driveways, Banners and Parades
Upon or Over Ingham County Road Commission Right of Way.” Using the ICRD standards,
an analysis was conducted to determine if a left turn passing lane or a right turn lane/taper
were warranted for the new proposed driveway on Newton Road.

Using the ICRD guidelines for left turn passing lanes, the results show that projected AM and
PM peak hour left turn volumes do not meet the guidelines for a left turn passing lane at the
intersection of the proposed new driveway and Newton Road. Using the ICRD guidelines
for right turn lanes or tapers, the projected northbound right turning volumes do not meet the
guidelines for a right turn taper at the proposed driveway location and Newton Road.

The Michigan Department of Transportation has roadway standards to determine the
necessity of right turn lanes/tapers at intersections. These standards are found in their
“Geometric Design Guidelines”. Using the MDOT standards, an analysis was conducted to
determine if a right turn lane/taper was warranted for the two (2) proposed new driveways on
northeast bound Saginaw Highway. Using the MDOT guidelines for right turn lanes/tapers,
during the PM peak hour the guidelines for a right turn taper are expected to be met at both
the proposed east and west driveways.

NON-MOTORIZED TRANSPORTATION

There are no non-motorized transportation facilities on Newton Road or Saginaw Highway.

SIGHT DISTANCE

The proposed new driveway on Newton Road is located just south of Saginaw Highway and
there are not expected to be sight distance issues on Newton Road. The proposed two (2)
new driveways on Saginaw Highway are located just east of the Newton Road intersection.
A field review shows that there should be adequate sight distance along Saginaw Highway at
these two locations; however, as none of the driveway locations have been marked in the
field, all sight distance should be reviewed again when the driveway locations are finalized.




29

RECOMMENDATIONS

The new 2019 roadway design proposed by MDOT will close off the boulevard openings at
Newton Road and Towner Road, and require all through traffic and left turning traffic at
these intersections to turn right and use the new median openings. The findings of this study
show that consideration should be given to upgrading Newton Road with dual southbound
right turn lanes at the intersection of Newton Road and Saginaw Highway to improve the
level of service and reduce the vehicle delays during the AM peak hour.

The projected traffic volumes at the two (2) proposed new driveways on eastbound Saginaw
Highway meet the MDOT guidelines for a right turn taper.




NATURAL FEATURES STUDY
NEWTON PARK

A. Introduction, Site Location and Project Description

DTN Management has submitted an application for a MUPUD named Newton Park. This is the Natural

Features Study for Newton Park. The property is located on the southeast quadrant at the intersection of
Newton Road and M-78 (Parcel Nos. 33-02-02-04-252-004 & 33-02-02-04-252-005). The Natural Features
Study includes a description of the anticipated impacts on the natural features that contains the following:

a. Aninventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. Natural features
shall include, but are not limited to, wetlands, significant stands of trees or individual trees greater
than 12 inches dbh, floodways, floodplains, waterbodies, identified groundwater vulnerable areas,
slopes greater than 20 percent, ravines, and vegetative cover types with potential to sustain
significant or endangered wildlife.

b. Description of the impacts on natural features.

c. Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative impacts.

The project is located within Meridian Township and Ingham County (address is 6276 Newton Road). The
site is a 26.11 acre parcel that received approval for rezoning (#06050) to Commercial (C-2) by the Meridian
Township Board on March 20, 2007. The approval for rezoning is conditioned on the site being developed
under the Township’s mixed-use planned unit development ordinance limiting the types of permitted uses
and the residential density of the development. This MUPUD application complies with these conditions.

To the West of the property is a Meridian TWP water tower, Kingdom Hall of Jehovah’s Witnesses and
Hammond Farms Landscape Supply. To the East is the Towner Road Township Park. To the North is a parcel
being developed as a church. South of the property is the Sierra Ridge residential development.

The acreage for the proposed site includes approximately 5% acres of existing wetland and partially wooded
areas. With the construction of the buildings and the parking lot, some of the natural resources on-site will
be disturbed and some are proposed to be removed. A Wetland Use permit application has been
submitted for storm water discharge to the existing wetlands. The existing wetlands were delineated and
flagged by Steve Voice and they have been verified with Meridian Township. Voice Environmental’s
Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report dated February 22, 2018 and their Summary of Site
Observations and Professional Opinion on Appropriate Upland/Wetland Boundary Revisions for the Newton
Pointe LLC Property dated July 20, 2018 are contained herein. Also contained herein is the Township’s July
31, 2018 acceptance of Voice Environmental’s conclusions for the wetland boundaries.

B. Natural Features Inventory

The site was evaluated using a number of different materials and methods. Several field surveys and
walkthroughs have been completed on the site. Several maps and pertinent data were also studied for the
site. In the following paragraphs, we will review the items relevant to the Natural Features Study.



1.

NATURAL FEATURES STUDY
NEWTON PARK

Wetlands

Existing wetlands were flagged and verified and these areas were mapped on the final site plans. There
is no water present in the delineated areas, but there were several trees, grasses and sapling/shrub
habitat. These were delineated as Wetland A, B, C and D. Wetland A is approximately 4.78 acres and
Wetland B is approximately 0.65 acres. Further investigation and delineation of Wetland C and D was no
longer necessary since neither area was larger than % acre.

There is no fill or disturbance being proposed within the wetland boundary, however, storm water
runoff will discharged into the wetlands, and an application for a Wetland Use Permit for discharge is
submitted to Meridian Township herein.

Significant Trees

A tree survey has been provided for the site in this application. The significant trees (trees 12” dbh and
above) have been located on the parcel and are designated on the tree survey included herein. The
proposed building and parking lot appear to affect several of the on-site trees, most of which are
cottonwoods. The site will be retaining quite a few trees within the approximately 5% acres of wetlands
and elsewhere on the site through adjustment of building locations. Attached are a few pictures of the
trees on-site.

Floodplains - Floodways
A survey was done for the property and it was determined that a no portion of the parcel lies within the
existing floodplain.

Waterbodies — Streams, Creeks, Drains, Lakes

The site does not include any permanent water bodies such as ponds, lakes or streams. The site
generally slopes to the middle of the parcel to the existing wetland area. It appears the wetlands
currently do and will in the future provide treatment and storage for storm water runoff.

Groundwater Vulnerability

Areas of groundwater vulnerability are areas where the hydrologic and geologic surface and subsurface
setting makes the groundwater more vulnerable to contamination than in other areas. This would apply
to the wetland areas that have been delineated on the project site. Soil erosion and sedimentation
control (SESC) measures will be installed and maintained by the developer throughout the construction
period, as required by the State of Michigan, Meridian Township and the Ingham County Drain
Commissioner, and will be removed once the entire site has been stabilized. These measures will
significantly reduce the possibility of soil erosion and the water transport of soils and/or contaminants
into adjacent waterways and wetlands, which would cause degradation of those systems and features.
It is unlikely that this site will have adverse impacts on any area of groundwater vulnerability.

Site Topography, Existing Soils and Slopes
The existing parcel is generally sloped from the existing boundaries to the middle of the parcel (into the
wetlands). The site is higher in the northeast corner of the parcel and, other than the southeast corner



NATURAL FEATURES STUDY
NEWTON PARK

of the site, it is gently sloped (less than 1’ drop in 20" horizontal) for the majority of the site. The existing
slopes in the southeast corner of the site very from relatively flat to a maximum of 1’ of drop in 10’
horizontal slopes. Due to the relative flatness of the site, on-site construction should not require large
cuts or fills due to severe slopes. This should make construction of the buildings, roads, infrastructure
and amenities manageable. It is the intent to leave as much existing vegetation along property lines in
place as possible and it will be enhanced with the plantings as shown on the submitted landscape plan.

There are six (6) soil series mapped for the site. Three of these soils series, Capac loam, 0 to 4% slopes
(CaA), Oshtemo-Spinks loamy sands, 0 to 6% slopes (OtB) and Spinks loamy sand, 0 to 6% slopes (SpB),
are non-hydric. The other three, Houghton Muck, 0 to 1% slopes (Hn), Urban land-Capac-Colwood
complex, 0 to 4% slopes (UpA) and Urban Land-Marlette complex, 2 to 12% slopes(UtB) are designated
as hydric soils.

Vegetative Cover

Upland Areas -There is a variety of upland ecosystem types present on the project site. Open field areas
dominate the west side of the property (west of the relatively large lowland area delineated as Wetland
A). At this location, both the tree and sapling-shrub layers (strata) are absent. The herbaceous layer is
dominated by rough-leaf goldenrod (Solidago rugosa), and Kentucky bluegrass (Poa pratensis) but daisy
fleabane (Erigeron strigosus), Queen Anne’s lace (Daucus carota) and black medic (Medicago lupulina)
are also present.

The next upland area is on the south side of the property and immediately to the west of an isolated
lowland depression delineated as Wetland C. At this location, the tree stratum is dominated by black
oak (Quercus velutina) and shagbark hickory (Carya ovata). The sapling shrub layer is dominated by
shagbark hickory and black cherry (Prumus serotina) and herbaceous layer is dominated by black cherry
seedlings and somewhat weedy, dwarf enchanter’s nightshade (Circaea alpina).

A third upland area is in the northeast portion of the project site. It is shrub-dominated, abandoned
field areas, undergoing old field succession present in this area. At this location, the tree layer is absent,
the sapling shrub layer is dominated by autumn olive (Elaeagnus umbellata), grey dogwood (Cornus
racemosa) and honeysuckle (Lonicera tatarica), and the herbaceous layer is dominated by common
blackberry (Rubus alleghaniensis), rough leaf goldenrod (Solidago rugosa) and perennial rye (Lolium
perenne).

Wetland Areas - There are four (4) lowland areas present on the project site. These were delineated as
Wetland A, B, Cand D. Wetland A is approximately 4.78 acres and Wetland B is approximately 0.65
acres. Further investigation and delineation of Wetland C and D was no longer necessary since nether
area was larger than % acre.

The majority of Wetland A is best characterized as an open marsh; however, there is a forested area
adjacent to this open marsh community on the southside of the feature and near the delineated
upland/wetland boundary. At this location, this tree layer of this wetland is dominated by Eastern
cottonwood (Populus deltoids) and silver maple (Acer saccharinum), the sapling/shrub layer is



NATURAL FEATURES STUDY
NEWTON PARK

dominated by glossy buckthorn (Frangula alnus), grey dogwood and silver maple, and the herbaceous
layer is dominated by grey dogwood, and poison ivy (Toxicodendron radicans).

Wetland B is a forested wetland depression throughout. The tree layer is dominated by red maple (Acer
rubrum) and Eastern cottonwood, the sapling/shrub layer is dominated by red maple and green ash
(Fraxinus pennsylvanica) and the herbaceous stratum is dominated by a cover (estimated to be about
15%) of green ash seedlings and virtually no other species.

Wildlife

Evidence of wildlife presence has been observed throughout the site by various tracks in the dirt, fresh
droppings, runs, beds, nests, holes and gnawed trees. There is evidence of white tailed deer, rabbit,
raccoon and gray squirrels in the form of tracks and/or animal droppings. It is also likely that the site is
used by other common species that were not seen or evidenced, such as insects (e.g. honeybees, wasps,
mosquitos, ants), birds (e.g. robins, blue jays, chickadees), chipmunks, frogs, snakes and others native
to this area. These species are considered common and have a wide tolerance when it comes to diet
and habitat. In general, this property provides habitat for a similar fauna as is found in most areas of
vacant land in central Michigan.

It is unlikely that the existing wildlife habitat will be displaced much —if any, due to the construction of
the building and the parking areas. Since a large portion of the site will remain as is (approximately 5%
acres), a generous wildlife habitat will remain for the enjoyment of the wildlife and the residents.

Conclusions and Recommendations

The selected parcel was reviewed to determine the existing vegetation and trees, existing wildlife,
existing soils, existing waterbodies that may be present (wetlands, floodplains, etc.) and other pertinent
features. The site has different types of vegetation found throughout the parcel. There are native tree
stands that mostly consist of cottonwood, however, there are also red and silver maple, shagbark
hickory, and black oak trees that exist. The soils consist of Capac loam, Oshtemo-Spinks, Spinks,
Houghton Muck, Urban Land Capac-Colwood Complex and Urban Land-Marlette Complex. The
topography of the existing parcel is generally sloped from the existing boundaries to the middle of the
parcel (into the wetlands). The site is higher in the northeast corner of the parcel and, for the most part,
is gently sloped.

In conclusion, it is our opinion that the new development will not cause significant losses to the natural
features and resources of this parcel. The existing wetlands and several trees will remain intact. There
are some nice trees in portions of the property that will have to be removed, but most of these trees
were non-native to the site. The remaining wetlands will provide the wildlife habitat to remain in this
development. Strict soil erosion and sedimentation control will be enforced during construction.



ENVIRONMENTAL

Hall of

ahs esses
) Vacant Land
" "’l

Legend

l Property Line

s

Figure 2: Generalized Diagram of the Subject Property and
Surrounding Area

Vacant Land Property
6276 Newton Road, Haslett, Michigan
PM Project No. 01-9818-0-0001




PM Photographs From Site Reconnaissance
PM Project No. 01-9818-0-0002
ENVIRONMENTAL Location: 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, Michigan

Photograph 1

Subject property from the north, facing south

" ) #
( UM AR N L
1 e o
A i AL R A

B e L. e LW
a [ SN 3 S s |
e e VT
oy M R R

- J e A
‘l; . .1"_1._-,‘ “h,’;l'."*r o b 3 3 ; n e 4 )

i o JT IR b ot g LTS SR IR T B 4
T ' 3 ; eyt ALy " : b e R JA [
ISR 50 2 VIR S ek ead o TR St ﬂ-&"—hﬂ-"ﬁt.:‘. |

Photograph 2

Subject property from the east, facing west




ENVIRONMENTAL

Photographs From Site Reconnaissance

PM Project No. 01-9818-0-0002

Location: 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, Michigan

Photograph 3

Subject property from the west, facing south

} Photbgraph 4

Interior of abandoned shed




Photographs From Site Reconnaissance
PM Project No. 01-9818-0-0002
ENWRONMENTM Location: 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, Michigan

Photograph 5

Wetland in central portion of property

Photograph 6

Asphalt pad on western portion of property




PM Photographs From Site Reconnaissance
PM Project No. 01-9818-0-0002
ENVIRONMENTAL Location: 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, Michigan

Photograph 7

North adjoining properties

Photograph 8

East adjoining property




PM Photographs From Site Reconnaissance
PM Project No. 01-9818-0-0002

ENVIRONMENTAL Location: 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, Michigan

Photograph 9

South adjoining property

Photograph 10

West adjoining property




PM Photographs From Site Reconnaissance
PM Project No. 01-9818-0-0002
ENVIRONMENTAL Location: 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, Michigan

Photograph 11

West adjoining property




USDA United States

i Department of
Agriculture

NRCS

Natural
Resources
Conservation
Service

A product of the National
Cooperative Soil Survey,
a joint effort of the United
States Department of
Agriculture and other
Federal agencies, State
agencies including the
Agricultural Experiment
Stations, and local
participants

Custom Soil Resource
Report for

Ingham County,
Michigan

May 24, 2018



Preface

Soil surveys contain information that affects land use planning in survey areas.
They highlight soil limitations that affect various land uses and provide information
about the properties of the soils in the survey areas. Soil surveys are designed for
many different users, including farmers, ranchers, foresters, agronomists, urban
planners, community officials, engineers, developers, builders, and home buyers.
Also, conservationists, teachers, students, and specialists in recreation, waste
disposal, and pollution control can use the surveys to help them understand,
protect, or enhance the environment.

Various land use regulations of Federal, State, and local governments may impose
special restrictions on land use or land treatment. Soil surveys identify soil
properties that are used in making various land use or land treatment decisions.
The information is intended to help the land users identify and reduce the effects of
soil limitations on various land uses. The landowner or user is responsible for
identifying and complying with existing laws and regulations.

Although soil survey information can be used for general farm, local, and wider area
planning, onsite investigation is needed to supplement this information in some
cases. Examples include soil quality assessments (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/
portal/nres/main/soils/health/) and certain conservation and engineering
applications. For more detailed information, contact your local USDA Service Center
(https:/loffices.sc.egov.usda.gov/iocator/app?agency=nrcs) or your NRCS State Soil
Scientist (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/?
cid=nrcs142p2_053951).

Great differences in soil properties can occur within short distances. Some soils are
seasonally wet or subject to flooding. Some are too unstable to be used as a
foundation for buildings or roads. Clayey or wet soils are poorly suited to use as
septic tank absorption fields. A high water table makes a soil poorly suited to
basements or underground installations.

The National Cooperative Soil Survey is a joint effort of the United States
Department of Agriculture and other Federal agencies, State agencies including the
Agricultural Experiment Stations, and local agencies. The Natural Resources
Conservation Service (NRCS) has leadership for the Federal part of the National
Cooperative Soil Survey.

Information about soils is updated periodically. Updated information is available
through the NRCS Web Soil Survey, the site for official soil survey information.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its
programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability,
and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion,
sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or a
part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance program. (Not
all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with disabilities who require



alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print,
audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice
and TDD). To file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of
Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or
call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity
provider and employer.



6
PRSEWA NOT 2U07 WIN S02000 $ESOM SHELEN0M B0 KNENS] G, uomsiud dey

=
)
z
L
=}
2

dey llos
Hoday sainosay [0S Wosng




SSURGO SOIL MAP - 05308156.2r

*  Target Property L e _': 7 _ e
" 8SURGO Soil 2
Water
SITE NAME: 6276 Newton Road CLIENT: PM Environmental, Inc.
ADDRESS: 6276 Newton Road CONTACT: Alexandra Seelmann-Saunders
Haslett MI 48840 INQUIRY #: 05308156.2r
LAT/LONG: 42.763851 / 84.43024 DATE: May 23,2018 10:43 am

Copyright © 2018 EDR, Inc. & 2015 TomTom Rel. 2015




DETAIL MAP - 05308156.2R
': R *

/\/ Target Property

4 Sites at elevations higher than .
or equal to the target property ~ Indian Reservations BIA

. %lt:; artgzlteg;tg:‘sylower than County Boundary

100-year flood zone
500-year flood zone
National Wetland Inventory
State Wetlands

A Manufactured Gas Plants
& Sensitive Receptors
[ ] National Priority List Sites
| Dept. Defense Sites

This report Includes Interactive Map Lazers o
display and/or hide map information. The
legend includes only those icons for the
default map view.

SITE NAME: 6276 Newton Road CLIENT: PM Environmental, Inc.

ADDRESS: 6276 Newton Road | CONTACT: Alexandra Seelmann-Saunders
Haslett Ml 48840 INQUIRY #: 05308156.2r

LAT/LONG: 42.763851 /84.43024 DATE:




PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP - 05308156 2r
- Q,___I_L

./

\ X\

"‘:-unm{:m —

/\/ County Boundary $

N/ Major Roads —

U E— }  Groundwater Flow Direction

@ Exittdiiake:splosiitar, Aliiier ior grastes (@D Indeterminate Groundwater Flow at Location

@ Water Wells (V) Groundwater Flow Varies at Location

®  Public Water Supply Wells (ED Closest Hydrogeological Data

®  Cluster of Multiple Icons ® Oll.gasorrelated wels

SITE NAME: 6276 Newton Road CLIENT: PM Environmental, Inc.

ADDRESS: 6276 Newton Road CONTACT: Alexandra Seeimann-Saunders
Haslett Ml 48840 INQUIRY #: 05308156.2r

LAT/LONG: 42.763851/84.43024 DATE: May 23, 2018 10:43 am

Copyright © 2018 EDA, Inc. & 2016 TomTom Ral. 2015,



i ma R R N1 Ty
— i AT wa
ol B tony

— s e

e 3

T TR LR
i Urbaat (3]

Py €
1) nu-aigi
— e LTUNY ]

o, o, - &.ﬂvl.’:

Ny nt.»w- 1
. A
i A RO
. PP VS GAN Y
EX_SEATR CDEMILAES
JAr uRSL (2

ULy -

HVEA L0 e R
SANTHAT VANOLL JidY
N LDV = A543
BRI - eV
KPS WRY « BT
ey i (331
U TEV.

l F‘I"N’q\‘ ln!
AP SN - l!\‘l

NEWTCON RCAD
() (PuBLC ~ 66’ WIDE R.O.W.)

g . SRS

MUPUD PLAN

Newton Park MUPI

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHRAM COUNTY, MI

i

Er LECERT

B e O B WL
R

—gee = DT AT T R
tn w (O
E siAmA) #  evamrrar
-y o et
T -t r  sayian
K » ARG S E AT - B
N TN A (O o T T
e - AR W Rt ]
P
494
EDLrvAbE 1 ul [Cee)
!W KAL N Iv’.ﬁﬂ\ 'K SATR FULL, 3R EART
LF ASPHAL O l’l ary, A 20
H"JIT-‘ 0' TLALR B30
BOVGVASC g} DLEY. - li = (:w;u&
FOM ARLEDLY S50 B SOUT W g
FOLE, AFFAGUVATIVY 3 ST (e 1CAAR R JB l
AEERGCWATTLY n NOAT-ATKIERY (F CENTIAUA
WESTROND W18

CWETOAND
.

- 4
twu.n et Ly
(LY b Rle a3 LI TR
b } R
L R

&

‘| l“.hto ...—*,7-\11' I%i;\;b ¥ X c‘l-
et AR Wr . =
ml&m'uﬂmmf - e 1 N,




MUPUD PLAN
Newton Park MUP

MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, |

o —si

ek

= ST 1T AR W o




MERIDIAN TO

+ o oo

POLE, 2% EAST

ROAD, & 200'%

g
me "
R g

4«
el

— — T



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN

Ronald J. Styka Supervisor +EST.1842 -

Brett Dreyfus Clerk M E R I DI A N ‘9

Julie Brixie Treasurer TOWNSH I Pé¥%
Frank L. Walsh Manager @

July 31,2018

Steven P. Voice

Voice Environmental Group, LLC
727 Lake Park Drive

Boyne City, MI 49712

Re:  Wetland Verification #18-05 (Newton Pointe, LLC)

Dear Mr. Voice:

The Township’s Environmental Consultant, Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. (FTCH), has reviewed the
Voice Environmental documents provided to justify modifications to the wetland boundary adjustments made
by Peterson Environmental on behalf of FTCH. Based on the Environmental Consultant’s review, the Township
accepts the conclusions presented in Voice Environmental’s July 20, 2018 Summary of Site Observations and

Phil Deschaine

Patricia Herring Jackson
Dan Opsommer

Kathy Ann Sundland

Trustee
Trustee
Trustee
Trustee

Professional Opinion on Appropriate Upland/Wetland Boundary Revisions for the Newton Pointe LLC Property.

If you have any questions please contact me at (517) 853-4580 or quagliata@meridian.mi.us.

Sincerely,

Justin Quagliata

Assistant Planner

Department of Community Planning and Development
Charter Township of Meridian

(G:)\Planning\Wetland Delineations-Verifications (WDV)\2018\WDV 18-05 (Newton Pointe, LLC)\WDV #18-05 ltr.doc



727 Lake Park Drive

V OI CE‘Y' Boyne City, Ml 49712

. Bus (231) 582-3498
Environmental Fax (231) 582-2300

Group, LLC

WWW.voiceenv.com

SUMMARY OF SITE OBSERVATIONS AND PROFESSIONAL OPINION ON
APPROPRIATE UPLAND/WETLAND BOUNDARY REVISIONS
FOR THE NEWTON POINTE LLC PROPERTY

Prepared for: Elise Tripp
Meridian Township Wetland Consultant
Fishbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc.

Prepared by: Steven P. Voice, MS, PWS, CSE
Senior Ecologist & Regulatory Specialist
In regard to: Meridian Township Wetland Verification 18-05
Date: July 20, 2018
INTRODUCTION

As you area aware, I met with Adrienne Peterson and Zack Vandenberg from Peterson
Environmental on June 4, 2018 to review my wetland determination for the Newton Pointe LL.C
on Newton Road and M-78, as presented and discussed in my February 22, 2018 Wetland and
Jurisdiction Report for this property.

As I noted in my February g™ report, the boundaries I delineated for the four wetlands
present on the site basically coincide with only minor deviations with two previous wetland
determinations by two different wetland consultants. As I also noted in my report, both of these
determinations/boundary delineations were the subject of Level III wetland identification
program assessment reviews by the DEQ and the boundaries of the four wetlands as delineated
were confirmed in writing in the November 3, 1997 letter from then-District Supervisor Gary F.
Marx to Dennis Forsberg and Keith Schroeder, as well as in the October 18, 2002 letter from
then-District Supervisor Walter Danyluk to G.S. Fedewa Builders, Inc, respectively.

While Ms. Peterson confirmed the majority of the boundaries I delineated (and others
previously delineated as confirmed by the DEQ) for Wetlands A, C and D, she made minor
modifications to two (2) small boundary segments of Wetland A (one of which I concur with and
one of which I do not) and one (1) small segment of Wetland C, as well as fairly significant
changes to the two (2) boundary segments of Wetland B, specifically the north end and entire
southern boundary of this wetland area (neither of which I concur with in their entirety). While
I agree that minor revisions to various boundary points or segments are appropriate, a number of
the boundaries were revised—based on vegetation only—to include areas that are not
appropriately designated as wetland.

Science e Expertise e Creativity e Solutions



Summary of Site Observations July 20, 2018
Newton Pointe LLC Property Page 2

PROPOSED REVISED BOUNDARY POINTS/SEGMENTS
Per June 4, 2018 Site Meeting with Peterson Environmental

As indicated above, there are five (5) areas where Ms. Peterson is proposing revisions to
the boundaries I delineated in 2017. KEBS surveyed and mapped each of the revised flag
locations (which I subsequently staked) that Ms. Peterson set. I have labeled each area/revised
boundary segment by the wetland it is associated with, and have attached an annotated survey
sketch from KEBS showing my original boundary, Ms. Peterson’s proposed revised boundary,
and as appropriate in the case of Area B2, a revised “composite” boundary to my original
boundary and Ms. Peterson’s boundary that is appropriate based on the statutory criteria for
wetland designation as follows:

Area Al — Northeast point of Wetland A (Sheet 1 of 4)

Area A2 — Eastern boundary of Wetland A (Sheet 2 of 4)

Area B1 — Northern point of Wetland B (Sheet 3 of 4)

Area B2 — Southern boundary of Wetland B (also Sheet 3 of 4)
Area C1 — Southern end of Wetland C (Sheet 4 of 4)

OBSERVATIONS & DISCUSSION
Area Al (Sheet 1 of 4)

I agree with the addition and location of Peterson Stake #A70.5 and the resulting wetland
boundary change.

Area A2 (Sheet 2 of 4)

My original boundary follows along the edge of a now fallow but formerly cultivated old
field characteristic of this portion of the site. Ms. Peterson moved stakes A48 and A49 out into
the field based primarily on the presence of some scattered Salix and Spiraea. What we basically
have going on here is a classic example of old field succession, wherein a variety of species
(UPL, FACU, FAC and FACW) germinate from the existing seed bank and become, at least
temporarily, established. The problem with this is that the soils in this area do not support
moving these stakes.

As shown on Sheet 2 of 4, I evaluated three test borings in this area on June 21%: TB #6
on the upland side of Peterson’s proposed revised boundary line, TB# 5 between my original
boundary line and Ms. Peterson’s proposed revised line, and TB #7 on the wetland side of my
original boundary line. The observed soil profiles at and water table elevations at each boring
location are detailed on Sheet 2 of 4. At both TB#5 and #6, the soil profile is characterized by a
distinct, 12" thick sandy loam Ap (plow) horizon, over an 8” loam A1 horizon, which in turn is
underlain by a somewhat mottled, loamy subsoil beginning at 20” below the surface. The water
table at TB#6 (the upland side of the Peterson point/line) was observed at 25” below and at 19”
below the surface at TB #5 (between Peterson’s line and my line). In contrast, at TB#7, located

vOICE®

Environmental
Group, LLC



Summary of Site Observations July 20, 2018
Newton Pointe LLC Property Page 3

on the wetland side of my line below and west of the now\ fallow, formerly cultivated old field,
the site is characterized by a 20" mucky loam surface soil over a dark (10 YR4/1) sand subsoil
and the water table was observed at 14" below the surface.

Given the above, it is my professional opinion that the appropriate upland/wetland
boundary line for this area is at the edge of the fallow field and not higher up into that field as
Ms. Peterson has revised the line, based solely on the somewhat random “spot” occurrences of
two FACW species within the same dominant vegetative community that dominates other areas
she concurred are upland (non-wetland). To the contrary, the soil profiles and water table
elevations observed at these three test boring locations on June 21 support my original
delineation of the upland/wetland boundary in this area.

Area B1 (Sheet 3 of 4)

While I agree that the northern point of Wetland B (as marked by Stake #B23) extends
further to the north that I originally delineated, I do not concur that it extends as far north as Ms.
Peterson is proposing to extend it. Her (AP) point B23 is approximately 58’ north of my original
location for this stake; it is my opinion that the stake/boundary line point should be
approximately 32’ north of my original stake, as shown on Sheet 2 of 4.

I evaluated the vegetation, soils and hydrology at TB #1, which I located between my
original B23 and my revised B23 location, as well as at TB#2, which I located between my
revised TB 23 and Ms. Peterson’s TB 23. Those observations are detailed on Sheet 3 of 4.

A soil boring at TB#1 revealed a dark loam (10YR 3/1) surface horizon over a thin (1)
loam (10 YR 4/2) A2 horizon over a mottled loam B2 horizon beginning at 20” below the
surface. The water table was observed at 18" below the surface. While soils and water table
observations do not conclusively support a wetland designation, there does appear to be a
predominance of wetland vegetation and there are signs (water marks, drift deposits, etc.) that
that suggest that seasonal and/or periodically flooding may extend close to or in to this area.
However, it is equally clear that this area (and a majority of this basin) dries out/drains relatively
quickly. Regardless, absent additional hydrological evidence to the contrary, a wetland
designation for this area may be appropriate.

However, north of my revised B23 stake location, I evaluated TB #2, which again is
located on the edge of the historically-cultivated but now fallow field area. At this location, I
observed a 13” thick, 10YR 2/2 loam surface horizon over mottled sandy clay loam sub-soils.
The water table was observed at 21” below the surface. Topographically this area is a slight
depression or draw in what is otherwise a distinctly higher-lying upland area adjacent to the
Wetland B lowland (and TB #1) and as such, it may receive increased runoff during spring melt
and precipitation events than adjacent areas. However, it is clear, given the slope and
topography that any such water drains quickly into the adjacent Wetland B lowland to the south.
Furthermore, in contrast to the variety of FAC and FACW species present at TB#1, the dominant
vegetation at TB#2 is once again, the ubiquitous reed canary grass mixed with Rubus strigosus
(FAC), Solidago sp., and Hypericum prolificum (FACU).

vOICE@

Environmental
Group, LLC



Summary of Site Observations July 20, 2018
Newton Pointe LLC Property Page 4

Given the above observations, it is my professional opinion that it is appropriate to place
the B23 stake and the corresponding upland/wetland boundary line at the distinct topographic
and vegetation break or change where I have placed my revised stake B23, rather to place it 26’
further north at the base of a clump of Rubus allehaniensis, as Ms. Peterson did on June 4“1,
again without any investigation of soils in the area. The resulting upland/wetland boundary
would clearly be an accurate delineation of the northern limit of Wetland B.

Area B2 (Sheet 3 of 4)

During our June 4™ site inspection, Ms. Peterson moved a number stakes on the west side
of Wetland B, beginning with Stake B30 and extending to, around and along the south side of
Wetland B. While I do concur that there is additional area that is appropriate designated as
wetland beyond my original boundary in the southwest “corner” of Wetland B, it is my
professional opinion that many of the revised stake locations, especially along the southern
boundary of this wetland have been moved too far upslope without any real basis for doing so.
In fact, there is a distinct ridge or lip along the south side Wetland B which in my opinion, forms
and defines a very distinct, southern boundary of this wetland.

Accordingly, on June 21, I delineated a new southern boundary for Wetland B which is
a composite of my original boundary stake locations, Adrienne Peterson’s revised stake locations
and a couple of new stake locations I set on the 21%, which accounts for both the additional area
in the southwest corner that I agree is appropriately designated as wetland as well as the upland
areas south of the distinct low ridge line/lip described above. This boundary is shown on Sheet 3
of 4.

I dug and evaluated two (2) test borings on either side of this distinct ridge and revised
boundary line: TB #3 is located on the south (upland) side of the ridge/my revised line and TB
#4 is located on the north (wetland) side of this feature/revised line. My soils observations,
which are detailed on Sheet 3 of 4, clearly support the revisions that I have made to this line. At
TB#3 (in the upland), the sandy loam soils are characterized by a well-developed 02/A1/E/B2
horizon development, with a water table at 30” below the surface. The tree stratum is dominated
by red maple and black cherry, the sapling shrub stratum is dominated by sugar maple and white
ash, and the herbaceous layer is dominated by various UPL, FACU and FAC species.
Immediately adjacent to this boring slightly upslope to the south, the dominant vegetation
includes various upland oak species as well.

In contrast, at TB #2, the soils are an 117 thick dark, loam Al over a mixed (10YR 4/1
and 10YR 3/1) loam A2 horizon with the water table at 24”. The tree layer is dominated by a
dense red maple overstory, a mostly absent sapling shrub stratum, and a very sparse herbaceous
layer comprised mostly of sensitive fern, ash seedlings and jewelweed. Although the water table
was observed at 24" below the surface during this inspection, it is clear that this area is on the
southern edge of the main Wetland B basin that is subject to seasonal and periodic flooding. In
my opinion, a wetland designation for this area is appropriate.

voicE@)

Environmental
Group, LLC



Summary of Site Observations July 20, 2018
Newton Pointe LLC Property Page 5

Area C1 (Sheet 4 of 4)

I agree with the location/establishment of Peterson Stakes C19 and C20 and the resulting
wetland boundary change. I would note that the overall area of Wetland C (both on and off site)
is 8,480 sq. ft. or 0.19 acres and as such, Wetland C is (remains) unregulated.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

To summarize, it is my opinion, based on the detailed evaluations I made on June 21% of
the Peterson Environmental’s proposed revisions to my original upland/wetland boundary lines,
that the following determinations/boundary line confirmations by Meridian Township are
appropriate:

Area Al — Northeast point of Wetland A: I agree with the addition and location of Peterson
Stake A70.5 as shown on Sheet 1 of 4 and the resulting wetland boundary change should be
confirmed by the township.

Area A2 — Eastern boundary of Wetland A: My original delineation as shown on Sheet 2 of 4
should be confirmed by the township.

Area B1 — Northern point of Wetland B: My June 21, 2018 revised boundary line as shown on
Sheet 3 of 4 should be confirmed.

Area B2 — Southern boundary of Wetland B: My June 21, 2018 revised boundary line as shown
on Sheet 3 of 4 should be confirmed.

Area C1 — Southern end of Wetland C: I agree with the revised locations for stakes C19 and C20
as shown on Sheet 4 of 4 and the resulting wetland boundary change should be confirmed.

I would request and greatly appreciate your review and confirmation of my findings and
proposed modifications to my original wetland determination for this site at your earliest
convenience. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Voice Environmental Group, LLC

A -

{’M L_,/bd@ﬂ’

Steven P. Voice, MS, PWS, CSE

Senior Ecologist & Regulatory Specialist

Enclosures
cc:  R.Uppal
C. Holman

voicr@®

Environmental
Group, LLC



727 Lake Park Drive

vOICE(M o Lok Pt

g Bus (231) 582-3498
Environmental Fax (231) 582-2300

Group, LLC WWW.voiceenv.com

WETLAND AND JURISDICTION DETERMINATION REPORT

Prepared for: DTN Management Company
2502 Lake Lansing Road
Suite C
Lansing, M1 48912

Project Site: Newton Pointe, LLC property
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant
Tax ID Nos. 33-02-02-04-252-004 and 33-02-02-04-252-005
T4N, R1W, Section 4
Meridian Township
Ingham County, Michigan

Project Number: 17-1554
Investigator: Steven P. Voice, MS, PWS, CSE
Senior Ecologist & Regulatory Specialist
Inspection Dates: June 13-14 and July 18-19, 2017
Report Date: February 22, 2018
INTRODUCTION

This report is intended to follow up the various site inspections listed above of the above-
captioned parcels/project site by Voice Environmental Group, LLC. The purpose of these
inspections was to conduct a site evaluation and wetland determination of the subject
properties/project site and to render an opinion on 1) the presence and location of any wetlands
that may occur on the property and 2) the jurisdictional status of any wetlands identified.

SITE LOCATION AND GENERAL CHARACTERISTICS

The project site is located southeast of the intersection of Newton Road and M-78 in
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan. It is comprised of two parcels: Parcel (Tax ID)
No. 33-02-02-04-252-004 (6276 Newton Road) lies immediately east of and adjacent to Newton
Road and immediately south of and adjacent to M-78 and Parcel (Tax ID) No. 33-02-02-04-252-
005 (no assigned address) lies immediately to the east the first parcel and also has frontage on
M-78. Both parcels, which together encompass approximately 26 acres, are vacant.

Science e Expertise e Creativity e Solutions




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 2

The project site supports various highland areas ranging from relatively open fields to
shrub-dominated (abandoned) fields to hardwood forests. It also supports four (4) lowland areas
which range from marsh/open water areas to scrub-shrub and forested community types.

There are six (6) soil series mapped for the site. Three of these soils series, Capac loam,
0 to 4 % slopes (CaA), Oshtemo-Spinks loamy sands, 0 to 6% slopes (OtB) and Spinks loamy
sand, 0 to 6% slopes (SpB), are non-hydric. The other three, Houghton Muck, 0 to 1 percent
slopes (Hn), Urban land-Capac-Colwood complex, 0 to 4 percent slopes (UpA) and Urban Land-
Marlette complex, 2 to 12% slopes (UtB) are designated as hydric soils.

WETLAND DESIGNATION CRITERIA AND METHODOLOGY

Under Part 303, Wetland Protection, of the Natural Resources and Environmental
Protection Act (1994 P.A. 451, as amended), which is commonly referred to as the NREPA,
wetland is defined as "land characterized by the presence of water at a frequency and duration
sufficient to support and that under normal circumstances does support wetland vegetation or
aquatic life and is commonly referred to as a bog, swamp, or marsh..." From a regulatory
standpoint, a site must support a predominance of hydrophytic vegetation, a hydric soil and a
wetland hydrological regime in order to be appropriately designated as wetland.

Part 303 requires that the state (as well as local units of government) use the federal
methodology for wetland determinations. Thus, in determining whether or not a site is
appropriately designated as wetland, Meridian Township, the Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality (DEQ) and the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) must use the
federal 1987 Wetland Identification Manual and appropriate regional supplements. Accordingly,
the subject property was evaluated using the federal methodology. On-site investigations
included various "spot" evaluations of dominant plant species, soils and apparent hydrology as
well as detailed evaluations at representative upland and wetland data point locations, herein
termed "wetland determination points."

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

It is the opinion of the investigator as a professional wetland ecologist and regulatory
specialist that the subject property supports four (4) areas that are appropriately designated as
wetland as shown on the attached Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Plan prepared by
KEBS, Inc. on December 14, 2017 (Appendix A).

Five (5) Wetland Data Forms per the 1987 Corps of Engineers Wetland Determination
Manual from various representative “Wetland Determination Points” (WDPs), are attached in
Appendix B: Three (3) are from identified upland (non-wetland) areas and two (2) are from
identified wetland areas.

vOICE(

Environmental
Group, LLC



Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 3

Upland Areas

As indicated above, there is a variety of upland ecosystem types present on the project
site. A Wetland Determination Point, WDP #1, was established and evaluated on July 19, 2017
to characterize the open field areas that dominate the west side of the property (west of the
relatively large lowland area delineated as Wetland A (Appendix A). At this location, both the
tree and sapling-shrub layers (strata) are absent. The herbaceous layer is dominated by rough-
leaf goldenrod (Solidago rugosa), and Kentucky bluegrass (Poa pratensis) but daisy fleabane
(Erigeron strigosus), Queen Anne’s lace (Daucus carota) and black medic (Medicago lupulina)
are also present. A soil boring at this location revealed a 14” thick, somewhat mottled (but
brightly colored) loam surface soil over a more typical, mottled clay loam sub-soil. The water
table was absent in the 20”-deep soil boring. Accordingly, although the soils likely qualify as
hydric (which is consistent with the mapping of this area as Urban land-Marlette complex, 2 to
12 percent slopes), their clearly is not a predominance of wetland vegetation nor a wetland
hydrological regime. Accordingly, given these observations, a non-wetland (upland) designation
for this area is appropriate.

WDP #3 was established and evaluated on the south side of the property immediately to
the west of an isolated lowland depression delineated as Wetland C to characterize the upland
forest ecosystems present on this and other portions of the site. At this location, the tree stratum
is dominated by black oak (Quercus velutina) and shagbark hickory (Carya ovata), the sapling
shrub layer is dominated by shagbark hickory and black cherry (Prunus serotina) and herbaceous
layer is dominated by black cherry seedlings and somewhat weedy, dwarf enchanter’s nightshade
(Circaea alpina). A soil boring revealed a well-developed, well-drained soil profile consisting
of loamy sand surface soils over sand sub-soils. The water table was absent in the 30” deep
boring. Given these observations, a non-wetland (upland) designation for these areas is clearly
appropriate.

Finally, a third upland Wetland Determination Point, WDP #5 was established and
evaluated in the northeast portion of the project site to characterize the shrub-dominated,
abandoned field areas undergoing old field succession that are present in this area. At this
location the tree layer is absent, the sapling shrub layer is dominated by autumn olive (Elaeagnus
umbellata), grey dogwood (Cornus racemosa) and honeysuckle (Lonicera tatarica), and the
herbaceous layer is dominated by common blackberry (Rubus alleghaniensis), rough leaf
goldenrod (Solidago rugosa) and perennial rye (Lolium perenne). A soil boring at this location
revealed a well-drained, well developed profile consisting of relatively brightly colored loamy
sand soils and the water table was absent in the 30” deep boring. Again, given these
observations, a non-wetland (upland) designation for these areas is clearly appropriate.

Wetland Area

As indicated above, four (4) lowland areas arc present on site and these were delineated
by the investigator as Wetlands A, B, C and D. Wetland Determination Points were established
in the two larger wetland areas, Wetland A (4.78 acres) and Wetland B (0.65 acres). Wetland

vOICE®

Environmental
Group, LLC




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 4

data points were not established or evaluated in either Wetland C or Wetland D as both are less
than Y acre in size.

The majority of Wetland A is best characterized as an open marsh; however, WDP #2
was established in a forested area adjacent to this open marsh community on the south side of the
feature and near the delineated upland/wetland boundary. At this location, this tree layer of this
wetland is dominated by Eastern cottonwood (Populus deltoides) and silver maple (Acer
saccharinum), the sapling/shrub layer is dominated by glossy buckthorn (Frangula alnus), grey
dogwood and silver maple, and the herbaceous layer is dominated by grey dogwood and poison
ivy (Toxicodendron radicans). Although the majority of the feature (i.e. the open marsh areas
are mapped as Houghton’s muck, a soil boring at WDP #2 revealed a dark, loam surface soil
over a dark clay sub-soil. The water table was observed at 8” below the surface during this July
19 evaluation. Given the above, a wetland designation for this area, is clearly appropriate.

In contrast to Wetland A, Wetland B is a forested wetland depression throughout. At
WDP #4, which was established roughly in the center of this depression, the tree layer is
dominated by red maple (Acer rubrum) and Eastern cottonwood, the sapling/shrub layer is
dominated by red maple and green ash (Fraxinus pennsylvanica) and the herb stratum is
dominated by a cover (estimated at 15%) of green ash seedlings and virtually no other species.
A soil boring at this location revealed a dark loam surface soil over a dark loamy sand horizon
over a dark sandy clay loam horizon. The water table at the time of his July 19 evaluation was
observed at 11” below the surface. Given these observations, a wetland designation is clearly
appropriate.

JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION

State of Michigan (MDEQ) Jurisdiction

By statute, the Michigan Department of Environment Quality regulates wetlands that:

1. Are directly connected to (contiguous with) the Great Lakes, or an inland “lake or
pond, river or stream,”

2. Are within 500’ of one of the above-mentioned inland water bodies, or within 1000’
of a Great Lake - unless the owner/applicant demonstrates that the wetland is
hydrologically isolated from the water body. Hydrologically isolated means there is
neither a surface water or ground water connection,

3. Have “a seasonal or intermittent direct surface water connection to” one of the above-
mentioned water bodies or,

4, Are over 5 acres in size.

Accordingly, it is the investigator’s professional opinion that the four (4) wetland areas
identified and delineated on the project site are NOT subject to state regulation by the MDEQ as:

vOICE®

Environmental
Group, LLC



Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 5

1) None of these wetlands are contiguous to, within 500” of, or have a seasonal or
intermittent direct surface water connection to an inland lake, pond, river or stream,

2) None, obviously, are within 100’ of any of the Great Lakes, and finally

3) None of these wetlands is over 5 acres in size.

NOTE 1: The current properties/project area was formerly part of a much larger project area that was twice the
subject of a Level 11 wetland assessment by the DEQ (the current project area is the northern, approximately 25
acres of the former site evaluated by the DEQ). In both the November 3, 1997 letter from then-District Supervisor
Gary F. Marx to Dennis Forsberg and Keith Schroeder, as well as in the October 18, 2002 letter from then-District
Supervisor Walter Danyluk to G.S. Fedewa Builders, Inc., the DEQ confirmed that all four (4) wetlands identified
and delineated on the current project site, specifically Wetland A (previously Wetland 1), Wetland B (previously
Wetland 10), Wetland C (previously Wetland 2) and Wetland D (previously Wetland 2), are NOT subject to state
jurisdiction or regulation under Part 303 (Appendix C).

NOTE 2. Prior to completing the current wetland determination for this project site, Voice Environmental asked
KEBS, Inc. to confirm and stake the eastern and southern property boundaries of the current project site. They did
so, and Voice Environmental subsequently confirmed that the two wetland areas that were identified as Wetlands 13
and 14 in 1997 and 2002 are NOT located on the current project site.

Federal (US Army Corps of Engineers) Jurisdiction

In Michigan, only wetlands that are adjacent to “navigable waters” (waters of the U.S.),
as defined by Section 10 of the River and Harbors Act of 1899 (amended), are independently
regulated by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) under the federal Clean Water Act of
1972, as amended. Per two Memorandums of Agreement executed in 1984 between the state
and the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the state and the USACE, respectively,
the EPA/USACE has suspended its jurisdiction of wetlands that are not adjacent to navigable
(“Section 10”) waters as defined by the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899.

Accordingly, since none of the four wetland areas delineated on the project site are
adjacent to a navigable waterway, it is the investigator’s professional opinion that the identified
wetland areas are NOT subject to independent federal jurisdiction or regulation.

Local (Meridian Township) Jurisdiction

Meridian Township has a wetland ordinance that authorizes the township to regulate all
wetlands that are greater than 2 acres and size and to potentially regulate wetlands as small as
0.25 acres in size. In the latter case, i.e. if the wetland is between 0.25 and 2.0 acres in size, the
wetland would be regulated if 1) the township environmental consultant issues a preliminary
finding that one or more of ten listed criteria are likely to apply to the wetland and 2) the
Township Board, in turn, determines that “a wetland use permit application meeting the
requirements of § 22-154 shall be required, based on a finding that the wetland is essential to the
preservation of the natural resources of the Township.”

vOICE®

Environmental
Group, LLC




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 6

Given the above, it is the investigator’s professional opinion that:

e Wetland “A” (4.78 acres) is subject to Meridian Township jurisdiction and regulation.

e Wetland “B” (0.65 acres) is potentially subject to Meridian Township jurisdiction and
regulation.

o  Wetland “C” (0.18 acre) and Wetland “D” (0.12 acre) are NOT subject to Meridian
Township jurisdiction and regulation.

LIMITATIONS

This report serves to confirm the findings and opinions of the principal investigator as a
professional wetland ecologist and consultant; it does not constitute a township, state or federal
wetland or jurisdiction determination. It should be noted, however, that the evaluations reported
herein have been conducted in accordance with both state and federal criteria for wetland
designations and jurisdiction determinations. The client may wish to confirm these findings with
Meridian Township, the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and/or the US
Army Corps of Engineers (USACE).

This determination is valid for a period of three years from the date of this letter unless
additional evidence or new information warrants a revision of these findings prior to that date.
This determination does not preclude the necessity to obtain federal, state, and local permits
and/or approvals that may be required for use or additional development of the property.

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

A wetland and jurisdiction determination/upland-wetland boundary delineation was
completed for HDI Builders, Inc. for the property located at 2704 Creekstone Trail, Okemos,
Michigan. It is the professional opinion of the investigator that the parcel supports one wetland
area as shown on the attached Plot Plan prepared by KEBS, Inc. on June 13, 2017 (Appendix A).
It is the investigator’s further opinion that the identified wetland area is subject to Meridian
Township jurisdiction and regulation under their local wetland ordinance, and likely regulated by
the Michigan DEQ as well.

Respectfully submitted, —

Voice }‘. VIRONMENYAL (GROUP, LLC
LA

P
StevenP oice, MS, PWS, CSE

Senior Ecologist & Regulatory Specialist

VOICE®

Environmental
Group, LLC




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22, 2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page 7

REFERENCES AND RESOURCES

Lichvar, R.W. 2012. The National Wetland Plant List. ERDC/CRREL TR-12-11. Hanover, NH:
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Cold Regions Research and Engineering Laboratory.
http://acwe.sdp.sirsi.net/client/search/asset:asset?t:ac=$N/1012381

Part 303, Wetland Protection, of the Natural Resource and Environmental Protection
Act, Act 451 of the Public Acts of 1994, being sections 324.30301 to 324.30323
of the Michigan Compiled Laws annotated.

Soil Conservation Service, United States Department of Agriculture. 1993. Hydric Soils of the
State of Michigan.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, U.S. Army Engineer Research and Development Center. 2012.
Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual:
Northcentral and Northeast Region (Version 2.0). ERDC/EL TR-12-1.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Detroit District. 1998. Navigable Michigan Waters of the
United States.

VOICE®D

Environmental
Group, LLC




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22, 2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page A-1

APPENDIX A.

Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Plan
prepared by KEBS, Inc. on December 14, 2017
showing the location of the delineated upland and wetland ecosystems
on the Newton Property Partnership properties (Tax ID Nos. 33-02-02-04-252-004 and
33-02-02-04-252-005) Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan.

vOICE®

Environmental
Group, LLC



g

Ex 3
aiig glace

E :QE; g

e ;nsg : Ag g

94 {4 !‘ 4
b3 Txil
fies anelt

813, 6/14, 7/18, cad 719, 2057

WETLAND & JURISDICTION DETERMINATION PLAN
6276 Newton & M-78 Vacant
MERIDIAN TOWMSHIP, INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAM

WETLAND "A'

i WETLAND 8!,
" +0.65 ACRES ™.
5, o ‘..".
S o g

o fa
© Tl

+4.78 ACRES

",_ U.lz

+ b n':';: g
e N CREs

3
oPF




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22, 2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page B-1

APPENDIX B.

Wetland Determination Data Forms
(1987 USACE Wetlands Delineation Manual and approved regional supplements)
from five (5) data point locations (three upland and two wetland)
on the Newton Property Partnership properties (Tax ID Nos. 33-02-02-04-252-004 and
33-02-02-04-252-005) Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan.

vOICE(

Environmental
Group, LLC



WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: DTN/6276 Newton & M-78 Vacant City/County: Merldian Township/Ingham Co. Sampling Date: 19-Jul-17
Applicant/Owner: DTN Managernent Compaanewton Pointe, LLC . gtate. Mlchlgan— >—S:mv|)li;|-g Point: WDP #1
Investigator(s): Steven P. VwﬂiC—E,;Si PWS, CSE o Sectlnn, Tcw;nslup, Range: S. 4 T. 4W - R. 1>'1J'V>— N
Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.): Flat - Local relief (concave, convex, non'e'i 7 ﬁ;; Al kglo-pe- ' _00 %% ;_- og°
Subregion (LRR or MLRA):  [RR L . Lat.: 42.763871 Long.: -84-4_3—162_3. o Datum: i

Soil Map Unit Name: UtB—Maﬂette Compim; : - o - NWI classification: Upland

Are climatic/hydroloegic conditions on the site typical for this time of \rear? Yes ® No O (If no, explain in Remarks.)

AreVegetation ] ,Soit [] ,orHydrolegy [ ] significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances” presentz  Yes @ No O
Are Vegetation J , Soil D » or Hydrology ] naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)
Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Presentz  Yes O No (®

Isthe S d A
Hydric Soil Present? Yes O No® \.:ithien aamzlueand;ea Yes O No @
Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes O No @

Remarks: (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.) 7
Data point is located in a relatively open field on the southwest corner of the Newton Road/M-78 intersection, to the west of s large and distinct lowland
area in the center of the property.

Hydrology

Wetland Hydrology Indicators: Secondary Indicators (minjmum of 2 requlred). ..
_Primary Indicators (minimum of one required; check all that apply) o[O3 surface soll cracks (86)

[ surface Water (A1) I_j Water-Stalned Leaves (B9) D Drainage Patterns (B10)

(] High Water Table (A2) [ Aquatic Fauna (B13) [] Mass Trim Lines (B16)

[ saturation (A3) [ Marl Deposits (B15) (] bry Season Water Table (C2)

[ water Marks (B1) [] Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1) (] crayfish Burrows (c8)

(] sediment Depasits (B2) [] oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3) [ saturation Visible on Aerlal Imagery (C9)
(] prife deposits (83) [ Presence of Reduced Iron (C4) [[] stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

[ Algal Mat or Crust (84) [[J Recent Iron Reduction In Tilled Soils (C6) (1 Geomorphic Position (D2)

[ 1ron Deposits (85) [ Thin Muck Surface (C7) [ shallow Aquitard (D3)

[ 1nundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7) ] Other (Explaln In Remarks) L] Microtopagraphic Rellef (D4)

] Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8) 7] FAC-neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes O No® Depth (inches): o

Water Table Present? Yes O No @ Depth (inches): . . Yes O No®

Wetland Hydrology Present? es [s]

e ey YesO N0 ®  opachesy e

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:
No water table or evidence thereof abserved in the 20" deep boring. Dry clay loam soils encountered at 14"

Us Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0



VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants

Sampling Point: WDP #1

_Tree Stratum (Plot size: )

| N —

No O s LD~
|
|

Herb Stratum _ (Plotsize:

1. Solidago rugosa
2. Daucys carota

3., Erlgeron strigosus
4, _Poa pratensis S

5. Medicago lupulina

6

10. ——
3 i IO
12..

Absolute Dominant pugicator
% Covey  Specles? gratys

Dominance Test worksheet: '

Mumber of Dominant Species
g E | Thatare OBL, FACW, or FAC: S R (.
0 ]
g D | Taotal Number of Dominant
9. - wommemmn | Species Across All Strata: 2. (B)
g L] —
0 1 Percent of dominant Species
& ID == That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:  ....50.0% (A/B)
L0 ] Prevalence Index worksheet:
0 =Total Cover . Total % Coverof: ___ Multiplyby:
§ OBL species 0. x1l= 0
“*0*' S ~ e | FACW species N . 2= _ 0
R O — | FAC species BB N Bl 285
o - ] © 7 |FAcu species .55 x4 = _220
mam ] i UPL species i W Foe easi
0 ' | column Totals: = A88. . A 5590 (8)
P L I Prevalence Index = B/A = 3419
LU = Total Cover Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
" v o [C] Rrapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
— 0 T [} pominance Testis > 50%
e 0 T [ prevalence Index is <3.0 !
W = ] Morphological Adaptations * (Provide supporting
VA0 0] FACU data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)
5 O FACU [C] Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation ! (Explain)
__0,.«. ] B Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
NG e [ i | be present, unless disturbed or problematic.
B ] 77777 | Definitions of Vegetation Strata:
O O wirmnee | Tree - Woody plants, 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
Lo | o | At breast height (DBH), regardless of height.
0
i 0 . “ | Sapling/shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and
_ 155 =Total Cover greater than 3.28 ft (1m) tall..
0 [ ) Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardiess of
| slze, and woody planis less than 3.28 {t tall.
DL [ — | Woody vine - All woody vines greater than 3.28 it in
0 | height.

0  =Total Cover

Remarks: (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

Hydrophytic
Vegetation
Present?

Yes O No @

*Indicator suffix = National status or professional decision assigned because Regional status not defined by FWS,

Us Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Soil Sampling Point: WDP #1

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of Indicators.) 7

Depth  ~ Matrix . RedoxFeatures .
_ (inches)  _ Color(molst) . __ % __ __ Color(moist) _ % _ Type! _Locz _  Texture .. . Remarks
0-14 YR 33 10YR 54 Loam
14-20 ‘1(]_‘_r_R B 1,-‘2 ) N __,IEYR. 4}_4 - - Cifw Loam
L Type: C=Concentration. D=Depletlon. RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Gralns  2Locatlon: PL=Pore Linlng. M=Matrix
Elwﬂc Soll Indicators: - Indicators for Problematic Hydrlc Soils :
Histosol (A1) Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,
(] Histic Epipedon (A2) PARALEY S e ol
] Black Histic (A3) [] Thin Dark Surface (59) (LRR R, MLRA 1498) — Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)
i PR xS [7] Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) LRR K, L) E] § cm Mucky Peat or Peat (53) (LRR K, L, R)
] stratified Layers (AS) [7] Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2) 0 SRREKHN L SR R
[] Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) (] Depleted Malrix (73) O s i
[ Thick Dark Surface (A12) (L] Redox Dark Surface (F6) PRI SENE S Ry A
t \ [ 1ron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)
] Sandy Muck Mineral (S1) 1 Depleted Dark Surface (F7)
— Vi (] piedmont Floodplain Solls (F19) (MLRA 1498)
I—“] sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4) [:] Redox Depressions (F8)
ot o [ Mesic Spodic (TAG) (MLRA 1444, 145, 1498)
D San :e:e D:H(S?) ; [ Red Parent Material (F21)
Stripped Matrix (S6 [ ve
ry Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)
[ Dark Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B) [ ther (Explaln In Remarks)
31ndicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic. - _|
Restrictive Layer (if observed):
L) L — e " = -
Depth (Inches): o Hydric Soll Present? Yes O No ®
Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: DTN/6276 Newton & M-78 Vacant City/County: Meridian Township/Ingham Co.

Sampling Date: 19-1ul-17

Applicant/Owner: DTN Management Company/Newton Pointe, LLC WDP #2

" State: Michigan Sampling Point:
Investigator(s): §e_w:.n<P. Vol::;,ﬁs_,-PWS, CSE Section, i‘o;rn;hip, Rang;:-;.- 74 : T. 4W o R, 1W
Landform (hillslo;é.-iér;i;:e:el;)-: E)ﬁgnd_ - _ a ‘.Local relief (concave, convex, non;)-: uﬂat-‘ b --—"'_'_Sg;n; .i __Q"g '%= )‘_ ._QLQ.O
Subregion (LRR or MLRA): |RR L Lat.: 42,763462 Long.: -84.431ﬁ01 Datum: =
Soil Map Unit Name: nggh-f; r;u;i;_(Hn)_ - - N NWI classlification: ;é;nc
Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes @ No O (If no, explain in Remarks.)
Are Vegetation ] , Soil ] , or Hydralogy O significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances" present? Yes ® NOO

Are Vegetation D , Soil E] , or Hydrology O naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?  Yes & No O

Is the Sampled Area
Hydrlc Soll Present? Yes @ NoO withina wgtland? Yes @ No O
Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes ®@ NnO

Remarks: (Explaln alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)
Data polnted is located in the southwest "corner” of this large, lowland area near the delineated upland/wetland boundary,

Hydrology

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

_Primary Indicators (minimum of one required; check all thatapply)

[ surface Water (A1)

[V High Water Table (A2)

[v] saturation (A3)

[ water Marks (81)

[C] sediment Deposits (B2)

[7] orift deposits (B3)

() migal Mat or Crust (B4)

[] 1ron Deposits (85)

[ 1nundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)
O Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

[] water-Stained Leaves (89)

| Aquatic Fauna (B13)

[ Mar! Deposits (B15)

D Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)

D Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)
[] Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

[C] Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

(] Thin Muck Surface (C7)

[ other (Explain In Remarks)

. Secondary Indicators (minimure of 2 reauired) .

(7] surface Soll Cracks (86)

[] Dralnage Patterns (B10)

[ Moss Trim Lines (816)

O Dry Season Water Table (C2)
] Crayfish Burrows (C8)

[] saturation Visible on Aerlal Imagery (C9)
D Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)
[7J Geomorphic Position (D2)

[[] shallow Aquitard (D3)

O Microtopographic Relief (D4)
FAC-neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes O No@
Water Table Present? Yes @ No O
Saturation Present? Yo @ No @)

(includes capillary fringe)

Depth (inches):
Depth (inches): 8

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Depth (Inches): _

Yes@ No O

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants

Sampling Point: WDP #2

_Tree Stratum (Plot size:

1. Populus deltoides

2., Acer saccharinum

4
5
6
¥

_Sapling/Shrub Stratum _ (Plotsize:

1. Uimus americana
2. Frangula alnus
3. Coraus racemosa__
4. Rhamnus cathartica
5. Acer saccharlnum

B
7 e e sy =
Herb Stratum {Plot slze: B

1. Vitls riparla__

2. Toxicodendron radicans
PR e
 — ==

Absolute
% Cover

(=]

Remarks: (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

Dominant y,4icator
_.Species? _ status. _
vl FAC
v FACW
J -
] _
|
[
i
90 = Total Cover
D _FACW
FAC .
W FAC
(I
vl FACW
[—I - —ar
0
= Total Cover
FAC
]
J
L]
(]
0 .
0
=
1
1
[J N
] :
= Total Cover
] _FAC
M rac
O
]

= Total Cover

Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species

That are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 7 )
Total Number of Dominant

Species Across All Strata: e (B)
Percent of dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:  ....100.0% . (A/8)

Evalence Index worksheet:
_ Total % Coverof: __ Multiplyby: ..

OBL species w0 ox1= 0. .

FACW species 45  x 2= _ 90 _

FAC species LA80. x 3= 450 .

FACU species .0 __ x4= __0

UPL species wxillece % 5w emola

column Totals: _ 195 (A) ..540 (@)
Prevalence Index = B/A = 2,769

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
[C] Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
[v] pominance Test is > 50%
[} prevalence Index is 3.0 *

[] Morphological Adaptations ! (Provide supporting
data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

) problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation * (Explain)

1 Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
be present, unless disturbed or problematic,

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Tree - Woody plants, 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Sapling/shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and
greater than 3.28 ft (1m) tall..

Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of
size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall,

Woody vine - All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in
height.

Hydrophytic
Vegetation
Present? Yes @ No O

*Indicator suffix = National status or professional decision assigned because Reglonal status not defined by FWS,

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Sail Sampling Point: ~ WDP #2
Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)
Depth. . Matte. . RejoxFestures
_(inches) _ color(malst) = % _ Color(moist) _ % _ Type! Llocd  Texture Remarks
N ... S . 2 VY ...
" B-IFE+> : IOYR ) 4.1 ‘ Clay

Hydric Soil Indicators:

[[] Histosol (A1)

[] Histic Eptpedon (A2)

(] Black Histic (A3)

(] Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

[ stratified Layers (AS)

O Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)
(] Thick bark Surface (A12)

(] sandy Muck Mineral (S1)

(7] sandy Gleyed Matrix (54)

[] sandy Redox (S5)

(W] stripped Matrix (S6)

(] park Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

1 Type: C=Concentration. D=Depletion. RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains 2Location: PL=Pore Lining. M=Matrix

[2] Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,
MLRA 1498)

[ Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 1498)
[V Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) LRR K, L)

O Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

(] Depleted Matrix (F3)

[ Redox Dark Surface (F6)

[C] pepleted Dark Surface (F7)

[] Redox Depressions (F8)

31ndicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Solils : 3

[ 2 em Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 1498)
[ Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

[Z] 5 em Mucky Peat o Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)
() park Surface (S7) (LRRK, L, M)

] Polyvalue Below Surface ($8) (LRR K, L)

[ Thin Dark Surface (59) (LRRK, L)

D Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)
[7] piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)
[T] Meslc Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 1498)
[_] Rred Parent Material (F21)

[ Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

] other (Explaln In Remarks)

Restrictive Layer (if observed):
Type: __ e
Depth (Inches): __
Remarks:

Yes @ nNoO

Hydric Soll Present?

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: DTN/6276 Mewton & M-78 Vacant City/County: Meridian Township/Ingham Co. Sampling Date: 19-Jul-17
Applicant/Owner: DTN Management Company/Newton Pointe, LLC . State: Miéhigani 4-Sam|7)iiﬂnvg Point: WDP #3
Investigator(s): Steven P. Voice, MS,PWS,CSE Saction, Township, Range: S. 4 TN RIW
Landform (hII’lslo;e, terrace, etc.): ‘ Ffét S Local relief (concave, canvex, non'éjﬁ ”ﬂiat- o 7 Slope: ) ()_C}_% { .,,,Q 0 C
Subregion (LRR or MLRA): 'ﬁRL Lat.: 42,762973 Long.: -84.,;2;3:;35 S Datum:

Soil Map Unit Name: Oshtemo-Spinks loamy sands (0 to 6 percent slopes) NWI classification: Upland

Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes @ No O (1f no, explain in Remarks.)

AreVegetation [ | ,Soit [] ,orHydrology [| significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances” present?  YES ® MO

Are Vegetation D » Soil D , or Hydrology [:l naturally problematic? (If needed, explaln any answers In Remarks.)

Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.
Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?  Yes O N®
Hydric Soll Present? Yes O No @ ﬁimﬁ,?\,".}ﬂf:nﬁ;ea Yes O No @
Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes O No® i

Remarks: (Explain alternative procedure: hére or in a separate report.)
Data point is located near the southern property line, immediately west of a small, lowland depression.

Hydrology
Wetland Hydrolagy Indicators: _Secandary Indicators (minmum.of 2 requiced). ...
_Primary Indicators (minimum of ane required; check all thatapply)  [] Surface Soll Cracks (B6)
(] surface Water (A1) [ water-stained Leaves (89) [7] orainage patterns (810)
{1 High Water Table (A2) (] Aquatic Fauna (B13) [ Moss Trim Lines (B16)
[] saturation (A3) [ Marl Deposits (B15) [] Dry season Water Table (C2)
[ water Marks (B1) (] Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1) (] crayfish Burrows (C8)
[] sediment Deposits (B2) [ ] oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3) [] saturation Visible en Aerlal Imagery (C9)
[ orift deposits (B3) [] presence of Reduced Tron (C4) [[] stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)
] Algal Mat or Crust (84) [ Recent Tron Reduction in Tilled Sols (C6) ] Geomorphic Position (D2)
L] 1ron Deposits (B5) [] Thin Muck Surface (C7) [ shallow Aquitard (D3)
[C] 1nundation Visible on Aerlal Imagery (87) ] other (Explain in Remarks) [ Microtopographic Rellef (D4)
] Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8) [] FAC-neutral Test (D5)
Field Observations:
Surface Water Present? YesO No @ Depth (inches):
Water Table Present? Yes O No @ Depth (inches): oo e ®
T 7T Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes No
Saturation Present? 5
(includes capitFaLfn'ﬂgg} Yes O No @ Depth (inches): Gor oien ienos

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:
No water table or evidence thereof observed in the 32" deep boring.

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0



VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants

Sampling Point: WDP #3

Tree Stratum »(PIotsize:_' . = )
1. Quercusveluting
2., Quercus macrocarpa

4. Garya ovata

B S

B
7

(Plotsize: )

1. Carya ovata
2., Prunus serotina
3, Ulmus ameticana

~No o s

_Herb Stratum {Plotsizes: ... .}
1,, Prunus serobina
2, Circaea alpina
3. Rosa multifiora
4, Cornus racemosa =
5 AL

15 e S
12.. A TR o MO

_Woody Vine Stratum_(Plotsize: )
1., Smilax rotundifolia

25 e
4., . . Mg U .

Absolute Dominant yugicator
% Cover_.Specles? statys

.,
10
- 10.

— e

Remarks: (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

v UPL
] FACU
O FACU
v Facu
O
O
O a
= Total Cover

Vi FACU
vl Facu
[] FACW
] .
] S
]
o

. = Total Cover
WV FACU .
v FACW
U ey
Ll rc
J
0 s
O
o
O
1 S
Il e
O -

) = Total Cover
w1 FAC
0 )
'
g

= Total Cover

Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species

That are OBL, FACW, or FAC: o2 n
Tatal Number of Dominant

Species Across All Strata: FO A (B)

Percent of dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:  ._..28.6% . (A/B)
Prevalence Index worksheet:
Total % Coverof: ___ Multiplyby:

OBL species RO o AT i 6 QRS o)

FACW species PR SO 1 T - . e

FAC species 30, x3= _ 80

FACU species ..125_ x4 = _500 _

UPL species B, S Ol
column Totals: _ 257 (A) 974 ®

Prevalence Index = B/A =

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
D Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
El Dominance Test is > 50%
[C] prevalence Index is <3.0 !

i Morphological Adaptations * (Provide supporting
data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

[ problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation ! (Explain)

1 Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Tree - Woody plants, 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Sapling/shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and
greater than 3.28 ft (1m) tall..

Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of
size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall,

Woody vine - All woody vines greater than 3.28 ftin
height.

Hydrophytic
Vegetation
Present?

Yes O No®@

*Indicator suffix = National status ar professional decision asslgned because Regional status not defined by FWS.

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Soil

Sampling Point:

Depth Matrix
_(inches}  color(moist) %

0-1 _IO‘I"R 3/3 )
O L
asu 0m 4k
%2 OR 4e

__Color (moist),

___Redox Features
e Typeh

1 Type: C=Concentration. D=Depletion. RM=Reduced Matrlx, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Gralns  2Locatlon: PL=Pore Lining. M=Matrix

Loc2.
Loamy sand

_ lemyond
—'S'Iand

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

.. Texture

Sand

" Hydric Soil Indlcators:
(] Histosol (A1)
[] Histic Eplpedon (A2)
[ Black Histic (A3)
(] Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)
(] stratified Layers (A5)
O Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)
(] Thick Dark Surface (A12)
O Sandy Muck Mineral (S1)
] Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)
[C] sandy Redox (S5)
[ stripped Matrix (S6)
[[] park Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

Restrictive Layer (If observed):
Type: |

[] Polyvalue Below Surface (SB) (LRR R,
MLRA 149B)

(] Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 1498)
[] Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) LRR K, L)

[[] Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

(] pepleted Matrix (F3)

[ Redox Dark Surface (F6)

] pepleted Dark Surface (F7)

[T] Redox Depresslons (F8)

| 3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Solls : 2
[J 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 1498)

[ Coast Pralrie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

[) 5 em Mucky Peat or Peat (53) (LRR K, L, R)
[ Dark Surface (S7) (LRR K, L, M)

(7] poiyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

] Thin Dark Surface (59) (LRR K, L)

[] 1ron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)
[) piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 1498)
(] Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 1498)
[ Red Parent Materlal (F21)

[ Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

7] other (Explain in Remarks)

Depth (Inche s):ij * " - "ﬁ:i S _:: o Hydric Soil Present? Yes O No ®
Remarks:
US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: DTN/6276 Newton & M-78 Vacant City/County:  Meridian Township/Ingham Co. Sampling Date; 19-Jul-17
Applicant/Owner: DTN Management Company/Newton Pointe, LLC a State: Mkhlg;ﬁ -Sampli;g Point: WDP #4
Investigator(s): Steven P, Voice, MS, PWS, CSE Section, Township, Rang;e:d;._ :l—‘ T. 4W S >T 1W V
Landform (hillslo;;,_;e};;;;-etc.): ”LowTand“mr L Local relief (concave, convex, none): flat ooyl 'Slope: _;g_h_% ,J'__
Subregion (LRR or MLRA): Lrﬁ |__ _ - o Lat.: 42.763663 Long.: -84,428968 : Datum

Sall Map Unit Name:Urban land-Capac-Calwood complex, 0to 4 percet siopes (Uph) | WWEchsifcaton: peMiC
Are climatic/hydrologic conditions an the site typical for this time of year? Yes @ no O (If no, explain in Remarks.)

Are Vegetation O , Soll J , or Hydrology El significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances” present?  YES (O] No O

Are Vegetation ] 1 Soil ] , or Hydrology ] naturally problematic?

(If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?  Yes ® N O
Is the Sampled Area
Hydric Soil Present? Yes © N0 O within a Wetland?
Yes @ NoO

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Yes @ nNo O

Remarks: (Explain alternative proc;eduras hereorina separaterreport.)
Data point s located in a smaller lowland area to the east of the lowland at WDP #2,

Hydrology

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

‘ [J surface Water (A1)

v High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

(7] Water Marks (81)

(] Sediment Deposits (82)

(1] orife deposits (83)

(] Algal Mat or Crust (84)

[ 1ron Deposits (BS5)

(] 1nundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (87)
|:l Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

_Primary Indicators (minimum of one required; check all thataoply)

[:] Water-Stained Leaves (BS)

O Aquatic Fauna (B13)

[T Marl Deposits (B15)

[J Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)

[ oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)
(] Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

D Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Solls (C6)

(] Thin Muck Surface (C7)

] Other (Explaln in Remarks)

-Secondary Indicators (minkmum.of 2 required). ..
[) surface Soll Cracks (B6)

= Dralnage Paltterns (B10)

(] Moss Trim Lines (816)

] Dry Season Water Table (C2)

(] crayfish Burrows (c8)

(] saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)
[_] stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

O Geomorphic Position (D2)

(] shallow Aquitard (D3)

[ Microtopographic Rellef (D4)

W1 FaC-neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes O No @
Water Table Present? Yes @ No O
Saturation Present? Yes ® No O

| (Includes capillary fringe)

Depth (Inches):

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Yes @ NoO

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Reglon - Version 2.0




VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants sampling Point:  WDP #4

Absolute DOmMinant yodicator| Dominance Test worksheet:

Plot size: Species?

_Tree Stratum__ (Plotsize: ) % Coyer_.SPecies?  statys O —_——

1. Acer rubrum 70 Wl _FAC | That are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 5 (A)

Populus delfoides 25 FAC

2. fopy . % — " | Total Number of Dominant

<A e .l — | Species Across All Strata: _ 5. ®
4 s = . ] S

5 0 . Percent of dominant Species

6'. = D — | That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: ~ _.100.0% _ (A/B)
e o wulls [] A 'P;et;alence Index worksheet:

B [l ) 95 = Total Cover ___Total % Cover of: Multiply by:
Sapling/Shyub Stratum . S - OBL species i} X1l= 1]
A
1 f_ce;mbmm = — % ?c\ﬁ FAQW species 20 X2= 40
TaXinus ﬂfﬁfMﬂ

; £e 0 7 | FAC species 100 x 3= 300

4' 0 FACU species 0 X 4 = 1]

5 [] T lue species D | S X5 = S |

6. | column Totals: __ 120  (A) 340 (®)
) U g me Prevalence Index = B/A = 2.833

= Total Cover Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

Herb Stratum  (Plot size: )
J Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

TaXI nsylvanica FACW
1o Lndus pen an % —===—| ] pominance Testis > 50%
* 0 W] Prevalence Index is <3.0 1
8. l:l G D Morphologlical Adaptations * (Provide supporting
4. E] P data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)
LT D — | [ problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation ! (Explain)
6. G
! ] ! Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
8 D T | be present, unless disturbed or problematic.
9' 0 B Definitions of Vegetation Strata:
10 (] wwecee | Tree - Woady plants, 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
11 0 [ al breast height (DBH), regardless of height.
0
12 = — ey U ——— | Sapling/shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and
ik ki, {HE R } __ 15 =Total Cover greater than 3.28 ft (1m) tall..
SNoody Vine Stratum .
q 0 ] | Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of
2 0 ) size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.
3 i U ~— | Woody vine - All woody vines grealer than 3.28 ft in
4 ) 0 O __ | height.
0 =Total Cover
Hydrophytic

Vegetation
Present? Yes @ nNo O

Remarks: (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

*Indicator suffix = Mational status or professional declsion assigned because Regional status not defined by FWS.
us Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Reglon - Version 2.0



Soil Sampling Point: WDP #4

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators,)

Depth Matrix Redox Features
{inches) —_ color(moist) % _ _ Color(moist) _ % _ Type! Loc2  Texture Remarks
. 0-18 3 10YR 3 2/1 B ) . loam
18-24 10YR 4/1 Loamy sand a
24-28+ 10YR 4/1 Sandy Clay Loam

—— P — e Sttt - taita

1 Type: C=Concentration. D=Depletion. RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains  2Location: PL=Pore Lining. M=Matrix

Iijdric Soil Indicators: 0 Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils : 3

7 Black Histic (A3) (V] Thin Dark Surface (S3) (LRR R, MLRA 1498) 0 E""St Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

7 Hydrogen Sulfide () [ Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) LRR K, L) & m"“k ::’;k" Pe:_; °’;Za;{i3);LRR LR

[ stratified Layers (AS) [ Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2) O Polf y ch:I( ;(h - L)RRK y

(] bepleted Below Dark Surface (A11) (] vepleted Matrix (F3) O Thlwb:; Su:;w ursgm (LR )'(( 5 )

[J Thick Dark Surface (A12) [ Redox Dark Surface (F6) & m:_Ma e::;imis[ FlRZ 'uia 5. g

[J sandy muck Mineral (51) L Beghi D e ) [ pledmo Zg;"od fal SoiI( FI;( MLRA 1’49:3

[} sandy Gleyed Matrix (54) [[] Redox Depressions (F8) H edmont Floodplain Sos (F19) )
Mesic Spodic (TAG) (MLRA 144A, 145, 1498)

E}I :ta?dv s:le::xm (5(5;6 | (] red Parent Material (F21)

Ippe X Very Shallow Dark S
[ ] park Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B) % Ot,:rs(ﬁxzam & l;e:::;:]ﬂ?ﬂ)

ilpdicatprs of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic,

Restrictive Layer (if observed):
Type: _sandv clav loam
Depth (Inches):_24

Hydric Soil Present? Yes @ No O

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region

Project/Site: DTN/6276 Newton & M-78 Vacant City/County: Meridian Township/Ingham Co. Sampling Date: 19-Jul-17
Applicant/Owner: DTN Management Company?Newton Polnte LLC P—7Mh;§ar; VSa“m;m‘!‘g Point: WDP #5
Investigator(s): Steven P. Voice, MS, PWS, CSE Section, Township, Range: S. 4 -‘ T, 4W 0 W—V o
Landform (hIIlslop_e,—te-r.r';;,;tc.): - - ﬁl.ocal relief (concave, convex, non‘e): W E— Slope: _00%1/_0.0 ?
Subregion (LRR or MLRA): LRR L Lat.: 42,764946 ) Long.: -84.429032 Datum:
Soil Map Unit Name: Oshtemo-Spinks loamy sands, 0 to 6 percent slopes (OtB) B " © NWI dlassification: Upland -
Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes @ No O (If no, explain in Remarks.)

Are Vegetation U , Soil D , or Hydrology D significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances” present? Yes @ No O
Are Vegetation ] ,soil [:] , or Hydrology | naturally problematic? (1f needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)
Summary of Findings - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?  Yes O No®

. Is the Sampled Area
Hydric Soil Present? YesO No @ withina w:ﬂand? Yes O No @
Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes O No ®

Remarks: (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)
Data point is located in a relatively open to shrub dominated field area to the northeast of the large lowland where WDP #2 was evaluated.,

Hydrology
Wationd Hydroloay State: Secondary Indicators (minmum of 2 required).
Primary Indicators (minimum of one required; check all that apply) (] surface Soil Cracks (B6)
[ surface Water (A1) [] water-Stained Leaves (B9) {7 Drainage Patterns (B10)
[j High Water Table (A2) [] Aquatic Fauna (B13) [ Moss Trim Lines (B16)
[*] saturation (A3) [J Marl Deposits (B15) [] ry season Water Table (C2)
[ water Marks (1) [ Hydrogen Suifide Odor (C1) [ crayfish Burrows (C8)
[] sediment Deposits (B2) [] oxdized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3) [] saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)
[] orift deposits (83) (] Presence of Reduced Iron (C4) [] Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)
[] Algal mat or Crust (84) [J Recent Iron Reduction In Tilled Solls (C6) ["] Geomorghic Position (D2)
[ tron Deposits (85) [CJ Thin Muck Surface (C7) [7] shallow Aquitard (D3)
f—_l Inundation Visible on Aerfal Imagery (B7) ['_'] Other (Explain In Remarks) D Microtopographic Rellef (D4)
[] sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (88) [ FAC-neutral Test (D5)
Field Observations:
Surface Water Present? Ys O nNo @ Depth (Inches): -
Water Table Present? Yes O No @ Depth (inches): o ®
: - "™ Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes No
Saturation Present? Yes O No @ Depth (inches):

(Includes capillary fringe)
Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:
No water table or evidence thereof observed in the 32" deep boring.

US Army Corps of Engineers Northeentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




VEGETATION - Use scientific names of plants

Sampling Point: WDP #5

_Tree Stratum (Plot size:

T
P
2,

3.

4,

5.

6

7

.

_Sapling/Shrub Stratum_ (Plot size;

1. Elaeagnus umbellata

2. Acer negundo

3. Malus pumila

4. Cornus racemaosa

5, Lonicera tatarica

6.

7

1._Rubus allegheniensis

2, Solidage rugosa

3. Lolium perenne

4, Achillea millefolium

5.

o NS

9.

10

11.

12,

Woaody Vine Stratum _(Plot size:
1. Vitis riparla

2

8.
4

Absolute Dominant yndicator
% Cover..5P

pecies?  statys

Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species
0 D — | ™hat are OBL, FACW, or FAC: o (A)
0 ]
S 0 === Total Number of Dominant
0 | Species Across All Strata: 7 (B
=L Ol e
0 0 Percent of dominant Species
o 0 ~ | That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:  ...42.5%_ __ (A/B)
0 O g Prevalence Index worksheet:
0 =Total Cover Total % Cover of: Muitiply by:
OBL species 4] X1l= 0
i5 v UPL ’
eeitnt ~—~=—= | FACW species 0 X2 [1]
5 0 FAC
"‘5— 0 T FAC species 70 X 3= 210
Y fac | |FAcu species 125 | xi4i= 500
"0 ¥ Facu |upL species 20 xs5e 100,
0 O column Totals: _ 215 (A) g0 (®
0 O B Prevalence Index = B/A = 3.767
75 =Total Covey Hydrophytlc Vegetation Indicators:
[:l Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
40 v FACU
"E‘ FAC [] pominance Testis > 50%
’; @ FACY D Prevalence Index is $3.0 !
“5_ D EACU D Morphological Adaptations ! (Provide supporting
e D data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)
<8 0 | [ problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation * (Explain)
0
0 1l 1 Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must
"—0"" n | be present, unless disturbed or problematic.
0 0 " | Definitions of Vegetation Strata:
D (] «—e—n | Tree - Woody plants, 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in diameter
0 ] ___ | atbreast height (DBH), regardless of height.
0
s 0 ——=—==| Sapling/shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and
_.120 = Total Cover greater than 3.28 ft (1m) tall..
20 FAC Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of
0 | size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.
., 0l ~emx | Woody vine - All woody vines greater than 3.28 {t in
0 0o _ height.
20 = Total Cover

Hydrophytic
Vegetation
Present?

Yes O No @

Remarks: (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

*Indicator suffix = National status or professional decislon assigned because Reglonal status not defined by FWS,

US Army Corps of Engineers

Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Sail Sampling Point: ~WDP #5

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix_ —— . RedoxFentures . __

(inches) Calor (molst) 9% Color(moist) %  Type! Loc? Texture Remarks
0-12 10YR 3/4 - Loamy sand

12-30+ 10YR 4/6 Loamy sand

L Type: C=Concentration. D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Gralns  ?Location: PL=Pore Lining. M=Malrix

Hydric Soil Indicators: Indicatars for Problematic Hydric Soils : °

S ::::::L f:::on - O mal;:'egg)elw Surface (S8) (LRRR, S 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 1498)

) s oan [ Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 1498) = :oasr :akie ::t:cm (A16) (LRR ::; R)

] Hydrogen Sulfide (A4) D Loty Bueky Mineeol (AL LRR NG ] D:: J;me sa}' OFL:T:((?}; o

(] stratified Layers (AS) L] Loamy Gleyed watx () (] polyval a;e*( S]u( face (58 L)RR L

] Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) I:I Depleted Matrix (F3) D Th|w|2::( Su:: rsgce f.RR}}(( i o

(] Thick Dark Surface (A12) €] Redox Dark Surface (F) O “.M cemi : (m ,LF:RK LR

(] Sandy Muck Mineral (S1) ] G perad ek Gt () O] Pim; a"f::,ff i s;eo:( n;{ MLRA 1'4933

(] sandy Gleyed Matrix (54) [[] Redox Depressions (F8) 0 edmon plain Solls (F19) ( )
Mesic Spodic (TAG) (MLRA 144A, 145, 1498)

g ss:;:dy :,e;o: .(526 | [Z] Red Parent Material (F21)

pped Matrix [ very shallow Dark Surface (TF12)
(] park Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B) [ other (Explain in Remarks)

jndl_cg_tg_r_g of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Type:
Depk sy Hydric Soil Present?  Yes O No @

Remarks:

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region - Version 2.0




Wetland and Jurisdiction Determination Report for DTN Management Co. February 22,2018
6276 Newton Road & M-78 Vacant, Meridian Township, Michigan Page C-1

APPENDIX C.

Copies of the November 3, 1997 letter from then-DEQ District Supervisor Gary F. Marx to
Dennis Forsberg and Keith Schroeder and the October 18, 2002 letter from then-DEQ
District Supervisor Walter Danyluk to G.S. Fedewa Builders, Inc., confirming that all four
(4) of the wetlands identified and delineated on the current project site, specifically
Wetland A (previously Wetland 1), Wetland B (previously Wetland 10), Wetland C
(previously Wetland 2) and Wetland D (previously Wetland 2), are NOT subject to state
jurisdiction or regulation under Part 303 (Appendix C).

vOICE(

Environmental
Group, LLC




EQP 01008
(Rav, 10/96)

STATE OF MICHIGAN

8

JOHN ENGLER, Governor
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY §iiawAssesostaicrorrice
HOLLISTER BUILDING, PO BOX 30473, LANSING MI 48900-7973 MORRICE M| 48857-9702
INTERNET: httpi/iwww.deq.state.ml.us
RUSSELL J. HARDING, Direclor

REPLY TO;

November 3, 1997

Dennis Forsberg and Keith Schroeder
Newton Property Partnership

2360 Jolly Oak Road -
Okemso, Michigan 48864

Dear Messrs, Forsberg and Schroeder

Subject; Wetland Determination
\WD-11-87-70
Ingham County

| have reviewed the materials included in your consultant's July 21, 1997 letter to this office as well as other
information to confirm a welland determination on property located in the west 1/2 of the northeast 1/4 of the
southeast 1/4 of Section 4 of Méridian Township, T4N, R1W, in accordance with Section 30321(3) of Part 303,
Wetland Protection, of ihe Natural Resource and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451. The

determination was made In response to your request to the Department.

[t was determined that regulated wetlands do exist on the parcel of land as indicated In your determination.
We also conflrm that the wetlands designated 4 and 14 are state regulated pursuant to the above statute,

Any of the following activities in a regulated wetland area require a permmit under Section 5 of the
aforementioned act:
(a) Deposit or permit the placing of fill material in a wetiand.
") Dredge, remove, or permit the removal of soil or minerals from a wetland.
© Construct, operate, or maintain any use or development in a wetland,
(d) Drain surface water from a wetland,

This jurisdictional wetland determination is valid for five (5) years from the date of this letter unless new
information warrants a revision of the delineation before the expiration date.

This determination does not obviate the need for any other state, federal, or local permits which may bs
required by law,

Should you have any questions reganding this determination, please contact this office at 517/625-5515.

Land & Water Management Division

cc: LWMD, Lansing
Ingham CEA
Meridian Township
Vital Resources Consulting




The property is located between
M-78 (1-69 Business) to the north
and Lake Lansing Road to the
gouth, Newton Road forms the
western property boundary. The
site can be accessed from the first
drive immediately south of =78
(1-69 Business), leading east from
Newton Road, across from the
Meridien Township water tower. |

A EINAPLUCT

Mag 15,00

Fd Jul 18 17:05 1997 .
Scale 1:15,625 (at center)

F_'_w_e_':ic.t_[ ‘,«Fbl;;:":s Population Center
SR i
500 Melers : S County Boundary
L ﬁm Water

mnenees Riyer/Canal

Secondary SRIRoad/Hwy Ramp .
=== |nterstate/Limited Access

7| S

Figure 1




/./‘ P
//D 14{/——0.1 acres+
| —0.1 acrest
@//_ | 0.7 ) resﬂ') ﬂ 1 3@' Dur Ppopev"j'y Line
3/ Roack Twpmoewtonts | ) 0.1 acres:!: J 1 ﬂ, 0.1 acrest
.. 0.2 .acres F-’-
\ / —-—”***@ Slovwa Sewner
73.4 Heves:
(sold_)
2.0 acres:
0.3 acresk
5 /
-‘/
?6 ri ¥
0.2 doresd:
9.0 acres#. J%
%
Q 0 - 800
f 0.3 + AL YT
: acres 1g=500
308
0.0 dcres % Fligure 2
0.1 acresk Rsared ToR

\JBP OC]“”ES' Sac. 4, TAN, R1V,
Qm\-‘ % V[TALRFSOURCES(X)NSULTING A/Z) Ma‘r:'ldmn Twp., Ingham Co. Mi|
mﬂﬂmm-ﬂmmﬂ rojact No.: rawn By:

b’m-o&ﬂ?: oL 'gumb'atrm 20 ycm-ﬂ.v V""975822 EVS.E.BE"

120 NORTH THIRD STREET ’g 17)345-5030 fato: ot R |
WEST BRANCH, ML 48651 AX: (517)345—7302 July 14, 1997| 1 of 1
@© 1997 COPYRIGHT, P AUL B. LAPHAM AND ASSOCIATES INC. cale: Reckad Oy -

UNAUI’HORIZED COPYING [S PROHIBITED. 1"=500"

Newton Property Partnership
2360 Joll{‘ Oak Road
Okamos, Ml 48864




visLl/ 283 BlGS 51733394822 GS FEDEWA BUILDERS PAGE B2

STATE or MicioaN

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
SHrawassee District OFRIGE D E %
]
JOHN ENGLER RUBSELL J, HARDING
DIRECTON

GOYERNOR

Octoher 18, 2002

G.S. Fedewa Builders, Inc.
6570 Okemos Road
East Lansing, Ml 48823

Dear: Mr. Fedewa
SUBJECT:; Wetland Assessment Report - Wetland Assassrment File Nurber: 02-33-0009-WA

The Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) conducted a Level 3 Wetland Assessment on
property (property tax identification number 33-02-02-04-400-005, 009, and 010) located in
Town 04N, Range 01W, Section 04, Meridian Township, Ingham County on September 10,
September 17, and September 26, 2002. The assessment was conducted in accordance with
Part 303, Wetland Protection of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994
PA 451, as amended (NREPA); and Rule 4, Wetland Assessments (R 281.924) of the
Administrative Rules for Part 303, This Is a report of our findings ih response to your wetland
assessment application.

The DEQ staff walked the flagged boundaries as requested in your wetland assessment
application, Based on our an-site investigation, which included review of plant communities,
hydrologic indicators, and solls of the assessment area, and an in-office review of other
pertinent information, the' DEQ confirms, in part, the wetland boundaries observed during the
site inspection. Staff noted a couple of errors in Wetlands 3 and 4. Staff found a small area of
wetland coming out of the northemn part of Wetland 3. The wetland is along a slope leading info
Wetland 3, and catches water from up hill. There is a dominance of wetland vegetation in the
area including Reed Canary Grass, Sedges, Red Osier Dogwood, and Poison lvy. The areg
was added between Flags D49 and D12. Flags D49a ~ D49d were added. There were several
changes made in Wetland 4. Flags F22a — F22d were added between F22 and F25 to include
an area of wetland that had bare soil, shallow roots, and buttressed tree trunks. The plants in
the area included American Elm, Green Ash, Rough Avens, and Black Cherry. Flags F23 and
F24 were excluded, Flags F29, F30, F31, F32a, and F32h were moved and F32c was excluded
to include an area of wetland with watermarks, shallow roots, and buttressed tree trunks, The
dominant vegetation in the area included American Eim, Sensitive Fern, Jewelweed, Green
Ash, Late Goldenrod, Gray Dogwood, and Crooked Aster, Flags F58, F57, B2, and F58 were
moved to include an area of wetland that contained Late Goldenrod, American Elderberry, and
Black Ash, which are all indicative to wetlands, Finally, Flags AA19a and AA18b were added
between Flags AA19 and AA20, to include an area that contained drainage patterns,
Vegetatjon, including L.anced Leaf Goldenrod, Reed Canary Grass, Green Rush, and Swamp
Aster, were found in the area. East of Wetland 5, a small unflagged wetland was found. It
contained Glossy Buckthorn, Green Ash, Narrow Leaf Meadowsweet, Bulrush, Silky Dogwood,
and Poison lvy. Watermarks were also found in the wetland. This wetland is not believed to be
regulated by the State, and is marked on the provided map.

10850 BENNETT DRIVE » MORRICE, MICHIGAN 48857 5?E2

v mIchigan.gov = (517) 6256515 5)v) L>xS- K " 58
RIS - LoD

™ in b B e AN}




wirLLs Zuus B3y 5173394822

GS FEDEWA BUILDERS PAGE

G.S. Fedewa Builders, Inc
Page 2
October 18, 2002

We flagged the modified boundaries with pink DEQ flagging tape and documented the new
boundaries on the enclosed site map, The site map of the assessment area was created by
combining information from your consultant and the DEQ. The new map identifies the areas
containing wetland and the upland areas of the assessment area, A new deslineation is not
necessary,

For those areas identified as State regulated wetland on the site map, specifically Wetlands 4,

5, and 14, please be advised that any of the following activities require a permit under Part 303;

a) Depasit or permit the placing of fill material in a regulated wetland.

b) Dredge, re,mo#a, or permit the removal of sail or minerals from regulated wetland.
c) Construct, operate, or maintain any use or development in a regulated wetland.
d) Drain surface water from a regulated wetland.

For those areas identified as upland and nen-regulated wetland on the site map, the DEQ lacks
jurlsdiction under Part 303 for activities occurring In those areas. The non-regulated wetlands
are not regulated since they are not contiguous to the Great Lakes, an inland lake or pond, or g
river or stream, and smaller than five acres in size.

You may request the DEQ reassess the subject parcel or any portion of the parcel within 30
days of the date of this report should you disagree with the findings. A written request to
reassess the parcel must be accompanied by supporting evidence with regard to wetland
vegetation, soils or hydrology different from, or in addition fo, the information relied upon by
DEQ staff in preparing this report and sent to:

Wetland Assessment Program

Inland Lakes and Wetlands Unit

Land and Water Management Division
Department of Environmental Quality
P.O. Box 30468

Lansing, Michigan 48909-7958

Please be aware that this assessment report does not constitute a detennination of the
presence of wetland that may be regulated under local ordinances or federal law. The

U.S, Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) retains regulatory authority over certain wetlands
pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (CWA), and specifically those wetlands
assoclated with traditionally navigable waters of the state. Traditionally, navigable waters are
generally the Great Lakes, thelr connecting waters, and river systems and Jakes connected to
these waters. In other areas of Michigan, the DEQ is responsible for determination of wetland
boundaries for purposes of compliance with the CWA under an agresment with the

U.8. Environmental Protection Agency,

Your assessment area does not appear to be within those areas also regulated by the USACE,
However, should you desire more information, please contact the USACE at 313-226-2218.

This assessment report is limited to findings pursuant to Part 303 and does not constitute a
determination of jurisdiction under other DEQ administered programs. Any land use aclivities

a3




v7/11/2883 @737 5173394822 GS FEDEWA BUILDERS PAGE

G.S. Fedewa Builders, Inc
Page 3
October 18, 2002

undertaken on the assessed parcel may be subject to requlation pursuant to the NREPA under
the following programes:

Floodplain Regulatory Authority found in Part 31, Water Resourcas Protection
Part 91, Soll Erosion and Sedimentation Control
Part 301, Inland Lakes and Streams

The findings contained in this report do not convey, provide, or otherwise imply approval of any
governing act, ordinance, or regulation, nor does jt waive the obligation fo acquire any
applicable state, county, local, or federal approval or authorizations necessary to cohduct any
possible activities. This assessment report is not a permit for apy activity that requires a permit
from the DEQ.

The findings contained in this report are binding on the DEQ until Septémber 26, 2008; a period
of threa years from the date of the assassment unless a reassessment is conducted, Please
contact me if you have any guestions regarding this assessment report.

&7@3{,
o "J' i(’/
A Qﬁ% ]éyﬂié/

Walter Danyluk
District Supervisor
Geological and Land Management Divislon
517-625-4655
Enclosure

cc:  Meridian Township
Mr. John Skubinna, DEQ
Ms, Wendy Veltman, DEQ

84




wrrllizZvas  ayLds vl /3394822 GS FEDEWA BUILDERS PAGE 85

GS Fedewa Builders Inc
Page 4

OCTORER 18,2002 UPL

4.9 oereak

R : :;
0.1 acres

0.1 ocres%x

N
0.1 acresx ]

| _PAGES | |

oL |20 AT

i
-
[

PG | ‘ 7 ’
. ocraa /
0.2 h -'

Yoy 9.0 acres:.
= /] PAGE 7

/

UFL SR A :l

NEWTON ROAD

ASSESSMENT AREA—

WN : 0.3 acresk i
[T—DRAIN 1 l

Legend: 8
0,0 acrest—" k—O.‘l o l

WR = Wetland- Regulated ,
WN =Wetland- Not Regulated |
1

UPL = Upland (non-wetland)
Approximate Scale: 1 inch = 500 feet

This drawing showing those areas containing wetland and not containing wetland is an
approximation of the boundaries flagged on-site,

This drawing does not authorize or permit activities requiring a permit in accordance with
Part 303 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as

amended.



¥ii11/2883 B87:37 5173394822

GS FEDEWA BUILDERS

GS Fedewa Builders Inc
Page 5
OCTOBER 18, 2002

UPL

UPL

l.egend:

WR = Wetland- Regulated
WN =Wetland- Not Regulated
UPL = Upland (non-wetland)
Approximate Scale: 1 inch = 150 feet

This drawing showing those areas containing wetland and not containing wetland is an
approximation of the houndaries flagged on-site,

This drawing does not authorize or permit activities requiring @ permit In accordance with
Part 303 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as

amended.

PAGE - BB




¥/i11/20883 B7:37 5173394822 GS FEDEWA BUILDERS PAGE' a7

(S Fedewa Builders Inc
Page&
OCTORER 18, 2002

MY e

n 7 "
P~ ' 5 an
-ry o /
w S v
AN (4

X

\\\\\\\
[
3% 2

i
Xy

>,

\.\
N

ey ped |

\\\._\A‘\_\‘\'\ o
AN

~
N,
.

\.u
S

NN
¢ NEIAINNS

O

Legend:

WR = Wetland- Regulated
WN =Wetland- Not Regulated
UPL = Upland (non-wetland)
Approximate Scale: 1 inch = 150 feet

This drawing showing those areas containing wetland and not containing wetland is an
approximation of the boundarles flagged on-site.

This drawing does not authorize or permit activities requiring a permit in accordance with
Part 302 of the Natural Resources and Enviranmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as

amended.




) B7/11/2083 87:37 5173394822 GS FEDEWA BUILDERS & PAGE @88

+ ey

, e I £ foin 7

Sl sy,

GS Fedewa Builders Inc Vs, /
Page 7 & ';,-x';/’

Octaber 18, 2002 i
’/ f%'{’

N\
N
N

~\

y A

i

i,

\\R\

Ady,

Legend;

WR = Wetland- Regulated
WN =Wetland- Not Regulated

UPL = Upland (non-wetland) _
Approximate Scale: 1 inch = 150 feet

This drawing showing those areas contalning wetland and not containing wetland Is an
approximation of the boundaries flaggad on-site.

requiring @ permit In accardance with

This drawing does not authorize or permit activities
Act, 1994 PA 451, as

Part 303 of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection
amended,




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITS CHECKLIST

Name: The Peabody Group, Inc./KEBS, Inc.,

Ma|||ng Address: 2502 Lake Lansing Road, Lansing, MI 48912

Telephone: (517) 371-5300/(704) 626-0705 (cell) Fax: (517)371-5356 E-Mail: cholman@dtnmgt.com
Type of Business (if applicable): Rea! Estate Development

Owner/Manager: DTN Management

Date:

Signature:

Circle (Y/N) the items that may pertain to your project or facility; then contact the office(s) listed to determine specific
requirements. Return a copy of this checklist to the Department of Community Planning & Development as part of your
project or development submittal — even if the approvals have not yet been obtained. This list includes the most common
permits and approvals related to water and air quality, waste, and the environment. Other permits and approvals,
including Township approvals may also be necessary.

1. Yes

4. Yes

10. No

11. No

12. NoO

Will the project involve the discharge of any type of wastewater to a storm sewer, drain, lake, wetland, or other
surface water? Contact: MDEQ/Water Resources @ (517) 241-8993; MDEQ/Land & Water Features
Programs @ (517) 373-9244; Meridian Township Dept. of Community Planning and Development @
(517) 853-4560.

Will the project involve any construction work, fill with any material, or soil disturbance in the 100-year
floodplain? Contact: MDEQ Land & Water Featured Programs @ (517)373-9244 and Meridian Township
Dept. of Community Planning & Development @ (1517) 853-4560.

Will the project involve the direct or indirect discharge of waste, waste effluent, wastewater, pollutants, and/or
cooling water into the groundwater or on the ground? Contact: MDEQ/Groundwater Permits Program @
(517) 373-8148.

Will the project involve construction or alteration of any sewage collection or treatment facility? Contact:
MDNRE/Water Bureau @ (517) 335-4176. For discharging to surface waters; Contact: MDEQ/Water
Resources @ (517) 241-1346. For discharging to groundwater; Contact: MDEQ/Groundwater Permits
Program,@ (517) 373-8148.

Will the project or facility store or use chemicals, petroleum products, or salt? Depending on the type of
substance, secondary containment and a Pollution Incident Prevention Plan (PIPP) may be required. Contact:
MDEQ/Water Resources, Part 5 Rules Program @ (517) 373-1623; Ingham County Health Department;
Environmental Health Division @ (517) 887-4312; Meridian Township Fire Admin. @ (517) 853-4700.

Will the project involve the installation, operation, or removal of an underground or above ground storage tank
containing a petroleum product or hazardous substance? Contact: MDEQ/Storage Tank & Solid Waste
Section @ (517) 335-7211 and Meridian Township Fire Administration @.(517) 853-4700.

Will the project involve liquefied petroleum gas storage tanks, container filling station, or a compressed natural
gas dispensing station? Contact: MDEQ/Storage Tank & Solid Waste Section @ (517) 335-2690.

Will the project involve the generation of hazardous waste or medical waste? Hazardous Waste Contact:
MDEQ/Waste & Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-9875. Medical Waste Contact: MDEQ/Medical Waste
Program @ (517) 335-1146.

Will the project involve the on-site treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous waste? Contact: MDEQ/Waste
& Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-2690.

Will the project involve the transport of hazardous waste or non-hazardous liquid industrial waste? Contact:
MDEQ/Waste & Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-2690.

Will the project involve landfilling, transferring or processing solid non-hazardous wastes on site? Contact:
MDEQ/Waste & Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-2690.

Will the project involve the installation, construction, reconstruction, relocation, or alteration of any process or
process equipment (including air pollution control equipment) which could emit air contaminants, such as
boilers, generators, and sandblasting. Contact: MDEQ/Air Quality @ (517) 373-7023.



13. No Will the project or facility involve the storage, mixing, or distribution of pesticides or fertilizers in bulk
quantities? Contact: Michigan Department of Agriculture Rural Development/Region 6 Pesticide & Plant
Pest Management @ (517) 335-1830.

14.Yes Wil the project involve a manmade change in the natural cover (land clearing) and/or topography of land,
such as cut/fill activities that may contribute to soil erosion/sedimentation? Contact: Meridian Township
Dept. of Public Works & Engineering @ (517) 853-4440 and MDEQ/Land & Water Feature Programs @
(517) 373-9244.

15.Yes Wil the project involve any dredging, filling with any material, or construction in, across, under, or within 500
feet of a river, stream, creek, ditch, drain, lake, pond, swamp, or wetland(s)? Contact: MDEQ/Land & Water
Feature Programs @ (517) 373-9244 and Meridian Township Dept. of Community Planning &
Development (517) 853-4560.

16. NO  Will an on-site wastewater treatment system or septic system be installed?
For subsurface sanitary sewage disposal in quantities of 10,000 gallons per day or less: For any
subsurface discharge or sanitary sewage in quantities equal to or greater than 10,000 gallons per day.
Contact: MDEQ/Resource Management @ (517) 335-4035.

For subsurface disposal of sanitary sewage in quantities of 6,000 to 10,000 gallons per day: In addition to
obtaining a construction permit from the Ingham County Health Department, submit a state wastewater
discharge notification form. Flow monitoring and reporting are required. Contact: MDEQ/Resource
Management @ (517) 335-4035.

For industrial or commercial wastewater (other than sanitary sewage) in any quantity. Contact:
MDEQ/Waste & Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-2690.

17. Yes Will the project involve construction of a water supply well or extension of a water supply service from an
existing water system? Contact: MDEQ/Water Bureau @ (517) 335-6127 and Ingham County Health
Dept./Environmental Health @ (517) 887-4312.

18. No Are there out-of-service water wells, abandoned water wells, or cisterns on the site? (drinking water, irrigation
& monitoring wells). Contact: MDEQ/Water Bureau @ (517) 241-1377; Ingham County Health
Dept./Environmental Health @ (517) 887-4312; and Meridian Township Department of Community
Planning & Development @ (517) 853-4560.

19.No Will the project involve a subdivision or site condominium project utilizing individual on-site subsurface
disposal systems or individual wells? Contact: Ingham County Health Dept./Environmental Health @ (517)
887-4312.

20. No Will the project involve the on-site storage of sanitary sewage prior to transport and disposal off-site (pump
and haul)? Contact: MDEQ/Resource Management @ (517) 335-4035.

21. No Has the site/facility ever been subject to a remedial action, limited closure, or other environmental cleanup
response under Part 201, Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (NREPA)? Is the property
currently subject to a response action? Has a Baseline Environmental Assessment (BEA) been completed for
the property? Contact: MDEQ/Remediation & Redevelopment @ (517) 373-8815 and/or MDEQ/Waste &
Hazardous Materials @ (517) 335-9837.

22. No  Will the project involve the installation of a seawall or bulkhead? Contact: MDEQ/Land & Water Feature
Programs @ (517) 373-9244 and Meridian Township Dept. of Community Planning & Development @
(517) 853-4560.

Notes:
e  For assistance with permits and approvals from the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ), including coordination
among MDEQ divisions, contact the Office of Environmental Assistance at (517) 373-9244 or (800) 662-9278.
e  For Spill/Release reporting to the MDEQ, call (517) 373-8481.
¢  For pollution emergencies, call the MDEQ at (800) 292-4706 in Michigan and (517) 373-7660 outside of Michigan.

Last updated, July 2012

g:\planning\forms\applications\environmental permits checklist.doc



NEWTON CORNERS

PROPOSED MAP AMENDMENT

C-2 ZONING CONDITIONED UPON APPLICATION AND APPROVAL OF
MIXED USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
(PRESENTATION OF LOCATION, USE AND DENSITY CONDITIONS)

« & 4 N

(et

e - \
Cow '!o\‘lui ; d r /‘!ﬁ‘;!‘ I w E

Lok
A P $ / \
L 12 .
o a1 TOWNER
Hnla e "hﬂllﬂ E
T gt
Bunbam Dy F n"f
I——r 1% i ‘ '
LOCATION MAP
7.24 ACRES
Welland *1*
9 AREA “A"
) 2.89 ACREs - {{(
z (SEE ATTACHED
S - AREA. . ..
o DESCRIPTIONS)
" == TRINMTY AREA k'
- - ; . i \
= “SJSACRES | I i | = ]
1 - SEE ATTACHED ‘AREA | | @ @ s /
= . ! | DESCRIPTIONS): | [ @
N e
a—
—y
|-—| b —
WETLAND ANALYSIS
e 182,853 SF
Watland "1 Jozass s
- 36,375 SF
STRUGTURE, LOT, UNIT, ROAD, PARKING, ACCESS Wallend "2 4084 ACRE
IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ARE CONCEPTUAL AND PROVIDE
ADESCRIPTION OF A POSSIBLE DEVELOPMENT SCENARIO Watlird Boffer Afea 1" s
UNDER THE PROPOSED "LOCATION, USE AND DENSITY" -
CONDITIONS OFFERED BY THE APPLICANT. PR
Wetland Buffer Area 2 gl s
DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY SHALL BE BASED UPON
APPLICATION FOR A MIXED-USE PLANNED UNIT Preservellon Ated 315,374 57
DEVELOPMENT AND AS REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY (Wetiand & Buffer) £7.24 ACRE
THOSE BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, OR OFFICIALS CHARGED e ————
WITH SUCH RESPONSIBILITY PURSUANT TO THE MERIDIAN
CHARTER TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE. PROPOSED TRINITY
DEVELOPMENT UNDER MIXED-USE PUD SHALL BE IN aSmmse s,
COMPLIANCE WITH THE "LOCATION, USE AND DENSITY™ e R Al

v U 0

CONDITIONS AS PRESENTED BY THE APPLICANT,

ROAD

£0/SL/L :A3sSINIA

«8u LINIJNHOVLLY

o hy R - 011107.dwg, Layout], 1/15/2007 2:47:56 P, micod, Adoba POF, Teblold, 1:2.70014




3
R 18 2

REVISED: 2/8/07

J ATTACHMENT “C”

- IS

The following “areas” correspond to the “areas” presented under Attachment “B”,

A. ARFA “A”. COMMERCIAL USE

(1)  Allowable Uses:
(a) C-1, Commercial Uses
All uses permitted by right in the C-1, Commercial District (Sec. 86-403.c.)

All uses permitted as conditional uses in the C-1, Commercial District (Sec 86-
403.d.)

All uses permitted by special use permit in C-1, Commercial District (Sec. 86-
403.e.), except:

-Sec. 86-403.e.2- Public or private utility building and structures

-Sec. 86-403.e.5- Gasoline Stations

All above uses shall maintain the standards applying to all C-1 uses as provided
in Sec. 86-403.b, except the following, which are anticipated to be addressed
through the Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development process as standards
addressed through design and provision for amenities:

-Section 86-403.b.3- Side and rear yard setback adjacent to a residential
district.

-Section 86-403.b.10- Lighting height restrictions.
(b.) C-2, Commercial Uses

All uses permitted by right in the C-2, Commercial District (Sec. 86-404.c.),
except:
-Section 86-404.c.5 (portions of) - Bowling alleys.

-Section 86-404.c.12 - Retail food establishments, such as supermarkets,
occupying a maximum of 25,000-sf. of gross floor area which supply
grocery. Use still permitted, but as permitted in the C-1 district, which
limits the size of establishment to 3,000-sf.

-Section 86-404.c.14 - Theaters and Auditoriums

All uses permitted as conditional uses in the C-2, Commercial District (Sec. 86-
404.d.), except:

-Section 86-404.d.1- Bars, taverns, lounges and brewpubs.

Attachment “C”, Page 1




(2)

3)

All uses permitted by special use permit in C-2, Commercial District (Sec. 86-
404.e.), except:

-Sec. 86-404.e,1- Funeral homes and mortuaries.
-Sec. 86-404.e.2 (portion of) - Hospitals
-Sec. 86-404.e.3- Light manufacturing

-Sec. 86-404.e.4- Open air business uses, unless otherwise provided for
in the C-1 district.

-Sec. 86-404.e.5- Parking buildings or lots

-Sec. 86-404.¢.6- Public or private utility buildings or structures
-Sec. 86-404.¢.7- Satellite passenger bus terminals

-Sec. 86-404.e.8- Tattoo and body piercing establishments

-Sec. 86-404.e.9- Any building or group of buildings with a combined
gross floor area of greater than 25,000-sf.

-Sec. 86-404.e.10- Use or combinations of uses located in a structure
greater than 75,000-sf. in gross floor area.

-Sec. 86.404.¢.11- Banks, credit unions, saving and loan establishments
occupying a maximum of 5,000-sf. of gross floor area with a maximum
of five (5) drive-through lanes. Use still permitted, but as permitted in
the C-1 district, which limits the size to 2,500-sf. (but permitted by right)
and two-drive thru window by special use permit.

-Sec. 86.404.e.13 (portion of) - Gasoline, automobile service stations, oil
change establishments, and car washes are excluded.

-Sec. 86.404.e.14- Hotels or motels

-Sec. 86.404.e.15- Enclosed climate controlled storage facilities.

All above uses shall maintain the standards applying to all C-2 uses as provided
in Sec. 86-404.b, except the following, which are anticipated to be addressed
through the Mixed-Use Planned Unit Development process as standards
addressed through design and provision for amenities:

-Section 86-404.b.3- Side and rear yard setback adjacent to a residential
district.

First-floor commercial square footage shall not exceed twenty-five (25,000) square feet
within Area “A”,

Additional Conditions.

Any residential proposed above commercial establishments shall not cause overall
residential density on entire subject property to exceed 10-DU’s per acre.

Attachment “C”, Page 2



ARFEA “B”- SINGLE-FAMILY USE

(1)

(2.

(3.)

Allowable Uses:

Single-family, detached

Single-family, attached, comprised of three (3) to four (4) units townhouse, brownstone, '
type structures.

Density:

Single-family residential density shall not exceed six (6) dwelling units per acre within
Area “B”.

Additional Conditions.
In the event that single-family attached (three (3) to four (4) unit townhouse, brownstone
type structures) are proposed, the majority of said structures shall not be located along the

southern property line on the south side of proposed access within the subject property.

Overall residential density on entire subject property shall not exceed 10-DU’s per acre.

ARFA “C”- MULTIPLE-FAMILY USE

(1)

(2.

(3.)

Allowable Uses:
Multiple-family (apartments and/or condominiums)
Density:

Multiple-family residential density shall not exceed fourteen (14) dwelling units per acre
within Area “B2 “C”,

Additional Conditions.

Overall residential density on entire subject property shall not exceed 10-DU’s per acre.

Attachment “C”, Page 3



To: Planning Commission
From: Peter Menser, Principal Planner
Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner
Date: October 31,2018
Re: Special Use Permit #18091 (Newton Pointe, LLC), construct a group of

buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size at 6276 Newton Road and an
adjacent property to the east recognized as Tax L.D. #04-252-005.

Newton Pointe, LLC has submitted a mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD #18044)
proposal for a project identified as Newton Park. The approximate 23.97 acre project site is
located at the southeast corner of Saginaw Highway and Newton Road and consists of two parcels,
a property addressed as 6276 Newton Road (17.97 acres) and a property recognized as Tax I.D.
#04-252-005 (six acres). The proposal includes the construction of a new 86,468 square foot
mixed use building with 85 multiple family dwelling units and 19,367 square feet of commercial
space, 10, 10-unit multiple family buildings, six, four-unit single family attached buildings, nine
single family dwellings, and a 4,778 square foot clubhouse. Overall, total commercial square
footage is approximately 19,367 square feet in size and total residential square footage is
approximately 238,719 square feet in size.

In addition to the MUPUD, a special use permit is required for constructing a group of buildings
totaling more than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area. The special use permit is being processed
concurrently with the MUPUD request. This staff report focuses on the special use permit for
construction of a group of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size. The staff report for
MUPUD #18044 should be referenced for a more complete overview of the project.

The construction of any building or group of buildings with a combined gross floor area greater than
25,000 square feet requires a special use permit due to the significant impact such development may
have upon adjacent property owners, neighborhoods, and public infrastructure. The Code of
Ordinances requires the special use permit to ensure that public utilities, roads, and other
infrastructure systems are or will be adequate to support the proposed development.

Staff Analysis

The special use permit review criteria found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances should be
used when evaluating the proposed special use permit. The Planning Commission makes a
recommendation on the special use permit request and the Township Board has final approval.

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
proposed special use permit. A resolution will be provided at a future meeting.



Special Use Permit #18091 (Newton Pointe, LLC)
Planning Commission (November 5, 2018)
Page 2

Attachment
1. Special use permit application.

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2018\SUP 18091 (Newton Pointe LLC) Newton Park\SUP
18091.pcl.docx

— A PRIME COMMUNITY

meridian.mi.us

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, M| 48864
PLANNING DIVISION PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION

Before submitting this application for review, an applicant may meet with the Director of Community
Planning and Development to discuss the requirements for a special use permit and/or submit a
conceptual plan for review to have preliminary technical deficiencies addressed prior to submittal of the
application. If the property or land use is located in the following zoning districts RD, RC, RCC, RN then
the applicant must meet with the Planning Director to discuss technical difficulties before filing a formal
application.

Part |

A. App”cant Newton Pointe, LLC - Chuck Holman
Address of App”cant 2502 Lake Lansing Road, Lansing, Ml 48912
Te|ephone - Work 13715300704 e26-0705 cel) - Home NA Fax (517)371-5356 Email choman@dtnmgt.com
Interest in property (circle one): Owner Tenant _ Option [] |Other Developer
(Please attach a list of all persons with an ownership interest in The property.)

B. Site address / location / parce| number 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, MI 48840 Parcel Nos. 33-02-04-252-004 & 33-02-04-252-005

Legal description (please attach if necessary) See Attached

Current zoning ¢-2

Use for which permit is requested / project name Newton Park

Corresponding ordinance number Township Code of Ordinances, ArticleV! - Buildings greater than 25,000 SF

C. Developer (if different than applicant)

Address
Telephone — Work Home Fax
D. Architect, Engineer Planner or Surveyor responsible for design of project if different from applicant:

Name The Peabody Group, Inc./KEBS, Inc.,
Address 4740 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864/2116 Haslett Road, Haslett, MI 48840
Telephone — Work (586) 243-5945/(517) 339-1014 Home treallaway@hotmail.com/Jkyes@kebs.com Fgqx none

E. Acreage of all parcels in the project: Gross 2611 Net 2395
F. Explain the project and development phases:

(used for non-residential & residential)
G. Total number of:

Existing: structures NA bedroomsNA  officesNA  parking spacesNA  carports NA garagesNA
Proposed: structures 29 bedrooms 364 officesNA  parking spaces 414  carports NA garages 174

H. Square footage: existing buildingsNA _ proposed buildings 2+
Usable Floor area:  existing buildings NA _ proposed buildings 2%

If employees will work on the site, state the number of full time and part time employees working per shift
and hours of operation: Payment included with application

J. Existing Recreation: Type Commercial Acreage 2611
Proposed Recreation: Type Public Plazas Acreage
Existing Open Space: Type Raised Gardens Acreage 2611
Proposed Open Spaee; Type Clubhouse/Business Office/Conference Room/Pool Acreage 9.32

Page 1



If Multiple Housing:
Total acres of property 26.11

Acres in floodplain None Percent of total 0%

Acres in wetland (not in floodplain) 55 Percent of total 22.96%

Total dwelling units 218

Dwelling unit mix: Number of single family detached:  for Rent ° Condo
Number of duplexes: for Rent Condo
Number of townhouses: for Rent 124 Condo
Number of garden style apartments: for Rent 85 Condo
Number of other dwellings: for Rent Condo

The following support materials must be submitted with the application:

1. Nonrefundable Fee. See Attached

2. Legal Description of the property. See Attached

3. Evidence of fee or other ownership of the property. See Attached

4. Site Plan containing the information listed in the attachment to this application. See Attached

5. Architectural sketches showing all sides and elevations of the proposed buildings or structures,
including the project entrance, as they will appear upon completion. The sketches should be
accompanied by material samples or a display board of the proposed exterior materials and
colors. See Attached

6. A Traffic Study, prepared by a qualified traffic engineer, based on the most current edition of
Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities,
published by the State Department of Transportation.  See Attached. Samples & Display Board Included
a. A traffic assessment will be required for the following:

1) New special uses which could, or expansion or change of an existing special use
where increase in intensity would, generate between 50 to 99 directional trips
during a peak hour of traffic.

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article 1V, Division 2.

b. A traffic impact study will be required for the following:

1) New special uses which would, or expansion or change of an existing special use
where increase in intensity would, generate over 100 directional trips or more
during a peak hour of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day.

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article IV, Division 2.

7. Natural features assessment which includes a written description of the anticipated impacts on the

natural features at each phase and at project completion that contains the following: see Architectural Drawings

a. An inventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. Natural
features shall include, but are not limited to, wetlands, significant stands of trees or
individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, floodways, floodplains, waterbodies, identified
groundwater vulnerable areas, slopes greater than 20 percent, ravines, and vegetative
cover types with potential to sustain significant or endangered wildlife.

b. Description of the impacts on natural features.
C. Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative impacts.

The natural features assessment may be waived by the Director of Community Planning and
Development in certain circumstances.

Page 2



Any other information specified by the Director of Community Planning and Development which is
deemed necessary to evaluate the application.

In addition to the above requirements, for zoning districts, RD, RC, RCC, RN, and CV and Group
Housing Residential Developments the following is required: see Attached

1. Existing and proposed contours of the property at two foot intervals based on United States
Geological Survey (USGS) data.

2. Preliminary engineering reports in accordance with the adopted Township water and sewer
standards, together with a letter of review from the Township Engineer.

3. Ten copies of a report on the intent and scope of the project including, but not limited to: Number,

size, volume, and dimensions of buildings; number and size of living units; basis of calculations of
floor area and density and required parking; number, size, and type of parking spaces;
architectural sketches of proposed buildings.

4, Seven copies of the project plans which the Township shall submit to local agencies for review
and comments.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application in zoning district RP requires the following
material as part of the site plan: ~ See Attached

1. A description of the operations proposed in sufficient detail to indicate the effects of those
operations in producing traffic congestion, noise, glare, air pollution, water pollution, fire hazards
or safety hazards or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation.

2. Engineering and architectural plans for the treatment and disposal of sewerage and industrial
waste tailings, or unusable by-products.
3. Engineering and architectural plans for the handling of any excessive traffic congestion, noise,

glare, air pollution, or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Floodway Fringe of
ZOning diStriC’[ CV I’GQUiI’eS the fO”OWing: This site is within the urban service boundary. Utilities are near site and can serve site.

1. A letter of approval from the State Department of Environmental Quality.
A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours at a scale of one
inch representing 100 feet.

3. A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage
easements, the limits, extent, and elevations of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation.
4, A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of

Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.

In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Groundwater Recharge
area or zoning district CV requires the following:  see Architectural elevations

1. A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours.
A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage
easements, the limits and extent of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation.

3. A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of
Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.

In addition to the above requirements, the Township Code of Ordinances, Article VI, should be reviewed
for the following special uses: group housing residential developments, mobile home parks,
nonresidential structures and uses in residential districts, planned community and regional shopping
center developments, sand or gravel pits and quarries, sod farms, junk yards, sewage treatment and
disposal installations, camps and clubs for outdoor sports and buildings greater than 25,000 square feet
in gross floor area.

See photometric plan & lighting fixture cut sheets attached

Page 3



Part Il SUP REQUEST STANDARDS
Township Code of Ordinances, Section 86-126

Applications for Special Land Uses will be reviewed with the standards stated below. An application that
complies with the standards stated in the Township Ordinance, conditions imposed pursuant to the
Ordinance, other applicable Ordinances, and State and Federal statutes will be approved. Your
responses to the questions below will assist the Planning Commission in its review of your application.

(1) The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter. sk

(2) The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township's Master Plan of
current adoption.  see Atached

(3) The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such a
use will not change the essential character of the same area. Yes

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses. No

(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the community.
No

(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, stormwater
drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the persons or agencies
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such service. ves

(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site sanitation
facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and storm water are proposed, they shall be
properly designed and capable of handling the longterm needs of the proposed project. Yes

(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions of
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors. No

(9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural resources of
the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, water recharge areas, lakes, rivers,
streams, major forests, wetlands, and wildlife areas. No

Part lll

| (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or Commissions,
Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of gathering
information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.

(1| Yes No (Please check one)

By the signature(s) attached hereto, | (we) certify that the information provided within this application and
accompanying documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate

Signature of Applicant Date

Newton Pointe, LLC - Chuck Holman
Type/Print Name

Fee: Received by/Date:

Page 4



To: Planning Commission

From: Peter Menser, Principal Planner
Date: November 1, 2018
Re: Planned Unit Development #18014 (Haslett Holding LLC), develop Copper

Creek PUD consisting of 88 single family residential lots on the north side of
Haslett Road, east of Creekwood Lane.

The Planning Commission last discussed Planned Unit Development #18014 at its last meeting on
October 22, 2018. At the meeting the Commission agreed to consider a resolution to recommend
approval of the request at its next meeting on November 5, 2018.

Planning Commission Options

The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the
proposed PUD. A resolution to recommend approval of the PUD to the Township Board is provided.

e Motion to adopt the resolution recommending approval of Planned Unit Development #18014.

Attachment
1. Resolution to recommend approval.

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS (PUD)\2018\PUD 18014 Copper Creek\PUD
18014.pc5.docx



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL Planned Unit Development #18014
(Haslett Holding LLC)

At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian,
Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 5th day
of November, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following resolution was offered by and supported by

WHEREAS, Haslett Holding LLC has submitted a request to establish a planned unit
development (PUD) identified as Copper Creek; and

WHEREAS, the proposed planned unit development includes the construction of 88 single
family residential lots on 44.70 acres located on the north side of Haslett Road, east of Creekwood
Lane; and

WHEREAS, the subject site is appropriately zoned RA (Single Family-Medium Density),
which allows for a planned unit development; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on August
13, 2018, and has reviewed staff material forwarded under cover memorandums dated August 6,
2018, August 24, 2018, September 6, 2018, and October 18, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the proposed planned unit development provides adequate buffering between
the development and adjacent residential land uses to the west; and

WHEREAS, the proposed planned unit development meets the minimum PUD performance
objective to preserve at least 50% of the project area, excluding wetlands and floodplains, as open
space; and

WHEREAS, the proposed connection to Wood Knoll Drive provides for sufficient access for
emergency vehicles (police, fire, ambulance) to the dwelling units in the development as required in
the PUD general restrictions and standards identified in Section 86-439(c)(9) of the Code of
Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the proposed planned unit development will be harmonious and similar in
character with the existing residential developments to the west, south, and north of the subject
site; and

WHEREAS, the requested waivers for lot size, lot frontage, building setbacks, and water
feature setbacks are necessary to facilitate preservation of open space; and

WHEREAS, the proposed planned unit development will be adequately served by public
water and sanitary sewer; and



Resolution to Recommend Approval
PUD #18014 (Haslett Holding LLC)
Page 2

WHEREAS, the proposed planned unit development meets the minimum PUD performance
objectives as stated in Section 86-439(b) of the Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the proposed development is consistent with Objective E of Goal 2 of the 2017
Master Plan to preserve open space and natural areas by utilizing the planned unit development
ordinance for the project; and

WHEREAS, the proposed planned unit development is consistent with Objectives A and B of
Goal 1 of the 2017 Master Plan to preserve and strengthen residential neighborhoods by ensuring
new residential developments meet high standards of visual attractiveness, health and safety, and
environmental sensitivity.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER
TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Planned Unit Development #18014,
subject to the following conditions.

1. Approvalisin accordance with the submitted site plan prepared by Kebs, Inc., dated February 1,
2018 (revision date October 8, 2018) and received by the Township on October 10, 2018.

2. The waivers requested for lot size, lot frontage, building setbacks, and water feature setbacks
are recommended for approval as depicted on the submitted site plan prepared by Kebs, Inc.,
dated February 1, 2018 (revision date October 8, 2018) and received by the Township on
October 10, 2018.

3. The applicant shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses, and approvals from the Ingham
County Road Department, Ingham County Drain Commissioner, Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality, and the Township, as applicable. Copies of all permits and approval
letters shall be submitted to the Department of Community Planning and Development.

4. The utility, grading, and storm drainage plans for the site are subject to the approval of the
Director of Public Works and Engineering and Ingham County Drain Commissioner and shall be
completed in accordance with the Township Engineering Design and Construction Standards.

5. No grading or land clearing shall take place on the site until the site plan has been approved by
the Director of Community Planning and Development and grading and soil erosion and
sedimentation control (SESC) permits have been issued for the project.

6. The proposed roads in the development shall be built to Ingham County Road Department
construction standards and shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Public Works and
Engineering.

7. Construction traffic for development of the property shall only access the site from Haslett
Road.

8. The proposed boulevard at Haslett Road is subject to approval from the Ingham County Road
Department.



Resolution to Recommend Approval
PUD #18014 (Haslett Holding LLC)
Page 3

9.

10.

11.

12.

Any wetland boundaries or setbacks located on or adjacent to residential lots shall be clearly
identified by posted signage notifying the property owner of restrictions related to grading,
mowing, placement of structures, landscaping, and dumping in the wetlands. The size, number,
location, and language of the signs shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Community
Planning and Development.

The applicant shall construct a seven foot wide pathway along the Haslett Road frontage of the
properties included in the development. The pathway shall be designed and constructed in
accordance with Township Engineering and Construction standards. The design and location of
the pathway shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Public Works and Engineering.

Street trees shall be provided along all internal roads in the development. The species, size,
and location of the street trees shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Community
Planning and Development.

The open space shall be reserved or dedicated by lease or conveyance of title, including
beneficial ownership, to a corporation, association, or other legal entity or by reservation by
means of a restrictive convenient.

ADOPTED: YEAS:

NAYS:

STATE OF MICHIGAN )

) ss

COUNTY OF INGHAM )

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the

Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a
true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission
on the 5th day of November, 2018.

Dante lanni
Planning Commission Chair

G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS (PUD)\2018\PUD 18014 Copper Creek\PUD 18014
resolution PC approval.docx



	November 5 2018 Planning Commission Agenda
	September 24 2018 Planning Commission Minutes Draft
	October 8 2018 Planning Commission Minutes Draft
	October 22 2018 Planning Commission Minutes Draft
	1 Chizick
	2 Chizick
	4 Chizick
	6 Chizick
	8 Torng
	9 Torng
	10 Torng
	11 Torng
	12 Wei Li
	13 Bingwei Xu
	14 Shu Zhang
	15 Pankaj Vij
	16 Isabella Thompson-Orsua
	17 Fukang Wang
	18 Archana
	19 Hiroshi Tokashiki
	20 Dennis Reese
	21 Brian Mattes
	22 Steve Thomas
	23 Munkundan Agaram & Mythli Munkundan
	24 Yangfan Liu
	25 Viswanathan
	26 Rod Stumpf
	27 Steve Thomas
	28 Cindy X
	29 Qui Hua Fan
	30 Gang Teng
	31 Kathy Baldwin
	32 Jane Li
	33 Leigha
	34 Dean McFarlane-Parrott
	35 Alan Beretta
	36 Teri & Roger Thornburg
	37 Molly Wingrove
	38 Chi & Vivien Lo
	39 Denise Kane
	40 Peter Zawojski
	41 Robert & Cynthia Reid
	42 Kirt Butler
	43 Dianne & Tom Murphy
	44 Jeff Jacobsen
	45 Kari Goulet
	46 Tim Goulet
	47 Alpa & Samip Patel
	48 Donald Martyn
	49 David Raffo
	50 Armena Mazian
	51 Michael & Betty Casby
	52 Dawn Kettinger
	53 Mark Bird
	54 Nagraj Kota
	55 Himabindu Kota
	56 Geffrey Colon
	57 Petition regarding Rezoning 18120
	58 Bennett Road Elementary diagram regarding Rezoning 18120
	59 Lynne Page
	61 Ralph Pyle
	62 Jessi Wortley Adler
	SUP #18081 with attachments.pc1
	SUP 18081.pc1
	sup application
	sup application letter
	Phasing narrative
	trip generation analysis
	93384-93385-MW_TREE MEMO GRAND RIVER_Combined 3-27-2018
	MW_1448 W. Grand River Ave_Okemos Tree Memo_6-22-2018
	93897 SUP Sheet 1 10-30-18
	93897 SUP Sheet 2 10-30-18
	93897 SUP Sheet 3 10-30-18
	93897 SUP Sheet 4 10-30-18
	93897 SUP Sheet 5 10-30-18
	93897 SUP Sheet 6A 9-26-18
	93897 SUP Sheet 6B 9-26-18
	93897 SUP Sheet 6C 9-26-18
	1760_A2-1_ExtElevations 
	1760_A2-2_ExtElevations(Residence) 
	1760_A1-1_FloorPlan 

	MUPUD #18044 with attachments.pc1
	MUPUD 18044.pc1
	1. Newton Park  - MUPUD Application 10042018
	7. Newton Park - Project Description 10052018
	5. Newton Park - Legal Description
	6. Newton Park - Property Owner Authorization 10042018
	12. Newton Park - Agency Review Letters of Request 10052018
	9a. Newton Park Color Display Board 10052018
	Newton Park - Unit Mix and Building Areas 10182018
	Newton Park - Sign Program 10182018
	10.26.18 MIXED USE SIGNAGE #1
	Sheets and Views
	Layout5


	10.26.18 MIXED USE SIGNAGE #2
	Sheets and Views
	Layout5


	10.25.18 MONUMENT SIGN
	Sheets and Views
	Layout5


	10.30.18 PEDESTAL SIGN AREA
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	10a. Newton Park - Traffic Study
	TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY
	February, 2018

	Table of Contents
	List of Tables
	List of Figures
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	INTRODUCTION
	PROJECT DESCRIPTION
	SCOPE OF WORK
	Aerial Site Map

	EXISTING CONDITIONS
	ROADWAYS AND INTERSECTIONS
	EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES
	LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR EXISTING TRAFFIC
	Table 1
	Level of Service (LOS) Summary
	Existing Traffic


	BACKGROUND CONDITIONS
	SCHEDULED ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS
	BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES – GROWTH RELATED
	LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR BACKGROUND TRAFFIC
	Table 2
	Level of Service (LOS) Summary
	Background Traffic


	FUTURE CONDITIONS
	SITE TRAFFIC GENERATION
	SITE TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION
	Figure 4 – Future Traffic
	Table 4
	Level of Service (LOS) Summary
	Future Traffic
	Table 4 (Continued)
	Level of Service (LOS) Summary
	Future Traffic
	Table 5
	Level of Service (LOS) Summary
	Future Mitigated Traffic


	SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS
	DRIVEWAY ANALYSIS FOR A TURN LANE OR TAPER
	RECOMMENDATIONS

	SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

	10b. Newton Park - Traffic Study Supplemental Documents
	Newton Road Overall Siteplan 11-22-17
	US Census Data
	Saginaw & Newton - AM
	Saginaw & Newton - PM
	Saginaw & Towner - AM
	Saginaw & Towner - PM
	01 Existing AM Pk Hr
	02 Existing PM Pk Hr
	03 Back AM Pk Hr
	04 Back PM Pk Hr
	05 Fut AM Pk Hr
	06 Fut PM Pk Hr
	07 Fut Mitigated AM Pk Hr
	08 Fut Mitigated PM Pk Hr

	Newton Park - Natural Features Study - 10182018
	Newton Park - Natural Feature Study Attachments 10182018
	11. Newton Park - Natural Features Study
	4. Newton Park - Environmental Permits Checklist  10042018
	8b3. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN  11x17 - 10052018
	Newton Park - Topographic Survey 10172018
	Newton Park Tree Survey 11 x 17
	8a. Newton Park - Architectural Drawings - 11x17 - 10052018
	1
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	2
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	3
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3


	4
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	5
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2


	6
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2


	7
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3


	8
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	9
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	10
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3


	11
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	12
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	13
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	14
	Sheets and Views
	Layout2


	15
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3


	16
	Sheets and Views
	Layout4


	17
	Sheets and Views
	Layout4


	18
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3


	19
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3


	20
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	21
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	22
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3


	23
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3


	24
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	25
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	26
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3


	27
	Sheets and Views
	Layout3



	8c1. NEWTON PARK MUPUD CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN 11x17 - 10052018
	8c2. NEWTON PARK MUPUD CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN AMENITIES 11x17 - 10052018
	REZ #06050 conditions

	SUP #18091 with attachments.pc1
	SUP 18091.pc1
	Newton Park - SUP Application

	PUD 18014.pc5
	PUD 18014 resolution PC approval

	Other: Developer
	Project name: Newton Park
	Telephone Work_2: 
	EMail_2: 
	Telephones: (586) 243-5945/(517) 339-1014
	undefined: 
	EMail_3: trcallaway@hotmail.com/Jkyes@kebs.com
	Percent of project area: 7.32%
	Total square feet for nonresidential uses: 19,367 SF
	Usable floor area: 19,367 SF
	Number of employees: TBD
	Hours of operation: TBD
	Proposed Amenities Type_2: Dog Park
	Type_5: Walking Paths
	Type_6: Sports & Recreation Areas
	Type_7: Connector to Meridian Parks
	Nonresidential uses: 147
	Residential uses: 267
	Proposed Amenities Type: Pocket Parks
	Type_2: Public Plazas
	Fee: 
	Received by: 
	PreApplication Meeting Held: 
	Date_2: 
	Application Complete: 
	By: 
	Name: The Peabody Group, Inc./KEBS, Inc., 
	Mailing Address: 2502 Lake Lansing Road, Lansing, MI 48912
	Telephone: (517) 371-5300/(704) 626-0705 (cell)
	Fax: (517) 371-5356
	EMail: cholman@dtnmgt.com
	Type of Business if applicable: Real Estate Development
	OwnerManager: DTN Management
	Date: 
	List Box1: [Yes]
	List Box2: [No]
	List Box3: [No]
	List Box4: [Yes]
	List Box5: [No]
	List Box6: [No]
	List Box7: [No]
	List Box8: [No]
	List Box9: [No]
	List Box10: [No]
	List Box11: [No]
	List Box12: [No]
	List Box13: [No]
	List Box14: [Yes]
	List Box15: [Yes]
	List Box16: [No]
	List Box17: [Yes]
	List Box18: [No]
	List Box19: [No]
	List Box20: [No]
	List Box21: [No]
	List Box22: [No]
	Applicant: Newton Pointe, LLC - Chuck Holman
	Address of Applicant: 2502 Lake Lansing Road, Lansing, MI 48912
	Telephone Work: (517) 371-5300/(704) 626-0705 (cell)
	Home: NA
	Email: cholman@dtnmgt.com
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box2: Off
	Text26: Developer
	Site address  location  parcel number: 6276 Newton Road, Haslett, MI 48840 Parcel Nos. 33-02-04-252-004 & 33-02-04-252-005
	Legal description please attach if necessary: See Attached
	Current zoning: C-2
	Use for which permit is requested  project name: Newton Park
	Corresponding ordinance number: Township Code of Ordinances, ArticleVI - Buildings greater than 25,000 SF
	Developer if different than applicant: 
	Address: 
	Telephone  Work: 
	Home_2: 
	Fax_2: 
	Address_2: 4740 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864/2116 Haslett Road, Haslett, MI 48840
	Telephone  Work_2: (586) 243-5945/(517) 339-1014
	Home_3: trcallaway@hotmail.com/Jkyes@kebs.com
	Fax_3: none
	Acreage of all parcels in the project Gross: 26.11
	Net: 23.95
	Text1: (used for non-residential & residential)
	Existing structures: NA
	bedrooms: NA
	offices: NA
	parking spaces: NA
	carports: NA
	garages: NA
	Proposed structures: 29
	bedrooms_2: 364
	offices_2: NA
	parking spaces_2: 414
	carports_2: NA
	garages_2: 174
	existing buildings: NA
	proposed buildings: 264,684 
	existing buildings_2: NA
	proposed buildings_2: 264,684 
	Text2: Payment included with application
	Type: Commercial
	Acreage: 26.11
	Acreage_2: 
	Type_3: Raised Gardens
	Acreage_3: 26.11
	Type_4: Clubhouse/Business Office/Conference Room/Pool
	Acreage_4: 9.32
	Total acres of property: 26.11
	Acres in floodplain: None
	Percent of total: 0%
	Acres in wetland not in floodplain: 5.5
	Percent of total_2: 22.96 %
	Total dwelling units: 218
	for Rent: 9
	Condo: 
	for Rent_2: 
	Condo_2: 
	for Rent_3: 124
	Condo_3: 
	for Rent_4: 85
	Condo_4: 
	for Rent_5: 
	Condo_5: 
	Text3: See Attached
	Text4: See Attached
	Text5: See Attached
	Text6: See Attached
	Text7: See Attached
	Text8: See Attached. Samples & Display Board Included
	Text9: See Architectural Drawings
	Text10: See Attached
	Text11: See Attached
	Text12: This site is within the urban service boundary. Utilities are near site and can serve site.
	Text13: See Architectural elevations
	Text14: See photometric plan & lighting fixture cut sheets attached
	Text15: See letters of request attached
	Text17: Yes
	Text16: See Attached
	Text18: No
	Text19: No
	Text20: Yes
	Text21: Yes
	Text22: No
	Text23: No
	Check Box5: Yes
	Check Box6: Off
	TypePrint Name: Newton Pointe, LLC - Chuck Holman
	Text24: 
	Received byDate: 


